

# SAP<sup>®</sup> Certification Success Guide

For Exam C\_HANAIMP\_11

# **Application Associate Exam**

# SAP HANA® Certification Guide

»Achieve success with the only SAP-endorsed certification guide«



Rudi de Louw



SAP PRESS is a joint initiative of SAP and Rheinwerk Publishing. The knowhow offered by SAP specialists combined with the expertise of Rheinwerk Publishing offers the reader expert books in the field. SAP PRESS features first-hand information and expert advice, and provides useful skills for professional decision-making.

SAP PRESS offers a variety of books on technical and business-related topics for the SAP user. For further information, please visit our website: <u>http://www.sap-press.com</u>.

Bjarne Berg, Penny Silva SAP HANA: An Introduction (4th edition) 2016, approx. 610 pages, hardcover and e-book www.sap-press.com/4160

James Wood Getting Started with SAP HANA Cloud Platform 2015, 519 pages, hardcover and e-book www.sap-press.com/3638

Bilay, Gutsche, Stiehl SAP HANA Cloud Integration 2016, 420 pages, hardcover and e-book www.sap-press.com/3979

Ankisettipalli, Chen, Wankawala SAP HANA Advanced Data Modeling 2016, 392 pages, hardcover and e-book www.sap-press.com/3863 Rudi de Louw

# **SAP HANA<sup>®</sup> Certification Guide**

Application Associate Exam



Bonn • Boston

# Dear Reader,

I write this optimistically. I write this in the hopes that after months of hard work, long nights, and way too many email exchanges initiated by yours truly (sorry Rudi!), that Rudi will finally be able to say: "See, here it is! The fruits of my labor; the sweat from my brow. Take it!"

If this book has taught me anything (besides editors and authors make great teams), it's that SAP HANA is still growing, and sometimes it's a mad dash to keep up. As Rudi can tell you, just when you think a chapter is ready to go, something is updated. However, with a little luck and a whole lot of elbow grease, over the next week this book will slide feet first into the finish line.

But, you don't need me to tell you that the world of SAP HANA is constantly shifting. Like us, you're in the business of staying on top of the latest SAP HANA has to offer. Carefully crafted to prepare test-takers for the exam, this book is your first step in staying one step ahead of the competition and furthering your career. So, as you prepare for the big test, take solace in the fact that you've come to the right place, and, of course, Rudi and I are rooting for you.

What did you think about SAP HANA Certification Guide: Application Associate Exam? Your comments and suggestions are the most useful tools to help us make our books the best they can be. Please feel free to contact me and share any praise or criticism you may have.

Thank you for purchasing a book from SAP PRESS!

Sarah Frazier Editor, SAP PRESS

Rheinwerk Publishing Boston, MA

sarahf@rheinwerk-publishing.com http://www.sap-press.com

# Notes on Usage

This e-book is **protected by copyright**. By purchasing this e-book, you have agreed to accept and adhere to the copyrights. You are entitled to use this e-book for personal purposes. You may print and copy it, too, but also only for personal use. Sharing an electronic or printed copy with others, however, is not permitted, neither as a whole nor in parts. Of course, making them available on the Internet or in a company network is illegal as well.

For detailed and legally binding usage conditions, please refer to the section <u>Legal Notes</u>.

This e-book copy contains a **digital watermark**, a signature that indicates which person may use this copy:

# Imprint

This e-book is a publication many contributed to, specifically:

Editor Sarah Frazier Acquisitions Editor Kelly Grace Weaver Copyeditor Melinda Rankin Cover Design Graham Geary Image Credit Shutterstock.com/229432660/© kovadenys Production E-Book Graham Geary Typesetting E-Book SatzPro, Krefeld (Germany)

We hope that you liked this e-book. Please share your feedback with us and read the <u>Service Pages</u> to find out how to contact us.

#### The Library of Congress has cataloged the printed edition as follows:

Names: De Louw, Rudi.

Title: SAP HANA certification guide : application associate exam / Rudi de Louw. Description: 1st edition. | Bonn ; Boston : Rheinwerk Publishing, 2016. | Includes index. Identifiers: LCCN 2015045017 (print) | LCCN 2016000774 (ebook) | ISBN 9781493212309 (print : alk. paper) | ISBN 9781493212323 (print and ebook : alk. paper) | ISBN 9781493212316 (ebook)

Subjects: LCSH: Relational databases--Examinations--Study guides. | Business enterprises--Computer networks--Examinations--Study guides. | SAP HANA (Electronic resource)--Examinations--Study guides. | Computer programmers--Certification.

Classification: LCC QA76.9.D32 D45 2016 (print) | LCC QA76.9.D32 (ebook) | DDC 005.75/6-dc23 LC record available at http://lccn.loc.gov/2015045017

# ISBN 978-1-4932-1230-9 (print) ISBN 978-1-4932-1231-6 (e-book) ISBN 978-1-4932-1232-3 (print and e-book)

 $\ensuremath{\mathbb{C}}$  2016 by Rheinwerk Publishing, Inc., Boston (MA)  $1^{st}$  edition 2016

# Contents

Acknowledgments	15
Preface	17

# 

Who This Book Is For	24
SAP HANA Certifications	
Associate-Level Certification	27
Professional-Level Certification	28
Specialist-Level Certification	28
SAP HANA Application Associate Certification Exam	
Exam Objective	31
Exam Structure	31
Exam Process	33
Summary	

# 2 SAP HANA Training .....

SAP Education Training Courses	36
Training Courses for SAP HANA Certifications	37
Additional SAP HANA Training Courses	38
Other Sources of Information	39
SAP Help	39
hana.sap.com and SAP Community Network	41
SAP HANA Academy	41
openSAP and openHPI	44
Hands-On with SAP HANA	46
Where to Get an SAP HANA System	46
Project Examples	52
Where to Get Data	54
Exam Questions	56
Types of Questions	56
Elimination Technique	58
Bookmark Questions	59
General Examination Strategies	59
Summary	60

3 Architecture and Deployment Scenarios	61
Objectives of This Portion of the Test	62
Key Concepts Refresher	63
In-Memory Technology	63
Architecture and Approach	69
Deployment Scenarios	79
Important Terminology	
Practice Questions	91
Practice Question Answers and Explanations	96
Takeaway	99
Summary	99

#### Information Modeling Concents 4

+ momation modeling concepts initiation	
Objectives of This Portion of the Test	102
Key Concepts Refresher	103
Tables	103
Views	103
Cardinality	106
Joins	107
Core Data Services Views	117
Cube	119
Information Views	122
Using Information Views	124
Other Modeling Artifacts	127
Semantics	132
Hierarchies	132
Best Practices and Modeling Guidelines	134
Important Terminology	135
Practice Questions	136
Practice Question Answers and Explanations	144
Takeaway	147

Summary ..... 148

5	Information Modeling Tools	149
Obj	ectives of This Portion of the Test	150
Key	Concepts Refresher	151

101

SAP HANA Web-Based Development Workbench	170
Important Terminology	174
Practice Questions	175
Practice Question Answers and Explanations	178
Takeaway	179
Summary	180

# 6 Information Views ...... 181

Objectives of This Portion of the Test	182	
Key Concepts Refresher		
Data Sources for Information Views	184	
Calculation Views: Type Dimension, Type Cube, and Type Cube with		
Star Join	185	
Working with Nodes	197	
Semantics Node	202	
Attribute Views and Calculation Views of Type Dimension	205	
Analytic Views and Calculation Views of Type Cube with Star Join	208	
Migrating Attribute and Analytic Views	209	
Important Terminology	213	
Practice Questions	214	
Practice Question Answers and Explanations	218	
Takeaway	220	
Summary	221	
•		

# 7 Advanced Information Modeling ..... 223

Objectives of this Portion of the Test	224
Key Concepts Refresher	
Calculated Columns	225
Restricted Columns	231
Filters	236
Variables	238
Input Parameters	242
Currency	246
Decision Tables	250
Hierarchies	253
Important Terminology	258
Practice Questions	260
Practice Question Answers and Explanations	264

#### 10 Contents

Takeaway	 267
Summary	 268

# 

Objectives of This Portion of the Test	271
Key Concepts Refresher	
SQL	272
SQLScript	278
Views, Functions, and Procedures	293
Catching Up with SAP HANA SPS 11	295
Important Terminology	299
Practice Questions	300
Practice Question Answers and Explanations	306
Takeaway	309
Summary	309

# 

Objectives of This Portion of the Test	313
Key Concepts Refresher	313
Text	314
Spatial	323
Predictive	327
Important Terminology	332
Practice Questions	333
Practice Question Answers and Explanations	337
Takeaway	338
Summary	339

# 10 Optimization of Information Models

Objectives of This Portion of the Test	342
Key Concepts Refresher	343
Architecture and Performance	343
Redesigned and Optimized Applications	344
Information Modeling Techniques	345
Optimization Tools	346
Best Practices for Optimization	358

359
360
363
365
366

# 11 Administration of Information Models .....

3	6	7

Objectives of This Portion of the Test	368
Key Concepts Refresher	369
Validating and Activating Information Models	369
Transporting Information Models	374
Core Data Services	383
Refactoring Information Models	383
Documenting Information Models	387
Translating Information Models	389
Important Terminology	390
Practice Questions	392
Practice Question Answers and Explanations	397
Takeaway	400
Summary	401

Objectives of This Portion of the Test	404
Key Concepts Refresher	405
Background Information	405
Architecture	409
Virtual Data Model	410
SAP HANA Live Views	412
Installation and Administration	413
SAP HANA Live Browser-Browse and Use Views	415
SAP HANA Live Extension Assistant—Modify Views	422
Important Terminology	424
Practice Questions	425
Practice Question Answers and Explanations	428
Takeaway	430
Summary	430

13 Security	433
Objectives of This Portion of the Test	434
Key Concepts Refresher	435
Usage and Concepts	435
Users	439
Roles	443
Privileges	446
Testing Security	458
Important Terminology	459
Practice Questions	461
Practice Question Answers and Explanations	463
Takeaway	465
Summary	465

# 

Objectives of This Portion of the Test	468	
Key Concents Refresher		
Concepts	470	
Concepts	176	
SAD LT Deplication Server	470	
SAP LT Replication Server	4/8	
SAP Replication Server	484	
SAP Direct Extractor Connection	485	
SAP HANA Smart Data Access	488	
SAP HANA Enterprise Information Management	495	
SAP HANA Smart Data Streaming	497	
Flat Files or Microsoft Excel Datasheets	500	
Web Services (OData and REST)	502	
Important Terminology	502	
Practice Questions	505	
Practice Question Answers and Explanations	508	
Takeaway	510	
Summary	511	

Objectives of this Portion of the Test	514
Key Concepts Refresher	515
Business Intelligence Concepts	515

Business Intelligence Tools for Microsoft Office Integration	522
Business Intelligence Tools for Applications and Dashboards	527
Business Intelligence Tools for Data Discovery	529
Business Intelligence Tools for Reporting	532
Choosing the Right Business Intelligence Tool	533
Alternative Consumption Methods for SAP HANA	534
Important Terminology	538
Practice Questions	538
Practice Question Answers and Explanations	541
Takeaway	542
Summary	542
The Author	543
Index	545
Service Pages	1
Legal Notes	
2024.10000	

# Acknowledgments

"...Write the vision, and make it plain upon tables, that he may run that readeth it." – Habakkuk 2:2, King James Bible

SAP PRESS had the *vision* for a book on the SAP HANA certification exam. It was my privilege to *write* it and to make it *plain*. And it is my wish that every reader of this book *run* with the knowledge and understanding gained from it.

In my more than five year journey with SAP HANA, I have met hundreds of people, all passionate about SAP HANA. Thank you to all of you!

Some of these people were SAP colleagues that played a pivotal role in my journey. Thank you to Laura King, Colin Banks, Tim Breitwieser, Markus Schunter, Eva Moreno, Estelle de Beer, the pre-sales team, and Wian Terblanche. Thank you to the SAP HANA team at SAP Education for inviting me to be a part of the team, especially Mathias Montag, Mark Green, and Alain Viguie. Thank you to the SAP HANA certification teams I worked with over the years, especially Katrin Rissberger, Thomas Goettsche, and Sheri Schaaf.

This book presented a unique opportunity for me. Therefore, I'd like to say thank you especially to Sarah Frazier, the editor, for your patience and encouragement. Thank you to the entire team at SAP PRESS for making this book happen. Thank you to Werner Steyn and Thomas Jung for helping clarify the latest changes to SAP HANA, and to all my colleagues who encouraged me each time you saw me.

I'm very thankful to all of you: My family, my friends, my colleagues, and my students.

To my readers: I trust that your journey will be even more amazing!

# Preface

The SAP PRESS Certification Series is designed to provide anyone who is preparing to take an SAP certified exam with all of the review, insight, and practice they need to pass the exam. The series is written in practical, easy-to-follow language that provides targeted content that is focused on what you need to know to successfully take your exam.

This book is specifically written for those preparing to take the SAP Certified Application Associate – SAP HANA C\_HANAIMP\_11 exam, so if you've purchased this book, you're obviously interested in learning how to successfully pass the certification exam. This book will also be helpful to those of you taking the SPS 09 exam (C\_HANAIMP151) and SPS 10 delta exam (D\_HANAIMP\_10). The SAP Certified Application Associate – SAP HANA exam tests the taker in the areas of data modeling. It focuses on core SAP HANA skills, as opposed to skills that are specific to a particular implementation type (e.g., SAP BW on SAP HANA or SAP Business Suite on SAP HANA). The Application Associate test can be taken by anyone who signs up.

Using this book, you will walk away with a thorough understanding of the exam structure and what to expect in taking it. You will receive a refresher on key concepts covered on the exam, and will be able to test your skills via sample practice questions and answers. The book is closely aligned with the course syllabus and the exam structure, so all of the information provided is relevant and applicable to what you need to know to prepare. We explain the SAP products and features using practical examples and straightforward language, so you can prepare for the exam and improve your skills in your day-to-day work as an SAP HANA data modeler. Each book in the series has been structured and designed to highlight what you really need to know.

# **Structure of This Book**

Each chapter begins with a clear list of the learning objectives, such as:

# Techniques You'll Master

- How to prepare for the exam
- Understanding the general exam structure
- Practice questions and preparation

From there, you'll dive into the chapter and get right into the test objective coverage.

Throughout the book, we've also provided several elements that will help you access useful information:

- Tips call out useful information about related ideas and provide practical suggestions for how to use a particular function.
- ► Notes provide other resources to explore or special tools or services from SAP that will help you with the topic under discussion. The following boxes are examples of these elements:

#### Note

Tip

This certification guide covers all topics you need to successfully pass the exam. It provides sample questions similar to those found on the actual exam.



This book contains screenshots and diagrams to help your understanding of the many information modeling concepts.

Each chapter that covers an exam topic is organized in a similar fashion so you can become familiar with the structure and easily find the information you need. Here's an example of a typical chapter structure:

# Introductory bullets

The beginning of each chapter discusses the techniques you must master to be considered proficient in the topic for the certification examination.

# ► Topic introduction

This section provides you with a general idea of the topic at hand to frame future sections. It also includes objectives for the exam topic covered.

# ► Real-world scenario

This part shows a scenario that provides you with a case where these skills would be beneficial to you or your company.

# Objectives

This section provides you with the necessary information to successfully pass this portion of the test.

# Key concept refresher

This section outlines the major concepts of the chapter. It identifies the tasks you will need to be able to understand or perform properly to answer the questions on the certification examination.

# Important terminology

Just prior to the practice examination questions, we provide a section to review important terminology. This may be followed by definitions of various terms from the chapter.

# Practice questions

The chapter then provides a series of practice questions related to the topic of the chapter. The questions are structured in a similar way to the actual questions on the certification examination.

# Practice question answers and explanations

Following the practice exercise are the solutions to the practice exercise questions. As part of the answer, we discuss why an answer is considered correct or incorrect.

# Takeaway

This section provides a takeaway or reviews the areas you should now understand. The refresher section identifies the key concepts in the chapter. We also provide some tips related to the chapter.

# ► Summary

Finally, we conclude with a summary of the chapter.

Now that you have an idea of how the book is structured, the following list will dive into the individual topics covered in each chapter of the exam:

- Chapter 1, SAP HANA Certification Track—Overview, provides a look at the different certifications for SAP HANA: associate, professional, and specialist. It then looks at the general exam objectives, structure, and scoring.
- Chapter 2, SAP HANA Training, discusses the available training and training material other there for test takers, so you know where to look for answers beyond the book. We identify the SAP Education training courses available for classroom, virtual, and e-learning, in addition to SAP Learning Hub offerings. We then look into additional resources, including official SAP documentation, SAP HANA Academy video tutorials, and more.
- Chapter 3, Architecture and Deployment Scenarios, walks through the evolution of SAP HANA's in-memory technology and how it addresses the problems of the past, such as slow disk. From there, you are given an overview of the persistence layer, before looking at the different deployment options including cloud deployments.
- Chapter 4, Information Modeling Concepts, discusses general modeling concepts such as cubes, fact tables, the difference between attributes and measures, in addition to covering general modeling best practices.
- Chapter 5, Information Modeling Tools, you'll get to know SAP HANA's primary modeling tools, including SAP HANA studio and the SAP HANA webbased development workbench. In addition, you'll learn how to create new information models, tables, and data.
- <u>Chapter 6</u>, Information Views, looks in depth at the three primary information views in SAP HANA, as well as the tools for migrating old information views, such as analytic and attribute views, to the new standard.
- Chapter 7, Advanced Information Modeling, takes what we've learned one step further. In this chapter, you'll learn to enhance information views with calculated columns, filter expressions, and more.
- Chapter 8, SQL and SQLScript, reviews how to enhance SAP HANA models using SQL and SQLScript to create tables, read and filter data, create calculated columns, implement procedures, use user-defined functions, and more.

- Chapter 9, Text, Spatial, and Predictive Modeling, looks at more advanced topics, such as creating a text search index, implementing fuzzy search and text analysis, using the key components of spatial processing, and creating predictive analysis models.
- Chapter 10, Optimization of Information Models, reviews how to monitor, investigate, and optimize data models in SAP HANA. We'll look at how optimization effects architecture, performance, and information modeling techniques. We'll then dive into the different tools used for optimization including the Explain Plan, Visualize Plan, Administration console, and the Performance Analysis Mode.
- Chapter 11, Administration of Information Models, teaches the finer points of data model administration. In this chapter, you'll learn how to validate information models, the difference between design-time and runtime objects, the transport process, the refactoring process, and much more.
- Chapter 12, SAP HANA Live, looks at how to adapt pre-delivered content to your own business solutions using SAP HANA Live. You'll learn about SAP HANA Live's different views, and its two primary tools: SAP HANA Live Browser and the SAP HANA Live Extension Assistant.
- ► <u>Chapter 13</u>, Security, discusses how users, roles, and privileges work together. We'll look at the different types of users, template roles, and privileges that are available in the SAP HANA system.
- <u>Chapter 14</u>, Data Provisioning, introduces the concepts, tools, and methods for data provisioning in SAP HANA. From SAP Data Services to SAP HANA smart data streaming (SDS).
- Chapter 15, Utilization of Information Models, concludes our book with details on basic business intelligence concepts and technologies. We'll look at business intelligence tools for Microsoft Office integration, applications and dashboards, data discovery, and reporting.

# Practice Questions

We want to give you some background on the test questions before you encounter the first few in the chapters. Just like the exam, each question has a basic structure:

# Actual question

Read the question carefully and be sure to consider all the words used in the question because they can impact the answer.

# Question hint

This is not a formal term, but we call it a hint because it will tell you how many answers are correct. If only one is correct, normally it will tell you to choose the correct answer. If more than one is correct, like the actual certification examination, it will indicate the correct number of answers.

# Answers

The answers to select from depend on the question type. The following question types are possible:

- Multiple response: More than one correct answer is possible.
- Multiple choice: Only a single answer is correct.
- True/false: Only a single answer is correct. These types of questions are not used in the exam, but are used in the book to test your understanding.

# Summary

With this certification guide, you'll learn how to approach the content and key concepts highlighted for each exam topic. In addition, you'll have the opportunity to practice with sample test questions in each chapter. After answering the practice questions, you'll be able to review the explanation of the answer, which dissects the question by explaining why the answers are correct or incorrect. The practice questions give you insight into the types of questions you can expect, what the questions look like, and how the answers relate to the question. Understanding the composition of the questions and seeing how the questions and answers work together is just as important as understanding the content. This book gives you the tools and understanding you need to be successful. Armed with these skills, you'll be well on your way to becoming an SAP Certified Application Associate in SAP HANA.

# SAP HANA Certification Track—Overview

# **Techniques You'll Master**

- Understand the different levels of SAP HANA certifications
- ► Find the correct SAP HANA certification exam for you
- Learn the scoring structure of the certification exams
- Discover how to book your SAP HANA certification exam

Welcome to the exciting world of SAP HANA! SAP as a company is moving at full speed to update all of its solutions to use SAP HANA. Some solutions have even changed completely to better leverage the capabilities of SAP HANA. In many senses, the future of SAP is tied to the SAP HANA platform.

SAP HANA itself is developing at a fast pace to provide all the features required for innovation. Many of the new areas that we see SAP working in, such as cloud and mobile, are enabled because of SAP HANA's many features. The best-known SAP HANA feature is its fast response times. Both cloud and mobile can suffer from latency issues, and they certainly improve with faster response times.

With the large role that SAP HANA now plays, the demand for experienced professionals with SAP HANA knowledge has grown. By purchasing this book, you've taken the first step toward meeting these demands and advancing your career via knowledge of SAP HANA.



#### Note

There are six different certifications available for SAP HANA, and each focuses on a different topic. The focus of this book is on the SAP Certified Application Associate—SAP HANA certification, which is the most in demand SAP HANA certification.

In this chapter, we'll discuss the target demographic of this book before diving into a discussion of the various SAP HANA certification exams available. We'll then look at the specific exam this book is based on before examining the structure of that exam.

# Who This Book Is For

This book covers SAP HANA from a modeling and application perspective for the C\_HANAIMP\_11 exam. As such, this book is meant for quite a large group of people from various backgrounds and interests. In a broad sense, this book talks about how to work with data and information—and more people work with information now than ever before.

This book does not go into the more technical topics (e.g., installations, upgrades, monitoring, updates, backups, and transports) addressed by some of the other SAP HANA certifications.

Let's discuss who can benefit from this book:

- ► *Information modelers* are a core audience group for this book since the main topic of this book is information modeling. This includes people who come from an enterprise data warehouse (EDW) background.
- ► *Developers* need to create and use information models—whether for SAP applications using ABAP, cloud applications using Java, web services, mobile apps, or new SAP HANA applications using SAPUI5.
- ► *Database administrators* (DBAs) must understand how to use the new inmemory and columnar database technologies of SAP HANA.
- ► *Architects* want to understand SAP HANA concepts, get an overview of what SAP HANA entails, and plan new landscapes and solutions using SAP HANA.
- *Data integration* and *data provisioning specialists* have to get data into SAP HANA in an optimal manner.
- *Report-writing professionals* constantly create, find, and consume information models. Often, the need for these information models arises from the reporting needs of business users. An understanding of how to create these information models in SAP HANA will be of great benefit.
- Data scientists, or anyone working with big data and data mining, are always looking for faster, smarter, and more efficient ways to get results that can help businesses innovate. SAP HANA has proven that it can certainly contribute to these areas.
- *Technical performance tuning experts* have to understand the intricacies of the new in-memory and columnar database paradigm to fully utilize and leverage the performance that SAP HANA can provide.

If you fit into one or more of these categories, excellent! You're in the right place. Regardless, if you've bought this book in preparation for the exam, our primary goal is to help you succeed; all exam takers are welcome!

# **SAP HANA Certifications**

There are currently six certification examinations available for SAP HANA, as listed in <u>Table 1.1</u>.

Certification	Type of Certification	Keyword	SAP Training Courses	Number of Questions	Time in Minutes
C_HANAIMP	Associate	Modeling	HA100 HA300	80	180
C_HANATEC	Associate	Technical	HA100 HA200 HA240 HA250	80	180
P_HANAIMP	Professional	Modeling	Experience	80	180
E_HANAINS	Specialist	Installation	HA200 Guides	40	90
E_HANAAW	Specialist	ABAP	HA100 HA300 HA400	40	90
E_HANABW	Specialist	BW	BW362	40	90

#### Table 1.1 SAP HANA Certifications

In <u>Table 1.1</u>, you will see that the certifications have different prefixes. The *C* prefix indicates full, core exams for SAP HANA data modeling, the *E* prefix indicates certification exams for specialists, and the *P* prefix denotes a professional-level certification exam.

<u>Table 1.1</u> also lists the main SAP training courses available for each certification, how many questions will be asked in each certification exam, and how much time is available when taking the examination.

While not shown here, the exams for all certifications have a unique number at the end of their names (e.g., C\_HANATEC\_11 is the technical certification exam for SAP HANA SPS 11). We'll discuss these different numbers in <u>Table 1.2</u>.

We can divide these different certifications into three categories: associate, professional, and specialist (as shown in the Type of Certification column in <u>Table</u> <u>1.1</u>). Let's walk through these different categories.

# **Associate-Level Certification**

The associate-level certification proves that you understand SAP HANA concepts and can apply them in projects. The associate-level certifications are based in theory and are meant for people who are new to SAP HANA.

The question we ask project members when setting up these certifications is: "What would you want candidates to be able to do and understand when they join your project immediately after passing the certification exam?" Understanding the different concepts in SAP HANA and when to use them is important.

There are two types of SAP HANA certifications that fall under the associatelevel: C\_HANAIMP (modeling) and C\_HANATEC (technical).

#### **C\_HANAIMP Modeling Certification**

As previous discussed, the *C* prefix indicates the full, core exams for SAP HANA data modeling. *IMP* refers to the *implementation* of SAP HANA applications. This examination consists of 80 questions, and you are given three hours to complete the exam.

The certification does not have any prerequisites. The main SAP training courses that help you prepare for this certification exam are HA100 and HA300. This book and this certification exam is intended for information modelers, database administrators, architects, developers of SAP HANA applications, ABAP and Java developers, people who perform data integration and reporting, those who are interested in technical performance tuning, SAP BW information modelers, data scientists, and/or anyone who wants to understand basic SAP HANA modeling concepts.

This certification exam tests your knowledge in SAP HANA subjects such as architecture, deployment, information modeling, data provisioning (i.e., how to get data into SAP HANA), using information models (e.g., through reporting), security, optimization, administration, and SAP HANA Live.

#### **C\_HANATEC** Technical Certification

The C\_HANATEC certification exam is meant for technical people such as system administrators, database administrators, SAP Basis people, technical support personnel, and hardware vendors. This certification does not have any prerequisites. The main training course for this exam is HA200.

This certification exam tests your knowledge of SAP HANA installations, updates, upgrades, migrations, system monitoring, administration, configuration, performance tuning, high availability, troubleshooting, backups, and security.

# **Professional-Level Certification**

The professional certification (P\_HANAIMP) proves that you are truly an SAP HANA expert. For the professional exam, there are no official training materials. This exam is more practical and assumes that you have a wealth of experience working with SAP HANA. SAP recommends that you have worked with SAP HANA and information modeling for at least three years prior to taking this exam. Even though there are no training materials, reading this book and the official documentation at *http://help.sap.com/hana*, going through the materials at the links provided in this book, and helping other people solve problems will certainly help you with this type of certification exam.

The latest version of the professional certification exam is P\_HANAIMP142, which came out in the second half of 2014. It focuses on SAP HANA SPS 8 and earlier and is a professional version of P\_HANAIMP, so the intended audience is roughly the same as that of this book. This will be retired as of June 30<sup>th</sup>. The P\_ HANAIMP exam has not been renewed to the latest releases of SAP HANA, and is getting a bit outdated now.

This certification also does not have any prerequisites, so you don't have to take the associate-level certification exam before you take this one. However, we encourage you to take the associate-level exam first as preparation for the professional-level examination. The areas tested in the professional exam are similar to those tested in the associate-level exam. However, where the associate-level examination bases all the questions and answers on the SAP training course materials, the professional certification is more based on practical and real-life experience.

# **Specialist-Level Certification**

The specialist exams prove that you can apply SAP HANA concepts in your current specialist area. These are for people who are already certified in other areas outside of SAP HANA and want to gain additional knowledge of SAP HANA and how to apply it to their specialties. Such people might have backgrounds in SAP BW or ABAP, for example. Each specialist exam includes 40 questions, and you have an hour an a half to complete the exam. They all have prerequisites (i.e., you have to be certified in a specialist area before you are allowed to take these SAP HANA certification exams). There are three specialist exams:

### ► E\_HANAINS Installation Certification

This exam is for technical people who perform installations of SAP HANA and for hardware vendors. This exam requires that you are certified with C\_HAN-ATEC. The main training course for this exam is HA200.

# ► E\_HANAAW ABAP Certification

This is a specialist exam for ABAP developers. It requires that you are certified with ABAP. The main training course for this exam is HA400, in which you learn how ABAP development is different in SAP HANA systems than in older SAP NetWeaver systems.

# ► E\_HANABW SAP BW on SAP HANA Certification

This is an exam for people specializing in SAP BW. It requires that you are certified with SAP BW. The main training course for this exam is BW362.

# **SAP HANA Application Associate Certification Exam**

Now, let's focus on the objective and structure of the C\_HANAIMP certification that this book targets and look at the latest C\_HANAIMP certification exam.

SAP is evolving fast and is constantly being updated. There is a new major SPS update of SAP HANA released twice a year. Therefore, every six months, SAP Education has to update all training materials and certification exams. All SAP certifications remain valid for the last two versions. This means that your SAP HANA certification, depending on when you received it, will be valid from somewhere between about six months and about a year and a half. This is regrettably a much shorter timeframe than for most other SAP certifications, some of which can remain valid for many years. In a sense, this is the cost of working in such a fast-moving environment.

As previously mentioned, the SAP HANA Application Associate Certification exam is named C\_HANAIMP.

<u>Table 1.2</u> lists the exam names for the SAP Certified Application Associate – SAP HANA certification through the years. The exam names are linked to the different SPS release numbers, though originally referred to the year.

SAP HANA Application Certification Exam	SAP HANA SPS	Year
C_HANAIMP_1	First few releases	2012
C_HANAIMP131	SPS 05	2013
C_HANAIMP141	SPS 07	2014
C_HANAIMP142	SPS 08	2014
C_HANAIMP151	SPS 09	2015
D_HANAIMP_10	SPS 10	2015
C_HANAIMP_11	SPS 11	2016

 Table 1.2
 SAP Certified Application Associate—SAP HANA Exam Names

#### Note

This book deals specifically with the latest C\_HANAIMP\_11 certification exam.

You will notice in <u>Table 1.2</u> that the C\_HANAIMP\_1 certification exam included \_1 at the end of the name, showing that it was the first certification exam. Over time, SAP started including the year in the certification exam name—for example, C\_HANAIMP151. The first two numbers of 151 refer to the year, 2015, and the last number, 1, refers to the first half of the year. In this case, this combination corresponds to SPS 09.

Recently, the naming convention was updated to refer directly to the SAP HANA SPS number. That is, the exam is now called C\_HANAIMP\_11 instead of C\_ HANAIMP161. The \_11 suffix indicates SPS 11.

SAP Education now also has started delivering delta exams for SAP HANA. This will make it easier to extend the life of your SAP HANA certification. The *D* prefix in <u>Table 1.2</u> indicates a delta certification exam. You need to have passed the C\_ HANAIMP151 certification exam before you can take the D\_HANAIMP\_10 delta exam.

Now that we've introduced the SAP Certified Application Associate—SAP HANA certification, the next section will look at the exam as whole: its objective, structure, and general process.

# **Exam Objective**

In <u>Figure 1.1</u>, in large letters, you can see the official name of the certification examination. On the left, you can see that the LEVEL is ASSOCIATE.

On the right side, you can see that the exam has 80 questions. The CUT SCORE in this example page is 59%, which means that you need to get 59% in this certification examination in order to pass. The DURATION of the exam is 180 minutes. The exam is available in English, Japanese, and Chinese.

Note that there is a PDF link for sample questions. In this case, there are 10 sample questions you can look at to get an idea of what the actual examination questions look like. We normally recommend that you keep the sample questions in reserve for later; don't dive in right away. You can use the sample questions to judge whether or not you're ready for the certification examination.

#### Тір

I always joke with my students that if you say "Huh?" when you look at the sample questions, then you're not ready for the exam.

The examination itself is focused on certain tasks.

# **Exam Structure**

When you scroll down through the web page shown in <u>Figure 1.1</u>, you will see how the exam is structured and scored. Each of the topic areas are mentioned there, as well as the percentage that each area contributes towards your final score in the certification exam.

The first area is MODELING FUNCTIONS. When you expand this area, you can see that the HA300 training course is available. More than 12% of the questions fall into the MODELING FUNCTIONS, which means that there are roughly 15 questions in the certification exam on this topic.

SAP Training and Certification	Shop	Certifications	Redeem Access Code	Register / Log on	<b>\</b>
Browse courses	Search for courses Associate - SAP HANA (Edition 2015)				٩
SAP Certified Application Solution: SAP HANA Delivery Methods: Certification Level: Associate	on Associate - SAP HAN Exam: Sample Questions Cut Score: Duration: Languages:	A (Edition 80 questions PDF Link 59% 180 mins English	2015)		
Description The "SAP Certified Application Associate - SAP HANA (Gittion 2015)" certification exam vertifies that the candidate possasses the required movelage in the area of the SAP HANA for the profile of an SAP HANA application consultant through related SAP HANA training and perferably effected by practical experiance within an SAP HANA project Learn, whereby the couldant applies acquired knowledge in this specialist and practically inpracts.	Notes To ensue success, SAP recommends combini- dication courses and hands- on experience to prepare for your certification exam sa question will test your abaility to apply the knowledge you a hand agained in training Vou are not allowed to use any reference matter during the certification test (n/a access to onlin documentation or to any SAP system).	18 15 1 1 als e	Book with Pearsoo Here you can order a vo test center. Please select a voucher and the country in which There are currently no v selection you have mad SAP Education team to test.	n VUE ucher to test at a Pearso for the test you want to h you wish to take your t rouchers available for the e. Please contact your lo clarify how you can book	n VUE take est. ea cal cyour
Topic Areas Please see below the list of topics that will be cover them: • Modeling functions Demonstrate detailed knowledge of the feature	ed within this certification and the courses that or > 1 res HA300 (HANA SPS09)	wer 2%	Find courses schedule	that fit your	Filters
that apply to various types of models. <b>SAP HANA architecture, deploy</b> Describe the value of SAP HANA, discuss use cases, explain the key technology and scenar for deployment.	HA300 (HANA SPS09) 0R Learning Room - Imp. & Modelling ment scenarios and use cases 8% - 1 HA100 (HANA SPS09) os 0R Learning Room - Imp. & Modelling	2%	Location		•

Figure 1.1 An Example C\_HANAIMP Certification Exam Information Page

The SAP HANA ARCHITECTURE, DEPLOYMENT SCENARIOS AND USE CASES topic is roughly 10% (between 8% and 12%) of the exam, meaning that it covers about eight questions. The HA100 training course is available for more information on this topic. Other portions of the exam follow this same percentage determination and provide short descriptions.

As you can see, SAP recommends two training courses: HA100 and HA300. As of SPS 10, the HA300 training course has been expanded from three to five days and now includes the relevant topics previously found only in HA360 and HA900.

<u>Table 1.3</u> lists the different topic areas you need to study for the C\_HANAIMP\_11 certification exam, the weighted percentage for each section, the estimated number of questions, and the chapters that correspond to these topics from the book.

Торіс	Percent of Exam	Estimated Number of Questions	Corresponding Chapters
SAP HANA architecture and deployment scenarios	8%–12%	8	3
Information views	8%–12%	8	4, 5, 6
Modeling functions	12% – 18%	12	7
SQL and SQLScript	8%–12%	8	8
Text, spatial, and predictive modeling	8%–12%	8	9
Optimization of models	< 8%	4	10
Management and administration of models	8%–12%	8	11
SAP HANA Live	8%–12%	8	12
Security in SAP HANA modeling	< 8%	4	13
Overview of SAP HANA Data Provisioning	8%–12%	8	14
Consumption of SAP HANA models	< 8%	4	15

 Table 1.3
 C\_HANAIMP\_11
 Exam Scoring Structure

# **Exam Process**

You can book the certification exam you want to take at *https://training.sap.com/shop/sap-search/certifications?q=C\_HANAIMP\_11*.

On the SAP training website, choose the country you live in or the country that you wish to take the exam in. The price of the certification exam and available dates will appear in the right column on the web page. Currently, all SAP HANA certification exams are administered in examination centers even though the exam is an online exam.

# Note

In the future, all certification exams will be administered in the cloud. Cloud certifications use remote proctoring, in which an exam proctor watches you (the test taker) remotely via your computer's webcam. You have to show the proctor the entire room before the exam begins by moving your webcam or your computer around. These test proctors have been trained to identify possible cheating.

When you arrive at the examination center, you will need a form of identification. During your certification exam, you will not have access to online materials, books, your mobile phone, or the Internet.

As you mark answer options, the answers are immediately stored on a server to ensure you do not lose any work. When you finish all your certification exam questions and submit the entire exam, you receive the results immediately. If you do not pass the certification exam, you can take it up to two more times. This retake option hopefully will not be important to any of the readers of this book!

Normally, you will receive the printed certificate about a week later at your examination center, or you can receive it by mail.

You can also see your certificate in the SAP Credentials Manager. You can find more information on how to register yourself at *https://training.sap.com/shop/content/Credential-Manager*. You can display your certification status here, and allow potential customers or employers to verify your certifications.

At the same link, you can find the SAP Consultants Registry, which you can use to promote your services with your certification credentials. Using this portal, companies can search for SAP professionals who are certified in a specific topic like SAP HANA.

# Summary

You should now understand the various SAP HANA certification examinations and be able to identify which exam is right for you. You know about the scoring structure of C\_HANAIMP\_11, and can focus your study time and energy accordingly.

As you work through this book, we will guide you through the questions and content that can be expected.

Best wishes on your exam!

# **SAP HANA Training**

# Techniques You'll Master

- Identify SAP Education training courses for SAP HANA
- Find related SAP courses
- Discover other sources of information and courses on the Internet
- Develop strategies for taking your SAP certification exam

In this chapter, we will provide an overview of options for available resources and training courses to prepare for your certification exam. We will look into SAP Education, which makes SAP HANA training courses available for each certification and provides related courses that can enhance your skills and understanding. We also will discuss various sources on the Internet that provide SAP HANA documentation, video tutorials, how to get hands-on expirience, and free online courses. Finally, we will review some techniques for taking the certification exam.

# **SAP Education Training Courses**

You can attend SAP official training courses in a couple of different ways. These training course options provide flexibility for learning and access to relevant materials, so you can customize your studies to your lifestyle.

These different types of training courses include:

# Classroom training

The first and most obvious option is *classroom training*, in which you attend SAP HANA courses in a classroom with a trainer for a few days. Classroom training courses provide a printed manual and a system through which you can practice and perform exercises. At the end of the week, you will walk away with a better understanding of what is described in that training material.

Classroom training is a popular option that allows individuals to focus on learning in an environment in which they can ask questions, perform exercises, discuss information with other students, and get away from their offices and emails.

# Virtual classrooms

You can also attend SAP courses via *virtual classrooms*. The virtual approach is similar to training in real-life classrooms, but you do not sit in a physical classroom with a trainer. Instead, your trainer teaches you via the Internet in a virtual classroom. You still have the ability to ask questions, chat online with other students, and perform exercises.

# E-learning

You can participate in the same training courses via *e-learning* as well. In this case, you are provided with a training manual and an audio recording of
course presentations. However, you don't have an instructor to ask questions of, and there is no interaction with others who are learning the same topic. Given that this type of training normally happens after hours, it requires some discipline.

### ► SAP Learning Hub

The last training course option is to use the SAP Learning Hub, a service you subscribe to yearly. Your subscription grants you access to the entire SAP portfolio of e-learning courses across every topic in the cloud, training materials, some vouchers for taking certification exams, learning rooms, hands-on training systems, and forums for asking questions. You can find further details about the SAP Learning Hub at *https://training.sap.com/shop/learninghub* and *www.sap.com/ training-education/learning-software-svc/learn/solutions/hub/index.html*.

In the next two subsections, we'll discuss SAP HANA training courses specific to the certification exams and additional courses related to SAP HANA that may prove useful in your learning.

# **Training Courses for SAP HANA Certifications**

<u>Table 2.1</u> lists the SAP HANA training courses for the latest C\_HANAIMP certification exams, the length of each course, and each course's prerequisites, if any.

Certification	SAP Training Course	Length	Prerequisites
C_HANAIMP151 (SPS 10 courses)	HA100, collection 10	2 days	N/A
	HA300, collection 10	5 days	HA100
D_HANAIMP_10	Delta materials provided	Self-determined	C_HANAIMP151
C_HANAIMP_11	HA100 collection 11	2 days	N/A
	HA300 collection 11	5 days	HA100

### Table 2.1 SAP Training Courses for C\_HANAIMP Certification Exams

The HA100 training course is the two-day introductory course that everyone must take, regardless of which direction you want to go with SAP HANA. HA100 provides a quick introduction to SAP HANA architecture, the different concepts of in-memory computing, modeling, data provisioning (how to get data into SAP HANA), and how to use SAP HANA information models in reports.

The HA300 training course goes into more detail on the SAP HANA modeling concepts and the security aspects of SAP HANA.

As of SPS 10, the HA300 training course has been expanded from three to five days and now includes related topics previously found only in the HA360 and HA900 courses. Now, you only need to take the HA100 and HA300 courses to prepare for the certification exam.



Tip

All the answers to the associate-level SAP HANA certification exams are guaranteed to be (somewhere) in the official SAP training material.

# **Additional SAP HANA Training Courses**

The following SAP training courses related to SAP HANA modeling can complement your skills and knowledge of SAP HANA:

► HA450

This three-day course merges SAP HANA modeling with the native application development that you can perform from SAP HANA's application server. It teaches you how you can take an SAP HANA information model, expose it as an OData or REST web service, and consume it in the JavaScript framework called SAPUI5.

► SAPX05

This course complements the HA450 training course. It focuses on SAPUI5 development.

# ► HA215

If you want to learn about SAP HANA performance tuning, the two-day HA215 course will complement the HA100 and HA300 courses.

► BW362

If you come from a SAP BW background, BW362 is a related course that might help you. This course shows you how you can build information models with SAP BW on SAP HANA.

# ► HA400

If you come from an ABAP background, you should think about attending the HA400 training course. It takes the knowledge that you gained in HA100 and

HA300 and shows you how to apply that knowledge in your ABAP development environment. You'll learn that the ways in which you access the SAP HANA information models and interface with the SAP HANA database are completely different than ways to perform similar tasks in all the other databases you've used through the years.

SAP Education offers a wide variety of courses to enhance your skills and further your career. However, it's important to know what resources are available outside the classroom as well. In the next section, we will look at additional resources for continued learning.

# **Other Sources of Information**

You will find that there is no shortage of information about SAP HANA. In fact, there is so much information available that it's almost impossible to get through it all! To help focus your search, let's look at some of the most popular sources of information.

# SAP Help

SAP Help (*http://help.sap.com*) is a valuable resource for your SAP and SAP HANA education. There is a lot of great documentation provided on this website. At *http://help.sap.com/hana\_platform*, you will see all available documentation provided in PDF format (see Figure 2.1).

Useful PDF files include the following:

What's New in the SAP HANA Platform (Release Notes) This document lists the new features in the SPSs of SAP HANA since SPS 5.

# ► SAP HANA Modeling Guide

We highly recommend this modeling guide, which provides the foundation for working with and building SAP HANA information models.

# ► SAP HANA Interactive Education (SHINE)

This guide is a demo package that you can install into your own SAP HANA system. It provides a lot of data and models, with examples of how to create good information models. In the training course, you can gain access to a SAP HANA system. You can also gain access using Amazon or Microsoft Azure Cloud (see the Hands-On with Your SAP HANA Server section of this chapter).



### Figure 2.1 SAP HANA Documentation on SAP Help

One whatever system you use, you can install the SHINE content. You can then use the data, information models, and applications provided to enhance your learning. The example screens in this book make use of the SHINE package.

### ► SAP HANA Security Guide

This guide tells you everything you need to know about security in more detail. We will discuss what you need to know about security for the exam in <u>Chapter 14</u>.

### ► SAP HANA Troubleshooting and Performance Analysis Guide

Learn how to properly troubleshoot your SAP HANA database and enhance overall performance with this guide.

### SAP HANA reference guides

There is an entire section of reference guides that provide more specific and focused discussions of particular SAP HANA topics:

- ► SAP HANA SQLScript Reference
- ► SAP HANA XS JavaScript Reference

- ► SAP HANA XS JavaScript API Reference
- ► SAP HANA XSUnit JavaScript API Reference
- ► SAP HANA XS DB Utilities JavaScript API Reference
- ► SAP HANA Business Function Library (BFL)
- ► SAP HANA Predictive Analysis Library (PAL) Reference

# SAP HANA Developer Quick Start Guide

This specific developer's guide is presented as a set of tutorials.

### ► SAP HANA Developer Guide

We recommend reviewing this guide, especially because development and information modeling are closely linked in SAP HANA. This guide teaches you how to build applications in SAP HANA, write procedures, and more.

### ► SAPUI5 Developer Guide for SAP HANA

This guide provides insight into building SAPUI5 applications on SAP HANA.

For some of these documents, it might be helpful to have an actual system to play with, because some guides provide step-by-step instructions for certain actions. We discuss how to access a system in the Hands-On with SAP HANA section.

# hana.sap.com and SAP Community Network

The main website for SAP HANA is *http://hana.sap.com/*, which offers the latest news about SAP HANA and its different use cases. Startup companies that wish to develop solutions on the SAP HANA platform can join the SAP HANA Startup Forum here.

SAP Community Network (SCN) provides a central location for members of different SAP communities and solution users. At *http://scn.sap.com/community/ hana-in-memory*, you can ask questions about your own SAP HANA system. Many SAP employees will answer questions posted on this website.

# **SAP HANA Academy**

From *http://hana.sap.com/*, you can find a link to the SAP HANA ACADEMY; clicking it takes you directly to YouTube. The SAP HANA Academy area of YouTube provides hundreds of free video tutorials on all topic areas of SAP HANA. You can also access it directly via *www.youtube.com/user/saphanaacademy/playlists?* view=1&flow=grid&sort=lad. <u>Figure 2.2</u> shows the main screen for SAP HANA Academy.

= You Tube ZA	٩	Upload Sign in
Home BEST OF YOUTUBE     Popular on YouTube     Music     Sports     Saming     Sming     News	SAP HANA ACADEMY	COL HAND Academy
Live G 360° Video Browse channels	SAP HANA Academy Home Videos Playlists Channels Discussion About Q	Last added to • Grid •
Sign in row to see your channels and recommendations!	Image: Section of the section of t	H⊄ar F F F F F F F F F F F F F
	Image: Second	SAP HANA Smart Data Access
	SAP HANA Administration Database Backup and Recovery Predictive Analysis Library Predictive Analysis Predi	SAP HANA Smart Data Streaming
	Additionant Database Containers Additionant Database Containers	SAP Cloud identity
	Carl And Car	0 in Using Extended Application Services

Figure 2.2 SAP HANA Academy at YouTube

SAP employees who perform actual tasks on an SAP HANA system make these videos. If you've never made a backup of an SAP HANA system, for example, you can search for a video on how to do just that, with step-by-step instructions.

Because there are so many video clips available, we recommend that you select the PLAYLISTS option from the YouTube menu. In the dropdown, just below this menu, select CREATED PLAYLISTS. Then, from the dropdown menu on the right side, select LAST ADDED TO. Alternately, go to the URL provided previously to see the latest video clips at the top. This is useful when a new SAP HANA SPS is released, for example, and you want to find out about the new features it brings to SAP HANA.

With each new SAP HANA release, new videos are added to the SAP HANA Academy YouTube channel—so if you're really bored this weekend and you don't know what to do with all your time, you can watch a few hours of SAP HANA video clips!

You can also find videos on SAP HANA Academy for building solutions. On the PLAYLISTS page, when you scroll down, you will see a section called BUILDING SOLUTIONS. This is shown in Figure 2.3.



### Figure 2.3 Playlists for Building Solutions

You will now see about nine different series for building a solution. In <u>Figure 2.4</u>, we have selected the LIVE2 series, which helps you to build a social network solution with SAP HANA.

Some of these series will be using older support packs of SAP HANA. You can always adapt the learning to the latest techniques discussed in this book. For example, instead of using analytic views, you will use calculation views of type cube with star join.

As noted earlier, the *http://help.sap.com* website provides all the PDFs for you to read, which is great if you like reading and you want the PDFs on your tablet or phone, for example. On the other hand, the SAP HANA Academy YouTube channel is good if you prefer visual learning, and it may be more practical.



Figure 2.4 Guided Learning on SAP HANA Academy

# openSAP and openHPI

The next websites for you to explore are *https://open.sap.com/* (openSAP; see <u>Figure 2.5</u>) and *https://open.hpi.de/* (openHPI). The openHPI website provides a good training course on SAP HANA by Hasso Plattner, and the openSAP website provides many free training courses on a large variety of SAP topics.

These websites frequently add new online training courses, of which some focus on SAP HANA. When new training courses become available, you can enroll in them. Every week, you will receive a few video clips. These courses are normally four to six weeks long, and every week you will take a test. All the tests together are worth 50% of your total score. In the last week, you take an exam, which is worth the other 50% of your score. At the end of the course, you receive a certificate of attendance, and if you performed well, the certificate will show your score. If appropriate, the certificate will also show that you were in the top 10% or top 20% of your class.



### Note

These openSAP certificates do not hold the same weight as the official SAP Education certifications!



#### Figure 2.5 openSAP Website

After you complete one of these free online courses, you cannot retake the tests or exams, but you can still access all of the other course materials. You can always download the video clips, the PowerPoint slides, and the transcripts for your records.

#### Tip

We recommend a series of SAP HANA development courses presented by Thomas Jung, including a new course available specifically for SAP HANA SPS 11. You can find the Software Development on SAP HANA (Delta SPS 11) course at *https://open.sap.com/courses/hana4*. Many of the courses on openSAP focus on SAP HANA. While these courses do not focus on modeling, some of them are excellent complementary training. At *https://open.sap.com/courses* you can see a list of available courses.

# Hands-On with SAP HANA

Everyone learns differently. Some people like visuals, others learn by listening, and still others learn by doing. In this section, we look at how to gain some hands-on experience with practice systems, projects, and data. We'll begin with the different ways you can personally access an SAP HANA system.

# Where to Get an SAP HANA System

On the SAP HANA Developer Center site (*http://go.sap.com/developer/hana.html*) you can get a free SAP HANA server for 30 days or create your own server in the cloud (see <u>Figure 2.6</u>).



Figure 2.6 SAP HANA Developer Center Website

When you scroll down through this page, you will find links to sign up for SAP HANA CLOUD PLATFORM, MICROSOFT AZURE CLOUD, and AMAZON WEB SERVICES (see Figure 2.7).

if ( interested ) { try it now }							
	SAP HANA Cloud Platform	Microsoft Azure Cloud	Amazon Web Services				
Get your free, perpetual SAP HANA developer edition (including license and software) to build, test and demo your SAP HANA applications. Choose the cloud-based server environment that best suits your needs. After you sign up f can get you starter	Get your free trial instance of SAP HANA and use it to build your first apps and test the platform on the SAP global cloud network. The instance uses a shared server, with a variable number of cores and provides 1 GB storage. <b>Completely free</b> for developer use only. <b>Sign up now</b>	Create your developer edition environment on the Microsoft Azure cloud. The instance offers 8 cores and 64 GB of RAM. Use the Price Calculator to determine the cost of running your SAP HANA developer instance in the cloud. Microsoft Azure Price Calculator Sign up now	Create your developer edition environment on Amazon Web Services (AWS). The instance offers 8 cores, 32 or 64 GB RAM and 127 GB disk. Use the Price Calculator to determine the cost of running your SAP HANA developer instance in the cloud. AWS Price Calculator Sign up now				
while true ( learn more )							
	Want more? Full	Tutorial Catalog					

Figure 2.7 SAP HANA Trial and Sign-Up Options

You can view a tutorial on how to SAP HANA developer edition in the cloud at *http://go.sap.com/developer/tutorials/hana-setup-cloud.html*.

Both the Amazon Web Services (AWS) and the Microsoft Azure Cloud offerings are ideal for learning more about SAP HANA in a practical manner. They're both quite inexpensive, so long as you remember to switch things off when you're finished—that is, essentially pressing a pause button on your SAP HANA system. Otherwise, the cloud providers will continue charging you for the CPU, the memory, the network, and the disk space being used. You can also put a limit on your finances to ensure you don't go over your budget. In this section, we'll look at these options in greater detail, whether you're using a free trial, paying a cloud provider for the hardware, or using your own server.

# SAP HANA Cloud Platform-Free Trial

We can start with the cheapest and easiest way to get your own SAP HANA system.

<u>Figure 2.8</u> shows *https://account.hanatrial.ondemand.com/*, where you can get an SAP HANA system for free on SAP HANA Cloud Platform (SAP HCP). After a quick registration process, you will gain access to SAP HCP.



Figure 2.8 SAP HCP Registration

To learn how to set up your own SAP HANA system in SAP HCP, you can read the SAP HANA GETTING STARTED information, as shown in <u>Figure 2.9</u>, on *https://help.hana.ondemand.com/help/frameset.htm*.

The free account on the SAP HCP has some restrictions. You do not get a lot of memory for loading large datasets. The cloud platform is shared with many other users. User restrictions can prevent you from easily loading packages like SHINE. You can load SHINE on SAP HCP, but it is not as straightforward and easy as on other options.

SAP HCP is however an excellent choice to get going quickly, and does not cost you anything.

SAP HANA Cloud Documentation	Developer Communi	ity   API Documentation	Q,
			•
+ - <> «			
SAP HANA Cloud Platform	SAP HANA Cloud Platfor	m	
> Product Overview			
✓ Get Started	Get Started	Get Productive	
Creating Your First Cloud Application			
> Accounts	Account Types	Develop	
> Java: Getting Started	Creating Your First Cloud Application	SAP HANA   Java   SAPUI5   HTML5	
> SAP HANA: Getting Started	Tutorials	Operations	
> HTML5: Getting Started	Java Samples	Configure   Update   Log   Debug   Monitor	
Tutoriale	SAP HANA Samples	Secure Applications	
	Glossary	Authentication   Authorization   OAuth 2.0   Roles   ID Federation	
Glossary			
> Tools	Enable Application Providers to Access Your Account		
> Services		A	
> Develop Applications	What's In	What's New	
> Extend SAP Solutions			

Figure 2.9 SAP HCP Help Documentation

#### Developer Edition on Amazon Web Services and Microsoft Azure Cloud

The next option is to get your own SAP HANA system on the AWS cloud or the Microsoft Azure Cloud. While the developer license for SAP HANA is free from SAP, you still need to pay for the hosted solution on AWS or Microsoft. You can, however, bring down the costs by pausing your SAP HANA system when you are not using it.

The easiest way to create your own SAP HANA system on AWS or Microsoft Azure Cloud is by using the SAP Cloud Appliance Library. You can find this at *https://cal.sap.com/*. <u>Figure 2.10</u> shows you what the home screen looks like. Registration is also for free on this website.

Once you are registered you can select the SAP HANA system you want to create. <u>Figure 2.11</u> shows the SOLUTIONS tab. Here you can filter the solution by typing "HANA Dev" in the text field on the top right of the screen.

On the next screen, you will be shown a list of possible solutions. In Figure 2.11, you can see the SAP HANA DEVELOPER EDITION 1.0 SPS 10 solution.



Figure 2.10 SAP Cloud Appliance Library

Cloud Applia	nce Library						Ur	derstanding HANA	English	Q
HOME	INSTANCES	SOLUTIONS	ACCOUNTS	USERS						
Solutio	ons: Filtere	d (4 of 48)								HELP
	View: All	~						hana dev	×	SUF
Stat	Solution Name					Publisher	Activate	Oper	ations	POR
•	Education open	SAP: Text Analytics	with SAP HANA pla	tform		SAP SE		Try Now	0.	9
•	Developer SAP	HANA, developer e	dition 1.0 SPS 10			SAP SE		Activate	<b>Q</b> 2	INK
•	Developer SAP	NetWeaver AS ABA	P and SAP BW 7.40	SP10 on SAP H	ANA [developer edition]	SAP SE		Try Now	۰.	0
•	Developer SAP	NetWeaver AS ABA	P and SAP BW 7.5	SP01 on SAP HA	NA SP10 [Developer Edition]	SAP SE		Try Now	<b>Q</b> .	
	Cloud Applia HOME	Cloud Appliance Library HOME INSTANCES Solutions: Filtere  Stat Solution Name  Education oper Developer SAP  Developer SAP	Cloud Appliance Library HOME INSTANCES SOLUTIONS Solutions: Filtered (4 of 48) Solution Name Education openSAP: Text Analytics Education openSAP: Text Analytics Education SAP HANA, developer SAP NetWeaver AS ABA E Developer SAP NetWeaver AS ABA	Cloud Appliance Library HOME INSTANCES SOLUTIONS ACCOUNTS Solutions: Filtered (4 of 48) Stat Solution Name Cducation openSAP: Text Analytics with SAP HANA pla Cducation openSAP: Text Analytics with SAP HANA pla Developer SAP HANA, developer edition 1.0 SPS 10 Developer SAP NetWeaver AS ABAP and SAP BW 7.5	Cloud Appliance Library HOME INSTANCES SOLUTIONS ACCOUNTS USERS Solutions: Filtered (4 of 48)  Solution Name  Education openSAP: Text Analytics with SAP HANA platform  Developer SAP HANA, developer edition 1.0 SPS 10  Developer SAP NetWeaver AS ABAP and SAP BW 7.5 SP01 on SAP HA  Developer SAP NetWeaver AS ABAP and SAP BW 7.5 SP01 on SAP HA	Cloud Appliance Library HOME INSTANCES SOLUTIONS ACCOUNTS USERS Solutions: Filtered (4 of 48)  Solution Name Stat Solution Name Education openSAP: Text Analytics with SAP HANA platform Developer SAP HANA, developer edition 1.0 SPS 10 Developer SAP NetWeaver AS ABAP and SAP BW 7.6 SP01 on SAP HANA [developer edition] Developer SAP NetWeaver AS ABAP and SAP BW 7.5 SP01 on SAP HANA SP10 [Developer Edition]	Cloud Appliance Library HOME INSTANCES SOLUTIONS ACCOUNTS USERS Solutions: Filtered (4 of 48)  Solution SF Filtered (4 of 48)  Stat Solution Name Publisher Stat Solution openSAP. Text Analytics with SAP HANA platform Education openSAP. Text Analytics with SAP HANA platform SAP SE Developer SAP HANA, developer edition 1.0 SPS 10 SAP SE Developer SAP NetWeaver AS ABAP and SAP BW 7.6 SP01 on SAP HANA (developer edition] SAP SE Developer SAP NetWeaver AS ABAP and SAP BW 7.5 SP01 on SAP HANA SP10 [Developer Edition] SAP SE	Cloud Appliance Library     Unit       HOME     INSTANCES     SOLUTIONS     ACCOUNTS     USERS         Solutions:     Filtered (4 of 48)         Image: Solution Name     Publisher     Activate         Stat     Solution openSAP: Text Analytics with SAP HANA platform     SAP SE       Image: Solution SAP HANA, developer edition 1.0 SPS 10     SAP SE       Image: Solution SAP NetWeaver AS ABAP and SAP BW 7.5 SP01 on SAP HANA SP10 [Developer Edition]     SAP SE       Image: Neveloper SAP NetWeaver AS ABAP and SAP BW 7.5 SP01 on SAP HANA SP10 [Developer Edition]     SAP SE	Cloud Appliance Library       Understanding HANA         HOME       INSTANCES       SOLUTIONS       ACCOUNTS       USERS         Solutions:       Filtered (4 of 48)       Image: Cloud Appliance Library       Image: Cloud Appliance Library       Image: Cloud Appliance Library         Solutions:       Filtered (4 of 48)       Image: Cloud Appliance Library       Image: Cloud Appliance Library       Image: Cloud Appliance Library         Stat.       Solution Name       Publisher       Activate       Oper         Education       openSAP: Text Analytics with SAP HANA platform       SAP SE       Try Now         Education       penSAP: Text Analytics with SAP HANA platform       SAP SE       Activate         Education       penSAP: Text Analytics with SAP HANA SP10 On SAP HANA (developer edition]       SAP SE       Try Now         Education       SAP NetWeaver AS ABAP and SAP BW 7.40 SP10 on SAP HANA SP10 [Developer Edition]       SAP SE       Try Now         Evereloper       SAP NetWeaver AS ABAP and SAP BW 7.5 SP01 on SAP HANA SP10 [Developer Edition]       SAP SE       Try Now         Evereloper       SAP NetWeaver AS ABAP and SAP BW 7.5 SP01 on SAP HANA SP10 [Developer Edition]       SAP SE       Try Now	Cloud Appliance Library       Understanding HANA   English         HOME       INSTANCES       SOLUTIONS       ACCOUNTS       USERS         Solutions: Filtered (4 of 48)         Image: Instance (4 of 48)       Image: Ima

#### Figure 2.11 SAP HANA Development System on SAP Cloud Applicance Library

Once you select this, you can select the size of the SAP HANA server you require. You can play around with the various options. Based on the options you select, the cost per hour and the total monthly costs will be displayed. The SAP Cloud Appliance Library will also allow you to automatically switch your SAP HANA system on and off at predefined times. The savings are also automatically reflected in the monthly cost calculations.

Once you are satisfied with your choices, you can ask the SAP Cloud Appliance Library to automatically create your SAP HANA system for you on AWS or Microsoft Azure Cloud.

The steps to create your own SAP HANA system on AWS or Microsoft Azure are found at *http://scn.sap.com/docs/DOC-58418*.

If you are a Microsoft MSDN subscriber, you get a certain amount of credit each month for Microsoft Azure Cloud. We found some people use that credit to pay for their SAP HANA systems.

#### Note

You can find more free trial offerings for the SAP Cloud Appliance Library at *http://scn.sap.com/docs/DOC-47930*. If you want to work with an SAP BW on SAP HANA system, or an SAP S/4HANA system, you will find links on this page to the various offerings.

You can also find a list of frequently asked questions on the SAP Cloud Appliance Library FAQ page at *http://scn.sap.com/docs/DOC-33673*.

#### **Building Your Own SAP HANA System**

You can also build your own server with SAP HANA. You will need some hardware, an operating system, and the SAP HANA software.

The requirements for the hardware, and how to install the SAP HANA software, can be found at *http://help.sap.com/hana\_platform/*.

### Note

It is recommended that you use a machine with a minimum of 24GB or 32GB of memory. SAP HANA will not start on a machine with less than 16GB of memory.

The certified operating systems for SAP HANA are SUSE Linux Enterprise Server for SAP Applications and Red Hat Enterprise Linux for SAP HANA. You can find

the SUSE Linux Enterprise Server for SAP Applications at *https://www.suse.com/ products/sles-for-sap/*. Or, you can get a copy of Red Hat Enterprise Linux for SAP HANA from *https://www.redhat.com/en/resources/red-hat-enterprise-linux-sap-hana*.

# Тір

If you plan to use your own desktop or laptop, the SAP HANA software will warn you about using non-certified hardware. However, if you install SAP HANA in a VMware virtual machine, you will not get such a warning as this is seen as certified "hardware."

The VMware Workstation 12 Player is free for personal use and can be down-loaded at *https://www.vmware.com/go/downloadplayer/*.

You will also need to download a copy of the SAP HANA software. You can download this from *https://support.sap.com/software/installations/a-z-index.html*.

In the alphabetical list of products, select H, and then choose SAP HANA PLAT-FORM EDITION.

Please note that you will need a registered S-user name and password before you can download the software. If you are an existing SAP customer or SAP partner you can ask your system administrator for a logon user.

# Install SAP HANA Studio

Whether you get an SAP HANA system on the cloud somewhere, or build your own SAP HANA server, you can easily connect to your SAP HANA system using the SAP HANA web-based development workbench. You just need a HTML5compatible browser.

If you want to use SAP HANA studio, you will have to install a copy on your laptop (or desktop) computer. You can find instructions on how to install SAP HANA studio at *https://tools.hana.ondemand.com/#hanatools*.

# **Project Examples**

Once you have your own SAP HANA system, the next step will be to start using it. In this section, we will discuss how to start working on SAP HANA projects, and how you can use the SHINE demo package or create your own project.

### Using the SHINE Demo Package

One option to get some practice in SAP HANA is to explore the content available in the SHINE demo package. We will use the SHINE demo throughout this book. It is fully documented, and is used by SAP as an example for how to develop SAP HANA applications.

The SHINE documentation can be found at *http://help.sap.com/hana\_platform/*.

You can download the SHINE package from *https://store.sap.com/*. In <u>Figure 2.12</u>, you can see the SAP Store. Type "SHINE" in the search bar to locate the package.

Welcome to the SAP Store in the United States. To shop in	n another country, or change the display lang	uage, <u>click here</u> . Or click on th	e country/language op	tion below.	х
The Best Run Businesses Run SAP	Ur	ited States/English SAP.c Call Me Now Ch	com Subscribe to nat Now +1 866-776	News 6-6567	Support
SAP Store					Log On
Browse By Department 🔹 shine 🙁			All 👻 O	岸 Car	t 🕕
Home > List					
Filter By:	No. of Solutions: 1	≡ ::	Sort By Downloads	(Descending)	•
- Line of Business					
Information Technology (1)	SCN SAP HANA Demo Model 1.0 - SHIN Provided By SAP SE		Published:	11 months ago	
- Industry	SAP HANA Interactive Education, or SHINE, is a demo application that makes it easy to learn how to build native SAP HANA applications. The demo application,				
Aerospace & Defense (1) Automotive (1)	delivered with SAP I (DU), comes comple tim	IANA in a special delivery unit te with sample data and desig	t In-		

#### Figure 2.12 SHINE Package on the SAP Store

Alternatively, you can download the SHINE package from *https://support.sap.com/ patches* or from *https://github.com/SAP/hana-shine*.

You install SHINE like any other delivery unit (see <u>Chapter 11</u> for more information). In the File menu of SAP HANA studio, select IMPORT • SAP HANA CONTENT • DELIVERY UNIT.

### **Creating Your Own Project**

You can also think up your own projects. You can start very simply by just learning to work with individual topics discussed in the book. Examples can include things like fuzzy text search, currency conversion, input parameters, hierarchies, and spatial joins. You can also add some security on top of this, for example, to limit the data for a single user to just one year.

The next step is to think about creating a report that can analyze the performance of a particular dataset. This is a good exercise, as you will have to take end user requirements and learn how to translate them into the required SAP HANA information models. Then, you will design and create these models.

Finally, you can expand these information models into an application.

You can also look at incorporating something like SAP Lumira to easily create attractive storyboards. You can download a free copy of SAP Lumira from *http:// saplumira.com/*.

# Where to Get Data

SAP HANA can process large amounts of data. To get hands-on practice in the SAP HANA system, you'll want some sort of data to play with. There are a couple of places where you can access data to play with:

# SHINE demo package

The SHINE demo package is a great place to get large datasets. To do this, in the SHINE package, use the GENERATE DATA option.

# Datahub

Datahub is website and free open data management system that can be used to get, use, and share data. At *https://datahub.io/en/dataset* (Figure 2.13) you can find many free datasets.

# United States Department of Transportation database

If you want a larger dataset to play with, you can use the United States Department of Transportation database on flights in the United States. It has more than 50 million records, with about 20 years of data.

You can find this at http://www.transtats.bts.gov/ (see Figure 2.14).

You can download this data from *http://apps.bts.gov/xml/ontimesummarysta-tistics/src/index.xml*.

							Log ir	Register
The easy way to get, use and share dat	Datasets	Organizations	About	Blog	Help	Sea	rch	55
<sup>3</sup> / Datasets								
I Organizations								
Global (3418)	Add Dataset							
London Datastore Ar (612)	Search datasets.							
Senegal (548)								
Open Hampton Roads (531)	10,736 datas	sets found			Ord	ier by:	Relevance	~
Canada (514)								
BI02RDF (378)	Built Work Regist	rv.						
ie-ckan-net (272)	The Built Works Regis	stry (BWR) is a colla	aborative p	oject fund	ied by a 201	10 Institu	ite of Museum ar	ıd
it-ckan-net (263)	Library Services (IML	S) National Leaders	ship Grant.	The goal	of BWR is to	o		
bioportal (243)	N-Turtule							
no-ckan-net (232)	Regional Election	Candidates KP	U 2015					
Show More Organizations	The latest regional ele	ections data we scra	aped and cl	eaned fro	m Indonesia	i's Electo	oral Commision's	website
Tags	CSV							
lod (1130)	FrameBase schen	na						
publications (920)	FrameBase is a linked	d open knowledge t	ase meant	to uniform	nly represer	it a wide	range of knowle	dge,
format-rdf (915)	tackling semantic hete	erogeneity among v	arious sour	ces of str	uctured kno	wledge,.		
Senegal (751)	Turranae							

### Figure 2.13 Datahub

C United States Depo Office of the Assistant Se Bureau of Tran	ortment of Transport cretary for Research and sportation Stati	TECHNOLOGY istics	About DOT   Briefing Room   Our Activiti About OST-R   Press Room   Programs   OST-R Publications   Library   Contact U				
About BTS - BT OST-R > BTS	ïS Press Room 🔻 Data ar	nd Statistics 👻 🛛	Publication	5 🔻	Subject Areas 🔹 External Links	-	
Search this site:	Quick Answers Carrier Snapshots Airline Fuel Cost and Consumption Air Freight Summary	on	Airport Snap Holiday Fligh Inter-Airport	ishots it Delays : Distances	At a Glance Flight Delays more Percent of U.S. Flights On Time (2015-2016)		
Resources	Employment Airline Activity : Nation	Employment Tarmac Times Airline Activity : National Summary (U.S. Flights)		*			
Database Directory		2015 *	2016 *	Change	50		
Glossary	Enplaned Passengers (million)	665	699	5.1%			
Upcoming Releases	Departures (000)	8,560	8,508	-0.6%	▖ੰ╇╇╇╇╇╇╇╇╇╇╇		
Data Release History	Freight/Mail (million lbs)	20,305	20,535	1.1%	Mar May Jul Sep Nov Jan		
Data Finder	Load Factor (%)	84.4	85.1	0.7	Apr juit Aug occ Dec Feb		
By Mode	Airlines with scheduled service	98	95	-3.1%	Click a bar for details. Mouseover it for percentage.		
Aviation	* 12 months ending January of ea	ach vear			Average Air Fares more		

Figure 2.14 Flight Data from the United States Department of Transportation Website

# **Exam Questions**

Now, we'll change gears a bit and look at the SAP certification exams and how to approach them. Let's look at the examination question types and some tips and hints about how to complete the certification exam.

# **Types of Questions**

An international team sets up the SAP HANA certification exams. All the questions are written in English, and all the communication is in English. Because the exam teams are international, a lot of attention is focused on making sure that everybody will understand what is meant by each question, avoiding possible double meanings or ambiguities.

<u>Figure 2.15</u> shows three types of questions that you will find in the certification exam.



### Figure 2.15 Three Types of Certification Exam Questions

The first question is *multiple choice*. The radio buttons indicate that you can only choose one of the four options. There always will be only four different options, with only one correct answer.

The other two questions are called *multiple response questions*. There are two types of multiple response questions:

► With the first type of multiple response question, there are *four possible answers*, and there will always be two correct answers and two incorrect answers. In the exam, this will be indicated by the words, "Note: There are two correct answers to this question."

► The other type of multiple response question has *five possible answers*, of which three will always be correct and two will be incorrect; you must select three correct answers. Above the answers, you will see the words, "Note: There are three correct answers to this question."

Both types of multiple response questions use checkboxes, and you must select however many answers are correct.

All three types of questions have exactly the same weight. You either get a question right or you get it wrong. It's a binary system: 0 or 1.

For a multiple response question with two correct and two incorrect answers, you must select two answers. If you select three answers or one answer, you do not receive any points. If you select two answers and they are the correct two answers, then you earn a point.

### Тір

Select as many answers as are required! If you are certain that an option is correct, then select it. If you are doubtful about an answer, at least select one option. If you don't select anything, you will not earn any points. Even if you plan to come back to the question later, we still recommend that you select the exact number of answers required.

Multiple choice questions normally make up the majority of the questions for the associate-level core exams. More than half of the questions will have only one correct answer and three incorrect answers. There are no true or false questions in the certification exam. However, we will use true or false questions in this book, but only for training purposes.

#### Note

In the certification exam, there are no fill-in-the-blank questions.

The questions and the answers themselves appear randomly. In other words, two people could be taking the same exam, sitting next to each other, and the order in which the questions appear for each person would be different. Also, for similar questions, the order of a, b, c, and d (the answer options) is different for different people.

Because answer options are randomized, you will never find any questions that list "All of the above" or "None of the above" as a possible answer.

The questions in the SAP certification exams tend to be very short and to the point. All extra words and descriptions have been cut away, ensuring that you will have enough time to complete the exams. We've never heard anyone complain about the time limits in the SAP HANA certification exams. Because the questions are to the point, every word counts. Every word is there for a reason and has a purpose, so don't ignore any word—especially words like *always*, *only*, and *must*.

*Always* indicates on every occasion. *Only* means that no other options are allowed. *Must* indicates something that is mandatory. In the answer options, you could see some optional actions that would be valid actions in normal circumstances, but if they are not mandatory, they are incorrect answers for questions asking what you *must* do. Therefore, for questions using the word *must*, pay attention to optional steps versus mandatory steps.

The certification exams use a minimum of *negative words*, which are only used for troubleshooting questions. All negative words in a question are written in capital letters—for example, "You did something and it is NOT working. What is the reason?"

Now that we've looked at the general structure of SAP certification exam questions, let's look at the strategy of elimination in the exam.

# **Elimination Technique**

Experience has shown that the *elimination technique* can be useful for answering exam questions. In this technique, you start by finding the wrong answers instead of finding the right answers.

When creating exams, it is fairly easy to set up questions, but it's hard to think up wrong answers that still sound credible. Because it is so difficult to write credible wrong answers, it's normally easier to eliminate the wrong answers first. As Sherlock Holmes would say: Whatever remains, however improbable, must be the truth.

To show how efficient this technique can be, look at the multiple response question with five different options (Figure 2.15, right). There are three correct and

two incorrect answers, so it saves you time to find the two incorrect ones, rather than trying to find the three correct answers.

### **Bookmark Questions**

In the certification exam, you can always *bookmark* questions and return to them later. If you are not confident about a question, mark it. We still recommend that you complete the right number of answer options: If two answers are required, fill in two options. If three are required, select three options. Then, mark the question so that you can review it later.

### Тір

Watch out when you do the review; your initial choice tends to be the correct one. Remember, don't overanalyze the question.

Now, let's turn our attention to some general exam strategies. Implementing test-taking strategies will help you to succeed on the exam.

# **General Examination Strategies**

The following are some good tips, tricks, and strategies to help you during an exam:

- If you have the SAP training manuals, pay attention to pages with lots of bullet points; that means there are normally lots of options, and these are likely good sources for questions.
- ► For the associate-level certification exams, in this book, read the entire chapters and answer all the questions. If you do not get the answers right, or do not understand the question, re-read that section. This is the equivalent of reading the SAP training materials twice.
- Make sure you get a good night's rest before the exam.
- Make sure that you've answered all the questions and that you've selected the correct number of answer options. If the question says that three answers are correct, then make sure that you've marked three—not four or two.

- Occasionally, you will find answer options that are opposites—for example, X is true, and X is NOT true. In that case, make sure you select one of the pair.
- ► In our experience with SAP HANA certification exams, the answers from one question do not always provide answers to another question. SAP Education is careful to make sure that this doesn't happen in its exams.
- ► Watch out for certain trigger words. Alarm bells should go off when you see words like *only*, *must*, and *always*.
- ► Look out for impossible combinations. For example, if a question is about measures, then the answer cannot be something to do with dimension (attribute) views, because you cannot find measures for such views.
- ► Some words can be different in different countries. For example, some people talk about a right-click menu, but in other places in the world this same feature is known as a context menu. This is the menu that pops up in a specific context, and you access this menu by right-clicking.

# Summary

You should now know which SAP Education training courses you can attend for your certification examination and which related SAP courses will complement your knowledge and skills, and where to get hands-on experience. In addition, we introduced many free sources of information on the Internet, training videos on YouTube, and online courses at openSAP.

You can now form a winning strategy for taking your SAP certification exam. In the next chapter, we will begin looking at exam questions and concepts, focusing first on the architecture and deployment scenarios of SAP HANA.

# Architecture and Deployment Scenarios

# Techniques You'll Master

- Understand in-memory technologies and how SAP HANA uses them
- Get to know the internal architecture of SAP HANA
- Describe the SAP HANA persistence layer
- Learn the different ways that SAP HANA can be deployed
- Know when to use different deployment methods

In this chapter, you'll become familiar with the various deployment scenarios for SAP HANA and evaluate appropriate system configurations, including cloud deployments. We'll provide an introduction to the new in-memory paradigm and the thinking behind how SAP HANA uses in-memory technologies. By the end, you'll better understand how SAP HANA functions in all the types of solutions you might require.

# Real-World Scenario

You start a new project. The business users describe what they want and expect you to suggest an appropriate architecture for how to deploy SAP HANA. You have to decide between building something new in SAP HANA or migrating the current SAP system to use SAP HANA. You also have to decide if you should use SAP HANA in the cloud and, if so, which type of service you will need.

When you understand the internal architecture of SAP HANA, it can lead to unexpected benefits for the company. You can use the fact that SAP HANA uses compression in memory combined with an understanding of how SAP HANA uses disks and backups to provide a customer with an excellent business case for moving their business solution to SAP HANA; this can lead to dramatically lower operational costs and reduced risk.

# **Objectives of This Portion of the Test**

The objective of this portion of the SAP HANA certification test is to evaluate your basic understanding of the various SAP HANA deployment scenarios and the corresponding system configurations. The certification exam expects SAP HANA modelers to have a good understanding of the following topics:

- How SAP HANA uses in-memory technology, including elements such as columns, tables, and compression
- ► The persistence layer in SAP HANA
- ► The various ways that SAP HANA can be deployed
- ► How SAP HANA can be deployed in the cloud



### Note

This portion contributes up to 10% of the total certification exam score.

# **Key Concepts Refresher**

We'll start with something that most people know very well: Moore's Law. Even if you have never heard of it, you have seen its effects on the technology around you. Put simply, this means that the overall processing power for computers doubles about every two years. Therefore, you can buy a computer for roughly the same price as about two years ago, and it will be twice as fast as the older one.

Moore's Law is useful for understanding system performance and response times. If you have a report that is running slow, let's say an hour long, you can fix this by buying faster hardware. You can easily get the processing time of your slow report from 1 hour to 30 minutes to 15 minutes by just waiting a while and then buying faster computers. However, a few years ago that simple recipe stopped working. Our easy upgrade path was no longer available, and we had to approach the performance issues in new and innovate ways. Data volumes also keep growing, adding to the problem. SAP realized these problems early, and worked on the solution we now know as SAP HANA.

In this chapter, we will discuss SAP HANA's in-memory technology and how it addresses the aforementioned issues. We'll then look at SAP HANA's architecture and new approaches. Finally, we'll walk through the various deployment options available, including cloud options.

# **In-Memory Technology**

SAP HANA uses in-memory technology. But, just what is in-memory technology?

In-memory technology is an approach to querying data residing in RAM, as opposed to physical disks. The results of doing so lead to shortened response times. This enables enhanced analytics for business intelligence/analytic applications.

In this section, we'll walk through the process that lead us to use in-memory technology, which will illustrate the importance in new technology.

### **Multicore CPU**

When CPU speed reached about 3 GHz, we seemed to hit a wall. It became difficult to make a single CPU faster while keeping it cool enough. Therefore, chip manufacturers moved from a single CPU per chip to multiple CPU cores per chip.

Instead of increasingly fast machines, machines now stay at roughly the same speed but have more cores. If a specific report only runs on a single core, that report will not run any faster thanks to more CPU cores. We can run multiple reports simultaneously, but all of them will run for an hour. To speed up reports, we need to rewrite software to take full advantage of new multicore CPU technology, a problem that has been faced by most software companies.

SAP addressed this problem in SAP HANA by making sure that all operations are making full use of all available CPU cores.

### **Slow Disk**

When talking about poor system performance, you can place a lot of blame on slow hard disks. Table 3.1 shows how slow a disk can be compared to memory.

Operation	Latency (In Nanoseconds)	Relative to Memory
Read from level 1 (L1) cache	0.5 ns	200 x faster
Read from level 2 (L2) cache	7 ns	14 x faster
Read from level 3 (L3) cache	15 ns	6.7 x faster
Read from memory	100 ns	-
Send 1 KB over 1 Gbps network	10,000 ns	100 x slower
Read from solid state disk (SSD)	150,000 ns	1,500 x slower
Read from disk	10,000,000 ns	100,000 x slower
Send network packet from the US West Coast to Europe and back	150,000,000 ns	1,500,000 x slower

**Table 3.1** Latency of Hardware Components and Performance of Components

 Shown Relative to RAM Memory

To give you an idea of how slow a disk really is, think about this: If reading data from RAM memory takes one minute, it will take more than two months to read the same data from disk! In reality, there is less of a difference when we start reading and streaming data sequentially from disks, but this example prompts the idea that there must be better ways of writing systems.

The classic problem is that alternatives like RAM memory have been prohibitively expensive, and there has not been enough RAM memory available to replace disks.

Therefore, the way we have designed and built software systems for the last 30 or more years has been heavily influenced by the fact that disks are slow. This affects the way everyone from technical architects to developers to auditors thinks about system and application design. For example:

► SAP NetWeaver architecture uses one database server and multiple application servers (Figure 3.1). Because the database stores data on disk and disks are slow, the database becomes the bottleneck in the system. In any system, you always try to minimize the impact of the bottlenecks and the load on it. Therefore, we move the data into multiple application servers to work with it there, using the database server as little as possible. In SAP systems, we use it so little that we can be database independent. SAP systems even have their own independent ABAP data dictionaries.



**Figure 3.1** SAP NetWeaver Architecture: One Database Server, Many Application Servers

In the application servers, we run all the code, perform all the calculations, and execute the business rules. We use memory buffers to store a working set of data. In many SAP systems, 99.5% of all database reads come from these memory buffers, thus minimizing the effects of the slow disk. SAP system architecture was heavily influenced by the fact that disk is slow.

Inside financial systems, we store data such as year-to-date data, month-todate data, balances, and aggregates. For reporting, we have cubes, dimensions, and more aggregates. These values are all updated and stored in financial systems to improve performance.

Take the case of the year-to-date figure. We do not really need to store this information, because we can calculate it from the data. The problem is that to calculate the year-to-date figure, we need to read millions of records from the database, which the database reads from the slow disk. Therefore, we could calculate the current year-to-date figure, but doing so would be too slow. Because disk storage is cheap and plentiful, we just add this value into the database in another table. With every new transaction, we simply add the new value to the current year-to-date value and update the database. Now reports can run a lot faster on disk.

If the disk was fast, we would not need to store these values. Can you imagine a financial system without these values? Ask accountants to imagine a financial system without balances! Why store balances when you can calculate them? When you see the reaction on their faces, you will understand how even their thinking has been influenced by the effects of slow disks.

We will return to this example in the next section.

► One of the many reasons we have data warehouses is that we need fast and flexible reporting. We build large cubes with precalculated, stored aggregates that we can use for reporting and to slice and dice the data. Building these cubes takes time and processing power. Reading the masses of data from disk for the reports can be slow. If we keep these cubes inside, for example, our financial system, then a single user running a large report from these cubes can pull the system's performance down. That one user affects thousands of users.

Therefore, SAP created separate data warehouses to reduce the impact of reporting on operational and transactional systems. Those reporting users can

now run their heavy, slow reports away from the operational and transactional systems. The database world now is split into two parts: The online transactional processing (OLTP) databases for the financial, transaction, and operations systems, and the online analytical processing (OLAP) data warehouses (see Figure 3.2).



**Figure 3.2** OLTP vs. OLAP: Operational Reporting Seperate from Operational Systems for Performance Reasons

If disks were fast and we could create aggregates fast enough, we would be able to perform most of our operational reporting directly in the operational system, where the users expect and need it. We would not have separate OLTP and OLAP systems. Again, slow disks influenced architectural design principles.

These three examples prove that slow disks have influenced SAP system design, architecture, and thinking for many years now. If we could eliminate the slow disk bottleneck from our systems, we could then change our minds about how to design and implement systems. Hence, SAP HANA represents a paradigm shift.

### Loading Data into Memory

In the first of the three examples in the previous section, you saw that we have used memory where possible to speed things up with memory caching. Nevertheless, until a few years ago, memory was still very expensive. Then, memory prices started coming down fast, and we asked, "Can we load all data into memory instead of just storing it on disk?"

Customer databases for business systems can easily be 10 TB (10,000 GB) in size. The largest available hardware when SAP HANA was developed had only 512 GB to 1 TB of memory, presenting a problem. SAP obviously needed to compress data to fit it into the available memory. We're not talking here about ZIP or RAR compression, which needs to be decompressed again before it is usable, but *dic-tionary compression*. Dictionary compression involves mapping distinct values to consecutive numbers.

# **Column-Oriented Database**

For years, it was common to store data in rows. Row-based databases work well with spinning disks to read single records faster. However, when we start storing data in memory, there is no longer a valid reason to use row-based storage. At that point, we have to decide to use row-based or column-based storage.

Why would we use columns instead of rows? If we start looking at compressing data, then row-oriented data does not work particularly well. This is because we mix different types of data—like cities with salaries and employee numbers—in every record. The average compression we get is about two times (that is, data is stored in about 50% of the original space).

When we store the same data in columns, we now group similar data together. By using dictionary compression, we can achieve excellent compression, and thus column-based storage starts making more sense for in-memory databases.

Another way in which we can save space is via indices. If we look inside an SAP system, we find that about half the data volume is taken up by indices. An index is a sorted column; if we store the data in columns in memory, do we really need indices? We can save that space. With such column-oriented database advantages, we end up with 5 to 20 times compression.

Back to our original problem: 10 TB databases, but machines with only 1 TB of memory. By using column-based storage, compression, and no indices, we can fit a 10 TB database into the 1 TB of available memory. Even though we focused on the column-oriented concept here, note that SAP HANA can handle both row-and column-based tables.

### **Removing Bottlenecks**

When we manage to load the database entirely into memory, exciting things start happening. We break free from the slow disk bottleneck that had a stranglehold on system performance for many years. The architecture is designed to work around this problem.

As always, even if our systems become thousands of times faster, at some stage we will reach new constraints. These constraints will determine what the new architecture will look like. The way we provide new business solutions will depend on the characteristics of this new architecture.

# Architecture and Approach

The new in-memory computing paradigm has changed the way we approach solutions. Different architectures and deployment options are now possible with SAP HANA.

# Changing from a Database to a Platform

The biggest change in approach is how and where we work with the data. Disks were always slow, causing the database to become a bottleneck. Thus, we moved the processing of data to the application servers to minimize the pressure on this disk bottleneck.

Now, data storage has moved from disk to memory, which is much faster. Therefore, we needed to reexamine our assumptions about the database being the bottleneck. In this new in-memory architecture, it makes no sense to move data from the memory of the database server to the memory of the application servers via a relatively slow network. In that case, the network will become the bottleneck, and we will duplicate functionality.

New bottlenecks require new architectures. Our new bottleneck arises because we have many CPU cores that need to be fed as quickly as possible from memory. Therefore, we put the CPUs close to the memory (i.e., the data). In doing so, the first point that we realize is that SAP HANA can be sold as an appliance. As shown in <u>Figure 3.3</u>, it doesn't make sense to copy data from the memory of the database server to the memory of the application server as we have always done (left arrow). We instead now move the code to execute within the SAP HANA server (right arrow).



#### Figure 3.3 Moving Data In-Memory

Our solution approach also needed to change. Instead of moving data away from the database to the application servers, as we have done for many years, we now want to keep it in the database. Many database administrators have done this for years via *stored procedures*. Instead of stored procedures, in SAP HANA we use *graphical data models*, as we will discuss in <u>Chapter 4</u>. You can also use stored procedures and table functions if you need to do so. We will look at this process in <u>Chapter 8</u>.



#### Note

Instead of moving data to the code, we now move the code to the data. We can implement this process by way of SAP HANA graphical modeling techniques.

When you start running code inside the database, it is only a matter of time before it changes from a database into a platform. When people tell you that SAP HANA is "just another database," ask them which other database incorporates more than five programming languages, a web server, an application server, an HTML5 framework, a development environment, replication and cleaning of data, integration with most other databases, predictive analytics, and multitenancy; the reactions can be interesting.

### Parallelism in SAP HANA

In the Slow Disk section, we provided three examples of the wide-ranging effects of slow disks on performance. In the second example, we looked at calculating the year-to-date value. We do not really need to store a year-to-date value because we can calculate it from the data. With slow disks, the problem is that to calculate this value we need to read millions of records from the database, which the database reads from the slow disk. Because disk storage is cheap and plentiful, we just added this aggregate into the database *in another table*.

When we have millions of records in memory and many CPU cores available, we can calculate the year-to-date value faster than an old system can read it from the new table from a slow disk. Look at <u>Figure 3.4</u>: Even though we require a single year-to-date value, we use memory and all the available CPU cores *in parallel* to calculate it. We just divide the memory containing the millions of records into several ranges and ask each available CPU core to calculate the value for its memory range. Finally, we add all the answers from each of the CPU cores to get the final value. Even a single sum is run in parallel inside SAP HANA.



**Figure 3.4** Single Year-to-Date Value Calculated in Parallel Using All Available CPU Cores

Although it's relatively easy to understand this example, don't overlook the important consequences of this process: If we can calculate the value quickly, we do not need to store it in another table. By applying this new approach, we start to get rid of many tables in the system. This then leads to simpler systems. We also have to write less code, because we do not need to maintain a particular table, insert or update the data in that table, and so on. Our backups become smaller and faster because we do not store unnecessary data. That is exactly what has happened with SAP S/4HANA: Functional areas that had 37 tables, for example, now have two or three tables remaining.

To get an idea of the compound effect that SAP HANA has on the system, <u>Figure</u> <u>3.5</u> shows how a system shrinks when you start applying this new approach.



Figure 3.5 Database Shrinks with SAP HANA In-Memory Techniques

Say that we start with an original database of 750 GB. Because of column-based storage, compression, and the elimination of indices, the database size easily comes down to 150 GB. When we then apply the techniques we just discussed for calculating aggregates instead of storing them in separate tables, the database goes down to about 50 GB. When we finally apply data aging, the database shrinks to an impressive 10 GB. In addition, we are left with less code, faster reporting response times, and smaller backups.
#### Delta Buffer and Delta Merge

Before we start sounding like overeager sales people, let's look at something that column-based databases are *not* good at.

Row-based databases are good at reading, inserting, and updating single records. Row-based databases are not efficient when we have to add new columns (fields).

When we look at column-based databases, we find that these two sentences are reversed. This is because data stored in columns instead of in rows is effectively "rotated" by 90 degrees. Adding new columns in a column-based database is easy and straightforward, but adding new records can be a problem. In short, column-based databases tend to be very good at *reading data*, whereas row-based databases are better at *writing data*.

Fortunately, SAP took a pragmatic rather than a purist approach and implemented both column-based and row-based storage in SAP HANA. This allows users to have the best of both worlds: Column storage for compressed data and fast reading and row storage for fast writing of data. Because reading data happens more often than writing, the column-based store is obviously preferred.

<u>Figure 3.6</u> shows how this is implemented in SAP HANA table data storage. The main table area is using the column store as we just discussed. The data in here is optimized for fast reading.



Figure 3.6 Column and Row Storage Used to Achieve Fast Reading and Writing of Data

Next to the main table area, we also have an area called the *delta buffer*, sometimes called the *delta store*. When SAP HANA needs to insert new records, it inserts them into this area. This is based on the row store and is optimized for fast data writing. Records are appended at the end of the delta buffer. The data in this delta buffer is therefore unsorted.

Some people believe the read queries are slowed down when the system has to read both areas (for old and newly inserted data) to answer a query. Remember that everything in SAP HANA runs in parallel and uses all available CPU cores. For the query shown in <u>Figure 3.6</u>, 100 CPU cores can read the main table area and another 20 CPU cores can read the buffer area. The cores then combine all the data read to produce the result set.

We have looked at cases in which new data is inserted—but what about cases in which data needs to be updated? Column-based databases can also be relatively slow during updates. Therefore, in such a case, SAP HANA marks the old record in the main storage as "updated at date and time" and inserts the new values of the records in the delta buffer. The SAP HANA system effectively changes an update into a flag and insert. This is called the *insert-only* technique.

When the delta buffer becomes too full or when you trigger it, the *delta merge* process takes the values of the delta buffer and merges them into the main table area. SAP HANA then starts with a clean delta buffer.

Column-based databases also do not handle SELECT \* SQL statements well. We will look at this in more detail in <u>Chapter 10</u>. For now, we encourage you to avoid such statements in column-based databases.

In the next section, we will look at how the SAP HANA in-memory database persists its data, even when we switch off the machine.

#### **Persistence Layer**

The most frequently asked question people hear about SAP HANA and its inmemory concept is as follows: "Memory is volatile. That is, it loses its contents when you switch off its power source. So, what happens to SAP HANA's data when you lose power or switch off the machine?"

The short answer is that SAP HANA still uses disks. However, whereas other databases are disk-based and optionally load data into memory, SAP HANA is in-

memory and merely uses disks to back up the data for when the power is switched off. The focus is totally different.

The disk storage and the storing of data happens in the *persistence layer*, and storing data on disk is called *persistence*.

Let's look at how SAP HANA uses disks and the persistence layer in the following subsections.

#### SAP HANA as a Distributed Database

Just like many newer databases, SAP HANA can be deployed as a distributed database. One of the advantages that SAP HANA has due to its in-memory architecture is that it is an *ACID-compliant* database. ACID (atomicity, consistency, isolation, and durability) ensures that database transactions are reliably processed. Most other distributed databases are disk-based, with the associated performance limitations, and most of them—most notably NoSQL databases—are not ACID-compliant. NoSQL databases use *eventual consistency*, meaning that they cannot guarantee consistent answers to database queries. They might come back with different answers to the same query on the same data. SAP HANA will always give consistent answers to database queries. This detail is vital for financial and business systems.

<u>Figure 3.7</u> shows an instance in which SAP HANA is running on three servers. A fourth server can be added to facilitate *high availability*. Should any one of the three active servers fail, the fourth standby server will instantly take over the functions of the failed server.

SAP HANA can *partition* tables across active servers. This means that we can take a table and split it to run on all three servers. This way, we don't only use multiple CPU cores of one server with SAP HANA to execute queries in parallel, but also use multiple servers. We can partition data in various ways—for example, people whose surnames start with the letters A–M can be in one partition N–Z in another.

In the case of SAP HANA as a distributed database, we use shared disk storage to facilitate high availability. This configuration of SAP HANA is called the *scale-out* solution.



Figure 3.7 SAP HANA as a Distributed Database

#### Data Volume and Data Backups

Figure 3.8 shows the various ways that SAP HANA uses disks. At the top left, you can see that the SAP HANA database is in memory. If it is not in memory, it is not a database. The primary storage for transactions is the memory. The disk is used for secondary storage—to help when starting up after a power down or hardware failure, with backups, and with disaster recovery.

Data is stored as *blocks* (also sometimes called *pages*) in memory. Every 10 minutes, a process called a *savepoint* runs that synchronizes these memory blocks to disks in the *data volume*. Only the blocks that contain data that have changed in the last 10 minutes are written to the data volume. This process is controlled by the *page manager*. The savepoint process runs asynchronously in the background.

Data backups are made from the disks in the data volume. When you request a backup, SAP HANA first runs a savepoint and ensures that the data in the data volume is consistent, then starts the backup process.



#### Note

The backup reads the data from the disks in the data volume. This does not affect the database operations, because the SAP HANA database continues working from memory. Therefore, you do not have to wait for an after-hours time window to start a backup.



Figure 3.8 Persistence of Data with SAP HANA

SAP HANA can unload (drop) data blocks from memory when it needs more memory for certain operations. This unloading of data from memory is not a problem, because SAP HANA knows that all the data is also safely stored in the data volume. It will unload the least-used portions of the data. It does not unload the least-used table, but only the columns or even portions of a column that were not used recently. In a scale-out solution, it can unload parts of a table partition.

#### Log Volume and Log Backups

In the middle section of <u>Figure 3.8</u>, you can see the *transaction manager* writing to the *log volume*. The page manager and transaction manager are subprocesses of the SAP HANA *index server* process. This is the main SAP HANA process. Should this process stop, then SAP HANA stops.

When you edit data in SAP HANA, the transaction manager manages these changes. All changes are stored in a *log buffer* in memory. When you COMMIT the transaction, the transaction manager does not commit the transaction to memory unless it is also committed to the disks in the log volume, so this is a synchronous operation. Because the system has to wait for a reply from a disk in this case, fast SSD disks are used in the log volume. This synchronous writing operation also is triggered if the log buffer becomes full.

The log files in the log volume are backed up regularly, using scheduled log backups.



#### Note

SAP HANA does not lose transactions, even if a power failure should occur, because it does not commit a transaction to the in-memory database unless it is also written to the disks in the log volume.

#### Startup

The data in the data volume is not a "database." Instead, think of it as a *memory dump*—an organized and controlled one. If it was a database on disk, it would have to convert the disk-based database format to an in-memory format each time it started up. Now, it can just reload the memory dump from disk back into memory as quickly as possible.

When you start up an SAP HANA system, it performs what is called a *lazy load*. It first loads the system tables into memory and then the row store. Finally, it loads any column tables that you have specified. Because the data volumes are only updated by the savepoint every 10 minutes, some transactions might not be in the data volume; SAP HANA loads those transactions from the log volume. Any transaction that was committed stays committed, and any transaction that was not committed is rolled back. This ensures a consistent database.

SAP HANA then reports that it is ready for work. This ensures that SAP HANA systems can start up quickly. Any other data that is required for queries gets loaded in the background. Again, SAP HANA does not have to load an entire table into memory; it can load only certain columns or part of a column into memory. In a scale-out system, it will load only the required partitions.

Disks are therefore useful for getting the data back into memory after system maintenance or (potential) hardware failures.

#### Disaster Recovery

At the bottom right of <u>Figure 3.8</u>, you can see that the data volume and logs also are used to facilitate *disaster recovery*. In disaster recovery, you make a copy of the SAP HANA system in another data center. Should your data center be flooded or damaged in an earthquake, your business can continue working from the disaster recovery copy.

The initial large copy of the system can be performed by replicating the data volume. Once the initial copy is made, only the changes are replicated as they are written to the log volume. (In the older versions of SAP HANA, the changes are continuously replicated in both the data and the log volumes.)

This replication can be performed by the SAP HANA system itself, or by the storage vendor of the disks in the data and log volumes. The replication can happen either *synchronously* or *asynchronously*. You can also choose whether to use *dedicated hardware* for the disaster recovery copy, or *shared hardware* for development and quality assurance purposes.

Disaster recovery is covered in more detail in the HA200 course, and in the SAP HANA administration guide on *http://help.sap.com/hana\_platform*.

#### Data Aging

The final piece of the persistence layer is found at the top right of <u>Figure 3.8</u>. This is where disks are used for data aging.

SAP HANA has a feature called *dynamic data tiering*. You can specify data aging rules inside SAP HANA to take, for example, all data older than five year and write it to this area. All queries to the data still work perfectly, but are just slower as they are read from disk instead of memory.

The data in the in-memory portion of SAP HANA is often referred to as the *hot data*, while the data stored in the dynamic data tiering portion is referred to as *warm data*. We can later expand this to include *cold data*, by using SAP HANA smart data access (SDA) with Hadoop. We discuss this in <u>Chapter 14</u>.

#### **Deployment Scenarios**

People sometimes get confused about SAP HANA when it is only defined with a single concept, such as *SAP HANA is a database*. After a while, they hear seemingly conflicting information that does not fit into that simple description. In this

section, we'll look at the various ways that SAP HANA can be used and deployed: as a database, as an accelerator, as a platform, or in the cloud.

When looking at SAP HANA's in-memory technology, and especially the fact that we should ideally move code away from the application servers to the database server, it seems that SAP systems need to be rewritten completely. Because SAP HANA does not need to store values like year-to-date, aggregates, or balances, we should ideally remove them from the database. By doing so, we can get rid of a significant percentage of the tables in, for example, a financial system. However, that implies that we should also trim the code that calculated those aggregates and inserted them into the tables we removed. In this way, we can also remove a significant percentage of our application code.

Next, the slow parts of the remaining code that manipulates data should be moved into graphical calculation views in SAP HANA, removing even more code from our application. If we follow this logic, we obviously have to completely rewrite our systems. This is not easy for SAP, which has millions of lines of code in every system and an established client base. This approach can be very disruptive. Disruptive innovation is great when you are disrupting other companies' markets, but not so much when you disrupt your own markets. Ask an existing SAP customer if he wants this new technology, and he probably will say, "Yes, but not if it means a reimplementation that will require lots of time, money, people, and effort." Completely rewriting the system would lead to customers replacing their systems with the new solution; that also means that customers with the older systems would not benefit at all from this innovation.

If you look at the new SAP S/4HANA systems, you will see that they follow the more disruptive approach we just described. However, there are other ways in which we can implement this disruptive new technology in a nondisruptive way—and this is how SAP approached the process when implementing SAP HANA a few years ago. The following sections walk through the deployment scenarios for implementation.

#### SAP HANA as a Sidecar Solution

The first SAP HANA deployment scenario is a standalone, native, or "sidecar" solution. Think of a motorcycle with a passenger on the side in their own little car seat; that seat is the sidecar. <u>Figure 3.9</u> illustrates SAP HANA as a sidecar solution.



Figure 3.9 SAP HANA Deployed as Nondisruptive Sidecar Solution

In this deployment scenario, the source systems stay as they are. No changes are required. We add SAP HANA on the side to accelerate any transactions or reports that have performance issues in the source systems and duplicate the relevant data from the source system to SAP HANA. This duplication is normally performed by the SAP LT Replication Server (SLT). (We'll discuss SLT in more detail in <u>Chapter 14</u>.) The copied data in SAP HANA is then used for analysis or reporting.

The advantages of this deployment option include the following:

- ▶ Because we just copy data, we do not change the source system at all. Therefore, everyone can use this innovation, but without the disruption (even those who have very old SAP systems, such as SAP R/3 4.6C).
- We can use this option for all types of systems, not just the latest SAP systems. In fact, a large percentage of the systems that use SAP HANA are non-SAP systems.

- ➤ We don't have to copy the data for an entire system. If a report already runs in three seconds, that's good enough; it doesn't have to run in three milliseconds. If a report runs for two hours, but runs only once a year and is scheduled to run overnight, that's fine too. We only take the data into SAP HANA that we need to accelerate.
- ► We can replicate data from a source system in real time. The reports running on SAP HANA are always fully up-to-date.

Even though we make a copy of data, remember that SAP HANA compresses this data and that we do not copy all the data. Therefore, the SAP HANA system is always much smaller than the source system(s) in this deployment scenario.

However, the SAP HANA system in this scenario is blank. You will have to load the data into SAP HANA, build your own information models, link them to your reports and programs, and look after the security. Much of what we will discuss in this book is focused on this type of work.

#### SAP HANA as a Database

When SAP released the sidecar solution, many people thought that it would replace their data warehouses. However, this worry was alleviated when SAP announced that SAP HANA would be used as the database under SAP Business Warehouse (SAP BW). Figure 3.10 illustrates a typical (older) SAP landscape.

SAP HANA can now be used to replace the databases under SAP BW, SAP CRM, and SAP ERP (which are part of the SAP Business Suite). There are well-established database migration procedures to replace a current database with SAP HANA. In each case, SAP HANA replaces the database only. The SAP systems still use the SAP application servers as they did previously, and end users still access the SAP systems as they always did, via the SAP application servers. All reports, security, and transports are performed as before. Only the system and database administrators have to learn SAP HANA and log into the SAP HANA systems.

<u>Figure 3.11</u> looks very similar to <u>Figure 3.10</u>, except that the various databases were replaced by SAP HANA.

By only replacing the database, SAP again managed to provide most of the benefit of this new in-memory technology to businesses, but without the cost, time, and effort of disruptive system replacements. The applications' code was not forked to produce different code for SAP BW on SAP HANA versus SAP BW on older databases.



Figure 3.10 Typical Current SAP Landscape Example



Figure 3.11 SAP HANA as Database Can Change Current Landscape

#### SAP HANA as an Accelerator

Using SAP HANA in the sidecar deployment can be a lot of work because it is a "blank" system. SAP quickly realized that special use cases occurred at a majority of their customers where some common processes were slow; one of these processes is profitability analysis. Profitability is something that any company needs to focus on, but profitably analysis reports are slow running due to the large amounts of data they have to process. By loading profitability data into SAP HANA, the response times of these reports go from hours to mere seconds (see Figure 3.12).



Figure 3.12 SAP HANA Used as an Accelerator for a Current SAP Solution

For these accelerators, SAP provides prebuilt models in SAP HANA. SAP also slightly modified the ABAP code for SAP CO-PA to read the data from SAP HANA instead of the original database. SLT replicates just the required profitability data across from the SAP ERP system to the SAP HANA system.

The installation and configuration process is performed at a customer site over a few days, instead of weeks and months. The only thing that changes for the end users is that they have to get used to the increased processing speed, and no one has a problem with that!

#### SAP HANA as a Platform

The next way we can deploy SAP HANA is by using it as a full development platform. SAP HANA is more than just an in-memory database. Which other database has several different programming languages included and has version control, code repositories, and a full application server built in?

SAP HANA has all of these. This makes SAP HANA not just a database, but a platform. You can program in SQL, SQLScript (an SAP HANA-only enhancement that we'll look at in <u>Chapter 8</u>), R, and JavaScript.

However, the main feature we use inside SAP HANA when deploying SAP HANA as a platform is the application server, called the *SAP HANA extended application services* (SAP HANA XS) *engine*, which is used via web services (see Figure 3.13).



Figure 3.13 SAP HANA as a Development Platform

The SAP HANA XS engine is a full web and application server built into SAP HANA and is capable of serving and consuming web pages and web services.

When we deploy SAP HANA as a platform, we only need an HTML5 browser and the SAP HANA XS engine. In this case, we still develop data models as we discussed previously with the sidecar and accelerator deployments, but we also develop a full application in SAP HANA, using JavaScript and an HTML framework called SAPUI5. All this functionality is built-in to SAP HANA.

The development paradigm that most frameworks use is called *Model-View-Controller* (MVC). *Model* in this case refers to the information models that we will build in SAP HANA and is the focus of this book. We expose these information models in the *controller* by exposing them as OData or REST web services. This functionality is available in SAP HANA and is easy to use. You can

enhance these web services using *server-side JavaScript*. This means that SAP HANA runs JavaScript as a programming language inside the server.

The last piece is the *view*, which is created using the SAPUI5 framework. The screens are the same as the SAP Fiori screens seen in the new SAP S/4HANA systems, which are HTML5 screens. What is popularly referred to as HTML5 actually consists of HTML5, Cascading Style Sheets (CSS3), and *client-side JavaScript*. In this case, the JavaScript runs in the browser of the end-user.

By using JavaScript for both the view and the controller, SAP HANA XS developers only have to learn one programming language to create powerful web applications and solutions that leverage the power and performance of SAP HANA.

We can even create native mobile applications for Apple iOS, Android, and other mobile platforms. Some free applications such as Cordova take the SAP HANA XS applications and compile them into native mobile applications, which can then be distributed via mobile application stores. As a result, you can use SAP HANA's power directly from your mobile phone.

#### **Multitenant Database Containers**

*Multitenant Database Containers* (MDC) is a new deployment option that became available as of SAP HANA SPS 09. We can now have multiple isolated databases inside a single SAP HANA system, as shown in <u>Figure 3.14</u>. Each of these isolated databases is referred to as a *tenant*.



Figure 3.14 Multitenancy with SAP HANA Multitenant Database Containers

Think of tenants occupying an apartment building: Each tenant has his or her own front door key and own furniture inside his or her apartment. Other tenants cannot get into another tenant's apartment without permission. However, the maintenance of the entire apartment building is performed by a single team. If the building needs repairs to the water pipes, all tenants will be without water for a few minutes.

In the same way, tenants in MDC have their own unique business systems, data, and business users. In Figure 3.14, you can see that each of the three tenants has his own unique application installed and connected to their own tenant database inside SAP HANA.

Each tenant can make its own backups if the user wishes. Tenants can also collaborate, so one tenant can use the SAP HANA models of another tenant if they has been given the right security access.

However, all the tenants share the same technical server infrastructure and maintenance. The system administration team can make a backup for all the tenants. (Any tenant can be restored individually, though.) SAP HANA upgrades and maintenance schedules happen at the same time for all the tenants.

#### **Cloud Deployments**

We've now discussed various ways to deploy SAP HANA. Most of the time, we think of these deployments as running on-premise on a local server, but all of these scenarios can also be deployed in the cloud. In cloud deployments, virtualizations manage applications like SAP HANA. VMware vSphere virtual machine deployments of SAP HANA are fully supported, both for development and production instances.

With cloud deployments, you'll be introduced to various new terms:

Infrastructure as a Service (IaaS)

An infrastructure includes things like network, memory, CPU, and storage. IaaS provides infrastructure in the cloud to support your deployments.

#### Platform as a Service (PaaS)

PaaS uses solutions such as SAP HANA Cloud Platform (HCP). In this scenario, you use not only the same infrastructure as IaaS, but also a platform—for example, a Java application service or the SAP HANA platform.

#### Software as a Service (SaaS)

A cloud offering that provides certain software, such as SAP SuccessFactors or SAP Hybris.

#### Managed Cloud as a Service (MCaaS)

In MCaaS, SAP manages the entire environment for you, including backups, disaster recovery, high availability, patches, and upgrades. An example of this is the SAP HANA Enterprise Cloud (SAP HEC).

#### Public, Private, and Hybrid Cloud

Your cloud scenario could be a public, private, or hybrid cloud scenario. Let's look at what each of those terms means and when each scenario would apply.

The easiest and cheapest way for you to get an instance of SAP HANA for use with this book is probably via Amazon Web Services (AWS). You can simply go to *http://aws.amazon.com* and look for an SAP HANA development environment. By using your Amazon account, you can have a 28 GB or larger SAP HANA system up and running in minutes. This is available to everyone—the public—so therefore this is a *public cloud*. In this example, AWS provides IaaS.

The reason this is called a public cloud is that the infrastructure is shared by members of the public. You do not get your own dedicated machine at Amazon or any other public cloud provider.

If you host SAP HANA in your own data center or in a hosted environment specifically for you only, then it is a *private* or *hybrid* cloud. A private cloud offers the same features that you would find in a public cloud, but is dictated by different forms of access. With a private cloud, the servers in the cloud provider's data center are dedicated for your company only. No other companies' programs or data are allowed on these servers.

A hybrid cloud involves either combining a public and private cloud offering, or running a private and public cloud together. With a hybrid cloud, you connect your private cloud's server back to your own data center via a secure network connection. In that case, the servers in the cloud act as if they are part of your data center, even though they are actually in the cloud provider's data center. An example of a hybrid cloud would be if we used Amazon EC2 and operated another private cloud together. SAP HANA works great as a cloud enabler because it accelerates applications, providing users with fast response times—which we all expect from such environments.

#### SAP HANA Enterprise Cloud

SAP HEC offers SAP applications as cloud offerings. You can choose to run SAP HANA, SAP BW, SAP ERP, SAP CRM, SAP Business Suite, and many others as a full service offering in the cloud. All the systems that you would normally run on-premise are available in SAP HEC.

SAP provides the hardware, infrastructure, and all system administration services to manage the solutions for the customer. The customer only has to provide the license keys for these systems. This is referred to as *bring your own license*.

SAP HEC is seen as an MCaaS solution and a private cloud, but it can be deployed in a hybrid cloud offering.

#### SAP HANA Cloud Platform

SAP HANA Cloud Platform (SAP HCP) is a PaaS that allows you to build, extend, and run applications in the cloud. This includes SAPUI5, HTML5, SAP HANA XS, Java applications, and more.

The SAP HCP Cockpit is at the core of this technology where you can manage and create all of your applications.

#### Additional Resources

For more information on cloud deployments, including details on SAP HEC and SAP HCP, check out the book *Operating SAP in the Cloud: Landscapes and Infrastructures* (SAP PRESS, 2016) at *https://www.sap-press.com/3841*.

# **Important Terminology**

The following important terminology was covered in this chapter:

#### In-memory technology

In-memory technology is an approach to querying data residing in RAM, as opposed to physical disks. The results of doing so lead to shortened response

times. This enables enhanced analytics for business intelligence/analytic applications.

#### ► SAP HANA Architecture

No longer constrained by disks, solutions like column-based storage, compression, no indices, delta merges, scale-out, partitioning, and parallelism were added.

With the paradigm shift to in-memory technologies, various programming languages and application development processes were added to SAP HANA.

SAP HANA still uses disks, but purely as secondary (backup) storage because memory is volatile. With the data and log volumes, SAP HANA ensures that no data ever gets lost. The data and log volumes are also used for backups, when starting up the SAP HANA system, and for disaster recovery.

#### Persistence layer

The disk storage and the storing of data happens in the persistence layer, and storing data on disk is called persistence.

#### ► SAP HANA as a sidecar

Source systems stay as they are, and SAP HANA is added on the side to accelerate any transactions or reports that have performance issues in the source systems. The relevant data is duplicated from the source system to SAP HANA. This duplication is normally performed by the SLT. The copied data in SAP HANA is then used for analysis or reporting.

#### ► SAP HANA as a database

Used to replace the databases under SAP BW, SAP CRM, and SAP ERP (which are part of the SAP Business Suite). There are well-established database migration procedures to replace the current database with SAP HANA. In each case, SAP HANA replaces the database only.

#### ► SAP HANA as an accelerator

SAP provides prebuilt models in SAP HANA to accelerator processes such as profitability data. SLT replicates just the required profitability data across from the SAP ERP system to the SAP HANA system.

#### SAP HANA as a platform

SAP HANA is a development platform. By combining the SAP HANA information models with development in the SAP HANA XS application server, we can build powerful custom web applications.

#### Public cloud

A public cloud is available to anyone, offering any type of cloud service. The infrastructure is shared by members of the public. You do not get your own dedicated machine at Amazon or any other public cloud provider.

#### Private cloud

Offers the same features that you would find in a public cloud, but is dictated by different forms of access. With a private cloud, the servers in the cloud provider's data center are dedicated for your company only. No other companies' programs or data are allowed on these servers.

#### Hybrid cloud

Involves either combining a public and private cloud offering, or running a private and public cloud together. With a hybrid cloud, you connect your private cloud's server back to your own data center via a secure network connection. In that case, the servers in the cloud act as if they are part of your data center, even though they are actually in the cloud provider's data center.

#### ► SAP HANA Enterprise Cloud (SAP HEC)

Offers all the SAP applications as cloud offerings. You can choose to run SAP HANA, SAP BW, SAP ERP, SAP CRM, SAP Business Suite, and many others as a full service offering in the cloud. All the systems that you would normally run on-premise are available in the SAP HEC.

#### ► SAP HANA Cloud Platform (SAP HCP)

A PaaS that allows you to build, extend, and run applications in the cloud. This includes SAPUI5, HTML5, SAP HANA XS, Java applications, and more.

# Practice Questions

These practice questions will help you evaluate your understanding of the topics covered in this chapter. The questions shown are similar in nature to those found on the certification examination. Although none of these questions will be found on the exam itself, they will allow you to review your knowledge of the subject. Select the correct answers and then check the completeness of your answers in the Practice Question Answers and Explanations section. Remember that on the exam you must select all correct answers and only correct answers to receive credit for the question.

- 1. Which technologies does SAP HANA use to load more data into memory? (There are 3 correct answers.)
- □ **A.** Eliminate indices
- □ **B.** Use RAR compression
- $\Box$  **C.** Use dictionary compression
- □ **D.** Store data in column tables
- □ E. Use multicore CPU parallelism
- 2. True or False: With SAP HANA, you can run OLAP and OLTP together in one system with good performance.
- $\Box$  **A.** True
- □ **B.** False
- 3. True or False: SAP HANA contains both row and column tables.
- $\Box$  **A.** True
- □ **B.** False
- 4. How do you move code to SAP HANA? (There are 2 correct answers.)
- □ **A.** Delete the application server
- □ **B.** Use stored procedures in SAP HANA
- □ **C.** Use graphical data models in SAP HANA
- □ **D.** Use row tables in SAP HANA
- 5. In which SAP HANA solution do you eliminate stored data, like year-to-date figures?
- $\hfill\square$  **A.** SAP BW on SAP HANA
- □ **B.** SAP CRM on SAP HANA
- □ C. SAP S/4HANA
- D. SAP HANA Enterprise Cloud

- 6. Which deployment scenario can you use to accelerate reporting from an old SAP R/3 4.6C system?
- □ **A.** SAP HANA as a database
- □ **B.** SAP HANA as a platform
- □ **C.** SAP HANA as a sidecar solution
- D. SAP HANA multitenant database containers
- 7. In which deployment scenarios does security stay in the application server, and end users do not log into the SAP HANA system? (There are 2 correct answers.)
- □ **A.** SAP HANA as a platform with an SAP HANA XS application
- □ **B.** SAP HANA as a database
- □ **C.** SAP HANA as a sidecar solution
- D. SAP HANA as an accelerator
- 8. For which deployment scenario does SAP deliver prebuilt data models?
- □ **A.** SAP HANA as a platform
- □ **B.** SAP HANA as a sidecar solution
- □ **C.** SAP HANA as an accelerator
- $\Box$  **D.** SAP HANA on the cloud
- 9. True or False: SAP HANA is just a database.
- $\Box$  **A.** True
- □ **B.** False
- 10. What is normally used to build SAP HANA XS applications inside SAP HANA? (There are 2 correct answers.)
- 🗆 🗛 A. Java
- □ **B.** JavaScript
- $\Box$  **C.** SAPUI5
- $\Box$  **D.** ABAP

- 11. Which type of cloud solution is SAP HANA Enterprise Cloud (HEC) an example of?
- □ **A.** Platform as a Service (PaaS)
- □ **B.** Infrastructure as a Service (IaaS)
- □ **C.** Software as a Service (SaaS)
- D. Managed Cloud as a Service (MCaaS)
- 12. Which type of cloud solution is Amazon Web Services (AWS) an example of?
- □ **A.** Hybrid cloud
- □ **B.** Public cloud
- □ **C.** Private cloud
- $\Box$  **D.** Community cloud
- 13. True or False: VMware vSphere virtual machines are fully supported for productive SAP HANA instances.
- $\Box$  **A.** True
- $\Box$  **B.** False
- 14. You use parallelism to calculate a year-to-date value quickly, and you eliminate a table from the database. What are some of the implications of this action? (There are 3 correct answers)
- □ **A.** Smaller database backups
- □ **B.** Less code
- □ **C.** Better user interfaces
- □ **D.** Faster response times
- □ **E.** Faster inserts into the database
- 15. What enables the delta buffer technique to speed up both reads and inserts in SAP HANA?
- □ **A.** Using column-based tables only
- □ **B.** Using row-based tables only
- □ **C.** Using both row-based and column-based tables
- D. Using only the insert-only technique

- 16. What technique is used to convert record updates into insert statements in the delta buffer?
- □ **A.** Unsorted inserts
- □ **B.** Insert-only
- □ **C.** Sorted inserts
- D. Parallelism
- 17. What phrase describes the main table area in the delta merge scenario?
- □ **A.** Read-optimized
- □ **B.** Write-optimized
- □ **C.** Unsorted inserts
- $\Box$  **D.** Row store
- 18. What does the C in ACID-compliant stand for?
- □ **A.** Complexity
- □ **B.** Consistency
- $\Box$  **C.** Complete
- D. Constant
- 19. Which of the following are results of deploying SAP HANA as a distributed (scale-out) solution? (There are 3 correct answers.)
- □ **A.** Partitioning
- □ **B.** Disaster recovery
- □ **C.** High availability
- □ **D.** Failover
- □ **E.** Backups
- 20. Which words are associated with the log volume? (There are 2 correct answers.)
- □ A. Synchronous
- □ **B.** Transaction manager
- □ **C.** Page manager
- D. Savepoint

- 21. Of which SAP HANA process are the transaction manager and page manager a part?
- □ **A.** SAP HANA XS server
- □ **B.** Statistics server
- $\Box$  **C.** Index server
- □ **D.** Name server
- 22. What type of load does SAP HANA perform when starting up?
- □ A. Lazy load
- □ **B.** Complete load
- □ **C.** Fast load
- **D.** Log load
- 23. What does SAP HANA load when starting up and before indicating that it is ready? (There are 3 correct answers.)
- $\Box$  **A.** All row tables
- □ **B.** All system tables
- $\Box$  **C.** All partitions
- □ **D.** Some column tables
- $\Box$  **E.** Some row tables

# **Practice Question Answers and Explanations**

1. Correct answers: A, C, D

SAP HANA uses column tables, dictionary compression, and eliminating indices to load more data into memory. However, it does not use RAR compression, because RAR-compressed files would have to be uncompressed before we can use the data.

Multicore CPU parallelism helps with the performance, but does not directly address the data volume issue. It contributes indirectly, because by using it we can eliminate things like year-to-date tables as in SAP S/4HANA.

2. Correct answer: A

Yes, with SAP HANA we can run OLAP and OLTP together in one system with good performance. This is normally not possible in the traditional database system. Please note that there are no True-False questions in the actual certification exam, but we use them here to help you check if you understood this chapter.

3. Correct answer: A

Yes, SAP HANA contains both row and column tables.

4. Correct answers: **B**, **C** 

Use stored procedures and graphical data models to execute the code in SAP HANA. Deleting the application server will not help with running the code in SAP HANA, unless we develop all that same functionality in the SAP HANA XS server. Using row tables in SAP HANA has nothing to do with executing code.

5. Correct answer: C

In SAP S/4HANA, many aggregate tables are removed and the solution is simplified.

6. Correct answer: **C** 

SAP HANA as a sidecar solution does not change the source systems.

7. Correct answers: **B**, **D** 

With SAP HANA as a sidecar and platform, users have to log in to SAP HANA. With SAP HANA as a database and accelerator, users log in via the application server.

8. Correct answer: C

SAP delivers prebuilt data models for the accelerators.

9. Correct answer: **B** 

SAP HANA can also be used as a platform. Databases do not normally have application servers, version control, code repositories, and various programming languages built in.

10. Correct answers: **B**, **C** 

SAP HANA XS applications in SAP HANA are built using JavaScript and SAPUI5. Java and ABAP are not part of SAP HANA. SAP HANA SPS 11 includes a new SAP HANA XS advanced server, in which it is now possible to run other programming languages, like Java and C++.

11. Correct answer: D

SAP HANA Enterprise Cloud is a Managed Cloud as a Service.

12. Correct answer: **B** 

Amazon Web Services is a public cloud.

13. Correct answer: A

Productive SAP HANA is supported on VMware vSphere.

14. Correct answers: A, B, D

The implications of eliminating such tables from the database are smaller database backups, less code, and faster response times. Doing so will not necessarily improve user interfaces. It actually eliminates extra inserts into the database, but does not make the current data inserts any faster. Techniques such as removing indices will achieve that.

15. Correct answer: C

The delta buffer technique speeds up both reads and inserts in SAP HANA because it uses both row-based and column-based tables. Using column-based tables only speeds up reads, but not inserts. Using row-based tables only speeds up inserts, but not reads. Using only the insert-only technique is useless without having both row-based and column-based tables. Watch out for the word "only."

16. Correct answer: **B** 

The insert-only technique is used to convert record updates into insert statements in the delta buffer. Unsorted inserts are used in the delta buffer, but it does not convert updates to insert statements. Sorted inserts are not used in the delta buffer. Parallelism is not relevant in this case.

17. Correct answer: A

The main table area in the delta merge scenario is read-optimized. The delta store is write-optimized, uses unsorted inserts, and is based on the row store.

18. Correct answer: B

ACID stands for Atomicity, Consistency, Isolation, and Durability.

19. Correct answers: A, C, D

Did you see the hidden hint here? The answers almost spell out ACID! Deploying SAP HANA as a distributed (scale-out) solution results in partitioning, high availability, and failover capability. Disaster recovery and backups work whether the SAP HANA system is distributed or on a single server. 20. Correct answers: A, B

Synchronous and transaction manager are associated with the log volume. Page manager and savepoint are associated with the data volume.

21. Correct answer: C

The transaction manager and page manager are part of the index server. The other three services are also part of SAP HANA, but are not discussed in this book.

22. Correct answer: A

SAP HANA performs a lazy load when starting up.

23. Correct answers: A, B, D

During the lazy load, SAP HANA loads all row tables, all system tables, and some column tables.

# Takeaway

You should now understand in-memory technologies such as column-based storage, compression, no indices, delta merges, scale-out, partitioning, and parallelism. You also know how SAP HANA uses disks for its persistence storage.

You can now describe the various SAP HANA deployment scenarios, how SAP HANA uses in-memory technologies like columns, tables, and compression, and the various ways that SAP HANA can be deployed. We looked at the different advantages of each deployment method to help you decide which one fits your requirements best. Finally, we looked at how SAP HANA can also be deployed in the cloud and for multiple tenants.

## Summary

You have learned the various ways you can deploy SAP HANA. With this knowledge, you can make recommendations to business users for an appropriate system architecture and landscape.

In the next chapter, we will discuss important information modeling concepts.

# Information Modeling Concepts

### **Techniques You'll Master**

- Understand general data modeling concepts like views, cubes, fact tables, and hierarchies
- Know when to use the different types of joins in SAP HANA
- Examine the differences between attributes and measures
- Learn about the different types of information views that SAP HANA uses
- Get to know projections, aggregations, and unions used in SAP HANA information views
- ► Describe Core Data Services (CDS) in SAP HANA
- Get a glimpse of best practices and general guidelines for data modeling in SAP HANA

Before moving onto the more advanced modeling concepts, it's important to understand the basics. In this chapter, we'll discuss the general concepts of information modeling in SAP HANA. We'll start off by reviewing views, join types, cubes, fact tables, hierarchies, the differences between attributes and measures, the different types of information views that SAP HANA offers, and CDS views. From there, we'll take a deeper dive into SAP HANA's information views, as well as concepts like calculated columns, how to perform currency conversions, input parameters, decision tables, and so on.

### **Real-World Scenario**

You start a new project. Many of the project team members have some knowledge of traditional data modeling concepts and describe what they need in those terms. You need to know how to take those terms and ideas, translate them into SAP HANA modeling concepts, and implement them in SAP HANA in an optimal way.

Some of the new concepts in SAP HANA are quite different than what you're used to—for example, not storing the values of a cube, instead calculating it when required. If you understand these modeling concepts, you can quickly understand and create real-time applications and reports in SAP HANA.

# **Objectives of This Portion of the Test**

The objective of this portion of the SAP HANA certification is to test your understanding of basic SAP HANA modeling artifacts.

For the certification exam, SAP HANA modelers must have a good understanding of the following topics:

- The different types of joins available in SAP HANA and when to use each one
- How the SAP HANA information views correspond to traditional modeling artifacts
- ► The different types of SAP HANA views and when to use them
- ► The purpose of Core Data Services (CDS) in SAP HANA



#### Note

This portion contributes up to 5% of the total certification exam score.

# **Key Concepts Refresher**

This section looks at some of the core data modeling concepts used when working with SAP HANA and that will be covered on the exam. Let's start from where the data is stored in SAP HANA by looking at tables.

#### Tables

*Tables* allow you to store information in *rows* and *columns*. Inside SAP HANA, there are different ways of storing data. We can either store it in a table as *row*-*oriented* or *column-oriented*. In a normal disk-based database, we use row-oriented storage because it works faster with transactions in which we are reading and updating single records. However, because SAP HANA works in memory, we prefer the column-oriented method of storing data in the tables, with which we can make use of compression in memory, remove the storage overhead of indexes, save a lot of space, and optimize for performance by loading compressed data into computer processors.

Once we have our tables, we can begin combining them in SAP HANA information models.

#### Views

The first step in building information models is building *views*. A *view* is a database entity that is not persistent and is defined as the projection of other entities, like tables.

For a view, we take two or more tables, link these different tables together on matching columns, and select certain output fields. <u>Figure 4.1</u> illustrates this process.



#### Figure 4.1 Database View

There are four steps when creating database views:

#### 1. Select the tables

Select two or more tables that have related information—for example, two tables listing the groceries you bought. One table contains the shop where you bought each item, the date, the total amount, and how you paid for your groceries. The other table contains the various grocery items you bought.

#### 2. Link the tables

Next, link the selected tables on matching columns. In our example, perhaps our two tables both have shopping spree numbers, should ideally a unique number for every shopping trip you took. We call this a *key field*. We can link the tables together with *joins* or *unions*.

#### 3. Select the output fields

We want to show a certain number of columns that are of interest to us-for example, to use in our grocery analytics. Normally, you don't want all the available columns as part of the output.

#### 4. Save the view

Finally, save your view, and it's created in the database. These views are sometimes called *SQL views*. We can even add some filters on our data in the view—for example, to show only the shopping trips in 2015 or all the shopping trips in which we bought apples.

When we call this view, the database gathers the data. The database view pulls the tables out, links them together, chooses the selected output fields, reads the data in the combined fields, and returns the result set. After this, the view "disappears" until we call it again. Then, the database deletes all of the output from the view. It does not store this data from the view inside the database storage.

### Тір

It's important to realize that database views don't store the result data. Each time you call a view, it performs the full process again.

You might have also heard about *materialized views*, in which people store the output created by a view in another table. However, in our definition of *views*, we stated that a view is a database entity that *is not persistent*; that is the way we use the term *view* in SAP HANA.

The data stays in the database tables. When we call the view, the database gathers the subset of data, showing us only the data that we asked for. If we ask a database view for that same data a few minutes later, the database will regather and recalculate the data again.

This concept is quite important going forward, because you make extensive use of views in SAP HANA. SAP HANA creates a cube-like view, for example, sends the results back to us, and "disappears" again. SAP HANA performs this process fast, and we avoid consuming a lot of extra memory by not storing static results. What really makes this concept important is the way it enables us to perform *real-time reporting*.

In the few minutes between running the same view twice, our data in the table might have changed. If we use the same output from the view every time, we will not get the benefit of seeing the effect of the updated data. Extensive caching of result sets does not help when we want real-time reporting.



Real-time reporting requires recalculating results, because the data can keep changing. Views are designed to handle this requirement elegantly.

We have discussed the basic type of database views here, but SAP HANA takes the concept of views to an entirely new level!

Before we get there, we'll look at a few more concepts that we will need for our information modeling journey.

# Cardinality

When we join tables together, we need to define how much data we expect to get from the various joined tables. This part of the relationship is called the *car*-*dinality*.

There are four basic cardinalities that you will typically work with. The cardinality is expressed in terms of how many records on the left side join to how many records on the right side.

#### One-to-one

Each record on the left side matches with one record on the right side. For example, say that you have a lookup table of country codes and country names. In your left table, you have a country code called ZA. In the right table (the lookup table), this matches with exactly one record, showing that the country name of South Africa is associated with ZA.

#### One-to-many

In this case, each record on the left side matches with many records on the right side. For example, say you have a list of publishers in the left table. For one publisher—such as SAP PRESS—we find many published books.

#### ► Many-to-one

This is the inverse of one-to-many. For example, this case may apply when we have many people in a small village all buying items at the local corner shop.

#### ▶ Many-to-many

For example, this case may apply when many people read many web pages.

#### Joins

Before we look at the different types of joins, let's quickly discuss the idea of "left" and "right" tables. Sometimes, it does not make much of difference which table is on the left of the join and which table is on the right, because some join types are symmetrical. However, with a few join types it does make a difference.

We recommend putting the most important table, seen as the *main table*, on the left of the join. An easy way to remember which table should be the table on the right side of the join is to determine which table can be used for a lookup or for a dropdown list in an application (see Figure 4.2).



Figure 4.2 Table Used for Dropdown List on Right-Hand Side of a Join

This does not always mean that this table has to be physically positioned on the left of the screen in our graphical modeling tools. When we create a join in SAP HANA, the table we start the join from (by dragging and dropping) becomes the "left table" of the join.

Databases are highly optimized to work with joins; they are much better at it than you can hope to be in your application server or reporting tool. SAP HANA takes this to the next level with its new in-memory and parallelization techniques.

In SAP HANA, there are a number of different types of joins. Some of these are the same as what you would find in traditional databases, but others are unique to SAP HANA. Let's start by looking at the basic join types.

#### **Basic Join Types**

The first basic join types that you will find in most databases are inner joins, left outer joins, right outer joins, and full outer joins. We will discuss SQL in more detail in <u>Chapter 8</u>.

The easiest way to visualize these join types is to use circles, as shown in <u>Figure 4.3</u>. This is a simplified illustration of what these join types do. (The assumption is that the tables illustrated here contain unique rows; that is, we join the tables via primary and foreign keys, as illustrated in <u>Figure 4.1</u>. If the tables contain duplicate records, this visualization does not hold.)

The left circle represents the table on the left side of the join. In <u>Figure 4.3</u>, the left table contains the two values A and B. The right circle represents the table on the right side of the join and contains the values B and C.

#### Inner Join

The *inner join* is the most widely used join type in most databases. When in doubt and working with a non-SAP HANA database, try an inner join first.

The inner join returns the results from the area where the two circles overlap. In effect, this means that a value is shown only if it is found to be present in both the left and the right tables. In our case, in <u>Figure 4.3</u>, you can see that the value B is found in both tables.

Because we are only working with the "overlap" area, it does not matter for this join type which table is on the left or on the right side of the join.


Figure 4.3 Basic Join Types and Their Result Sets

## Left Outer Join

When using an inner join you may find that you're not getting all the data back that you require. To retrieve the data that was *left out*, you would use a *left outer* join. You will only use this join type when this need arises.

With a left outer join, everything in the table on the left side is shown (first table). If there are matching values in the right table, these are shown. If there are any "missing" values in the right hand table, these are shown with a NULL value.

For this join type, it is important to know which tables are on the left and the right side of the join.

## **Right Outer Join**

The inverse of the left outer join is the right outer join, This shows everything from the right table (second table). If there are matching values in the left table, these are shown. If there are any "missing" values in the left hand table, these are shown with a NULL value.

## Full Outer Join

As of SAP HANA SPS 11, we now have the full outer join. Many other databases also have this join type, so it is still regarded as one of the four basic join types.

This join type combines the results sets of both the left outer join and right outer join into a single result set.

## Self-Joins

There isn't really a join type called a *self-join*; the term refers to special cases in which a table is joined to itself. The same table is both the left table and the right table in the join relationship. The actual join type would still be something like an inner join.

This configuration is used mostly in recursive tables—that is, tables that refer back to themselves, such as in HR organizational structures. All employee team members have a manager, but managers are also employees of their companies and have someone else as their manager. In this case, team members and managers are all employees of the same company and are stored in the same table. Other examples include cost and profit center hierarchies or bills of materials (BOMs).

We return to this concept when we look at the Hierarchies section later in this chapter.

## **SAP HANA Join Types**

The join types on the right side of <u>Figure 4.4</u> are unique to SAP HANA: referential join, text join, and temporal join.



Figure 4.4 Basic Join Types and Some SAP HANA-Specific Join Types

## **Referential Join**

The referential join type normally returns exactly the same results as an inner join. So, what's the difference? There are many areas SAP HANA tries to optimize the performance of queries and result sets. In this case, even though a referential join gives the same results as an inner join, it provides a performance optimization under certain circumstances.

The referential join uses *referential integrity* between the tables in the join. Referential integrity is used in a business system to ensure that data in the left and right tables match. For example, we can't have an invoice that isn't linked to a customer, and the customer must be inserted into the database before we are allowed to create an invoice for that customer. Note that you do not need a value on both sides of the join: You may have a customer without an invoice, but you may not have an invoice without a customer.

If we can prove that the data in our tables has referential integrity, which most data in financial business systems has, then we can use a referential join. In this case, if we're not reading any data from the right table, then SAP HANA can quite happily ignore the entire right table and the join itself, and it doesn't have to do any checking, which speeds up the whole process.



A referential join is the optimal join type in SAP HANA.

## Text Join

Another SAP HANA-specific joint type is a text join. The name gives a clue as to when we will use this type of join.

The right-hand table, as shown in <u>Figure 4.5</u>, would be something like a text lookup table—for example, a list of country names. On one side, we would have a country code such as US or DE, and in the text lookup table we would have the same country code and would link it with the key, and also would have the actual name of the country (e.g., United States or Germany).

SAP sells software in many countries, and SAP business systems are available in multiple languages, and the name of the country and be translated into different languages. The fourth column in the text lookup table, called the language code, indicates into which language the country name has been translated. For example, for the country called DE and a language code of EN, the name of the country is in English and thus would be Germany. If the language code was DE (for German), the name of the country would be Deutschland, and if the language code was ES (for Español, indicating Spanish) then the name of the country would be Alemania.

Therefore, the same country can have totally different names depending on what language you speak.

In such a case, SAP HANA does something clever: By looking at the browser, the application server, or the machine that you are working on, it determines the language that you are logged on in. If you are logged in using English, it knows to use the name Germany. If you are logged on using German, it provides the German country name Deutschland for you.



#### Figure 4.5 Text Join

The text join behaves like a left outer join but always has a cardinality of one-toone (1:1). In other words, it only returns a single country name based on the language you're logged on with. Even if you're logged in via mobile phone, your mobile phone has a certain language setting.

#### **Temporal Join**

We use the temporal join when we've got FROM and TO date and time fields, or integers.

For example, say that you're storing the fuel price for gasoline in a specific table. From the beginning of this month to the end of this month, gasoline sells for a certain price. Next month, the price differs, and maybe two weeks later, it's adjusted again. Later, you'll have a list of all the different gasoline prices over time.

As a car owner, you now want to perform calculations for how much you've paid for your gasoline each time you filled up your tank. However, you just have the number of gallons and the dates of when you filled up. You can say, "OK, on this date, I filled up the tank." You then have to look up which date range your filling-up date falls within and find the price for that specific date. You can then calculate what you paid to fill your tank for each of your dates. <u>Figure 4.6</u> illustrates this example.



#### Figure 4.6 Temporal Join for Gasoline Prices

This date range lookup can be a little more complicated in a database. Sometimes, programmers read the data into an application server and then loop through the different records. In this case, a temporal join makes it easy, because SAP HANA will perform the date lookups in the FROM and the TO fields automatically for you, compare it to the date you've supplied, and get you the right fuel price at that specific date. It will perform all the calculations automatically for you—a great time and effort saver.

A temporal join uses either a referential join; or an inner join to do the work. A temporal join requires valid to and from dates (in the gasoline price table) and a valid date-time column (in your car log book table).

## Spatial Join

Spatial joins became available in SAP HANA SPS 09. SAP HANA provides spatial data types, which we can use, for example, with maps. These all have the prefix  $ST_{-}$ . A location on a map, with longitude and latitude, would be an ST\_POINT data type. (We will discuss spatial data and analytics further in <u>Chapter 9</u>.)

We can use special spatial joins between tables in SAP HANA (see Figure 4.7). Say that you have a map location stored in a ST\_POINT data type in one table. In the other table, you have a list of suburbs described in a ST\_POLYGON data type. You can now join these two tables with a spatial join and define the spatial join to use the ST\_CONTAINS method. This will calculate for each of the locations (ST\_POINT) in which suburb (ST\_POLYGON) they are located (ST\_CONTAINS).





There are about a dozen methods like ST\_CONTAINS available for spatial joins. For example, you can test if a road crosses a river, if one area overlaps another (e.g., mobile phone tower reception areas), or how close certain objects are to each other.

We have only mentioned the two-dimensional aspects in relation to maps, but many of these spatial functions can be used in three dimensions.

## **Dynamic Joins**

A dynamic join is not really a join type; it's a join property. It is also a performance enhancement available for SAP HANA. Once you have defined a join, you can mark it as a dynamic join. For this to work, you have to join the tables on multiple columns.

Let's assume you define a static (normal) join on columns A, B, and C between two tables, as shown in <u>Figure 4.8</u>. In this case, the join criteria on all three columns will be evaluated every time the view is called in a query.



Figure 4.8 Dynamic Join on Multiple Columns

If you now mark the join as *dynamic*, the join criteria will only be evaluated on the columns involved in the query to the view. If you only ask for column A in your query of the view, then only column A's join criteria will be evaluated. The

join criteria on columns B and C will not be evaluated, and your system performance improves.

Tip

If your query does not request any of the join columns in the dynamic join, it will produce a runtime error.

## **Core Data Services Views**

CDS is a modeling concept that is becoming more important with every new release of SAP HANA. To understand why we need CDS, it is important to remember the wider context of how SAP HANA systems are deployed.

While learning SAP HANA, you work with a single system, but productive environments normally include development, quality assurance, and production systems. You perform development in the development environment, in which you have special modeling and development privileges. Your models and code then enter the quality assurance system for testing. When everyone is satisfied with the results, the models and code move to the production system. You do not have any modeling and development privileges in the quality assurance and production systems; you need a way to create views and other database objects in the production system, ideally without giving people special privileges.

An SAP HANA system can be deployed as the database for an SAP business system. In such a case, ABAP developers do not have any modeling and development privileges, even in the development system. We need a way to allow ABAP developers to create views and other database objects in the production system without these special privileges.

With that in mind, let's look at why CDS is a good idea with the following example:

You need to create a new schema in your SAP HANA database. It's easy to use a short SQL statement to do this, but remember the wider context. Someone will need the same create privileges in the production system! We want to avoid this, because giving anyone too much authorization in a production system can weaken security and encourage hackers.

CDS allows for a better way to create such a schema: Specify the schema creation statement once by creating a CDS (text) file with the schema\_name="DEMO";

instruction. When we take this CDS file to the production system, the SAP HANA system automatically creates the schema for us. In the background, SAP HANA automatically converts the CDS file into the equivalent schema creation SQL statement and executes this statement.

The system administrators do not get privileges to create any schemas in the production system. They have rights to import CDS files, but they have no control over the contents of the CDS files; that's decided by the business. CDS thus gives us a nice way to separate what the business needs from what database administration can do.

There's much more to CDS. You can specify table structures (metadata) and associations (relationships) between tables with CDS, and taking this CDS file to production creates a new table. Even more impressive, if you want to modify the table structure later, SAP HANA does not delete the existing tables and recreate them; it automatically generates and executes the correct SQL statements to modify only the minimal changes to the existing table structures—for example, adding only a new column. CDS does not replace SQL statements, because it ultimately translates back into SQL statements. CDS adds the awareness to use a table creation SQL statement the first time it's run but a table modification SQL statement the second time it's run.

We can also create views using CDS. These CDS views can be used as data sources in our SAP HANA information views. Please note that these CDS views do not replace the more powerful information views we can create in SAP HANA.

ABAP developers can also use CDS inside ABAP. When a CDS view is sent to the SAP HANA system, it creates the necessary SAP HANA database objects without the ABAP developer having to log into the SAP HANA database. Because ABAP is database-independent, the same CDS file sent to another database will create the database objects relevant to that database. Because of this database independence, the versions of CDS for ABAP and for SAP HANA have slight differences.

The example screens in this book make use of the SHINE demo package described in <u>Chapter 2</u>. SHINE is a good example of CDS in action. You do not have to create a schema, create tables, or import data into these tables. When SHINE is imported into your SAP HANA system, it automatically creates all that content for you by using CDS statements.

Now, let's take our knowledge of these concepts to the next "dimension."

## Cube

One of the most important modeling concepts we will cover is the *cube*. We'll expand on this concept when we discuss the information views available in SAP HANA. In this section, we'll use a very simplistic approach to describing cubes to give you an understanding of the important concepts.

When you look at a cube the first time, it looks like multiple tables that are joined together—and at a database level, that might be true. What makes a cube a cube are the "rules" for joining these tables together.

The tables you join together contain two types of data: transactional data and master data. As shown in <u>Figure 4.9</u>, we have a main table in the middle called a *fact table*. This is where our transactional data is stored. The transactional data stored in the fact table is referred to as either *key figures* or *measures*. In SAP HANA, we just use the term *measures*.





The side tables are called *dimension tables*, and this is where our master data is stored. The master data that is stored in the dimension table are referred to as

*characteristics* or *attributes*, or sometimes even *facets*. In SAP HANA, we just use the term *attributes*.

To clear up these statements, let's walk through an example. Our cube example will be simplified to communicate the most basic principles.

In our example, we'll work with the sentence "Laura buys 10 apples." You will agree that this sentence describes a financial transaction: Laura went to the shop to buy some apples, she paid for them, and the shop owner made some profit.

Where will we will store this transaction's data in the cube? There are a couple of "rules" that we have to follow. The simplest rule is that you store the data with which you can perform calculations on in the fact table, and you store everything else that you can't perform calculations on in the dimension tables.

In our transaction of "Laura buys 10 apples," we first look at *Laura*. Can we perform a calculation on Laura? No, we can't. Therefore, we should put her name into one of the dimension tables. We put her name in the top dimension table in <u>Figure 4.10</u>. Laura is not the only customer of that shop; her name is stored with those of many other people in this dimension table. We will call this table the Customer dimension table.



Figure 4.10 Financial Transaction Data Stored in a Cube

Next, let's look at the apples. Can we perform calculations on apples? No, we can't, so again this data goes into a dimension table. The shop doesn't sell only apples; it also sells a lots of other products. The second dimension table is therefore called the Product dimension table.

In an enterprise data warehouse, we would normally limit the number of dimension tables that we link to the fact table for performance reasons. Typically, in an SAP BW system, we limit the number of dimension tables to a maximum of 16 or 18.

Finally, let's look at the number of apples, 10. Can we perform a calculation on that? Yes, because it's a number. We therefore store that number in the fact table.

To complete the picture, if Laura buys more apples, then she is a top customer; let's say she's customer number 2. Apples are something the store keeps in stock, so apples are product number 7.

If we store a link (join) to customer 2 and another link (join) to product 7 and the number 10 (number of apples), we would say that that constitutes a complete transaction. We can abbreviate the transaction "Laura buys ten apples" to 2, 10, and 7 in our specific cube.

Laura and apples are part of our master data. The transaction itself is stored in the fact table. We've now put a real-life transaction into the cube.

Hopefully, this gives you a better idea of what a cube is, and how to use it. Let's complete this short tour of cubes by clarifying a few terms ahead.

## **Attributes and Measures**

As previously shown in <u>Figure 4.9</u>, attributes are stored in dimension tables, and measures are stored in fact tables. Let's define attributes and measures:

Attributes

Attributes describe a transaction, like the customer Laura or the product apples. This is also referred to as master data. We cannot perform calculations on attributes.

## Measures

Measures are something we can *measure* and perform calculations on. Measurable (transactional) information goes into the fact table.

## Fact Tables in the Data Foundation

<u>Figure 4.10</u> showed only a single fact table, but sometimes we have more complex cubes that include multiple fact tables. In SAP HANA, we call a group of fact tables (or the single fact table) the *data foundation*.

When we join the data foundation (fact tables) to the dimension tables, we always put the data foundation on the left side of the join.

## **Star Joins**

The join between the data foundation and the dimension tables is normally a referential join in SAP HANA. We refer to this as a *star join*, which indicates that this is not just a normal referential join between low-level tables, but a join between a data foundation and dimension tables. This is seen as a join at a higher level.

Originally, we called these *logical joins* in SAP HANA, however they were renamed star joins as of SAP HANA SPS 10.

With all the building blocks in place, let's start examining SAP HANA information views.

## **Information Views**

Let's start our introduction to SAP HANA information views by looking back at what we learned when we discussed cubes.

#### **Dimension Views**

The first thing we need to build cubes is the master data. Master data is stored in dimension tables. Sometimes, these dimension tables are created for the cubes. In SAP HANA, we do not create dimension tables as separate tables; instead we build them as views.

We join all the low-level database tables that contain the specific master data we are interested in into a view. For example, we might join two tables in a view to build a new Products dimension in SAP HANA, and maybe another three tables to build a new Customers dimension.

In this book, we will refer to these type of views simply as *dimension views*. In SAP HANA, there are currently two types of dimension views available:

### Attribute views

The older version of dimension views are called *attribute views*. This name refers to the data, called *attributes*, stored in dimension tables. Attribute views are still used in exceptional cases in SAP HANA SPS 11.

## Calculation views of type dimension (dimension calculation views)

As of SAP HANA SPS 10, we now use *calculation views of type dimension*, also called *dimension calculation views*. In SAP HANA SPS 11, a new migration tool is available to help migrate your old attribute views to the new dimension calculation views.

Just as the same master data is used in many cubes, so will we reuse dimension views in many of the other SAP HANA information views. You can even build your own "library" of dimension views.

#### **Star Join Views**

In the same way, instead of storing data in cubes, we can create another type of view in SAP HANA that produces the same results as a traditional cube. There are currently two types of SAP HANA views that produce the same results as an old-fashioned, traditional cube:

## Analytic views

We still have an older version of these SAP HANA views called *analytic views*. This name refers to the fact that we use cubes for analytics. Analytic views are still used in some cases in SAP HANA SPS 11.

## • Calculation views of type cube with star join

As of SAP HANA SPS 10, we now use *calculation views of type cube with star join*. In SAP HANA SPS 11, a new migration tool is available to help you to migrate your old analytic views to the new calculation views of type cube with star join.

#### Terminology

In this book, we will simply refer to these types of views as *star join views*, not as *cube views*, which would lead to confusion. This is because the third type of SAP HANA views is called *calculation view of type cube*.

The results created by the star join views in SAP HANA are the same as that of a cube in an enterprise data warehouse, except that in a data warehouse, the data is stored in a cube. With SAP HANA, the data is not stored in a cube, but is calculated when required.

## **Calculation Views of Type Cube**

This view type, provides even more powerful capabilities. For example, you can combine multiple star join views ("cubes") to produce a combined result set. In SAP Business Warehouse (BW), we call this combined result set a *MultiProvider*.

In SAP HANA, we call these *calculation views of type cube*. Use cases for this type of view include:

- ► In your holding company, you want to combine the financial data from multiple subsidiary companies.
- You want to compare your actual expenses for 2015 with your planned budget for 2015.
- You have archived data in an archive database that you want to combine with current data in SAP HANA's memory to compare sales periods over a number of years.

## **Using Information Views**

Let's examine how to use the different types of SAP HANA information views together in information modeling. <u>Figure 4.11</u> provides an overview of everything you've learned in this chapter and how each topic fits together.

On the top left-hand side, you can see our source systems: an SAP source system and a non-SAP source system. SAP HANA doesn't care from which system the data comes. In many projects, we have more non-SAP systems that we get data from than SAP systems. We extract the data from these systems using various data provisioning tools, which we'll look at in <u>Chapter 14</u>.

The data is stored in row tables in these source systems. When we use our data provisioning methods and tools, the data is put into column tables in the SAP HANA database. This is illustrated in the bottom-left corner of <u>Figure 4.11</u>.



Figure 4.11 Different SAP HANA Information Views Working Together

#### **Building the Information Model**

Now, let's start building our information models on top of these tables.

If we want to build something like a cube for our analytics or reporting, we use SAP HANA information views. First, we need the equivalent of a dimension table, such as our Product or Customer dimension table. How would we build this?

We will build a dimension view (a calculation view of type dimension, or an attribute view). This is indicated in <u>Figure 4.11</u> by Laura and Apples, which represent the Customer and Product dimension views. We create these dimension views the same way we create any other view: Take two tables, join them together, select certain output fields, and save it.

Once we have our dimension views, we build a data foundation for the cube. The data foundation is for all our transactional data. The data foundation stores measures, like the number *10* for the 10 apples that Laura bought. We build a data foundation in a similar fashion to building a dimension view: We take multiple tables or a single table. If using multiple tables, we join them together, select the output fields, and build our data foundation.

To complete the cube, we have to link our data foundation (fact tables) to the dimensions with a star join. Finally, to complete our star join view, we also select the output fields for our cube. The created star join view will produce the same result as a cube, but in this case no data is stored and it performs much better.

In the next step, we can create calculation view of type cube, in which we combine two star join views (cubes). We can combine the star join views using a join or a union. We recommend a union in this case, because it leads to better performance than a join.

Finally, we can build reports, analytics, or applications on our calculation view. This is shown in the top right of <u>Figure 4.11</u>.

## Using the Information Model

In the previous section, we looked at how to build an information model from the bottom up. Let's now think about the process from the other side and look at what happens when we call our report or application that built on the calculation view. This is the top-down view of <u>Figure 4.11</u>.

The calculation view does not store the data: It has to gather and calculate all the data required by the report. SAP HANA looks at the calculation view's description and says, "Oh, I've got to build two star join views and union them together. How do I build these star join views?"

SAP HANA then goes down one level and says, "OK, how do I build the first star join view? I need a data foundation, and I need two dimension views, and I join them together with a star join."

Then, it goes down another level: "How do I build the dimension view? I'll read two different tables, join them together, and select the output fields." SAP HANA then builds the two dimension views.

Going back up one level, SAP HANA needs to combine these two dimension tables with a data foundation. It creates the data foundation and joins it with the two dimension tables. It also builds the second star join view in the same way. Going up to the level of the calculation view, it combines the two star join views with a union. Finally, SAP HANA sends the result set out to the report, and then cleans out the memory again. (It does not store this data!) If someone else asks for the exact same data five minutes later, SAP HANA happily performs the same calculations all over again.

At first, this can seem very wasteful. Often we're asked "Why don't you use some kind of caching?" However, *caching* means that we store data in memory. In SAP HANA the entire database is already in memory. We don't need caching because everything is in memory already.

The reason people ask this question is that in their traditional data warehouses, data normally doesn't change until the next evening when the data is refreshed. Inside SAP HANA, the data can be updated continuously, and we always want to use the latest data in our applications, reports, and analytics. That means we have to recalculate the values each time; caching static result sets will not work.

In summary, to use real-time data, you have to continuously recalculate.

## **Other Modeling Artifacts**

We will now discuss some of the other modeling concepts we will use when building our information views.

The power of calculation views of type cube is that you can build them up in many layers. In the bottom layer, you can perhaps have a union of two star join views (cubes), as shown in <u>Figure 4.12</u>. In the next (higher) layer, we sum up all the values from the union. In the level above that, we rank the summed results to show the top 10 most profitable customers.

## Projection

A *projection* is used to change an output result set. For example, we can get a result set from a star join view (cube) and find that it has too many output fields for what we need in the next layers. Therefore, we use a projection as an additional in-between layer to create a subset of the results.



Figure 4.12 Calculation View of Type Cube Built in Various Layers

We can also use the projection to calculate additional fields—for example, sales tax—or we can rename fields to give them more meaningful names for our analytics and reporting users.

## Ranking

As illustrated in the top node of <u>Figure 4.12</u>, we can use *ranking* to create useful top-N or bottom-N reports and analytics. This normally returns a filtered list (e.g., only the top 10 companies) and is sorted in the order we specify.

## Aggregation

The word *aggregation* means a collection of things. In SQL, we use aggregations to calculate values such as the sum of a list of values. Aggregations in databases provide the following functions:

- ► Sum Adds up all the values in the list
- Count Counts how many values (records) there are in the list
- ► **Minimum** Finds the smallest value in the list
- ► Maximum Finds the largest value in the list
- Average Calculates the arithmetical mean of all the values in the list
- Standard deviation

Calculates the standard deviation of all the values in the list

Variance

Calculates the variance of all the values in the list

Normally, we would only calculate aggregations of measures. (Remember that measures are values we can perform calculations on, which usually means our transactional data.) For example, we could calculate the total number of apples a shop sold in 2015. However, in the latest versions of SAP HANA, we can also create aggregations of attributes, essentially creating a list of unique values.

## Union

A *union* combines two result sets. Figure 4.12 illustrates this by combining the results of two star join views.

In SAP HANA graphical calculation views, we're not restricted to combining two result sets; we can combine multiple result sets. SAP HANA merges these multiple result sets into a single result set.

Let's say we have four result sets-A, B, C, and D-that we union together. Although we union multiple result sets, that doesn't mean the performance will be bad. If SAP HANA detects that you are not asking for data from A and D, it will not even generate the result sets for A and D; it will only work with B and C.



The union expects the two result sets to have the same number of columns, in the same order, and the matching columns from each result set must have similar data types.

You can have variations in unions, such as the following:

Union all

Will merge the result sets and return all records

Union

Will merge the results and only give you the unique results back

Union with constant values

Lets you "pivot" your merged results to help get the data ready for reporting output

Figure 4.13 compares the output generated by a union to that of a union with constant values.

Customer	rs	Total Sale	es	Total Sale	es				
Customer	1	\$100		2015		_			
Customer	1	\$300		2016			Customers	Sales for 2015	Sales for 2016
Customer	2	\$150		2015			Customer 1	\$100	\$300
Customer	2	\$250		2016			Customer 2	\$150	\$350
_		Standard	Union		1		Un	ion with constant val	ues
	C	ustomers	Sal	es for 2015		_	Customers	Sales for 2016	
	Cı	ustomer 1		\$100			Customer 1	\$300	
	Cı	ustomer 2		\$150			Customer 2	\$350	



Often, we want a report that looks like the top right of the figure. If we're given the output from the standard union, it takes more work to create a report with sales for 2015 and 2016 in separate columns. With the output from the union with constant values, writing the report is easy.

In <u>Figure 4.11</u>, we showed that you should use a union rather than a join for performance reasons—but what happens if the two star join views that you want to union together do not have the same outputs? In that case, the union will return an error. How do we solve this problem?

<u>Figure 4.14</u> illustrates an example. On top, we have the ideal case in which both star join views have matching columns. In the middle, we have a case in which only column B matches. Normally, we would use a join, as shown.



Figure 4.14 Standard Union, Join, and Join Converted to Union

We solve this problem by creating a projection for each of the two star join views. We add the missing columns and assign a NULL value to those columns. We then perform the union on the two projections, because they now have matching columns.

## Semantics

An important step that many modelers skip is to add more meaning to the output of their information models. *Semantics*, as a general term, is the study of meaning. We can use semantics in SAP HANA to, for example, rename fields in a system so they are more clear. Some database fields have really horrible names. Using semantics, you can change the name of these fields to be more meaningful for your end users. This is especially useful when they create reports. If you have a reporting background, you will know that a reporting universe can fulfill a similar function.

We can also show that certain fields are related to each other—for example, a customer number and a customer name field.

One example that is used often is that of building a hierarchy. By using a hierarchy, you can see how fields are related to each other with regards to "drilling down" for reports.

## **Hierarchies**

*Hierarchies* are used in reporting to enable intelligent drilldown. <u>Figure 4.15</u> illustrates two examples: Users can start with a list of sales for all the different countries; they can then drill down to the sales of the provinces (or states) of a specific country, and finally down to the sales of a city.

End users can see the sales figures for just the country, state, or province or for a specific city. Even though countries and cities are two different fields, they're related to each other by use of a hierarchy. This extra relationship enhances the data and gives it more meaning (semantic value).

There are two different types of hierarchies: *level hierarchies* and *parent-child hierarchies*. The hierarchy we just described is the level hierarchy; level 1 is the country, level 2 is the state or province, and level 3 is the city or town.

Another example of a level hierarchy is a *time-based hierarchy* that goes from a year to a month to a day. You can even keep going deeper, down to seconds. This is illustrated on the right side of <u>Figure 4.15</u>.

HR employee organizational charts or a cost center structures are examples of parent–child hierarchy, as illustrated in <u>Figure 4.16</u>. In this case, we join a table to itself, as described in the Self-Joins section.

Location level hierarchy	Date level hierarchy
Country	Year
Region (Province, State)	Month
City, Town	Day
₽	₽
Location level hierarchy	Location level hierarchy
South Africa	2016
Gauteng	January
Johannesburg	1
Pretoria	2
KwaZulu-Natal	February
Durban	29
Western Province	May
Cape Town	31

Figure 4.15 Examples of Level Hierarchies



Figure 4.16 Parent–Child Hierarchy Example

<u>Table 4.1</u> provides a quick summary of the differences between the two types of hierarchies and when you should use which one.

Level Hierarchies	Parent-Child Hierarchies
Fixed (rigid) number of levels in the hier- archy.	Variable hierarchy depth.
Different data fields on every level of the hierarchy (e.g., country, state, city).	The same (two) fields used on every level of the hierarchy.
The fields on each level of the hierarchy can be different data types (e.g., country can be text, while zip/postal code can be numeric).	The parent and child fields have the same data type.

Table 4.1 Comparing Level Hierarchies and Parent–Child Hierarchies

## **Best Practices and Modeling Guidelines**

Let's end our tour of modeling concepts with a summary of best practices for modeling views in SAP HANA. Many of the basic modeling guidelines that we find in traditional data modeling and reporting environments are still applicable in SAP HANA. We can summarize the basic principles as follows:

• Limit (filter) the data as early as possible

It's wasteful to send millions of data records across a slow network to a reporting tool when the report only uses a few of these data records. It makes a lot more sense to send only the data records that the report requires, so we want to filter the data before it hits the network.

In the same way, we don't want to send data to a star join view when we can filter it in the earlier dimension view. Hence, the rule to filter as early as possible.

## Perform calculations as late as possible

Assume you have column A and column B in a table. The table contains billions of records. We can use the values of column A and column B in a formula for every data record, which means the server performs billions of calculations, and finally add up the sum total of the calculated fields. It would be much faster to add up the sum total for column A and the sum total for column B and then calculate the formula. In that case, we perform the calculation once instead of billions of times. We delay the calculation as long as possible for performance reasons.

## Important Terminology

In this chapter, we focused on various modeling concepts and how they're used in SAP HANA. We introduced the following important terms:

Views

We started at by looking at *views* and realized that we can leverage the fact that SAP HANA already has all the data in memory, that the servers have lots of CPU cores available, and that SAP HANA runs everything in parallel. We therefore do not need to store the information in cubes and dimension tables, but can use views to generate the information when we need it. This also gives us the advantage of real-time results.

► Joins

We have both normal database join types, like inner and left outer joins, and SAP HANA-specific types, like referential, text, temporal, and spatial joins. In the process, we also looked at the special case of self-joins and at dynamic joins as an optimization technique.

#### Core Data Services (CDS)

CDS provides a way to separate business semantics and intent from database operations.

Cubes

A cube consists of a data foundation with fact tables that contain the transactional data, linked to dimension tables that contain master data. The data foundation is linked to the dimension tables with star joins.

## Attributes and measures

Attributes describe elements involved in a transaction. Transactional data that we can perform calculations on is called a measure and stored in the fact tables.

#### Information views

In SAP HANA, we take the concept of views to higher levels. We can create

dimension tables and cubes as dimension views and star join views. Dimension views are attribute views and calculation views of type dimension. Star join views are analytic views and calculation views of type cube with star join. The final type of information view is the calculation view of type cube, which we can use to perform even more powerful processes.

## Modeling artifacts

Inside our views, we can use unions, projections, aggregations, and ranking. Unions are quite flexible and can be used for a direct merge of result sets, or we can use a union with constant values to create report-ready result sets.

# Practice Questions

These practice questions will help you evaluate your understanding of the topics covered in this chapter. The questions shown are similar in nature to those found on the certification examination. Although none of these questions will be found on the exam itself, they will allow you to review your knowledge of the subject. Select the correct answers and then check the completeness of your answers in the Practice Question Answers and Explanations section. Remember that on the exam you must select all correct answers and only correct answers to receive credit for the question.

In this section, we have a few questions with graphics attached. In the certification exam, you might also see a few questions that include graphics.

- 1. In which SAP HANA views will you find measures? (There are 2 correct answers.)
- □ **A.** Attribute views
- □ **B.** Calculation view of type cube with star join
- □ **C.** Calculation view of type cube
- □ **D.** Database views
- 2. True or False: A database view stores data in the database.
- $\Box$  **A.** True
- $\Box$  **B.** False

- 3. A traditional cube is represented by which SAP HANA view type? (There are 2 correct answers.)
- □ **A.** Attribute view
- □ **B.** Analytic view
- □ **C.** Calculation view of type cube with star join
- D. Calculation view of type dimension
- 4. A referential join gives the same results as which other join type?
- □ **A.** Inner join
- □ **B.** Left outer join
- □ C. Spatial join
- □ **D.** Star join
- 5. Which join type makes use of date ranges?
- □ A. Spatial join
- □ **B.** Text join
- □ **C.** Temporal join
- □ **D.** Inner join
- 6. If we change the transaction "Laura buys 10 apples" to "Laura buys 10 green apples," how would we store the color *green*?
- □ **A.** Store *green* as an attribute
- □ **B.** Store *green* as a measure
- □ **C.** Store *green* as a spatial data type
- **D.** Store *green* as a CDS view
- 7. True or False: A view always shows all the available columns of the underlying tables.
- □ A. True
- □ **B.** False

- 8. You have a view with two tables, joined by a left outer join. If you redesign the view and accidently swap the two tables around, what should you do to the join?
- $\Box$  **A.** Keep the left outer join.
- □ **B.** Change the join to a text join.
- □ **C.** Change the join to a right outer join.
- **D.** Change the join to a referential join.
- 9. What do you call the data displayed in the data foundation of an SAP HANA information view?
- □ **A.** Facets
- □ **B.** Measures
- □ **C.** Characteristics
- □ **D.** Key figures
- 10. You are writing a mobile application for the World Series. You have details about all the baseball players and the baseball scores for all the previous matches. How do you use the data of the player information and the scores?
- $\hfill\square$  **A.** Both the player information and the scores are used as master data.
- □ **B.** Both the player information and the scores are used as transactional data.
- □ **C.** The player information is used as master data, and the scores are used as transactional data.
- □ **D.** The player information is used as transactional data, and the scores are used as master data.
- 11. Look at <u>Figure 4.17</u>. You are selling books that have been translated into various languages. What join type should you use?
- □ **A.** Left outer join
- □ **B.** Text join
- □ **C.** Temporal join
- □ **D.** Referential join

Field 1	F	ield n	Boo	ık ID					
	Le	ft Table		w	nat join	should you us	e he	re?	
		Field	1	Book I	D	Field n		SPRAS	Title
								EN	
								CN	
								AR	
								FR	
								RU	
						Right Table			•

Figure 4.17 What Type of Join Should You Use?

- 12. Which of the following are reasons you should use Core Data Services (CDS) to create a schema? (There are 2 correct answers.)
- □ **A.** The database administrator might type the name wrong.
- □ **B.** The database administrator should not get those privileges in the production system.
- $\Box$  **C.** The focus is on the business requirements.
- **D.** The focus is on the database administration requirements.
- 13. Look at <u>Figure 4.18</u>. A company sends out a lot of quotes. Some customers accept the quotes, and they're invoiced. The company asks you to find a list of the customers that did NOT accept the quotes. How do you find the customers that received quotes but did NOT receive invoices?
- □ A.
  - ► Use a right outer join.
  - ► Filter to show only the NULL values on the right table.
- □ **B**.
  - Use a left outer join.
  - Filter to show only customers on the right table.

Quote ID		Custo	mer ID		
I	Left Table—Qu	otes			
			What join :	should you use here	e?
		nvoice ID	Customer ID		
			Right Tabl	e-Invoices	



- □ C.
  - ▶ Use a left outer join.
  - ► Filter to show only the NULL values on the right table.
- $\Box$  D.
  - Use a right outer join.
  - Filter to show only customers on the left table.
- 14. True or False: When you use a parent–child hierarchy, the depth in your hierarchy levels can vary.
- $\Box$  **A.** True
- □ **B.** False
- 15. Look at <u>Figure 4.19</u>. What type of join should you use? (*Hint:* Watch out for distractors.)
- □ **A.** Temporal join
- □ **B.** Text join

□ **C.** Referential join

#### □ **D.** Inner join

Field 1	Field n		Person				
		Sarah					
			Katrin				
		Amanda					
Field 4			What join s	shou	ld you use here? Language		
Field I	From airpo	rı	io airport		code		
Amanda	Johannesbu	rg	Frankfurt		EN		
Katrin	Frankfurt		JFK		DE		
Sarah	JFK		Madrid		ES		
Sarah	Madrid		London		EN		
Amanda	London	London		1	EN		
Right Table – Flights							



- 16. You have a list of map locations for clinics. The government wants to build a new clinic, but wants to build it where there is the greatest need. You need to find the largest distance between any two clinics. With your current knowledge, how do you do this?
- □ A.
  - Use a temporal join to find the distance between clinics.
  - Use a union with constant values to "pivot" the values.
- □ **B**.
  - Use a spatial join to find the distance between clinics.
  - Use a level hierarchy for drilldown.

- □ C.
  - Use a dynamic join to find the longest distance between clinics.
  - Use a ranking to find the top 10 values.
- $\Box$  D.
  - Use a spatial join to find the distance between clinics.
  - Use an aggregation with the maximum option.
- 17. Look at <u>Figure 4.20</u>. What are the values for X, Y, and *Z*? (*Note:* You will not see a question like this on the certification exam; it's only added here to test your understanding.)
- □ **A.** X = Customer 2, Y = 400, Z = 800.
- □ **B.** X = Customer 1, Y = 400, Z = 400.
- □ **C.** X = Customer 1, Y = 800, Z = 800.
- □ **D.** X = Customer 2, Y = 200, Z = 400.



Figure 4.20 Find Values for X, Y, and Z

- 18. You have to build a parent–child hierarchy. What type of join do you expect to use?
- □ **A.** Relational join
- □ **B.** Temporal join
- □ **C.** Dynamic join
- □ **D.** Self-join
- 19. Look at Figure 4.21. What join type should you use to see all the suppliers?
- □ **A.** Left outer join
- □ **B.** Right outer join
- □ **C.** Inner join
- □ **D.** Referential join

Field 1		Supj	olier ID		
			1		
			5		
			3		
	Left Tabl	e—Purchases /			
			What join shoul	d you use to see all	the suppliers?
		Supplier ID	Supplier name		Column n
		Supplier ID 1	Supplier name Supplier A		Column n
		Supplier ID 1 2	Supplier name Supplier A Supplier B		Column n
		Supplier ID 1 2 4	Supplier name Supplier A Supplier B Supplier D		Column n
		Supplier ID 1 2 4 5	Supplier name Supplier A Supplier B Supplier D Supplier E		Column n
		Supplier ID 1 2 4 5 7	Supplier name Supplier A Supplier B Supplier D Supplier E Supplier G		Column n



# **Practice Question Answers and Explanations**

1. Correct answers: **B**, **C** 

You find measures in analytic views, calculation views of type cube with star join (the new type of analytic view), and calculation views of type cube. Attribute views do not contain measures—only attributes!

2. Correct answer: B

False. A database view does not store data in the database.

3. Correct answers: **B**, **C** 

A traditional cube is represented by an analytic view or a calculation view of type cube with star join. Both are different from a cube in that they do not store any data like a cube does. An attribute view and a calculation view of type dimension are similar to a dimension table.

4. Correct answer: A

A referential join gives the same results as an inner join but speeds up the calculations in some cases by assuming referential integrity of the data. It is the optimal join type in SAP HANA.

5. Correct answer: **C** 

A temporal join requires FROM and TO fields in the table on the right side of the join and a date-time column in the table on the left side of the join.

6. Correct answer: A

We cannot "measure" or perform calculations on the color green. Green is not a spatial data type. CDS views are not relevant in this context.

7. Correct answer: **B** 

False. A view does NOT *always* show all the available columns of the underlying tables. You have to select the output fields of a view. The word *always* in the statement is what makes it false.

8. Correct answer: C

A right outer join is the inverse of the left outer join. Therefore, if you reverse the order of the tables, you can "reverse" the join type. It is important to note that this does not work for a text join. A text join is only equivalent to a left outer join. For a text join, you have to be careful about the order of the tables.
9. Correct answer: **B** 

The data displayed in the data foundation of an SAP HANA information view is called measures. In SAP HANA, we talk about *attributes* and *measures*. The other names might be used in other data modeling environments, but not in SAP HANA.

10. Correct answer: C

The player information is used as master data, and the scores are used as transactional data. You cannot perform calculations on the players. Therefore, this data is used in the dimensions and is seen as master data. You definitely perform calculations on the scores, so these are used in the fact tables, which means they are transactional data.

11. Correct answer: B

<u>Figure 4.17</u> shows the SPRAS column and shows a list of languages. The need for a translation is also hinted at in the question, meaning this should be a text join. There is not enough information to select any of the other answer options.

12. Correct answers: B, C

You should use CDS to create a schema because the database administrator should not get those privileges in the production system and the focus should be on the business requirements.

13. Correct answer: C

Look carefully at <u>Figure 4.18</u>. The question asks you to find all the customers that received quotes but did NOT receive invoices.

The answer only gives us left outer or right outer as options. Because the question states they want *all* customers from the quotes tables, you might try a left outer join first.

Now look at <u>Figure 4.3</u> to see the difference between the left and right outer joins. Look especially at the where the NULL values are shown. With a left outer join, the NULL values are found in the right table. With a right outer join, the NULL values are found in the left table.

We want to find the customers that did not get invoices. With a left outer join, the NULL values are found on the right side: That group is the one we are looking for. Therefore, filter for the NULL values on the right table.

#### Note

Any time that a negative phrase or word is used in the certification exam, it is shown in capital letters to bring attention to the fact that it is a negative word.

14. Correct answer: A

True. Yes, the depth of your hierarchy levels can vary when you use a parentchild hierarchy.

15. Correct answer: C

You should use a referential join.

There are two distractors to try and throw you off track:

- ► A temporal join uses FROM and TO fields, but only for date-time fields. This example is for airports.
- The second distractor was to try to get you to select the text join: The language code has nothing to do with translations, but has to do with the airline's primary language.

Choose a referential join because you can see the same people traveling in both tables, so it seems that these two tables have referential integrity.

If the tables did not have referential integrity, you would have chosen an inner join.

16. Correct answer: D

A spatial join can give the distance between different points on a map.

There are two ways you can find the largest distance between any two clinics:

- Use a ranking to find the top 10 values.
- Use an aggregation with the maximum option.
- 17. Correct answer: **B**

See the full solution in Figure 4.22.

X = Customer 1, Y = 400, Z = 400.

Note that we are using average in the aggregation node, not sum.

In the ranking node, we are asking for the bottom 10, not the top 10.

18. Correct answer: D

You expect to use a self-join when you build a parent–child hierarchy. See <u>Figure 4.16</u> for an illustration.



Figure 4.22 Full Solution: X = Customer 1, Y = 400, Z = 400

19. Correct answer: B

To see everything on the right table, use a right outer join.

Note that these tables do not have referential integrity. If we had asked the question a little differently, this could have been important.

# Takeaway

You should now have a general understanding of information modeling concepts: views, joins, cubes, star joins, data foundations, dimension tables, and so on. In this chapter, you learned about the differences between attributes and measures and the value of CDS in the development cycle. You have seen the various types of views that SAP HANA uses, how to use them together, and what options you have available for your information modeling. Finally, we examined a few best practices and guidelines for modeling in SAP HANA in general.

# Summary

You have learned about many modeling concepts and how they are applied and implemented in SAP HANA.

You're now ready to go into the practical details of learning how to use all the SAP HANA information views and how to enhance these views with the various modeling artifacts that we have available to us in each of these different views.

# **Information Modeling Tools**

## Techniques You'll Master

- Get to know the SAP HANA modeling tools in more detail
- Identify the different working areas in SAP HANA studio
- Learn how to work with tables and data
- Know how to create new information models
- Understand the developer perspective
- Get a working knowledge of best practices and guidelines for modeling with the SAP HANA modeling tools

There are two development environments used for SAP HANA modeling. The first is *SAP HANA studio*, a Java-based development environment for laptops and desktops. The second, more recent development environment is a web-based development environment that you run from your browser: the *SAP HANA web-based development workbench*.

We will look at both of these environments and how you can use them to create your information models. Because SAP HANA studio is the most complete tool and has been around the longest, we'll look at it in greater detail. We'll then show you the web-based development environment, how to use it, and how it differs from SAP HANA studio.

# **Real-World Scenario**

You're working on a project that requires you to create calculation views. To do so, you use SAP HANA studio to create and edit these views graphically.

Sometimes you reach for the other tool in your toolkit, the SAP HANA webbased development workbench, because you can use this tool from anywhere, even using your tablet.

When working on a project with SAP HANA, you will use modeling tools all the time. You have to be familiar with the SAP HANA modeling tools, know when to use which one, and be able to find your way around the various screens. SAP HANA has grown over the last few years, and the modeling tools now have a wide variety of tasks you can accomplish with them. The features have also grown to provide rich functionality. It therefore takes some time to learn how to find your way around the various menus, options, and screens.

# **Objectives of This Portion of the Test**

The purpose of this portion of the SAP HANA certification exam is to test your general knowledge of the SAP HANA modeling tools.

The certification exam expects you to have a good understanding of the following topics:

- Overview of SAP HANA studio
- Differences between the catalog and the content areas
- ► Table definitions and runtime information
- Preview result sets, with all the preview options
- ▶ The development perspective and how to create SAP HANA development objects
- Overview of the SAP HANA web-based development workbench

#### Note

This portion contributes up to 3% of the total certification exam score.

# **Key Concepts Refresher**

As noted, there are two modeling tools available in SAP HANA. We will now look at both tools and how you can use them to create your SAP HANA information models.

We will start by looking at SAP HANA studio.

## **SAP HANA Studio**

SAP HANA studio is built in a development environment based on *Eclipse*, an open-source framework by IBM. (For more information about Eclipse, visit *http://www.eclipse.org.*) This development environment is written in Java, so it only runs on your desktop or laptop.

Eclipse originally started out as a Java development environment, but was later adapted into other programming languages, such as JavaScript, PHP, HTML, Cascading Style Sheets (CSS), Ruby, and many others.

That IBM called the product Eclipse proves that IBM has a good sense of humor. During the time of the Eclipse release, IBM was in competition with Sun over their respective Java Virtual Machines. We all know what happens to the sun during an eclipse!

<u>Figure 5.1</u> shows an overview screen of SAP HANA studio in an Eclipse environment, with the different work areas indicated.

#### 152 Chapter 5 Information Modeling Tools



#### Figure 5.1 SAP HANA Studio

On the top right is an area called *perspectives*. On the left of the screen is an area in which you can see the different SAP HANA systems you work with, and the components for each system. In the middle is the main working area. On the right-hand side, you'll see a tab called QUICK VIEW, which is specifically used in the modeler perspective.

In this section, we will look at the different working areas of SAP HANA studio, including the SAP HANA studio perspectives, main workspace, system views, two primary consoles (the SQL Console and Administration Console), and the application function modeler (AFM). Finally, we'll discuss the steps to set up the session client.

#### Perspectives

The Eclipse environment uses different perspectives to give you different layouts for different development tasks. In SAP HANA studio, there are perspectives for

information modeling, administrators, plan visualization, and SAP HANA development. When you select another perspective, it changes the screen layout, menu options, and so on. In Eclipse, you can even create your own perspectives or change the available perspectives to suit your requirements.

To select or change to another perspective, simply click the name of that perspective in the top right-hand side of the SAP HANA studio screen, as shown in <u>Figure 5.1</u>. If you want to select a perspective that is not on that list, click the  $\mathbf{E}$  button to the left side of these names. This will open a menu from which you can select the perspective that you want to use.

To get a better idea of how these perspectives vary in look and available options, <u>Figure 5.2</u> shows the differences between the modeler and development perspectives.



Figure 5.2 Development vs. Modeler Perspective

The left-hand side of <u>Figure 5.2</u> shows the development perspective. In this perspective, three different tabs appear: SYSTEMS, REPOSITORIES, and PROJECT EXPLORER. When you select the modeler perspective (right-hand side), you only have one tab: SYSTEMS. This means that you cannot access the repositories or projects from the modeler perspective.

Тір

In SAP HANA, we prefer the development perspective, even when performing modeling tasks, because it has a lot more features than the modeler perspective.

The only thing that the modeler perspective has that the development perspective does not is the QUICK VIEW tab shown on the right-hand side. We will discuss the functionality available in the QUICK VIEW tab throughout this book.

## Main Workspace

In the middle of <u>Figure 5.1</u>, the main workspace is displayed. In this case, you can see a calculation view with a union. You can see the mapping of the different fields in the union.

When you open table definitions, stored procedures, or different views, or just preview the output of an information model, you will see the results in this main workspace. Each of the SAP HANA objects that you open will be displayed inside its own tab.

## **Systems View**

You can see the systems view on the left side of <u>Figure 5.1</u>. <u>Figure 5.3</u> provides a more detailed look.

All your different SAP HANA systems are shown this area. From SAP HANA studio, you can work with multiple SAP HANA systems—for example, with both a development and production system.

Within each SAP HANA system, you will find different areas shown as folders in the systems view. The following areas are found in the systems view:

BACKUP folder

The BACKUP folder is used by administrators to manage the backups and recovery of SAP HANA databases. Depending on your security settings, you might not even see this folder, because it is meant for administrators only. We will not discuss this folder in this book.



#### Figure 5.3 Systems View

CATALOG area

The CATALOG area is used, for example, for schemas and tables. You can see your tables, their definitions, and data in the CATALOG area.

CONTENT area

The CONTENT area is used for information modeling. This is where all your SAP HANA models are created and stored.

PROVISIONING area

The PROVISIONING area is used by SAP HANA smart data access (SDA; discussed in <u>Chapter 14</u>). This area is used for creating virtual tables, to get data from other databases into SAP HANA.

SECURITY folder

The SECURITY folder, which we will discuss in more detail in <u>Chapter 13</u>, is where you can create SAP HANA users and assign them privileges to work with your information models.

In this chapter, we will focus on the CATALOG and CONTENT areas.

## Catalog Area

The CATALOG area houses most of the artifacts for the SAP HANA database. It is divided into *schemas*. SAP HANA schemas are groupings of tables and other artifacts. The main database objects we find here are tables. Inside SAP HANA, we can also find items such as column views, functions, indexes, procedures, synonyms, and triggers.

If you have an SAP BW on SAP HANA system or an SAP ERP on SAP HANA system, you will find a schema inside the CATALOG area of the SAP HANA database that corresponds to the *system identity* (SID) of the SAP system. For example, if the SID of your SAP BW system is *BW1*, you will find a schema inside the SAP HANA database called *BW1* that contains all the SAP BW system's tables.

When you open the tree structure—for example, down to the tables—you'll find a list of all the tables inside that schema. Check the icon in front of each table to determine if it's a column or a row table. The  $\equiv$  icon indicates that this table is a row-based table, the  $\equiv$  icon indicates a column-based table, and the  $\equiv$  icon indicates a virtual table. In SAP HANA, column-based tables are the preferred table type. They compress much better than row-based tables and do not need indexes.

When you right-click on a table, a *context menu* appears (sometimes referred to as a *right-click menu*) for that table. Through that menu, you can look at the table definition, table contents, or open a data preview for that specific table. In the CATALOG area, you can also delete tables, import more tables, and export tables.

Let's look more closely at table definitions and the data preview:

## Table definitions

Figure 5.4 shows the definition of a table. On the top right-hand side of the screen, you can see the table TYPE—whether it is COLUMN STORE or ROW STORE.

#### Table definition

🔠 RD	RDL - SAP_HANA_DEMO.sap.hana.democontent.epm.data::EPM.SO.Header 🛛 🖓 🗖									
RD	RDL (SYSTEM) 192.168.229.128.00									
<u>T</u> able I	Table Name:						Schema: Type:			
kap.h	sap.hana.democontent.epm.data::EPM.SO.Header					P_HANA_DEMO	Column Store	~		
Colum	ins Indexes Further Propert	ies Runtime Informati	on							
	Name	SQL Data Type	Di	Column Store Data Type	Key	Not Null	Default	Comment		
1	SALESORDERID	NVARCHAR	10	STRING	X(1)	х				
2	HISTORY.CREATEDBY.E	NVARCHAR	10	STRING						
3	HISTORY.CREATEDAT	DATE		DAYDATE						
4	HISTORY.CHANGEDBY	NVARCHAR	10	STRING						
5	HISTORY.CHANGEDAT	DATE		DAYDATE						
6	NOTEID	NVARCHAR	10	STRING						
7	PARTNERID.PARTNERID	NVARCHAR	10	STRING						
8	CURRENCY	NVARCHAR	5	STRING						
9	GROSSAMOUNT	DECIMAL	15,2	FIXED						
10	NETAMOUNT	DECIMAL	15,2	FIXED						
11	TAXAMOUNT	DECIMAL	15,2	FIXED						
12	LIFECYCLESTATUS	NVARCHAR	1	STRING						
13	BILLINGSTATUS	NVARCHAR	1	STRING						
14	DELIVERYSTATUS	NVARCHAR	1	STRING						

#### Runtime information of a table

III RDL - SAP_HANA_DEMO.sap.hana.democontent.epm.data::EPM.	SO.Header 🔀					- 0			
RDL (SYSTEM) 192.168.229.128 00						🕞 🤣 🖓 🖾			
Table Name:		Schema:			Туре:				
sap.hana.democontent.epm.data::EPM.SO.Header		SAP_HAN	SAP_HANA_DEMO V			Column Store 🗸			
Columns Indexes Further Properties Runtime Information									
General									
Total Memory Consumption (KB): 441		Memory C	Memory Consumption in Main Storage (KB): 301						
Number of Entries: 1,029		Memory C	Memory Consumption in Delta Storage (KB): 139						
Size on Disk (KB): 340	Estimated	Estimated Maximum Memory Consumption (KB): 441							
Details for Table Parts Columns									
Host:Port/Partition/Sub-Partition Part ID Range	Total Size (KB)	Main Size (KB)	Delta Size (KB)	Estimated Maxi	Record Count	Creation Tim			
localhost:30003	441	301	139	44	1 1,029	09 Oct 2015 2:21:32 P			

#### Figure 5.4 Definition of a Column Table

When you click the RUNTIME INFORMATION tab, as shown at the bottom in <u>Fig-ure 5.4</u>, you can see the memory consumption of a specific table and whether it is loaded into memory. From the table context menu, you can load the table into memory or unload it from memory.

#### Data preview

When you run a data preview of a table, you'll see three different tabs with quite a lot of functionality:

#### RAW DATA

The RAW DATA tab (Figure 5.5) displays the table contents. You will notice in the top right-hand corner that there is a SORT option available. You can

either sort and display the top records of the entire dataset, or sort the current dataset, which by default would be the top 200 records. You can also export that dataset. This data preview is available not only for tables, but also for SAP HANA models. You can view the output from any of the information models and export the output of these information models.

#### Data Preview: Sorting and Export

The sorting and data export features were introduced in SAP HANA SPS 10. You can change the default of 200 records shown in the top-right field (Max Rows), and you select what sorting behavior you want from the dropdown menu (see Figure 5.5). There are two options here:

SORT ENTIRE DATA SET

This sorts all the records in the table, view or information model, even if there are, for example, 5 million records. It then gives you the top 200 records from that large sorted list.

SORT CURRENT DATA SET

This only shows the sorted result set of the first 200 records that are returned.

0ata preview—Raw data			Data	a preview—S	orting the data
SAP_HANA_DEMO"."sap.hana.democontent.e	pm.data::EPM.PO.Item" 🛛				-
🔢 Raw Data 🕕 Distinct values 🔢 Analysis				<li>Show</li>	Log Man rower 200 ≑
🌱 Filter pattern 🛛 🤯 200 rows retrieved	i - 20 ms		Execute	🕎 Add filter 🔹 📋	Sort entire data set 👻 📗
AB PURCHASEORDERID.PURCHASEORDERID	R PURCHASEORDERITEM	RODUCTID.PRODUCTID	RB NOTEID		Sort entire data set
030000000	000000010	HT-1000	?	EUR 📘	Sort current data set
030000000	000000020	HT-1091	?	EUR	61.89
030000000	000000030	HT-6100	?	EUR	1,116.22
030000000	000000040	HT-1000	?	EUR	2,275.28
030000000	000000050	HT-1091	?	EUR	92.82
030000000	000000060	HT-6100	?	EUR	1,116.22
030000000	000000070	HT-1000	?	EUR	2,275.28
030000000	000000080	HT-1091	?	EUR	61.88
030000000	000000090	HT-6100	?	EUR	1,674.33
030000000	000000100	HT-1000	?	EUR	3,412.92
030000001	000000010	HT-1100	?	USD	213.96
030000001	000000020	HT-2026	?	USD	35.69
0300000001	000000030	HT-1002	?	USD	3,736.6
030000001	000000040	HT-1100	?	USD	213.96
030000001	000000050	HT-2026	?	USD	71.38
030000001	000000060	HT-1002	?	USD	3,736.6
0300000001	000000070	HT-1100	?	USD	320.94
030000001	000000080	HT-2026	?		107.06
030000001	000000090	HT-1002	?	.og   Max row	5: 200 736.6
0300000001	0000000100	HT-1100			
030000002	000000010	HT-2000	/ - IA (	Sort entire data	cet 👻 🛄 🗸
030000002	000000020	HT-1010	, to .	Sont entire data	SCL ' 🔟 '
030000002	000000030	HT-1103			
030000002	000000040	HT-2000	ENCY	Sort entire dat	a set \land
030000002	000000050	HT-1010			
030000002	000000060	HT-1103		Sort current da	ata set
030000002	000000070	HT-2000			61.00
030000002	000000080	HT-1010	?		01.00
030000003	000000010	HT-1104	1	-	1 116 29 196.35
030000003	000000020	HT-1603	?	IPY	6.069

Figure 5.5 Raw Data in Data Preview in SAP HANA Studio

#### DISTINCT VALUES

In the DISTINCT VALUES tab (<u>Figure 5.6</u>), you can see the quantities sold for every product. It graphically shows the number of unique values for your selection of fields.



Figure 5.6 Uniques Values in Data Preview in SAP HANA Studio

ANALYSIS

In the ANALYSIS tab (Figure 5.7), you can perform a full analysis of table outputs or information model outputs. This works the same as a Microsoft Excel pivot table. You can show the data using many different types of graphs—for example, the tree map graph shown in Figure 5.5.

## Content Area

The CONTENT area is where you perform all your SAP HANA modeling. This area is divided into *packages*, which can again be divided into *subpackages*, up to as many levels as you want. These packages and subpackages are then used to transport your information models from the development system to testing and production systems. (We discuss this in <u>Chapter 12</u>.)



Figure 5.7 Data Analysis in Data Preview in SAP HANA Studio

As an example, let's say you're working on a project, and you create a main package for your project. In this package, you create three subpackages: one for financial modeling, one for HR modeling, and one for logistics modeling. You will assign your financial modelers to work in the financial subpackage, HR modelers to work in the HR subpackage, and logistics modelers to work in the logistics subpackage. Your project lead will have access to the main package, including the three subpackages. You can then take the main project package and transport all of your project's models from the development system to the production system with just a few clicks.

<u>Figure 5.8</u> shows an example of SAP HANA models created inside a subpackage. Here, you can see attribute views, analytic views, and calculation views. This example is from the SHINE package of SAP HANA SPS 09. (The newer versions of SHINE do not have any attribute views and analytic views.) We discussed SHINE in Chapter 2.



Figure 5.8 Content Area

## SHINE Package

When possible, we will use examples from the SHINE package in this book. This package is freely available, and you can easily use it in your own SAP HANA system.

When you right-click on a package or a subpackage, you will see a context menu, as illustrated in Figure 5.9.

At the top of the menu, click NEW to display all the SAP HANA model types that you can create. You can create another subpackage, attribute views, analytic views, calculation views, analytic privileges, procedures, and decision tables via this option.



Figure 5.9 Context Menu to Create New Modeling Objects

Now that we've looked at the available system views, in the next two sections we will discuss the two primary consoles in SAP HANA studio.

## SQL Console

As with any other database, you can use SQL statements when working with the SAP HANA database. Figure 5.10 shows the different ways to open the SQL Console: You can either use the context menu of a schema, or click the SQL button in the top menu of the SYSTEMS view. This will open the SQL Console in your main work space. You can now enter different SQL statements to perform tasks such as creating tables, inserting data, maintaining data, creating a schema, assigning authorizations, and more.

Enabling line numbers in your editor is helpful if, for example, you're troubleshooting and an error message tells you that the error is in line 35. With line numbers enabled, you can see where line 35 is instead of having to count down 35 lines.

To enable this functionality, go to the WINDOW menu at the top of the screen, and then to PREFERENCES. Go to GENERAL • EDITORS • TEXT EDITORS, and then enable SHOW LINE NUMBERS.

There's another method to view line numbers, too. Something not everyone knows is that when you right-click on the little gray line to the left of the SQL statements, a menu appears from which you can select SHOW LINE NUMBERS.

🏠 Project Explorer   🎁 Reposite	ories 💡 Systems 🛛 🗖 🗇 🐨 "RDL - SQL Console 1 😒
<ul> <li>✓ I RDL (SYSTEM)</li> <li>▲ Backup</li> <li>← Catalog</li> <li>&gt; → Public Synonyms</li> <li>&gt; → HANA_XS_BASE</li> <li>&gt; → SAP_AUTHORZA'</li> <li>→ SAP_HANA_ADM</li> </ul>	Image: Console       Image
<ul> <li>SAP HANA DEM</li> <li>SAP HANA DEM</li> <li>EPM Column View</li> <li>EPM Query So</li> <li>Functions</li> <li>Functions</li> <li>Functions</li> <li>Procedures</li> <li>Sophrand</li> <li>saphanad</li> <li>saphanad</li> </ul>	Image: Solution of Solution     Solution       Image: Solution of Solution     Solution       Image: Solution of Solution     Solution
M Preferences	- D X
SyseE filter text           Seneral           Appearance           Content Types           Content Types           Editors           File Associations           Structured Text Editors           Globalization           Keys           Network Connection           Perpectives	Text Editors     > • • • • • •       See "Colors and Fonts" to configure the font.       Undo history size:     200       Displayed jab width:     4       Imet spaces for tabs

Figure 5.10 SQL Console

Tip

Pressing Ctrl + Spacebar in SAP HANA studio automatically completes your typing for you. This autocomplete feature saves you time and minimizes typing errors.

We recommend that you only use the SQL Console for one-off SQL statements. If you want to create functions or procedures, instead use the steps we discuss in the Development Perspective section.

We will look at SQL and stored procedures in more detail in Chapter 8.

#### **Administration Console**

The Administration Console is used primarily by data administrators (see Figure 5.11). From here, admins can get a good view of all the technical aspects of an SAP HANA system.

As an information modeler, there are two subtabs that might be helpful to you: the PERFORMANCE tab and the DIAGNOSIS FILES tab. These tabs will help you with troubleshooting, which we will look at in more detail in <u>Chapter 10</u>.



Figure 5.11 Administration Console

In <u>Figure 5.11</u>, you can see that this SAP HANA system seems to be healthy as everything is shown in green. The bars are only partly filled, which means this system has plenty of spare capacity. You can also see information such as the current status, when the system was started, what version number is installed, what operating system is used, and what is happening with the memory and CPU inside the system. This is all shown on the OVERVIEW screen of the Administration Console.

Next, we will look at the developer perspective and how to create your own repository for SAP HANA modeling work.

## **Development Perspective**

We mentioned earlier that we prefer the development perspective, even when modeling in SAP HANA. This perspective has a lot more functionality available than the modeler perspective. In this perspective, you can create repositories as well as projects and SAP HANA development objects that simply are not available in the modeler perspective.

Let's look at one of these objects—namely, a *flowgraph* model. Flowgraph models are used in a number of places in SAP HANA. We will quickly go through the steps to build a flowgraph model and then look at where it is used.

## Creating a Repository

Before you can create any SAP HANA development objects, you first have to create a *repository*, also called a *repository workspace* or a *workspace*. This is an area in which your objects will be stored. <u>Figure 5.12</u> illustrates the three steps of creating a repository workspace in SAP HANA studio:

- 1. First, select the REPOSITORIES tab, and click on the REPOSITORY icon **(m**<sup>\*</sup>). Note that the system shows that no repository has been created yet via the [] icon.
- 2. The CREATE NEW REPOSITORY WORKSPACE window will open. Here, specify the SAP HANA system, whether this is the default workspace, and the WORK-SPACE ROOT. When you're done, click FINISH.
- 3. Once you have created the repository workspace, the system now shows the icon, indicating that a repository exists. You only have to do this once. You can now use the workspace.

Step 1-Create a repository workspace	
Project Explorer	
Create New Repository Workspace	-
Create Workspace	
Create workspace Create a new workspace in a location based on the specified workspace name and root.	
SAP HANA Systems:	
RDL (RDL_USER)     RDL (SYSTEM)	Add System
	Log On
Use Default Workspace	
Workspace Name: (Default)	
Workspace Root: E:\temp	Browse
Workspace Location: E:\temp\_empty_	
	1
Emish	Cancel
Step 3—Use the workspace	
Project Explorer 🔞 Repositories 🙁 🔓 Systems 🗖 🗖	
Image: Second Secon	

Figure 5.12 Creating a New Repository Workspace in SAP HANA Studio

## Creating a Project

Next, you have to create an *SAP HANA XS project*. You can think of an SAP HANA XS project as a folder in which your development objects will be created. The three steps to create the project are illustrated in <u>Figure 5.13</u>:

- 1. Start by right-clicking in the PROJECT EXPLORER tab, and select NEW OTHER.
- 2. In the New window, under the Application Development folder, select XS Project.
- 3. In the NEW XS PROJECT window, enter the PROJECT NAME, LOCATION, and so on. Upon completion, click FINISH.

Ъ Project Ex	plorer 🙁 👘 Repositories 🖓 Systems 🗉		Step 1-New				
	New >	📑 Pro	oject				
	Show In Alt+Shift+W >	🎲 Sta	tic Web Project				
	Copy Ctrl+C	📑 Exa	imple				
	Copy Qualified Name	📑 Ot	her Ctrl+N				
	Paste Ctrl+V						
*	Delete Delete						
<u></u>	Import						
	Export						
2	Refresh F5						
P	New			-			
Se	lect a wizard		Step 2—XS Project				
	Create an XS project Wizards: type filter text SAP HANA		New XS Project				
Wi				Step3—Create			
ty			Create an XS project. You can share your project or save it locally.				
~			create an x5 project. Tod ca				
	Folder						
	Repository Workspace		Share project in SAP repository				
	<ul> <li>Application Development</li> <li>UIS Application Site</li> </ul>		Project name: DemoProject	ect			
	UIS Catalog						
	XS Application Access File		Use genauit location				
	XS Application Descriptor The		Location: E:\temp	B <u>r</u> owse			
	S HTTP Destination Configurat	ion	Working sets				
	3 XS JavaScript File XS JavaScript Library File XS Job Scheduler File XS ODbata File XS ODpata File XS Project		Add project to working sets				
			Working sets:	✓ S <u>e</u> lect			
				Back Next > Finish Cancel			
	XS SQL Connection Configuration	on File					
	> 🗁 Database Development						
C	2) KBack Next	>	Finish Cancel				
	· Dack West		Cancer				

Figure 5.13 Creating a New Project in SAP HANA Studio

You only have to create the SAP HANA XS project once. You can now create your SAP HANA development objects in this project.

#### Creating an SAP HANA Development Object

Finally, create the SAP HANA development object (flowgraph model) via the following steps:

1. In the PROJECT EXPLORER tab, right-click your project, as shown in Figure 5.14. Select the New menu option from the context menu, and then select OTHER.



Figure 5.14 Creating a New SAP HANA Development Object

- 2. In the next dialog box, choose which type of SAP HANA development object you want to create. There are two main subareas to choose from: An APPLI-CATION DEVELOPMENT area, as shown in step two of <u>Figure 5.13</u>, and a DATA-BASE DEVELOPMENT area, as shown in step two of <u>Figure 5.14</u>. For this example, select the FLOWGRAPH MODEL object type.
- 3. As shown in <u>Figure 5.15</u>, the NEW FLOWGRAPH MODEL window appears, providing options for naming and selecting the type of flowgraph model that you require. Click FINISH after you've selected the correct settings.

At this point, SAP HANA studio will place you into the editor for creating and editing the appropriate type of SAP HANA development object you've created.

For a flowgraph model, you are placed in the *SAP HANA AFM*. Note that a file with the extension .HDBFLOWGRAPH was created (see the top tab of the right-side screen in <u>Figure 5.15</u>). In the AFM graphical editor, you can create several nodes with inputs and outputs. You can, for example, connect a table to the input of a node, and then connect the output to another node.



Figure 5.15 Creating and Editing a New Flowgraph in the AFM

There are a few places where we will use the AFM in the course of this text:

- ► In <u>Chapter 9</u>, we use the AFM for modeling predictive analytics using an SAP HANA predictive library called Predictive Analysis Library (PAL).
- ► In <u>Chapter 14</u>, we use AFM for SAP HANA smart data integration (SDI) to help ensure data quality in SAP HANA and also for SAP HANA smart data streaming (SDS) to model streaming projects.

## **Session Client**

In SAP systems, we work with the concept of different *clients*. This use of *client* does not have the same meaning as the word *client* used to mean *customer* or as in *client server*. In this case, we are talking about an SAP system database being subdivided into different so-called clients. When you log in to an SAP system, it asks not only for your user name and password but also for a client number. You then are logged into the corresponding client. You can only see the data in that

client—not everything inside the SAP database. You can think of a client in SAP systems as a "filter" that prevents you from seeing all the data.

Because SAP HANA is used as the database for many different SAP systems, SAP HANA must also allow for this concept of limiting data to a specific client. By setting the session client, you can say what the default client number is for your SAP HANA studio.

There are several ways to set the session client. One option in SAP HANA studio is to go to the WINDOW menu at the top of the screen, and go to PREFERENCES. <u>Figure 5.16</u> shows you what the PREFERENCES screen looks like. By drilling down into SAP HANA and then MODELER, you will reach a screen called DEFAULT MODEL PARAMETERS where you can set the default client.

Where it now says SESSION CLIENT on the screen, you just type the client number-for example, 100.



Figure 5.16 Session Client Settings in SAP HANA Studio

In this section, we looked at the different aspects of SAP HANA studio as a modeling tool. In the next section, we will look at the other tool available in SAP HANA for modeling.

## SAP HANA Web-Based Development Workbench

The second main modeling tool for SAP HANA is a web-based development environment. Today, SAP is focusing more on cloud and mobile technologies. Tablets can't run desktop Java and therefore can't use SAP HANA studio. In addition, some people don't like to use desktop Java Virtual Machines due to various security issues.

To address these issues, SAP introduced the SAP HANA web-based development workbench, which runs from inside SAP HANA and only requires the use of a browser.



#### **HTML5 Browser**

You have to use an HTML5 browser for the development workbench to work properly. All newer browsers, including all mobile browsers, are acceptable: Just avoid Internet Explorer 8 and earlier.

Based on the current trends at SAP, this modeling environment is getting a lot of attention and development effort. Already, you can do almost everything in this web-based environment that you can currently do in SAP HANA studio.

<u>Figure 5.17</u> shows how to open the SAP HANA web-based development workbench in your browser. The URL you use looks like *http://server:8000/sap/hana/ ide/*.



Figure 5.17 SAP HANA Web-Based Development Workbench

You start with the server's host name or IP address, a colon, and then a port number. This port number is 8000 plus whatever the instance number is of your specific system. For example, if your system is using instance number 10, then the port number should be 8010. You then type in "/sap/hana/ide/" as a web server path.

You can see a part of this path in <u>Figure 5.8</u>, looking at the subpackages. You will notice that there is an SAP subpackage with a HANA subpackage underneath. This means you can actually see the code used for this development environment in your SAP HANA system.

Once you have logged on, you will see the main screen (as shown in <u>Figure 5.17</u>), which has four different areas:

- EDITOR
  - The EDITOR area corresponds to the CONTENT area in SAP HANA studio.
- CATALOG
   This is the same as the CATALOG area in SAP HANA studio.
- Security

The SECURITY area allows you to manage security settings, create users and roles, and assign objects.

TRACES

In this area, you can download traces and set trace levels for SAP HANA applications.

Clicking on any of these four blocks will open another tab in your browser and allow you to work in the selected area.

In this chapter, we will look primarily at the CATALOG area and the EDITOR area as security and traces are discussed in <u>Chapter 13</u>.

## **Catalog Area**

In the CATALOG area, your browser-based screen will look fairly similar to the same functionality we saw in SAP HANA studio (see <u>Figure 5.18</u>).

The layout of the screen is similar as well. For example, you will find that you can right-click to access menus with the same options, such as to open the definition of a table, to run a data preview, or to view the content of a table's data.

Create a new schema							
	Ø,						
New > Schoma							
COL Debugger > Ochemia					Maintai	n table data	1
SQL Debugger > Sequence	e Schema				/viamea	in table data	L
Perspective > Remote S	Source				Changed	Value	
😇 [RDL] SAP HAYA Web-ba: × 😅 [RDL] SAP HANA: Editor × 😅 [RDL] SAP H	HANA: Catalog ×						×
← → C/A 192.168.229.128:8000/sap/hana/ide/catalog/	Preview	table data				☆ 🌣 🚳 ≡	
SAD HANA Web-based Development Workbench: Catalog		- Treview	tuble dutu			v 1.100.12   Help   SYST	EM   RDL   RDL (localhost 00)   🖒
=					Now editing: SAP_HA	ANA_DEMO/sap.hara.demo	content.epm.data::EPM.MD.Products
▼ ★ Favorite	ean hana democonten	tean bana democont					
👻 📇 Catalog		Suprimumentecont					
<ul> <li>Public Synonyms</li> </ul>		Type to filter	* * 🔛			11	6 row(s) Y 💸 🖉
A da HANA_XS_BASE	D JRRENCY	12 PRICE	# PRODUCTPIC	WIDTH	12 DEPTH	12 HEIGHT	M DIMENSIONU
A SAP_AUTHORIZATION	*1	956	/sap/hana/democontent	0.3	0.18	0.03	ChangedValue
* di SAP HANA DEMO	2	1249	/sap/hana/democontent	0.29	0.17	0.03	м
Column Views	3	1570	/sap/hana/democontent	0.28	0.19	0.03	м
Functions	4	1650	/sap/hana/democontent	0.32	0.21	0.04	м
Indexes	5	499	/sap/hana/democontent	0.32	0.22	0.03	м
Procedures	6	1999	/sap/bapa/democontent	0.33	0.2	0.03	м
El Sequences	7	2200	/ran hana idemocontent	0.33	0.22	0.02	м
Synonyms		2200	13aprilana/democontent	0.55	0.2.5	0.02	
• E Tables	8	129	/sap/nana/democontent	0.1	0.02	0.17	м
III sap.nana.democontent.epm.data:EPM.Conversions.1006	9	149	/sap/hana/democontent	0.11	0.02	0.18	M
sap hana democontent com data: EPM Conversions TOURA	10	205	/sap/hana/democontent	0.84	0.02	0.14	м
sap hana democontent com data: EPM Conversions TCURF	11	239	/sap/hana/democontent	0.8	0.02	0.13	м
sap.hana.democontent.epm.data:EPM.Conversions.TCURN	12	230	/sap/hana/democontent	0.37	0.12	0.36	м
<ul> <li>III sap.hana.democontent.epm.data:EPM.Conversions.TCURR</li> </ul>	13	285	/sap/hana/democontent	0.41	0.19	0.43	м
<ul> <li>III sap.hana.democontent.epm.data:EPM.Conversions.TCURT</li> </ul>	14	345	/sap/hana/democontent	0.41	0.19	0.43	м
<ul> <li>III sap hana.democontent.epm.data:EPM.Conversions.TCURV</li> </ul>	15	200	is an Ibana idemocentent	0.30	0.2	0.41	и
<ul> <li>III sap.hana.democontent.epm.data:EPM.Conversions.TCURW</li> </ul>	10	100	/sapinana/democontent	0.05	0.2	0.41	
<ul> <li>III sap.hana.democontent.epm.data:EPM.Conversions.TCURX</li> </ul>	10	430	/sap/nana/democontent	0.45	0.20	0.40	M
<ul> <li>III sap hana.democontent.epm.data:EPM.MapKeys</li> </ul>	17	1430	/sap/hana/democontent	0.55	0.22	0.39	м
III sap hana.democontent epm.data:EPM.MD.Addresses		830	/sap/hana/democontent	0.51	0.46	0.3	м
sap hans democontent epim.data: EPM MD. BusinessParther		490	/sap/hana/democontent	0.48	0.42	0.26	м
sap hana democontent epm.data: EPM MD producti on			/sap/hana/democontent	0.53	0.5	0.65	м
say hand democontent committee MMD Products	139	/sap/hana/democontent	0.45	0.34	0.18	м	
III sap hana democontent epm.data:EPM PO Header	99	/sap/hana/democontent	0.46	0.32	0.25	м	
<ul> <li>III sap hana.democontent.epm.data:EPM.PO.ltem</li> </ul>	23	170	/sap/hana/democontent	0.41	0.42	0.28	м

#### Figure 5.18 Catalog Area, with Table Preview

<u>Figure 5.18</u> shows a table and the data contents being previewed. In this case, you will notice something that you can do in the web-based development environment that you cannot do in SAP HANA studio. By clicking on the menu, you have the option of creating a schema. In SAP HANA studio, there is no such menu option. You can only create a schema there using a SQL command.

#### Maintain Table Data

As of SAP HANA SPS 10, you can maintain table data when you view the table data in the SAP HANA web-based development workbench. You can insert data and update data while you preview the table contents, as illustrated in <u>Figure 5.18</u>. This obviously can be dangerous in a production system: It can be prevented through security settings.

#### **Editor Area**

Compare <u>Figure 5.19</u> to <u>Figure 5.1</u> at the start of this chapter and you'll notice that the screen layout and functionality are similar. Both figures present a graphical calculation view with a union mapping.



#### Figure 5.19 Editor Area

However, there is one big difference between SAP HANA studio and the SAP HANA web-based development workbench: In SAP HANA studio, you can graphically create and edit attribute views and analytic views. When you look at the context menu (right-click menu) in <u>Figure 5.19</u>, you will notice that you can only create and edit calculation views graphically in the SAP HANA web-based development workbench.

#### Тір

Modeling in SAP HANA is geared towards doing everything with graphical calculation views. Attribute views and analytic views are fading quickly and are not even available in the newer SAP HANA web-based development workbench. We will discuss this in more detail in Chapter 6. When you try to edit existing attribute views and analytic views that you previously created in SAP HANA studio in the SAP HANA web-based development workbench, the workbench only shows them as XML files (see Figure 5.20).

	Now editing: /sap/hana/democontent/epm/models/AN_PURCHASE_COMMON_CURRENCY.analyticview
AN_	PURCHASE_CO ×
1	xml version="1.0" encoding="UTF-8"?
2	<cube:cube amounts="" applyprivilegetype="ANALYTIC_PRI&lt;/td&gt;&lt;/tr&gt;&lt;tr&gt;&lt;th&gt;3&lt;/th&gt;&lt;td&gt;&lt;origin/&gt;&lt;/td&gt;&lt;/tr&gt;&lt;tr&gt;&lt;th&gt;4&lt;/th&gt;&lt;td&gt;&lt;descriptions defaultDescription=" conversion"="" currency="" id="AN_PURCHASE_COMMON_CURRENCY" order="" purchase="" schemaversion="1.5" with="" xmlns:cube="http://www.sap.com/ndb/BiModelCube.ecore"></cube:cube>
5	<metadata changedat="2014-04-21 17:10:05.377"></metadata>
6	<defaultschema_schemaname="sap_hana_demo"></defaultschema_schemaname="sap_hana_demo">
7	<localvariables></localvariables>
8	<variable id="IP_O_TARGET_CURRENCY" parameter="true"></variable>
9	<descriptions defaultdescription="Target Currency"></descriptions>
10	<variableproperties datatype="NVARCHAR" defaultvalue="EUR" length="3" mandatory="true"></variableproperties>
11	<valuedomain type="Currency"></valuedomain>
12	<pre><selection multiline="false" type="SingleValue"></selection></pre>
13	
14	
15	
16	<privatemeasuregroup id="MeasureGroup"></privatemeasuregroup>
17	<attributes></attributes>
18	<attribute attributehierarchyactive="false" displayattribute="false" id="PARTNERID" order="1"></attribute>
19	<descriptions defaultdescription="PARTNERID"></descriptions>
20	<keymapping columnname="PARTNERID" columnobjectname="sap.hana.democontent.epm.data::EPM.MD.BusinessPartner" schemaname="SAP_HANA_DEMO"></keymapping>
21	
22	<attribute attributehierarchyactive="false" displayattribute="false" id="PARTNERCOMPANYNAME" order="2"></attribute>
23	<pre><descriptions defaultdescription="COMPANYNAME"></descriptions></pre>
24	<keymapping columnname="COMPANYNAME" columnobjectname="sap.hana.democontent.epm.data::EPM.MD.BusinessPartner" schemaname="SAP_HANA_DEMO"></keymapping>
25	

# **Figure 5.20** Analytic Views Not Shown Graphically in SAP HANA Web-Based Development Workbench

As of SAP HANA SPS 10, the web-based development environment can also use the new PERFORMANCE ANALYSIS MODE option for graphical calculation views. In this mode, SAP HANA suggests ways that you can improve your model.

Please note that this mode is only available for graphical calculation views. When you select a graphical calculation view, the  $\boxed{1000}$  icon will appear in the menu at the top, as illustrated in Figure 5.19.

# **Important Terminology**

It's important to understand the differences between the two SAP HANA modeling tools. <u>Table 5.1</u> provides a quick summary of the differences between SAP HANA studio and the SAP HANA web-based development workbench.

SAP HANA Studio	SAP HANA Web-Based Development Workbench
Java-based.	Web-based, using an HTML5 browser.
Attribute views, analytic views, and graphical calculation views are created and edited graphically.	Only graphical calculation views are cre- ated and edited graphically.
Can only create a schema via SQL or Core Data Services (CDS).	Can create a schema via SQL, Core Data Services (CDS), or via a context menu.
Security roles are created as runtime (nontransportable) objects.	Security roles are created as design-time (transportable) objects.

Table 5.1 Key Differences between SAP HANA Modeling Tools

# Practice Questions

These practice questions will help you evaluate your understanding of the topics covered in this chapter. The questions shown are similar in nature to those found on the certification examination. Although none of these questions will be found on the exam itself, they will allow you to review your knowledge of the subject. Select the correct answers and then check the completeness of your answers in the Practice Question Answers and Explanations section. Remember that on the exam you must select all correct answers, and only correct answers, to receive credit for the question.

- 1. Which development tools are available for creating SAP HANA information models? (There are 2 correct answers)
- □ **A.** Java-based Eclipse tool
- □ **B.** Web-based development tool
- $\Box$  **C.** iPad app for development
- □ **D.** Java applet in the browser

- 2. In which SAP HANA studio perspective do you find the QUICK VIEW tab options?
- □ **A.** Administration perspective
- □ **B.** Developer perspective
- □ **C.** Modeler perspective
- □ **D.** Plan visualizer perspective
- 3. In which subarea (folder) in the SYSTEMS view of SAP HANA studio can you find the SAP HANA database schemas?
- □ **A.** SECURITY area
- □ **B.** CONTENT area
- □ **C.** CATALOG area
- □ **D.** PROVISIONING area
- 4. Where in SAP HANA studio can you unload a table's data from memory?
- $\Box$  **A.** The context menu of the table
- □ **B.** The list of export destinations
- □ **C.** The data preview of the table
- $\Box$  **D.** The table definition
- 5. Where in SAP HANA studio can you see if a table is row-based or column-based? (There are 2 correct answers.)
- $\Box$  **A.** The tooltip that appears on mouse hover over the table title
- $\Box$  **B.** The table definition
- $\Box$  **C.** The context menu of a table
- □ **D.** The table's icon
- 6. What can you do in the RAW tab of the data preview in SAP HANA studio? (There are 2 correct answers.)
- $\hfill\square$  **A.** Sort the entire data result set and show the top 200 records.
- □ **B.** Show all distinct values in the entire data result set.

- □ **C.** Create a graph while analyzing the entire data result set.
- **D.** Export the entire data result set to your local machine.
- 7. Where in the SYSTEMS view of SAP HANA studio can you create new SAP HANA models?
- □ **A.** In the schemas of the CATALOG area
- □ **B.** In the packages of the CATALOG area
- □ **C.** In the packages of the CONTENT area
- **D.** In the schemas of the CONTENT area
- 8. Which modeling objects can you create in a package in SAP HANA studio? (There are 2 correct answers.)
- □ **A.** Calculation views
- □ **B.** Procedures
- □ **C.** Triggers
- □ **D.** Schemas
- 9. Which modeling views are fading out and are not available in the SAP HANA web-based development workbench? (There are 2 correct answers.)
- □ **A.** Analytic views
- □ **B.** Scripted calculation views
- □ **C.** Graphical calculation views
- **D.** Attribute views
- 10. Which steps do you have to perform once before you can create SAP HANA development objects? (There are 2 correct answers.)
- $\Box$  **A.** Create a dataflow model in the AFM.
- □ **B.** Create a predictive model using PAL.
- □ **C.** Create a repository workspace
- D. Create an SAP HANA XS project.

- 11. True or False: The performance analysis mode is available for graphical calculation views in the SAP HANA web-based development workbench.
- $\Box$  **A.** True
- □ **B.** False

# **Practice Question Answers and Explanations**

1. Correct answers: A, B

We have SAP HANA studio, which is a Java-based Eclipse tool, and the SAP HANA web-based development workbench. There are no Java applets or iPad apps for modeling.

2. Correct answer: C

The QUICK VIEW tab is located in the modeler perspective (see Figure 5.2).

3. Correct answer: C

The SAP HANA database schemas are housed in the CATALOG area of SAP HANA studio (see <u>Figure 5.3</u>).

4. Correct answer: A

You can unload a table's data from memory in the context menu of the table (see Figure 5.3).

5. Correct answers: **B**, **D** 

The table definition (see <u>Figure 5.4</u>) and the table icon in the CATALOG area both show if a table is row-based or column-based.

6. Correct answers: A, D

Although all of the options are possible in the data preview, you can only 1) sort all the data result sets and show the top 200 records and then 2) export that data result set to your local machine from the RAW tab of the data preview. The other two actions are available in the other tabs.

7. Correct answer: C

You can only create models in the CONTENT area, so any reference to the CAT-ALOG area is invalid. There are no schemas in the CONTENT area. Schemas are only found in the CATALOG area. (See <u>Figure 5.9</u>.) 8. Correct answers: A, B

Calculation views and procedures are created in the CONTENT area. Triggers and schemas are created in the CATALOG area. (See <u>Figure 5.9</u>.)

9. Correct answers: A, D

Attribute and analytic views are fading out. We recommend using graphical calculation views going forward.

10. Correct answers: C, D

You have to create a repository workspace an SAP HANA XS project once. A flowgraph model (in AFM) is an SAP HANA development object, and you create it many times once you have performed the correct setup. A predictive model using PAL is an example of a flowgraph model. Answers A and B are therefore basically the same.

11. Correct answer: A

As of SAP HANA SPS 10, the web-based development environment can use the PERFORMANCE ANALYSIS MODE option for graphical calculation views. Please note that there are no true–false questions in the actual certification exam.

# Takeaway

You should now understand the two main SAP HANA modeling tools in more detail. They have many similarities, and a few subtle differences. After reading this chapter, you should be able to identify the different workspaces in SAP HANA studio, know how to work with tables and data, and know how to create new information models. You also learned how to set up and use the (preferred) development perspective for SAP HANA modeling.

In addition, you now should have a working knowledge of best practices and guidelines for modeling with the SAP HANA modeling tools in general.

# Summary

In this chapter, we discussed the SAP HANA modeling tools: SAP HANA studio and the SAP HANA web-based development workbench. You know how they work, their similarities, and their differences, and you have learned how to use them.

We will now use this knowledge for the modeling chapters ahead. The next chapter will teach you how to create and work with SAP HANA views using these modeling tools.
# **Information Views**

## Techniques You'll Master

- Learn to create SAP HANA information views
- Identify which type of SAP HANA information view to use
- Explore the various types of calculation views
- Know how to select the correct joins and nodes
- Know when you should still use attribute and analytic views
- Learn to migrate older types of SAP HANA information views

In the last two chapters, we discussed the modeling concepts and tools required for building SAP HANA information views. In this chapter and the next, we will build on that foundation. We'll focus on how to create information views in the SAP HANA system and how to enhance these views with additional functionality.

In this chapter, you'll learn to create the different types of calculation views, select the correct nodes for what you want to achieve, and use the semantics node to add additional value for business users.

We'll also discuss the older attribute and analytic views, when you would still use them in SAP HANA SPS 11, and how to migrate them to the equivalent calculation views.

## Real-World Scenario

You start a new project in which a business wants to expand the range of services it offers its customers. You're responsible for building the information models in SAP HANA.

You have to build about fifty new SAP HANA information views. As you plan your information views, you notice several master data tables that you will use. By creating a few well-designed dimension views, you cater not only for the needs of this project, but also for future requirements. You see this as a "library" of reusable dimension views.

While you're busy designing these dimension views, you also gather some analytics and reporting requirements. Most of the analytic requirements are addressed by building star join views and calculation views of type cube. You address some of the reporting requirements by delivering semantically enhanced information models that are easier for your colleagues and the end users to work with.

## **Objectives of This Portion of the Test**

The purpose of this portion of the SAP HANA certification exam is to test your knowledge of modeling SAP HANA information views.

The certification exam expects you to have a good understanding of the following topics:

- How to create SAP HANA information views
- Calculation views of type dimension
- Calculation views of type cube with star join
- Calculation views of type cube
- Selecting the correct joins and nodes to produce accurate results
- Choosing the correct type of SAP HANA information view
- Understanding the older attribute and analytic views
- Migration of the older information views

#### Note

This portion contributes up to 10% of the total certification exam score.

## **Key Concepts Refresher**

In <u>Chapter 4</u>, we looked at modeling concepts, and in <u>Chapter 5</u>, we examined SAP HANA modeling tools. Now, it's time to put them together, implementing the modeling concepts with the tools to create SAP HANA information views.

There are three types of SAP HANA information views, which we briefly covered in <u>Chapter 4</u>. First are dimension views, the master data in the system. Second, star join views let you build cube-like information models. Third, calculation views of type cube let you build enhanced multidimensional data structures and information models.

#### **Reminder!**

We refer to *calculation views of type dimension* as dimension views and to *calculation views of type cube with star join* as star join views. The last category is called *calculation views of type cube*.

The older SAP HANA systems had *attribute views* (for dimension views), *analytic views* (for star join views), and *calculation views*.

The last category can cause some confusion, because many people and web pages still refer to the last category simply as *calculation views*.

In this book, we use the latest official name—*calculation views of type cube* because that's what they're referred to in the SAP HANA SPS 11 certification exam. We use the name *calculation views* to refer to all three types of calculation views.

In this chapter, we start by briefly reviewing the different types of data sources that can be used be information views. We then dive into the creation process for the different calculation views before discussing the various types of nodes you'll encounter, including the semantic node. We then review and compare attribute views and calculation views of type dimension and analytic views and calculation views of type cube with star join. We round out the section by walking through the migration tools available in SAP HANA SPS 11 for attribute and analytic views.

## **Data Sources for Information Views**

SAP HANA information views can use data from a wide variety of sources. We will discuss some of the *data sources* in later chapters, so don't worry if you don't yet know what all of them are. The main data sources are as follows:

- ► Tables in the SAP HANA system; both row-based and column-based tables are supported. The different types of column tables—for example, history column tables and temporary tables—are all supported.
- ► SAP HANA information views in the SAP HANA system. We can build new information views on top of other existing views.
- Decision tables.
- ► SQL views.
- ► Table functions.
- Virtual tables with data from other databases.
- Core Data Services (CDS) data sources—for example, CDS views. You can use these source to deploy table definitions together with the information view to the production system.
- ► Data sources from another tenant in the SAP HANA system, if SAP HANA is set up as a multitenant database container (MDC) system. These can include

tables, SQL views, and calculation views from another tenant, provided that the proper authorizations are in place.

# Calculation Views: Type Dimension, Type Cube, and Type Cube with Star Join

As of SAP HANA SPS 10, you'll mostly create calculation views. Attribute and analytic views are only used in a few exceptional cases for functionality that is not yet available in the calculation views.

Existing attribute and analytic views will still work as they always did, but it is not recommended to use them in any new SAP HANA modeling work. As you've seen, the SAP HANA web-based development workbench only supports graphical editing of calculation views.

The aim is to do as much modeling work as possible with graphical calculation views. As SAP HANA has matured, there has been less emphasis on writing code when creating information models. The new focus typically is on keeping the entire modeling process graphical.

As previous discussed in <u>Chapter 4</u>, there are now three different types of calculation views:

• Calculation view of type dimension (dimension calculation views)

As of SAP HANA SPS 10, attribute views and calculation views of type dimension are both types of dimension views. In SAP HANA SPS 11, a new migration tool is available to help migrate your old attribute views to the new dimension calculation views. We'll discuss the migration tool in the Migrating Attribute and Analytic Views section.

## • Calculation view of type cube with star join

As of SAP HANA SPS 10, analytic views and calculation views of type cube with star join are star join views. In SAP HANA SPS 11, a new migration tool is available to help you to migrate your old analytic views to the new calculation views of type cube with star join. Again, refer to the Migrating Attribute and Analytic Views section for instructions on migration.

## • Calculation view of type cube

This view type provides even more powerful capabilities. For example, you can combine multiple star join views ("cubes") to produce a composite result set.

In this section, we will walk through the steps for creating these calculation views.

### **Creating Calculation Views**

You create calculation views in the CONTENT area of the SYSTEMS tab in SAP HANA studio. Select the package or subpackage in which you want to create the calculation view and right-click it. You'll see a context menu like the one shown in <u>Figure 6.1</u>.



Figure 6.1 Context Menu for Creating SAP HANA Calculation View

Click New and select CALCULATION VIEW.

#### Note

You can create attribute views and analytic views via the same context menu if needed.

The options for creating different types of calculation views appear in the popup dialog box, as shown in <u>Figure 6.2</u>.

At the top of the dialog box, give the calculation view a NAME and a LABEL (description). You can choose to make a copy of another calculation view with the COPY FROM selection.

From SAP HANA SPS 10 on, always select the GRAPHICAL option in the TYPE dropdown list. The SQLSCRIPT option is no longer used, and in SAP HANA SPS 11 any existing SQLScript calculation views can be migrated to table functions, as will be discussed in <u>Chapter 8</u>.

Mew Information	ion View		_		×
Create an Info	rmation View				
Select the requir	ed view type and enter the de	etails			
Name:*	CALC_DEMO				
Label:	Calculation View demo				0
Package:*	book.models			Brov	/se
View Type:	Calculation View				$\sim$
Copy From:				Brov	/se
Subtype:	Standard				$\sim$
Calculation Vi	w				
Type: Graphic	al				~
Graphic SOL Scr	al				
out ou				_	
Data Catego	CUBE ~ CUBE DIMENSION	With Star Join			With Star Jo
Note: If you	set the Data Category as Cul	pe, the default node	e is Aggre	gation.	
You c If you Projec	an change the default node t set the Data Category as Din tion.	o Star Join by select nension, the default	ting the o node is	heckbo	к.
?		<u>F</u> inish		Cance	el

#### Figure 6.2 Creating Calculation View in SAP HANA Studio

#### Script-based vs. Graphical Calculation Views

Script-based calculation views are used to create views using SQLScript. Graphical calculation views avoid the need for code by creating views graphically.

Use the DATA CATEGORY dropdown list and the WITH STAR JOIN checkbox to create the different types of calculation views. (Note the information below these dropdown selection lists, which indicates the default view node for each type of calculation view. We'll discuss default nodes shortly.)

The following instructions explain how to create each type of calculation view:

#### Calculation view of type dimension

Select the DIMENSION option in the DATA CATEGORY dropdown list. The default view node will be a PROJECTION node. These views do not support

multidimensional reporting and data analysis. You can use these information views as data sources for other calculation views.

## • Calculation view of type cube with star join

Select the CUBE option in the DATA CATEGORY dropdown list, and select the WITH STAR JOIN checkbox. The default view node will be a STAR JOIN node. These views can be used for multidimensional reporting and data analysis purposes.

## • Calculation view of type cube

Select the CUBE option in the DATA CATEGORY dropdown list. The default view node will be an AGGREGATION node. These views can be used for multidimensional reporting and data analysis purposes.

If you select the BLANK option in the DATA CATEGORY dropdown list, you will create a dimension view. This type of calculation view can only be used internally in SAP HANA. An external client tool—for example, a reporting tool—will not be able to see this calculation view.

Click the FINISH button to create the calculation view.

## **Creating Time Dimensions**

You can also change the SUBTYPE of the calculation view (in the middle of the dialog screen) to create a time-based calculation view. When you set the SUBTYPE to TIME, the dialog screen changes as shown in <u>Figure 6.3</u>.

The time-based calculation view adds a *time dimension* to information views. Remember that dimensions contain attributes that describe a transaction. If we add a time and date when the transaction happens, we have added another (time) attribute. These time attributes are stored in a time dimension.

You can set the calendar to the standard GREGORIAN calendar or to the FISCAL (financial) calendar. You can also set the GRANULARITY to YEAR, MONTH, and all the way down to SECOND.

If you use this option, you will need to generate time data in SAP HANA. You can do this from the QUICK VIEW menu in the MODELER perspective.

If you have tables TOO9 and TOO9B from your SAP ERP system available in SAP HANA, you can use these tables to define the FISCAL calendar.

🍯 New Informat		×					
Create an Info	rmation View						
Select the required view type and enter the details							
Name:*	CALC_DEMO						
Label:	Calculation View demo		^				
			~				
Package:*	book.models	Brow	/se				
View Type:	Calculation View		$\sim$				
Copy From:		Brow	/se				
Subtype:	Time Standard ~		$\sim$				
Calculation Vie	ew Standard Time						
Type: Graphic	al		$\sim$				
Calendar Type Granularity: 🗹 Auto Crea	e: Gregorian V Year V tee Vear Month Week Date Hour Minute Second						
?	Einish	Cance	:1				

Figure 6.3 Creating Time-Based Calculation Views in SAP HANA Studio

## Working with a Calculation View

A calculation view includes different working areas. A calculation view of type dimension is shown in <u>Figure 6.4</u> in SAP HANA studio. Work from left to right in this layout.

In the left work area, called the SCENARIO area, you'll see different nodes. The top node is always the SEMANTICS node. In the semantics node, you can rename fields to give them more meaning (i.e., semantics). You can also create hierarchies in the semantic node. (In <u>Chapter 7</u>, we'll discuss adding hierarchies to SAP HANA views.)



#### Figure 6.4 Working with Calculation Views

The node below the semantics node is called the default view node. The default node is the top-most node used for modeling in the view. Figure 6.5 illustrates the default nodes for the different types of calculation views. You can add other types of nodes below the default node; for example, Figure 6.4 shows two join nodes below the default PROJECTION node of the dimension view.



Figure 6.5 Default View Nodes for Different Types of Calculation Views

## Тір

Always work bottom-up when building SAP HANA information views: Start at the nodes at the bottom and work your way up to the default node. The output of each node becomes the input of the node above it. The final output of the view, which is the output of the default node, is shown in the semantics node.

When you select a node in the SCENARIO section, the information for the selected node is shown in the DETAILS area in the middle. In <u>Figure 6.4</u>, we selected the second join node. In the DETAILS area, you can see the tables in this join node and how they are joined together.

On the right-hand side of the screen in <u>Figure 6.4</u>, you can see all the selected OUTPUT fields, and directly below that, the PROPERTIES of whatever field or join you have currently selected from the DETAILS or OUTPUT area. You can also see the properties in the bottom working area, in the PROPERTIES tab.

## **Adding Nodes**

You can add new nodes to the SAP HANA information view by selecting a node type from the PALETTE on the left side and dropping it onto the SCENARIO work area. Drag the node around on the work area to align it with other nodes. When the node lines up with another node, an orange line indicates that the node is aligned (see <u>Figure 6.6</u>). Link the nodes by dragging from the circle on top of the node block to the circle at the bottom of the node above it.



Figure 6.6 Adding and Aligning Join Node to the Dimension View

## **Adding Data Sources**

Once you've added a node to the work area, you can add data sources to it. There are two ways of adding data sources:

- 1. Hover the mouse cursor over the node. A popup overlay menu with a green plus sign  $\frac{1}{2}$  and a tooltip (ADD OBJECTS) will appear. Click on the plus sign. A dialog box will appear and ask you which data source(s) you want to add to the data foundation. Type a few characters of the table's name to search for any data sources in the entire SAP HANA system that match those characters. Then, select the data source(s), and click on OK to add them to the node.
- 2. Drag and drop tables from the SYSTEMS tab. Open the TABLES folder in the schema in the CATALOG area, then simply drag and drop the name of the table or data source onto the node.

Both methods are shown in Figure 6.7.



Figure 6.7 Two Methods of Adding Data Sources to Nodes

#### **Creating Joins**

Drag and drop field to create a join

After you've added the data sources to the data foundation, you'll want to join the data sources together. Create a join by taking the field from one table and dropping it onto a related field of another table. <u>Figure 6.8</u> shows what this looks like in SAP HANA studio.

••• @ EMPLOYEID         ••• @ ADDRESSID           •• NAME_FIRST         ••• CTY           •• NAME_MIDDLE         ••• COTX           •• NAME_INITIALS         ••• PRONENUMBER           •• PHONENUMBER         ••• ERGION           •• PHONENUMBER         ••• COUNTRY           •• ADDRESSTYPE         •• COUNTRY           •• ADDRESTYPE         •• COUNTRY           •• ADDRESTYPE         ••			"SAP_HANA_DEMO".sap.hana.democontent.epm.data::MD.Employees ▼ IIII "SAP_HANA_DEMO".sap.hana.democontent.epm.data::MD.Addresses		sap.hana.democontent.epm.data::MD.Emplo	yees 🔻	III "SAP_H	HANA_DEMO".sap.hana.democontent.epm.dat	ta::MD.Addresses
*** MAME_FIRST         ************************************	●EMPLOYEEID <	FMPLOYFEID     ADDRESSID		AB GEMPLOYEEID				RESSID	
ale MAMELMIDDLE			N and bhashe	AB 🗑 NAME.FIRST			RB CITY		
Image: Strate in the strate	AME.FIRST     Re CITY	NAME.FIRST RecEITY	NAME FIRST Re-OCTY	AB 🗑 NAME.MIDDLE			AB POST	ALCODE	
te SEX Se Sex Sex Sex Sex Sex Sex Sex Sex	●NAME.FIRST ●NAME.MIDDLE	NAME.FIRST NAME.MIDDLE	NAME.FIRST © COTY NAME.MIDDLE	AB NAME.LAST			AB STREE	ET	
al SEA Set ANGUAGE Set ANGUA	● NAME RRST         ∞ ● CITY           ● NAME MIDDLE         ∞ ● POSTALCODE           ● NAMELAST         ∞ ■ STRET	■NAME_FIRST #® CITY ■NAME_MIDDLE #© POSTALCODE ■NAME_LAST # STREET	NAME.FIRST     Image: CTY       NAME.MIDDLE     Image: CTY       NAME.LAST     Image: CTY				AB GOULE	DING	
	NAME.RRST         Ø OCITY           NAME.MIDDLE         Ø POSTALCODE           NAME.INITIALST         Ø BUILDING	NAME_FIRST         R0 CITY           NAME_KINDDLE         POSTALCODE           NAME_LAST         R0 STRET           NAME_INITIALS         R0 BUILDING	NAME_FIRST         # CITY           NAME_KINDULE         # POSTALCODE           NAME_LAST         # BUILDING	AB SEX				NIRY	
	NAME.FIRST	NAME_FIRST         ###CTTY           NAME_KINDOLE         ###COSTALCODE           NAME_LAST         ###COUNTRIALS           NAME_INITIALS         ####COUNTRY	NAME_FIRST         # CITY           NAME_KIRST         # CITY           NAME_LAST         # STRET           NAMELINITALS         # COUNTRY				AB WREGIC	JN	
VALIDITY: ENDDATE     VALIDITY: VENDATE	NAME.FIRST         © CITY           NAME.MIDDLE         © POSTALCODE           NAME.INITIALS         © STRET           SEX         © BUILDING           SEX         © REGION           PLANCHARE         © REGION	NAME FIRST         Image: CITY           NAME KINDDLE         Image: CITY           NAME LAST         Image: CITY           NAME LAST         Image: CITY           NAME LAST         Image: CITY           NAME LAST         Image: CITY           Image: CITY	NAME_FIRST         # CITY           NAME_FIRST         # CITY           NAME_KINIDULE         # POSTALCODE           NAME_INITIALS         # BUILDING           SEX         # BUILDING           PLANELIAGE         # REGION           PLANELIAMERE         # REGION						
	NAME.RRST         © CITY           NAME.MIDLE         © POSTALCODE           NAME.LAST         © STRET           NAME.LAST         © BUILDING           SEX         © BUILDING           OLANGUAGE         © COUNTRY           © HANGUAGE         © ADDRESS           © HANDERSS         © ADDRESSTYPE	NAME_FIRST         Image: CITY           NAME_KINDLE         Image: CITY           NAME_LAST         Image: CITY           NAME_LAST         Image: CITY           NAME_INITIALS         Image: CITY           SEX         Image: CITY           UANGLAGE         Image: CITY           PHONENUMBER         Image: CITY           Image: CITY         Image:	NAME FIRST         Image: Control of Control					DITY.ENDDATE	
Stationty stationate Sevalubry stationate e-Currency ≥ SalaryaMount ⇒ AccountNumber	NAME.RRST     Image: CTY       NAME.MIDDLE     Image: POSTALCODE       NAME.LAST     Image: COUNTRY       NAME.INITIALS     Image: COUNTRY       LANGUAGE     Image: COUNTRY       ILANGUAGE     Image: COUNTRY       ILANGUAGE     Image: COUNTRY       ILANDRESS     Image: COUNTRY       ILOGINNAME     Image: COUNTRY	NAME_FIRST         Image: CTTY           NAME_LAST         Image: CTTY           NAME_INITIALS         Image: CTTY           NAME_INTRO         Image: CTTY           Image: CTTY         Image: CTTY           Image: CTTY	NAME_FIRST     Image: Citry       NAME_KIRST     Image: Citry       NAME_LAST     Image: Citry       NAME_INITIALS     Image: Citry       SEX     Image: Citry       LANGUAGE     Image: Citry       PHONENUMBER     Image: Citry       Image: Citry     Image: Citry<	ADDRESSES.ADDRES	SID	<u> </u>	12 QLATIT	UDE	
SeVALIDITY.ENDDATE SeCURENCY SALARYAMOUNT SAACCOUNTNUMBER	NAME_RRST	NAMEFIRST         Image: CITY           NAME.MIDDLE         Image: CITY           NAME.LAST         Image: CITY           NAME.INITIALS         Image: CITY           SEX         Image: CITY           IANDRUAGE         Image: CITY           PHONENUMBER         Image: CITY           ICOINNAME         Image: CITY           Image: CITY         Image: CITY           ICOINNAME         Image: CITY           ICOINNAME         Image: CITY           Image: CITY         Image: CITY	NAME FIRST     NAME FIRST     NAME.ANDOLE     AAME.LAST     AAME.LA	🕫 👄 VALIDITY.STARTDATI	E	Í	12 - LONG	GITUDE	
a ⊕CURENCY 2 ⊌SALARYAMOUNT ⊎ ⊕ACCOUNTNUMEER	NAME.RRST         © CITY           NAME.NIDDLE         © POSTALCODE           NAMELINTIALS         © BUILDING           SEX         © BUILDING           MAMELINTIALS         © ADDRESSTYPE           MAILADRESS         © VALIDITY.SENDATE           VALIDITY.SENTATIATE         © VALIDITY.ENDATE           VALIDITY.SENTATIATE         © UNGTUDE	NAME_FIRST         Image: CITY           NAME_KINTIALS         Image: CITY           NAME_LAST         Image: CITY           NAME_INITIALS         Image: CITY           SEX         Image: CITY           Image: CITY         Image: CI	NAME_FIRST         #© CTTY           NAME_KINTIALS         #© POSTALCODE           NAMELINITIALS         #© BUILDING           SEX         #© BUILDING           PHONENUMBER         #© ADDRESSTYPE           EMALLEDDRESS         #© ADDRESSTYPE           AUDITY_STARTDATE         #© ALITIVE	S ● VALIDITY.ENDDATE			Q ⊖ POIN	Т	
2 @SALARYAMOUNT	NAME KIRST          • CITY         • COSTAL CODE         • CAME KINTIALS         • SEK         • CONTRY	NAME_RRST     Image: CTY       NAME_RRDLE     Image: CTY       NAME_LAST     Image: CTY       NAME_INITIALS     Image: CTY       SEX     Image: CTY       LANCUAGE     Image: CTY       PHONENUMBER     Image: CTY       LOGINNAME     Image: CTY       VALIDITY_STARTDATE     Image: CTY	NAME_FIRST     ###CTTY       NAME_FIRST     ###CTTY       NAME_NIDDLE     ###POSTALCODE       NAME_LAST     ###CTTY       NAME_INITIALS     ###ET       SEX     ###COUNTRY       LANCUAGE     ###COUNTRY       PHONENUMBER     ###ADRESSTVPE       COGINNAME     ###ADRESSTVPE       COGINNAME     ###ADRESSTVPE       ADDRESSSID     ###ADRESSTVPE       VALIDITY.STARTDATE     ###ADRESSTVPE       VALIDITY.STARTDATE     ###ADRESSTVPE       VALIDITY.STARTDATE     ###ADRESSTVPE						
™ ₩ ACCOUNTNUMBER	NAME_RRST     Image: Constraint of the second	NAMEERST     Image: CITY       NAMEERST     Image: CITY       NAMELAST     Image: CITY       Image: CITY     Image: CITY <td>NAME_FIRST         Image: CTTY           NAME_KINTIALS         Image: CTTY           NAME_INITIALS         Image: CTTY           NAME_INITIALS         Image: CTTY           SEX         Image: CTTY           IANGUAGE         Image: CTTY           Image: CTTY         Image: CTTY     &lt;</td> <td>12 SALARYAMOUNT</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td>	NAME_FIRST         Image: CTTY           NAME_KINTIALS         Image: CTTY           NAME_INITIALS         Image: CTTY           NAME_INITIALS         Image: CTTY           SEX         Image: CTTY           IANGUAGE         Image: CTTY           Image: CTTY         Image: CTTY     <	12 SALARYAMOUNT					
	NAME.RRST     Image: Constraint of the second	NAME_FIRST     Image: CITY       NAME_FIRST     Image: CITY       NAME_KINITIALS     Image: CITY       NAME_KINITIALS     Image: CITY       SEX     Image: CITY       ANSULAGE     Image: CITY       ANKULAGE     Image: CITY       ANKULAGE     Image: CITY       Image: CITY     Im	NAME_FIRST     #© CITY       NAME_KINTIALS     #© POSTALCODE       NAME_KINTIALS     #© BUILDING       SEX     #© BUILDING       PHONENUMBER     #© ADDRESSTYPE       LANGUAGE     #© ADDRESSTYPE       VALIDTY_STARTDATE     #© VALIDTY_STARTDATE       VALIDTY_ENDDATE     #© LORGINUE       VALIDTY_ENDDATE     #© POINT						
I S SANKID	NAME RIPOLE     CITY       NAME NIDDLE     Softal CODE       NAME NIDDLE     Softal CODE       NAME NIDDLE     Softal CODE       NAME NIDDLE     Softal CODE       NAME NIDTALS     Softal CODE       SEX     Softal CODE       LANGUAGE     Softal CODE       PHONENUMBER     Softal CODE       LOGINNAME     REGION       UGUITY STARTDATE     VALIDITY STARTDATE       CURRENCY     CONSTUDE       SALARYAMOUNT     COUNT	NAME ERIST     Image: City       NAME LRST     Image: City       NAME.LAST     Image: City       NAME.INITIALS     Image: City       SEX     Image: City       LANGUAGE     Image: City       PHONENUMBER     Image: City       Image: City     Ima	NAME FIRST     Image: CTTY       NAME FIRST     Image: CTTY       NAME KINITIALS     Image: CTTY       NAME KINITIALS     Image: CTTY       SEX     Image: CTTY       LANCUAGE     Image: CTTY       PHONENUMBER     Image: CTTY       Image: CTTY						
	NAME_RRST     ● OCITY       NAME_NIDLE     ● POSTALCODE       NAME_INITIALS     ● BOSTALCODE       NAME_INITIALS     ● BOSTALCODE       NAME_INITIALS     ● BUILDING       SEX     ● BUILDING       ● PLONENUMBER     ● REGION       ● MAILADARSS     ● ADDRESSTADCRSSID       ■ VALIDITY_STARTDATE     ● VALIDITY_STARTDATE       ● VALIDITY_STARTDATE     ● UONGTUDE       ● VALIDITY_NODATE     ● DOINT       ● CURRENCY     ● SANKID	NAMEFIRST NAMELINTS NAMELINTS NAMELINTTALS NAMELINTTALS SEK LANGUAGE NHONERS LOGINNAME VALIDITY.STARTDATE	NAME FIRST NAME LAT NAME LAT NAME LAST NAME LAT NAME LAST NAME LAT SEX LANGUAGE NHONER SEX LANGUAGE NHONERS LOGINNAME NUMBER VALIDITY.STARTDATE						
a ⊕ BANKNAME a ⊕EMPLOYEEPICURL	NAME.FIRST       ● OCITY         NAME.MIDLE       ● POSTALCODE         NAME.INITIALS       ● STRET         NAME.INITIALS       ● BUILDING         SEX       ● BUILDING         PHONENUMBER       ● REGION         ● MAILADRESS       ● ULDITY.STARTDATE         ■ ADDRESSS.ADDRESSID       ● ULDITY.STARTDATE         ■ CURITY.ENDATE       ● DOINT         ■ CURITY.ENDATE       ● DOINT         ■ CURITY.UMBER       ● DOINT         ■ ADDRESSS.ADDRESSID       ■ CONGTUDE         ■ CURENCY       ■ SANKID         ■ BANKID       ■ BANKID         ■ BANKID       ■ BANKID	NAMEFIRST     Image: CITY       NAME.RNDDLE     Image: CITY       NAME.INITIALS     Image: CITY       NAME.INITIALS     Image: CITY       SEX     Image: CITY       LANGUAGE     Image: CITY       MAME.NITIALS     Image: CITY       LANGUAGE     Image: CITY       MAIL.DORESS     Image: CITY       LOGINNAME     Image: CITY       VALIDITY.STARTDATE     Image: CITY       VALIDITY.STARTDATE     Image: CITY       VALIDITY.STARTDATE     Image: CITY       VALIDITY.STARTDATE     Image: CITY       VALIDITY.NUMBER     Image: CITY       MARKID     Image: CITY       BANKID     Image: CITY       BANKID     Image: CITY       BANKID     Image: CITY	NAME FIRST NAME LIRST NAME LAT NAMELAST NAMELAST SEX LANGUAGE HONENUMBER LANGUAGE VALIDITY.STARTDATE						
	NAME.FIRST         NAME.RIST         NAME.MIDUE         NAME.NITIALS         SEX         LANGUAGE         PHONENUMBER         BANKENT         COUNTRY         VALIDITY.STARTDATE	NAMEFIRST NAME KINDLE NAME KI	NAME FIRST NAME LANDLE NAME LAST NAME LAST NAME LINITIALS SEX LANGUAGE PHONENUMBER HANGUAGES LOGINNAME UGINNAME UGINNAME UGINNAME UGINAME SARARYAMOUNT SALA	ointypos		Cardi	nality		
Din types Cardinality roperties Properties	NAME KIRST       Image: City image: Ci	NAME FIRST NAME AND DLE NAME AN	NAME FIRST NAME LANDOLE NAME LAST NAME LINITIALS SEX LANOUAGE PHONENUMBER UCOINNAME CURRENCY SALARYAMOUNT CURRENCY SALARYAMOUNT ADDRESS SADDRESS COMMANDE CURRENCY SALARYAMOUNT ADDRESS SADDRESS COMMANDE CURRENCY SALARYAMOUNT SALARYAM	oin types Properties		Cardi Proper	nality		
Din types Cardinality roperties eneral	NAME KIRST       CITV         NAME KIRDLE       Stream         NAME.NITIALS       Stream         NAME.NITIALS       Stream         SEX       Stream         LANGUAGE       BUILDING         PHONENUMBER       REGION         EMAILADDRESS       VALIDITY.STARTDATE         VALIDITY.STARTDATE       VALIDITY.STARTDATE         VALIDITY.STARTDATE       CORRENCY         SALARYAMOUNT       CACOUNTNUMBER         BANKNAME       EMPLOVEEPICURL         In types       Cardinality         Properties       General	NAME FIRST     CITY       NAME KINDDLE     POSTALCODE       NAME.NITIALS     POSTALCODE       NAME.NITIALS     BUILDING       SEX     BUILDING       PHONENUMBER     POSTALCODE       MAILADORESS     BUILDING       OGINNAME     POSTALCODE       VALIDITY.STARTDATE     VALIDITY.STARTDATE       VALIDITY.STARTDATE     CONSTUDE       VALIDITY.STARTDATE     CONSTUDE       SALKIND     POINT       SALKIND     POINT	NAME FIRST ANAME LAST ANAMELAST ANAMELAST SEX ANAMELAST ANAMELAST ANAMELAST ANAMELAST ANAMELAST ANAMELAST ANAMENTITALS SEX ADDRESS ADDRESS OCGINNAME ADDRESS OCGINNAME ADDRESSS OCGINAME CURRENCY SALARDATE CURRENCY SALARVAMOUNT ACCOUNTINMER BANKINA BANKINAME EMPLOYEEPICURL ADDRESS OCCINALABLE CURRENCY SALARVAME EMPLOYEEPICURL ADDRESS OCCINALABLE EMPLOYEEPICURL ADDRE	oin types Properties General		Cardi Proper Genera	nality ties		
Din types Cardinality Toperties Seneral Property Value	NAME KIRST     Image: Control of the con	NAME FIRST NAME ANDOLE NAME ANDOLAST NAME ANDOLASS ADDRESS OCININAME OCININAME OLIDITY.STARTDATE OLIDITY.STARTATE OLIDITY.STARTDATE OLIDITY.STARTATIANE OLIDITY.STARTDATE OLIDITY.STARTATIANE OLIDITY.STARTATE OLIDITY.STARTATIANE OLIDITY.STARTAT	NAME FIRST ANAME MIDDLE ANAME LAST ANAMELAST SEX ANAMELAST ANAMELAST ANAMELAST ANAME LAST ANAME LAST ANAME LAST ANAME LAST ANAME LAST COGNNAME ADDRESS COGINAME CURRENCY SALARYAMOUNT ACCOUNTNMBER BANNIA BANNIA BANNIA SPRY Value V	Din types Properties General Property	Value	Cardi Proper Genera Proper	nality ties ty	Value	
ter BANKNAME ■ EMPLOYEEPICURL	NAME KIRST NAME KINDLE NAME LAST NAME INITIALS SEK ANAME NITIALS SEK ALANGUAGE PHONENUMBER BHAILADDRESS LOGINNAME COUNTRY ADDRESSS ADDRESSID ADDRESS ADDRESS ADDRESS ADDRESS ADDRESSID ADDRES	NAME FIRST NAME LANDUE NAME LAST NAME.INITIALS SEX LANGUAGE PHONENUMBER HARUADRESS LOGINNAME ADDRESSS ADDRESSID UCALIDITY.STARTDATE CONTRY ADDRESSS ADDRESSID CONTRY CURRENCY SALARYAMOUNT SALARYANON SALARYANON SALARYANON SALARYAMOUNT SALARYAMOUNT	NAME FIRST     Image: Stress of the second se	Din types Properties General Property Left Element	Value "SAP_HANA_DEMO".sap.hana.democo	Cardi Proper Genera Proper Left Ele	nality ties I ty ement	Value "SAP_HANA_DEMO".sap.hana.democo	
s w BANKNAME w EMPLOYEEPICURL Doin types Troperties Seneral Property Value Left Element "SAP_HANA_DEMO".sap.hana.democo Sight Element "SAP_HANA_DEMO".sap.hana.democo Sight Element "SAP_HANA_DEMO".sap.hana.democo Bight Element "SAP_HANA_DEMO".sap.hana.democo	NAME KIRST <ul> <li>CITY</li> <li>CONSTALCODE</li> <li>NAME.NINTIALS</li> <li>SEX</li> <li>ALAREMINITIALS</li> <li>SEX</li> <li>COUNTRY</li> <li>BUILDING</li> <li>COUNTRY</li> <li>REGION</li> <li>ADDRESSS</li> <li>COUNTRY</li> <li>AUDDRESS</li> <li>COUNTRY</li> <li>AUDDRESS</li> <li>COUNTRY</li> <li>AUDDRESSSADDRESSID</li> <li>VALIDITY.STARIDATE</li> <li>COUNTRY</li> <li>AUDDRESSSADDRESSID</li> <li>VALIDITY.STARIDATE</li> <li>CONGRUE</li> <li>CONGRUE</li> <li>CONGRUE</li> <li>CONGRUE</li> <li>CONGRUE</li> <li>CONGRUE</li> <li>POINT</li> </ul> <li>ADAXNAME</li> <li>EMPLOYEPICURL</li> <li>Cardinality</li> <li>Properties</li> <li>General</li> <li>Property</li> <li>Value</li> <li>SAP_HANA_DEMO':sap.hana.democc</li> <li>Rit Element</li> <li>"SAP_HANA DEMO':sap.hana.democc</li> <li>Rit Element</li> <li>"SAP_HANA DEMO':sap.hana.democc</li>	NAME LIRST NAME LIST NAME	NAME FIRST NAME LAST NAME	Oin types Properties General Property Left Element Right Element	Value "SAP_HANA_DEMO".sap.hana.democo "SAP HANA DEMO".sap.hana.democo	Cardi Proper Genera Proper Left Ele Right E	ties I I ty ement Element	Value "SAP_HANA_DEMO".sap.hana.democo "SAP HANA DEMO".sap.hana.democo	
si w BANKNAME ■ WEMPLOYEEPICURL	NAME KIRST NAME KIDDLE SEK LANGUAGE PHONENUMBER EMAILADDRESS LOGINNAME EMAILADDRESS LOGINNAME COUNTRY VALIDTY: STARTDATE CURRECY SALARYAMOUNT ACCOUNTNUMBER BANKNAME EMPLOYEEPICURL	NAME FIRST     Image: Stress of the stress of	NAME FIRST     Image: State of the state of	Oin types Properties General Property Left Element Right Element Join Type	Value "SAP_HANA_DEMO".sap.hana.democo "SAP_HANA_DEMO".sap.hana.democo Referential v	Cardi Proper Genera Proper Left Ele Right E Join Ty	ties I I ty ement Element pe	Value "SAP_HANA_DEMO".sap.hana.democo "SAP_HANA_DEMO".sap.hana.democo Referential	
Din types Cardinality Properties General Property Value Left Element "SAP_HANA_DEMO".sap.hana.democo Sight Element "SAP_HANA_DEMO".sap.hana.democo Ioin Type Referential v	NAME_RRST       ● C(TV         NAME_MIDUE       ● STRET         NAME_INITIALS       ● STRET         NAME_INITIALS       ● BULDING         ● SEK       ● BULDING         ■ COUNTRY       ● REGION         ● HAILADDRESS       ● CONSTAUCODE         ● HAILADDRESS       ● CONTRY         ■ COUNTRY       ● REGION         ● HONENWMBER       ● CONTRY         ● CONSTAUCAGE       ● REGION         ● VALIDTY: STARTDATE       ● CONSTAUCAGE         ● CURRENCY       ● SARAND         ● BAILADANE       ● DOINT         ● BAILANANE       ● POINT         ● BAILANANE       ● PORTY         ● BAILANANE       ● PORTY         ● BAILANAL       ● CONS         ● Referential       ● SAPHANA_DEMO":sap.hana.democo	NAME FIRST       Image: CTTV         NAME KINDDLE       Image: CTTV         NAME KINDDLE       Image: CTTV         NAME KINDDLE       Image: CTTV         NAME KINTTALS       Image: CUTV         SEX       Image: CTTV         Image: CTTV       Image: CTTV	NAME PRST NAME LNITIALS SEX LANGUAGE PHONENUMBER EXX LANGUAGE PHONENUMBER LOGINNAME LOGINNAME LOGINAME LITIVOE LOGINA LITIVOE LOGINA LITIVOE LOGINA LITIVOE LOGINA LITIVOE LOGINA LITIVOE LOGINA LITIVOE LOGINA LITIVOE LOGINA LITIVOE LOGINA LITIVOE LOGINA LITIVOE LOGINA LITIVOE LITIVOE LOGINA LITIVOE LITIVOE LOGINA LITIVOE LITIV	oin types Properties General Property Left Element Join Type Language Column	Value "SAP_HANA_DEMO".sap.hana.democo "SAP_HANA_DEMO".sap.hana.democo Referential v Referential	Cardi Proper Genera Proper Left Ele Right E Join Ty Langui	ties ty ement clement cpe age Column	Value "SAP_HANA_DEMO".sap.hana.democo "SAP_HANA_DEMO".sap.hana.democo Referential	
bin types  roperties  Seneral  Property Value Left Element SAP_HANA_DEMO".sap.hana.democo Igint Type Referential Join Type Referential Cardinality Cardinality Value Cardinality Value Value Value Cardinality Value	NAME KIRST       ● C(TY         NAME KIRST       ● SOSTAL CODE         NAME KINDLE       ● STRET         NAME KINTIALS       ● STRET         NAME KINTIALS       ● STRET         NAME KINTIALS       ● STRET         NAME KINTIALS       ● STRET         LANGUAGE       ● DONENNMBER         LANDUAGE       ● REGION         ● ADDRESSES ADDRESSID       ● VALIDITY.STARTDATE         • VALIDITY.STARTDATE       ● UNIT         • VALIDITY.STARTDATE       ● UNIT         • VALIDITY.STARTDATE       ● UNIT         • CORRENCY       ● SALARVAMOUNT         • SALARVAMOUNT       ● CARIDITY         • COUNTRUMBER       ● BANKID         • BANKID       ● BANKID         • BANKID       ● SALARVAMOUNT         • ADARESES ADDRESSID       ● CARIDITY.STARTDATE         • CURRENCY       ● SALARVAMOUNT         • ACCOUNTNUMBER       ● BANKID         • BANKID       ● SAPANNAME         • BANKID       ● Cardinality         reperties       ● Property         in type       Referential         in type       Referential         ianguage Column       Saferential         ianguage Column <td< td=""><td>NAME EIRST         NAME KINDLE         NAME.NITIALS         SEX         LANCUAGE         PHONENUMBER         CORNAME         LOGINNAME         AUDOTY STARTDATE         VALIDITY.STARTDATE         SALRAYAMOUNT         ACCOUNTNUMBER         SANKID         SANKID         SANKID         SANKID         SANKID         SANKID         SAP, HANA, DEMO'.sap.hana.democo         ft Filement       "SAP_HANA, DEMO'.sap.hana.democo         n Type       Referential         Inaguage Column      &lt;</td><td>NAME FIRST NAME. MIDDLE NAME. MIDDLE NAME.LAST NAME.INITIALS SEX LANGUAGE HONENUMBER HONENUMBER HONENUMBER HONENUMBER HONENUMBER HONENUMBER HONENUMBER HONENUMBER HONENUMBER HAILADDRESS LOGINNAME ADDRESSS ADDRESSD UCURENCY SALARYAMOUNT ACCOUNT NUMBER BANKID BANKI</td><td>oin types Properties General Property Left Element Join Type Language Column Cardinality</td><td>Value "SAP_HANA_DEMO".sap.hana.democo "SAP_HANA_DEMO".sap.hana.democo Referential Seferential Inner</td><td>Cardi Proper Genera Proper Left Ele Right E Join Ty Langui Cardin</td><td>inality ties ty ement Element /pe age Column adity</td><td>Value "SAP_HANA_DEMO".sap.hana.democo "SAP_HANA_DEMO".sap.hana.democo Referential</td><td></td></td<>	NAME EIRST         NAME KINDLE         NAME.NITIALS         SEX         LANCUAGE         PHONENUMBER         CORNAME         LOGINNAME         AUDOTY STARTDATE         VALIDITY.STARTDATE         SALRAYAMOUNT         ACCOUNTNUMBER         SANKID         SANKID         SANKID         SANKID         SANKID         SANKID         SAP, HANA, DEMO'.sap.hana.democo         ft Filement       "SAP_HANA, DEMO'.sap.hana.democo         n Type       Referential         Inaguage Column      <	NAME FIRST NAME. MIDDLE NAME. MIDDLE NAME.LAST NAME.INITIALS SEX LANGUAGE HONENUMBER HONENUMBER HONENUMBER HONENUMBER HONENUMBER HONENUMBER HONENUMBER HONENUMBER HONENUMBER HAILADDRESS LOGINNAME ADDRESSS ADDRESSD UCURENCY SALARYAMOUNT ACCOUNT NUMBER BANKID BANKI	oin types Properties General Property Left Element Join Type Language Column Cardinality	Value "SAP_HANA_DEMO".sap.hana.democo "SAP_HANA_DEMO".sap.hana.democo Referential Seferential Inner	Cardi Proper Genera Proper Left Ele Right E Join Ty Langui Cardin	inality ties ty ement Element /pe age Column adity	Value "SAP_HANA_DEMO".sap.hana.democo "SAP_HANA_DEMO".sap.hana.democo Referential	
PRANKNAME       Image: PMPLOYEEPICURL         Din types       Cardinality       Properties       Seneral       Property       Value       International Seneral       Value       Internation       Value<	NAME KIRST       ● C(TY         NAME KIRST       ● SOSTALCODE         NAMELAST       ● STRET         NAMELNITIALS       ● STRET         NAMELNITIALS       ● BULDING         SEX       ● BULDING         LANGUAGE       ● BULDING         ● PHONENUMBER       ● BULDING         ■ COUNTRY       ● REGION         ● HONENUMBER       ● BULDING         ■ COUNTRY       ● REGION         ● ADDRESSESADDRESSID       ● CUNTRY         ■ VALIDITY.STARTDATE       ● UNDOTY         ■ COUNTNUMBER       ● DOINT         ■ CARENCY       ● SALARYAMOUNT         ■ ACCOUNTNUMBER       ● DOINT         ■ BANKNAME       ● POINT         ■ BANKNAME       ● POINT         ■ BANKNAME       ● POINT         ■ SAL REYAMOUNT       ● ACCOUNTNUMBER         ■ GERENCY       Value         ■ GERENCY       Value         ■ CONSTRUE       Properties         ■ In types       Cardinality         Property       Value         If Element       "SAP_HANA_DEMO":sap.hana.democo	NAME FIRST NAME FIRST NAME MDDLE NAME MDDLE NAME MDDLE NAME LAST NAME INITIALS SEX LANGUAGE PHONEVIUMBER PHONEVIUMBER MAILADDRESS LOGINNAME MAILADDRESS LOGINNAME MAILADDRESS LOGINNAME MAILADDRESS LOGINNAME MAILADDRESS LOGINNAME MAILADDRESS LOGINNAME MAILADDRESS LOGINNAME MAILADDRESS LOGINNAME MAILADDRESS LOGINAME MAILADDRESS LOGINAME MAILADDRESS LOGINAME MAILADDRESS LOGINAME MAILADDRESS LOGINAME MAILADDRESS LOGINAME MAILADDRESS LOGINAME MAILADDRESS LOGINAME MAILADDRESS LOGINAME MAILADDRESS LOGINAME MAILADDRESS LOGINAME MAILADDRESS LOGINAME MAILADDRESS MAILADDRESS MAILADDRESS LOGINAME MAILADDRESS MAILADDR	NAME FIRST VAME LAST VAME	oin types Properties General Property Left Element Join Type Language Column Cardinality Dynamic Join	Value "SAP_HANA_DEMO".sap.hana.democo "SAP_HANA_DEMO".sap.hana.democo Referential Inner Left Outer Brink Duter Brink Duter	Cardi Proper Genera Proper Left Ele Right E Join Ty Langui Cardin Dynam	inality ties ty ement cpe element cpe element dist dist dist dist dist dist dist dis	Value "SAP_HANA_DEMO".sap.hana.democo Referential V	
Din types  Perettes  Seneral  Property Value Left Element SAP_HANA_DEMO".sap.hana.democo Right Element SAP_HANA_DEMO".sap.hana.democo Right Element SAP_HANA_DEMO".sap.hana.democo Right Element SAP_HANA_DEMO".sap.hana.democo Right Element SAP_HANA_DEMO".sap.hana.democo Join Type Referential Language Column Referential Language Column Cardinality Left Outer Dynamic Join Cardinality V Dynamic Join Language Column Cardinality V Dynamic Join Cardinality V Dynamic Join Language Column Language Column Cardinality V Dynamic Join Cardinality V Dynamic Join Language Column Language Column Cardinality V Dynamic Join Language Column Language Column Cardinality V Dynamic Join Language Column	NAME KIRST         NAME KINDLE         SEK         LANGUAGE         PHONENUMBER         EMAILADDRESS         LOGINAME         ADDRESSSEADDRESSID         VALIDTY: STARTDATE         VALIDTY: STARTDATE         VALIDTY: NDDATE         CURRENCY         SAARNAME         BANKNAME         BANKAMAE         BANKAMAE         BANKAMAE         BANKAMAE         BANKAMAE         BANKAME         BANKAMAE         BANKAMAE         BANKAMAE         BANKAMAE<	NAME FIRST NAME MDDLE NAME MDDLE NAME MDDLE NAME MDDLE NAME ST NAME INITIALS SEX LANGUAGE PHONENUMBER PHONENUMBER COGINNAME ADDRESSS COGINNAME COGINNAME COGINAME COMPACING COMPAC	NAME PRST NAME MIDUE NAME MIDUE NAME MIDUE NAME LAST NAME INITIALS SEX LANGUAGE PHONENUMBER HAGUAGE HORENUMBER LOGINNAME LOGINNAME LODRESSS LOGINAME LODRESSS ADDRESSD LOGINAME LODRESS LOGINAME LODRESS LOGINAME LODRESS LOGINAME SAPLANADE SAPLANADE BANKIO BANKIANE BANKIO BANKIO BANKIANE BANKIANE BANKIO BANKIAN	oin types Properties General Property Left Element Join Type Language Column Cardinality Dynamic Join Oottmize Join Columns	Value "SAP_HANA_DEMO".sap.hana.democo "SAP_HANA_DEMO".sap.hana.democo Referential Inner Left Outer Right Outer Text Join	Cardi Proper Genera Proper Left Ele Join Ty Langua Cardin Dynam Optim	inality ties ti ty ement Element ge Column ality tic Join ize Join Columns	Value "SAP_HANA_DEMO".sap.hana.democo "SAP_HANA_DEMO".sap.hana.democo Referential v 11	
Several       Cardinality         Properties       General         Property       Value         Left Element       "SAP_HANA_DEMO".sap.hana.democo         Join Type       Referential         Cardinality       Value         Left Element       "SAP_HANA_DEMO".sap.hana.democo         Join Type       Referential         Cardinality       Value         Language Column       Referential         Cardinality       Value         Dynamic Join       Toptmize Join Columns         Fedicate       Ful Outer         Optimize Join Columns       Ful Outer	NAME KIRST       ● C(TY         NAME KIRST       ● STAL CODE         NAME KIRST       ● STAL CODE         NAME KINTIALS       ● STRET         LANDUAGE       ● DONENUMBER         LOGINNAME       ● REGION         ADDRESSES ADDRESSID       ● VALIDITY.STARTDATE         VALIDITY.STARTDATE       ● UNIT         VALIDITY.STARTDATE       ● DONEN         VALIDITY.STARTDATE       ● DONEN         SALARYAMOUNT       ● COUNTRV         AARXNAME       ● BANKNAME         ● BANKNAME       ● Referential         roperty       Value         getties       • SAP_HANA_DEMO':sap.hana.democo         in type       Referential         roperty       Value         getties       • SAP_HANA_DEMO':sap.hana.democo         inguage Column       Referential         Language Column       • Effective         Quage Column       • Effective         Promer Language Column       • Int         Griectate       • Promericate	NAME EIRST         NAME LIST         NAME.NITIALS         SEX         LANGUAGE         PHONENUMBER         EMAILADDRESS         LOGINNAME         AULDTV.STARTDATE         VALIDTV.STARTDATE         SALARYMOUNT         ACCOUNTNUMBER         BANKNAME         EMPLOYEEPICURL         Propertis         General         Property         Yolue         Right Element       "SAP_HANA_DEMO".sap.hana.democo         Nortype       Referential         Inguage Column       Keferential	NAME FIRST NAME LAST NAME	oin types Properties General Property Left Element Language Column Cardinality Dynamic Join Optimize Join Columns Predicate	Value "SAP_HANA_DEMO".sap.hana.democo "SAP_HANA_DEMO".sap.hana.democo Referential Inner Left Outer Right Outer Text Join Full Outer	Cardi Proper Genera Proper Left Ele Right E Join Ty Langu Cardin Dynarr Optim Predic:	inality ties ties ty ty ty ty tement clement age Column ality nic Join icz Join Columns ate	Value "SAP_HANA_DEMO".sap.hana.democo "SAP_HANA_DEMO".sap.hana.democo Referential v 11 11 11 11	
PRANKNAME       Cardinality         pin types       Cardinality         roperties       General         Property       Value         General       Properties         General       Property         Value       Sap_HANA_DEMO".sap.hana.democo         Right Element       "SAP_HANA_DEMO".sap.hana.democo         Right Element       "SAP_HANA_DEMO".sap.hana.democo         Right Element       "SAP_HANA_DEMO".sap.hana.democo         Value       Left Element         Cardinality       Value         Left Outer       Vanamic Join         Optimize Join Columns       Test Join         Predicate       I1         Predicate       n1	NAME KIRST         LANSCHARE         PHONENNMBER         PHONENNMBER         LOGINAME         ADDRESSES         VALIDITY STARTDATE         VALIDITY ST	NAME FIRST NAME LINTTALS SEX LANGUAGE PHONENUMBER PHONENUMBER PHONENUMBER PHONENUMBER PHONENUMBER PADDRESSS LOGINNAME ADDRESSS ADDRESSID VALIDTY. STARTDATE VALIDTY. STARTATE VALIDTY. STARTATE VALIDTY. STARTDATE VALIDTY. STARTDATE VALIDTY. STARTDATE VALIDTY. STARTATE VALIDTY. STARTATE VALIDTY. STARTS STA	NAME PRST NAME LAT NAME MIDULE NAME LAT NAME INITIALS SEX LANGUAGE PHONENUMBER HAILADDRESS LOGINNAME COUNTRY WALIDTY.STATDATE VALIDTY.STATDATE	oin types Properties General Property Left Element Join Type Language Column Cardinality Dynamic Join Optimize Join Columns Predicate Distance	Value "SAP_HANA_DEMO".sap.hana.democo "SAP_HANA_DEMO".sap.hana.democo Referential Inner Left Outer Text Join Full Outer Full Outer	Cardi Proper Genera Proper Left Eld Right E Join Ty Langua Cardin Dynan Optim Predica Distano	inality ties ties ement Element ege Column age Column ality ic Join Columns ate ce	Value "SAP_HANA_DEMO".sap.hana.democo "SAP_HANA_DEMO".sap.hana.democo Referential  V  11 1 a. m a. m b. m	
PRANKNAME         Image: Imag	NAME KIRST       ● C(TY         NAME KIRST       ● STAL CODE         NAME KINTIALS       ● STRET         LANGUAGE       ● REGON         PHONENNMBER       ● STRET         CORRESSES ADDRESSID       ● VALIDITY.STARTDATE         VALIDITY.STARTDATE       ● UNIT         VALIDITY.STARTDATE       ● ONT         VALIDITY.STARTDATE       ● ONT         SALARYAMOUNT       ● CCUNTRV         ACCOUNTNUMBER       ● BANKD         BANKNAME       ● POINT         SALARYAMOUNT       ● Cardinality         Properties       ● Freeden         meral       "SAP_HANA_DEMO" sap.hana.democo	NAME ERST NAME LAST NAME LAST NAME.LAST	NAME PRST NAME LANDOLE NAME LAST NAME LAS	oin types Properties General Property Left Element Night Element Language Column Cardinality Dynamic Join Optimize Join Columns Predicate Distance Intersection Matrix	Value "SAP_HANA_DEMO".sap.hana.democo "SAP_HANA_DEMO".sap.hana.democo Referential Inner Left Outer Right Outer Text Join Full Outer	Cardi Proper Genera Proper Left Eld Right E Join Ty Langue Cardin Dynarr Optim Predic Distant	inality ties ties ties ement clement /pe age column ality ze Join Columns ate cc vrion Matrix	Value "SAP_HANA_DEMO".sap.hana.democo "SAP_HANA_DEMO".sap.hana.democo Referential v 11 1n n1 n1 nm	
IB G BANKID	NAME KIRST          • © © CITY         • © © STALCODE         • © STREET         • © OSTALCODE         • © STREET         • © STREET         • © STREET         • © CUNTRY         • © CUNT         • © CUNTRY         • © CUNT         • © CUNTRY         •	NAME FIRST     Image: Constraint of the second	NAME_FIRST     Image: City       NAME_FIRST     Image: City       NAME_INITIALS     Image: City       NAME_INITIALS     Image: City       SEX     Image: City       LANGUAGE     Image: City       PHONENUMBER     Image: City       Image: City     Image: City       Image: City <t< td=""><td>AB GANKID AB GANKNAME AB GEMPLOYEEPICURL</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td></t<>	AB GANKID AB GANKNAME AB GEMPLOYEEPICURL					
	NAME.RRST         © ©CITY           NAME.MIDLE         © ©CTY           NAME.INTIALS         © ©STRET           NAMELINTIALS         © ©CUNTRY           © ALANGUAGE         © ©CUNTRY           © MAIL.DDRSSS         © ©CUNTRY           © MAILEDRSS         © WALIDTY.STATDATE           © ALORSSID         © WALIDTY.ENDATE           © VALIDTY.STARTDATE         © © UNGTY           © VALIDTY.STARTDATE         © © POINT           © CURRENCY         © © POINT	NAME_FIRST     Image: Constraint of the second	NAME FIRST     Image: City       NAME KINTIALS     Image: City       NAME KINTIALS     Image: City       SEX     Image: City       LANGUAGE     Image: City       PHONENUMBER     Image: City       LANGUAGE     Image: City       VALIDITY STARTDATE     Image: City       V	ACCOUNTNUMBER					
	NAME KIRST          • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	NAMEFIRST     CUTY       NAMEFIRST     POSTALCODE       NAMELAST     POSTALCODE       NAMELAST     STRET       NAMELAST     BUILDING       SEX     CUNTRY       PHONENUMBER     REGION       PHONENUMBER     VALDITY.STARTDATE       VALDITY.STARTDATE     VALDITY.STARTDATE       VALDITY.STARTDATE     UCONFITUDE       VALDITY.STARTDATE     VALDITY.STARTDATE       VALDITY.STARTDATE     VALDITY.STARTDATE       VALDITY.STARTDATE     VALDITY.STARTDATE	NAME FIRST     Image: Citry       NAME FIRST     Image: Citry       NAME LAST     Image: Citry       NAME LINITIALS     Image: Citry       SEX     Image: Citry       ILANCUAGE     Image: Citry       PHONENUMBER     Image: Citry       ICOINNAME     Image: Citry       VALIDITY.STARTDATE     Image: Citry						
	NAME.FIRST         © ©CITY           NAME.MIDLE         © ©STALCODE           NAME.INITIALS         © STRET           NAME.INITIALS         © BUILDING           SEX         © COUNTRY           © ADDRESSTYPE         © ALDITY.STATDATE           VALIDITY.STATDATE         © VALIDITY.STATDATE           VALIDITY.STATDATE         © CURRENCY	AAME_FIRST AAME_FIRST AAME_LAST AAM	NAME FIRST     Image: Constraint of the second	2 SALARYAMOUNT					
2 @SALARYAMOUNT 9 @ACCOUNTNUMBER	NAME.RRST         ** CITY           NAME.MIDDLE         ** POSTALCODE           NAME.LAST         ** STRET           NAME.LAST         ** BUILDING           SEX         ** BUILDING           ** COUNTRY         ** COUNTRY           ** ADDRESSTYPE         ** ADDRESSTYPE           ** COUNTRY         ** ADDRESSTYPE           ** ADDRESSTYPE         ** ADDRESSTYPE           ** ODRESSTADT         ** ADDRESSTYPE           ** VALIDITY.SARTDATE         ** VALIDITY.SARTDATE           ** VALIDITY.ENDATE         ** CONGITUDE           ** VALIDITY.ENDATE         ** CONGITUDE           ** VALIDITY.ENDATE         ** POINT	NAME_FIRST     Image: Constraint of the second	NAME_FIRST     Image: Citry       NAME_KIRST     Image: Citry       NAME_KINDLE     Image: Citry       NAME_INITIALS     Image: Citry       SEX     Image: Citry       VAMELAST     Image: Citry       NAME_INITIALS     Image: Citry       SEX     Image: Citry       VAMELAST     Image: Citry       VALIDITY_STATE     Image: Citry       VALIDITY_ENDDATE     Image: Citry       VALIDITY_ENDDATE     Image: Citry       VALIDITY_ENDDATE     Image: Citry       VALIDITY_ENDDATE     Image: Citry						
© ♥UNRINGT 2 ⊕SALARYAMOUNT 5 ⊕ACCOUNTNUMBER	NAME.FIRST         © C(TY           NAME.MIDLE         © POSTALCODE           NAME.INITIALS         © STRET           NAME.INITIALS         © BUILDING           SEX         © BUILDING           PHONENUMBER         © REGION           PHONENUMBER         © ADDRESSTYPE           LAGINNAME         © VALIDITY.STARTDATE           VALIDITY.STARTDATE         © CONTRY	NAMEFIRST     Image: CITY       NAMEFIRST     Image: CITY       NAMELAST     Image: CITY       Image: CITY     Image: CITY   <	NAME FIRST     Image: Citry       NAME FIRST     Image: Citry       NAME LAST     Image: Citry       NAME LAST     Image: Citry       NAME LINITIALS     Image: Citry       SEX     Image: Citry       Image: Citry     Image: Cit				POIN	1	
Se VACEUNT NUMBER	NAME.RRST         Image: Citry           NAME.MIDDLE         Image: Citry           NAME.LAST         Image: Citry           SEX         Image: Citry           Image: Citry	NAMEFIRST     AAMEANDDLE     AAMEANDDLE     AAMEANDDLE     AAMEANDDLE     AAMEANDDLE     AAMEANDDE     AAMAANDDE     AAMAAN	NAME_FIRST     Image: Citry	WALIDITY ENDDATE	<u> </u>			T	
	NAME.FIRST         © CITY           NAME.MIDLE         © POSTALCODE           NAME.INITIALS         © STRET           NAME.INITIALS         © BUILDING           SEX         © BUILDING           ELANGUAGE         © REGION           PHONENUMBER         © ADDRESS           LOGINNAME         © VALIDITY.SINDATE           ADDRESS ADDRESDID         INTITUE	AAMEERRST AAMEERRST AAMELAST AAMELAST AAMELAST AAMELAST AAMELAST SEX LANGUAGE FHONENUMBER HILINGUAGE HONENUMBER HONENUMB	NAME_FIRST         # CITY           NAME_FIRST         # CITY           NAME_KINTIALS         # POSTALCODE           NAME_INITIALS         # BUILDING           SEX         # BUILDING           HANGUAGE         # CONTRY           HANGUAGE         # ADDRESSTYPE           EVALIDTY_STARTDATE         # ADDRESSS           LOGINNAME         # ADDRESST	ADDRESSES. ADDRESS WALLINITY STARTDATE	510	- í		SITUDE	
© ■VALIDITY STARTDATE © ■VALIDITY ENDOATE © ■VALIDITY ENDOATE © ■VORREVY © ■VOREVY © ■VORREVY © ■VOREVY © ■VORREVY © ■VORREVY © ■VORREVY ©	NAME.RRST         Image: City           NAME.MIDDLE         Image: City           NAME.LAST         Image: City           NAME.INITIALS         Image: City           SEX         Image: City           IANGUAGE         Image: City           PHONENUMBER         Image: City           ICOGINNAME         Image: City	NAME_FIRST         Image: CTTY           NAME_LAST         Image: CTTY           NAME_INITIALS         Image: CTTY           NAME_INTRO         Image: CTTY           Image: CTTY         Image: CTTY           Image: CTTY	NAME_FIRST     Image: Citry       NAME_KIRST     Image: Citry       NAME_LAST     Image: Citry       NAME_INITIALS     Image: Citry       SEX     Image: Citry       LANGUAGE     Image: Citry       PHONENUMBER     Image: Citry       Image: Citry     Image: Citry<	ADDRESSES ADDRES	SID	<u> </u>	12 OLATIT	UDF	
Image: ADDRESSES ADDRESSID         Image: ADDRESSES ADDRESSID           Image: ADDRESSES ADDRESSID         Image: ADDRESSES ADDRESSES ADDRESSID           Image: ADDRESSES ADDRESSID         Image: ADDRESSES ADDRESSES ADDRESSID           Image: ADDRESSES ADD	NAME.FIRST         © CITY           NAME.MIDDLE         © POSTALCODE           NAME.INITIALS         © STRET           NAME.INITIALS         © BUILDING           SEX         © BUILDING           MARGEN         © REGION           © HONENUMBER         © ADDRESS	NAME_FIRST         Image: CITY           NAME_KINDLE         Image: CITY           NAME_LAST         Image: CITY           NAME_LAST         Image: CITY           NAME_INITIALS         Image: CITY           SEX         Image: CITY           LANGUAGE         Image: CITY           PHONENUMBER         Image: CITY           EMAILEDDRESS         Image: CITY	NAME_FIRST         Image: CITY           NAME_FIRST         Image: CITY           NAME_LAST         Image: CITY           NAME_LAST         Image: CITY           NAME_INITIALS         Image: CITY           SEX         Image: CITY           LANGUAGE         Image: CITY           PHONENUMBER         Image: CITY           Image: CITY         Image:			/	T S ⊖ VALID	DITY.ENDDATE	
© UCOINNAME © ADDRESESADDRESSID © AUDITY.STARTDATE © VALIDITY.ENDATE © VALIDITY.ENDATE	NAME.FIRST     NAME.KIRST     NAME.MIDDLE     NAME.IAST     NAME.INITIALS     SEX     LANGUAGE     PHONENUMBER     MODE     ADDRESSTYPE	NAME_FIRST         Idl OCTIV           NAME_KINDDLE         Idl OCTIV           NAME_LAST         Idl OCTIV           NAME_IAST         Idl OCTIV           NAME_INITIALS         Idl OCTIV           SEX         Idl OCTIV           VANGELAGE         Idl OCTIV           PHONENUMBER         Idl OCTIV	NAME_FIRST     # CITY       NAME_KINDDLE     # POSTALCODE       NAME_LAST     # BUILDING       NAME_INTIALS     # BUILDING       SEX     # COUNTRY       IANGUAGE     # REGION       PHONENUMBER     # REGION				T S ⊖ VALID	DITY.STARTDATE	
Image: Second	NAME.RRST         ∞ ⊂ CITY           NAME.MIDDLE         ∞ POSTALCODE           NAME.LAST         ∞ STRET           NAME.INITIALS         ∞ BUILDING           SEX         ∞ COUNTRY           LANGUAGE         ∞ COUNTRY	NAME_FIRST         Image: CITY           NAME_KINDDLE         Image: CITY           NAME_LAST         Image: CITY           NAME_LAST         Image: CITY           NAME_INITIALS         Image: CINTRY           SEX         Image: CINTRY           UANGLAGE         Image: CINTRY	NAME_FIRST         Image: Contraction of the contraction	🕫 👄 PHONENUMBER			AB GADDR	RESSTYPE	
Image: Province of the image	NAME.RRT         © CITY           NAME.MIDDLE         © OSTALCODE           NAME.INTIALS         © STRET           © SEX         © BUILDING	NAME_FIRST         ## CITY           NAME_MIDDLE         ## CITY           NAME_LAST         ## BUILDING           NAME_LAST         ## BUILDING           SEX         ## CITY	NAMEFIRST         Image: CTV           NAME.FIRST         Image: CTV           NAME.MIDDLE         Image: CTV           NAME.LAST         Image: CTV           NAME.INITIALS         Image: CTV           SEX         Image: CTV	AB 🖶 LANGUAGE			AB 👄 REGIO	N	
	NAME.FIRST	NAMEFIRST         # CITY           NAMELFIRST         # CITY           NAMELAST         # STREET           NAMELIAST         # SUBUDING	NAME_FIRST         # OLTY           NAME_KIRST         # OLTY           NAME_LAST         # STRET           NAMELIAST         # ULDING	ar 🗑 SEX			AB COUN	NTRY	
Image: Server	● NAME FIRST	NAME_FIRST	NAME_FIRST	R NAME.INITIALS			AB 👄 BUILE	DING	
Image: Sex	AAME.FIRST     Re CITY     Re POSTALCODE	NAME.FIRST	NAME/IRST 0 COTV	RB HAME.LAST			AB STREE	ET	
Image: Street index in the index inde	NAME FIRST	NAME FIRST	NAME FIRST				RB POST	ALCODE	
				B NAME.FIRST			RB CITY		
NAME_FIRST     NAME_FIRST     NAME_IDDLE     NAME_IDDLE     NAME_IDDLE     NAME_INTIALS     NAME_INTIALS     SEX     LAGNUAGE     PHONENUMBER     EGION     PHONENUMBER     VALIDITY_STARTDATE     VALIDITY_VA	EMPLOYEEID     ADDRESSID	■ EMPLOYEEID	■ EMPLOYFEID	EMPLOYEEID				RESSID	

#### Figure 6.8 Creating a Join in SAP HANA Studio and Setting Its Properties

Go to the PROPERTIES area to select the JOIN TYPE from the dropdown, and set the CARDINALITY. Make sure you have the join (the line between the tables) selected as illustrated; otherwise, the properties will not show the correct information.



#### Тір

When you create a join, get into the habit of always dropping the field from the main table onto the related field of the (smaller) lookup table.

For some join types, it makes no difference in which direction you do the drag and drop. With a text join, however, it matters. The join types that are available in calculation views are as follows:

- Referential join
- ► Inner join
- Left outer join
- Right outer join
- ► Full outer join
- ► Text join
- Dynamic join
- Spatial join

Referential joins and full outer joins are available in join nodes as of SAP HANA SPS 11. Previously, referential joins were only available in star join nodes.

## Selecting Output Fields

The next step is to select output fields. There are two ways to do this:

- 1. In the context menu of a field name in the table, select the ADD TO OUTPUT option.
- 2. A quicker way is clicking the round dot next to the field name. The dot will turn orange when the field appears as an output column.

Both methods are shown in Figure 6.9.

Figure 6.10 shows what a list of output fields looks like in SAP HANA studio.

When you select one of the fields in the output columns, you can see the properties of that field in the PROPERTIES tab underneath the OUTPUT area. (See the overview screen in Figure 6.4.) You can see the name of the column in Figure 6.11. You can change column names to make them more meaningful for end users. The MAPPING property ensures that SAP HANA knows what the original field is.

You can also change the data type and specify whether the attribute is a key attribute or if the field should be hidden or not.

SAP_HANA_DEMO".sap.	hana.democontent.epm.data::MD.E	nployees 🔻	III "SAP_HANA_DEMO".sap.hana.democontent.epm.data::MD.Addresses ▼
RE GEMPLOYEEID	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		A REPART AND A RESSID
AB SAME.FIRST	Add To Output		/ ] ≈ ⊕CITY
AB  NAME.MIDDLE	Create Join		In POSTALCODE
AB GNAME.LAST			AR STREET
AB GNAME.INITIALS	Propagate to Semantics		🕫 🖶 BUILDING
AD SEX			re ⊕COUNTRY
RE GLANGUAGE	Select All Tables		🕫 🖶 REGION
AB  PHONENUMBER	Select All Joins		ADDRESSTYPE
AB GEMAILADDRESS	Decelect All		III S VALIDITY.STARTDATE
	Deselect All		Several Second S
AB GADDRESSES.ADDRESSI	Properties	У	12 Set LATITUDE
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			12 Second Longitude
□			2
AB GURRENCY			
12 SALARYAMOUNT			
AB GANKID			
RE SEEN PLOYEEPICURI			
HANA_DEMO".s	sap.hana.democontent.epm.data::M	).Employees 🔻	"SAP_HANA_DEMO".sap.hana.democontent.epm.data::MD.Addresses
SAP HANA_DEMO".s	sap.hana.democontent.epm.data::M	).Employees 🔻	
SAP_HANA_DEMO".s     emPLOYEEID     e NAME.FIRST	sap.hana.democontent.epm.data::M	D.Employees 🔻	"     "SAP_HANA_DEMO".sap.hana.democontent.epm.data::MD.Addresses     "     "         ADDRESSID     [         in @ CITY     ]
SAP_HANA_DEMO".s     em*LOYEEID     re • NAME.FIRST     NAME.MIDDLE	ap.hana.democontent.epm.data::M	).Employees ▼	"SAP_HANA_DEMO".sap.hana.democontent.epm.data::MD.Addresses     @ ADDRESSID     @ OTY     @ OTY     POSTALCODE
SAP HANA_DEMO".s     MAME,FIRST     NAME,MIDDLE     NAME,LAST	ap.hana.democontent.epm.data::M	D.Employees 🔻	SAP_HANA_DEMO* sap-hana.democontent.epm.data::MD.Addresses
TH "SAP HANA DEMO".s	iap.hana.democontent.epm.data::M	D.Employees 🔻	"SAP_HANA_DEMO" sap.hana.democontent.epm.data::MD.Addresses           @ ODRESSID           @ OTY           @ OTY           @ STREET           @ STREET
IIII "SAP HANA_DEMO".s           IIII SAP HANA_DEMO".s           IIII NAME.FIRST           IIII NAME.HIST           IIII NAME.HIST           IIII NAME.HIST           IIII NAME.HIST           IIII NILLAST           IIII NILLAST           IIII NILLAST	sap.hana.democontent.epm.data::M	).Employees ▼	III         *SAP_HANA_DEMO* sap.hana.democontent.epm.data::MD.Addresses           Image: Control of the same same same same same same same sam
Iffi "SAP HANA_DEMO".s           Image: Employee	ap.hana.democontent.epm.data::M	).Employees ▼	"SAP_HANA_DEMO" sap.hana.democontent.epm.data::MD.Addresses           @ ADDRESSID           @ OTY           @ OTY           @ STRET           @ ULDING           @ COUNTRY           @ EGION
Iffication         SAP HANA, DEMO".s           Ide         EM LOYEEID           Ide         NAME.FIRST           Ide         NAME.INITIALS           Ide         NAME.INITIALS           Ide         SEX           Ide         LANGUAGE           Ide         DAMELINITIALS	ap.hana.democontent.epm.data::M	D.Employees ▼	IIII *SAP_HANA_DEMO* sap.hana.democontent.epm.data::MD.Addresses           @ ADDRESSID           IIII @ CTY           @ POSTALCODE           @ SUILDING           @ OUNTRY           @ REGION           @ REGION
SAP HANA DEMO":     OFM LOYED     OFM LOYED     OFMAKE/RST	sap.hana.democontent.epm.data::M	D.Employees V	"SAP_HANA_DEMO" sap.hana.democontent.epm.data::MD.Addresses           @ ADDRESSID           @ OTY           @ OTSTALCODE           @ STREF           @ BUILDING           @ COUNTRY           @ ADDRESSIVE           @ ADDRESSIVE           @ ADDRESSIVE           @ ADDRESSIVE
Iffi "SAP HANA DEMO"s           EMPLOYEED           NAMEFIRST           NAMEFIRST           NAMEINTLAST           NAMEINTLAST           NAMEINTLAST           HANGUAGE           PHONENUMBER           EMANUADESS           EMANUADENSS	ap.hana.democontent.epm.data::M	D.Employees V	IIII *SAP_HANA_DEMO* sap.hana.democontent.epm.data::MD.Addresses
Iff "SAP HANA DEMO".           Imployee           Imployee <tr< th=""><th>iap.hana.democontent.epm.data::M</th><th>D.Employees V</th><th>IIII *SAP_HANA_DEMO* sap.hana.democontent.epm.data::MD.Addresses         Image: Control of the same same same same same same same sam</th></tr<>	iap.hana.democontent.epm.data::M	D.Employees V	IIII *SAP_HANA_DEMO* sap.hana.democontent.epm.data::MD.Addresses         Image: Control of the same same same same same same same sam
Image: Sage Hana, Demora           Image: Env Loyee ID           Image: NAME_FIRST           Image: NAME_HARST           Image: NAME_HARS	iap.hana.democontent.epm.data::M	D.Employees V	IIII *SAP_HANA_DEMO* sap.hana.democontent.epm.data::MD.Addresses
TO SERVICE SEARCH	sap.hana.democontent.epm.data::M	λ.Employees ▼	*SAP_HANA_DEMO* sap.hana.democontent.epm.data::MD.Addresses         * ADDRESSID         ************************************
Iff:::SAP HANA, DEMO:'s           Iff:::SAP HANA, DEMO:'s           Iff:::SAP HANA, DEMO:'s           Iff:::SAP HANE, MIDDLE           Iff:::SAP, HANE, MIDDLE           Iff::SAP, HANE, MIDDLE <t< th=""><th>iap.hana.democontent.epm.data::M</th><th>D.Employees V</th><th>IIII "SAP_HANA_DEMO" sap.hana.democontent.epm.data::MD.Addresses         IIII CONSTRUCTION         IIII CONSTRUCTION         IIIII CONSTRUCTION         IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII</th></t<>	iap.hana.democontent.epm.data::M	D.Employees V	IIII "SAP_HANA_DEMO" sap.hana.democontent.epm.data::MD.Addresses         IIII CONSTRUCTION         IIII CONSTRUCTION         IIIII CONSTRUCTION         IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII
Iff "SAP HANA DEMO".           Image:	sap.hana.democontent.epm.data::M	ΣEmployees ▼	*SAP_HANA_DEMO* sap.hana.democontent.epm.data::MD.Addresses         * ADDRESSID         ************************************
CONTRACT AND A DEMONATION AND A DEMONATIONAL AND A DEMONAL AND A DEMONATIONAL AND A DEMONATIONAL AND A DEMONATIONAL AND A DEMONAL AND	iap.hana.democontent.epm.data::M	ΣEmployees ▼	"SAP_HANA_DEMO" sap.hana.democontent.epm.data::MD.Addresses         @ ADDRESSID         @ OTY         @ POSTALCODE         @ STREF         @ BUILDING         @ ADDRESSIVE         @ ADDRESSIVE         @ ADDRESSIVE         @ ADDRESSIVE         @ VALIDTY.STARTDATE         @ VALIDTY.ENDDATE         @ LONGTUDE         ? POINT
TT "SAP HANA DEMO". • EMPLOYEED • NAMEERST • NAMEERST • NAMEENTIALS • NAMEENTIALS • SAP • NAMEENTIALS • SAP • ANDLAST • NAMEENTIALS • SAP • ANDLAST • SAP • ANDLAST • SAP • ANDLAST • SAP • S	sap.hana.democontent.epm.data::M	ΣEmployees ▼	*SAP_HANA_DEMO* sap.hana.democontent.epm.data::MD.Addresses         * ADDRESSID         ************************************
Construction     C	iap.hana.democontent.epm.data::M	ΣEmployees ▼	SAP_HANA_DEMO* sap.hana.democontent.epm.data::MD.Addresses     ADDRESSID     OTY     OTY     POSTALCODE     STREF     BUILDING     COUNTRY     REGION     REGION     SADDRESSTYPE     VALDITY.STARTDATE     VALDITY.STARTDATE     VALDITY.STARTDATE     VALDITY.ENDDATE     VALDITY.ENDDA
Iff         "SAP         HANA, DEMO":           Image:	ap.hana.democontent.epm.data::M	λEmployees ▼	*SAP_HANA_DEMO* sap.hana.democontent.epm.data::MD.Addresses         * ADDRESSID         ************************************

Figure 6.9 Selecting Fields for Node Output



Figure 6.10 List of Output Fields for Selected Node

Properties					
General					
Property	Value				
Name	EMPLOYEEID				
Mapping	"SAP_HANA_DEMO".sap.hana.de				
Length	10				
Scale					
Data Type	NVARCHAR				
Filter					

Figure 6.11 Properties of Output Field



Even though you can set the different properties in the PROPERTY area in the node, we find it easier to set many of these in the SEMANTICS node. Changing the name or the label, setting a key attribute, and setting an attribute as hidden are much easier to do in the SEMANTICS node. We will discuss the SEMANTICS node later in the chapter.

Often, you'll want to select all the fields coming from a lower node as the output fields of the node. In this case, right-click the top bar of the data source and select the ADD ALL TO OUTPUT, as shown in Figure 6.12.



Figure 6.12 Selecting All Fields from Lower Node as Output Fields

#### **Finalizing the Calculation View**

In <u>Chapter 4</u>, we discussed how to build SAP HANA information views in layers, with each node building on the previous ones.

Once you've finished building the calculation view, there are two final steps to follow:

 Click the SAVE AND ACTIVATE D button on the toolbar above the OUTPUT area (see <u>Figure 6.13</u>). We'll discuss the activation process in <u>Chapter 11</u>, but for now, just think of it as a step you need to take before you can run your calculation view. 2. Preview your data by clicking the discussed the preview functionality in Chapter 5.



#### Figure 6.13 Save and Activate the Information View

Congratulations! You now know how to create calculation views in SAP HANA.

## Working with Nodes

In <u>Chapter 4</u>, we looked at the modeling concepts of joins, star joins, projection, ranking, aggregation, and union.

All of these options are available in calculation views as nodes. You can add these nodes from the PALETTE on the left of the SCENARIO work area, as shown in Figure <u>6.6</u>. These are the basic building blocks to use in the different layers of calculation views.

Let's take a quick look at the available nodes, working in alphabetical order.

#### **Aggregation Node**

The *aggregation node* in calculation views can calculate single summary values from a large list of values; for example, you can create a sum (single summary value) of all the values in a table column. These summary values are useful for high-level reporting, dashboards, and analytics. (The functionality is similar to the GROUP BY statement in SQL.) The aggregation node in calculation views also supports all the usual functions: sum, count, minimum, maximum, average, standard deviation, and variance.

The last three functions (average, standard deviation, and variance) are new as of SAP HANA SPS 11. For performance reasons, we recommend not using these three functions when you have very large stacked calculation views.

You normally calculate aggregates of measures, but in the latest versions of SAP HANA you also can create aggregates of attributes, which basically creates a list of unique values.

## Join Node

The earlier examples shown in <u>Figure 6.4</u> and <u>Figure 6.12</u> used a join node. *Join nodes* are used at the bottom layers to get data sources in to the view. Join nodes have only two inputs, so if you want to add five tables in the calculation view, you'll need four join nodes. Because of this, joins tend to be highly stacked. (You can see an example in <u>Figure 6.21</u>.)

## **Projection Node**

*Projection nodes* can be used to remove some fields from a calculation view. If you do not send all the input fields to the output area, the fields that are not in the output area will not appear to client tools.

You can also use projection nodes to rename fields, filter data, and add new calculated columns to a calculation view. (We'll discuss filter expressions and calculated columns in <u>Chapter 7</u>.)

## Rank Node

We can use *rank nodes* to create top N or bottom N lists of values to sort results. In the DETAILS area of a rank node, you can access extra properties to specify the rank node behavior.

Figure 6.14 shows the RANK NODE area. The SORT DIRECTION field specifies if you want a top N or bottom N list. The Order By field specifies what you want to sort the list by.

The THRESHOLD field specifies how many entries you want in the list. If you specify a FIXED value of 10, you'll produce a top 10 or bottom 10 list. You can also choose to set this value from an INPUT PARAMETER, which means that the calculation view will ask for a value each time it's run. (We'll discuss input parameters in <u>Chapter 7</u>.)

	⊕∔⊡†	Details						
Semantics  Aggregation  Ranking_Top10  CalcRestrictedRens  CalcRestrictedRens		Colored Compa PRODU PRODU PRODU PRODU Company PRODU PROD	strictedRenameCols * NYNAME CTD CTD CT, OATEGORY CT, CATEGORY CT, CATEGORY CT, CATEGORY CT, CATEGORY CT, CATEGORY ER, COUNTRY ER, COUNTRY ER, CTTY	100%	0 - 0 - 0 - 0 - 0 - 0 - 0	3		
George Contemporate Contemporat		Rank Node			ſ			
Add_Discount     Add_Discount     Add_Discount     Add_Discount     Add_Discount     BActual_Planned     Grget_employees_by		Sort Direction: Threshold : Order By: Partition	Descending(Top N) 10 PRODUCT_PRICE	•	Threshold Threshold Assign Threshold Type: Fixed			×
Actual_Planned      Actual_Planned      Actual_PROD      tillPROD      Drop Bements Here		Partition By Column SUPPLIER_COUNTRY <click add="" to=""></click>	ements		Threshold : 10		~	
		Generate Rank Colum	n			DK	Canc	el

#### Figure 6.14 Rank Node

You can tell the rank node to create an additional generated field with the rank values. By setting the GENERATE RANK COLUMN flag, the additional field is generated with the name provided in the field. You can use this generated field to sort the results in ranking order—for example, in a reporting tool. The generated field is created with a BIGINT data type.

#### Star Join Node

The *star join node* is used only to join a data foundation with fact tables to dimension views. The join types available in the star join node are the same as the normal joins in a join node. It's *what* they're joining that differs.

<u>Figure 6.15</u> shows a star join node. The left data source in the DETAILS area is the data foundation, which comes from a join node with two fact tables. The right data source is a calculation view of type dimension.



#### Figure 6.15 Star Join Node



#### Note

Only calculation views of type dimension are supported as the dimension data sources in the star join node of a calculation view.

The star join node is the default node of calculation views of type cube with star join. Use join nodes, as shown in <u>Figure 6.15</u>, to join all the transactional tables together. The upper-most join node contains all the measures. The output from this last join node becomes the data foundation for the star join node. <u>Figure 6.15</u> only has one join node for the data foundation.

Then, drag and drop the required dimension views (which have to be calculation views of type dimension) into the star join node and join them to the data foundation.

#### **Union Node**

In <u>Chapter 4</u>, we explained the difference between a *standard union* and a *union with constant values*. <u>Figure 6.16</u> shows a standard union with two data sources in the SOURCE area. These sources are combined into a list of output fields on the right side.

## Тір





#### Figure 6.16 Union Node

From the context menu of a field in the list of TARGET fields on the right, you can select the MANAGE MAPPINGS option to open the MANAGE MAPPINGS dialog screen, where you can edit the current mappings. You can also set up a CONSTANT VALUE for one of the data sources. In this case, we'll change the standard union to a union with constant values.

SAP HANA SPS 11 includes some performance enhancements for the union node. You can make unions run even faster by using a *pruning configuration table*. In this table, you can specify pruning conditions (like filters) to be applied to some columns. For example, a pruning condition can specify that the year must be 2016 or later. This filters the data and complies with our first modeling guideline: Limit (filter) the data as early as possible. You can specify the PRUNING

CONFIGURATION TABLE in the ADVANCED area of the SEMANTICS node. (An example is shown in Figure 6.19.)

## **Semantics Node**

*Semantics* is the study of meaning. In the semantics node, you can give more meaning to the data itself. One basic example is renaming fields: Some database fields have really horrible names – but in the semantics node, you can change the names of these fields to make them more meaningful for end users. This is especially useful when users have to create reports. If you have a reporting background, you'll know that a reporting universe can fulfill a similar function.

The semantics node includes four different tabs, as shown in <u>Figure 6.17</u>. We'll only discuss the first two tabs in this chapter; the other two tabs will be discussed in <u>Chapter 7</u>.

Details						
Columns(8)	View Properties	Hierarchies	Parameters/Variables			

Figure 6.17 Tabs in Semantics Node

## **Columns Tab**

The first tab in the semantics node is the COLUMNS tab (see Figure 6.18).

Detail	s										
Colur	Columns(8) View Properties Hierarchies Parameters/Variables										
Loca											
								ф 🖪	Pe 🔊	🛅 🕶 🥒 🖻 🗀 🖣	😽 🔺 🕇 📖 🗒
Tur		Ken	Name	Label	Aggregation	Variable	Semantic Tune	Label Column	Hidden	Value Help Column	Conversion Euroctions
тур	e	Ney	Name	Label	Aggregation	valiable	Semantic Type	Laber Column	Hidden	value Help Column	Conversion Functions
			AB EMPLOYEEID	EMPLOYEEID							
			AB NAME_FIRST	NAME_FIRST		Y					
			AB NAME_LAST	NAME_LAST		Y					
			12 SALARYAMOUNT	SALARYAMOUNT		Y					
			RE COUNTRY	COUNTRY		<b>Y</b>					
			REGION	REGION		7					
1			AB CITY	CITY		<b>Y</b>					
1			RB POSTALCODE	POSTALCODE		Y					

Figure 6.18 Columns Tab in Semantics Node

Renaming fields is easy. In the COLUMNS tab, click the NAME of the field and type the new name. The same rule applies for the LABEL. The label is used, for example, when creating SAP HANA XS (HTML5) applications, or in some reporting tools. Next to the name of the field, you'll see a checkbox indicating whether this is a Key field or not.

You might want to hide fields if you don't want to show the original field to the end user. Even if a field is hidden, it can be still used in a formula or a calculation; the field will still be available internally in SAP HANA for the calculation view, but will not be shown to the end users.

#### **View Properties Tab**

The next tab in the semantic node is the VIEW PROPERTIES tab. Here, as shown in Figure 6.19, you can change the properties of the entire calculation view.

Details				
Columns(8) View Properties	Hierarchies Parameters/Variables			
General				
RDL.book.models		Demo	of a dimension view	
Data Category:	DIMENSION	~	<sup>8</sup> Enable History	
Туре:	STANDARD	$\sim$	History Input Parameter:	
Default Client:	Şession Client	~	Default Member:	
Count Star Column:	Session Client		Column View Name:	"_SYS_BIC"."book.models/DEMO_DIM"
Default Schema	Cross Client		Deprecate	
Apply Privileges:	Classical Analytic Privileges			
Apply Hivinges.	classical Analytic Phylicges	-		
_	Classical Analytic Privileges SQL Analytic Privileges			
Advanced				
<sup>®</sup> Execute In:			~	
E Cache				
<sup>8</sup> Cache Invalidation Period:	SQL Engine Transactional		~	
<sup>8</sup> Pruning Configuration Tabl	e:			
These properties may aff	ect the output data. Please set them cautiously.			

#### Figure 6.19 View Properties Tab in Semantics Node

You've seen that when working with SAP data you sometimes have to set the default client. In <u>Chapter 5</u>, we explained how to set the default client for SAP HANA studio. You can also specify a default client for this calculation view, as shown in the DEFAULT CLIENT dropdown list in <u>Figure 6.19</u>. If you select the CROSS CLIENT option, data from all the SAP clients will be shown; it will not filter

the data to a specific client. The SESSION CLIENT option will filter the data to display only data from a specific SAP client. Instead of using one of these two options, you can also enter the SAP client number that you want to display data for—for example, "800". This setting takes precedence over the SAP HANA studio preferences.

Many of the features in the VIEW PROPERTIES tab are new as of SAP HANA SPS 10, including new security options, the DEPRECATE checkbox, the TRANSLATE checkbox, and the ability to add comments. The PRUNING CONFIGURATION TABLE field is new as of SAP HANA SPS 11. (We discussed this feature in the Union Node section.)

For the security settings, you can choose between CLASSICAL ANALYTIC PRIVILEGES or SQL ANALYTIC PRIVILEGES. (We'll discuss these options in more detail in <u>Chapter 13</u> when discussing security.) We recommend always using SQL ANALYTIC PRIVILEGES. In SAP HANA SPS 11, there is a migration tool that migrates older classical analytic privileges to SQL analytic privileges.

Setting the DEPRECATE checkbox doesn't mean that the calculation view will not work any longer; it will merely warn people that this calculation view has now been succeeded by a newer version somewhere in the system and that they should use the newer version, because this one will disappear someday in the future. When you add this calculation view in another data model, you'll see a warning in SAP HANA studio that says, THIS MODEL IS DEPRECATED. The calculation view will still work as usual, however.

When you select the new TRANSLATE checkbox, more functionality opens up in the tab's work area. You can translate field names and labels into different languages. This is useful if you need to create an SAP HANA HTML5 (XS) application for users in different countries.

Finally, take note of the COMMENTS feature. By clicking on any of the COMMENTS icons is scattered throughout the calculation view, you can create comments about the calculation view. Use this functionality for internal notes to yourself, for notes to your modeling team members, or to remind yourself why you changed something.

In the ADVANCED section, you can set the EXECUTION IN to SQL ENGINE. You'll only set this preference when developing SAP HANA Live calculation views. More information on SAP HANA Live calculation views can be found in <u>Chapter 12</u>.

## Attribute Views and Calculation Views of Type Dimension

Currently, you can access two types of dimension views in SAP HANA. The older dimension views are called attribute views, and the newer dimension views are calculation views of type dimension. SAP HANA SPS 11 provides a migration tool to convert attribute views to calculation views of type dimension. You can use these information views as data sources for other calculation views.

In <u>Figure 6.20</u>, you can compare the same information model created as an attribute view (left) to the equivalent calculation view of type dimension (right).



**Figure 6.20** Comparing an Attribute View with the Equivalent Calculation View of Type Dimension

The attribute view always contains only one node (except for the semantics node). The data foundation node is always the bottom node. You can join multiple tables in the data foundation.

The calculation view of type dimension has a default projection node at the top (below the semantics node). However, you have the flexibility to add any of the calculation view nodes below it. In this case, we used a join node with the same tables to achieve the equivalent of the "data foundation."

The disadvantage of a join node is that it accepts only two inputs. The impact of this is illustrated in <u>Figure 6.21</u>, in which you can see the highly stacked model on the right.



Figure 6.21 Disadvantage of a Join Node

#### Тір

Attribute views have a single data foundation node because dimension views only work with attributes. Even numeric values will be treated as attributes. You also do not use fact tables with attribute views, so you don't need an additional star join node.

Calculation views of type dimension have many advantages over attribute views—for example:

A flexible layout in which you can use any node. You're not restricted to the single data foundation node. For example, you can use union nodes, which are not available in attribute views.

- Attribute views do not have full outer and spatial joins.
- ► Time-dependent hierarchies. (For more information, see <u>Chapter 7</u>.)

There are some reasons to use attribute views, however, such as the following:

- Attribute views can use fuzzy text search directly in the view. (See <u>Chapter 9</u> for more information.) Currently, these are the only views for which this is true. When this functionality has been incorporated into calculation views of type dimension, we can get rid of attribute views.
- Derived attribute views.

Let's look a little closer at the concept of derived attribute views. Think about shortcuts on your Windows or Mac desktop, or even the icons on the home screen of your phone or tablet. These shortcuts point to a program somewhere else on your computer or mobile device. When you tap the shortcut, the machine knows how to access the actual program. You can even rename the shortcut to something more meaningful for you; the program that it points to stays the same.

*Derived attribute views* are like shortcuts to attribute views. You create a derived attribute view when you want to reuse the same attribute view multiple times in an analytic view, but each time for slightly different purposes.

For example, think about business partners in a contact management system. In our company, we have two groups of people with contact details: customers and suppliers. All these people are in a certain city, are in a certain country, and have a specific zip or postal code. It doesn't make sense to store these addresses and contact details in two separate attribute views, so the contact details are in one attribute view called Contact Details.

We can now create two derived attribute views. Both will behave like shortcuts to the original Contact Details attribute view. We'll name one derived attribute view Customer Contact Details and the other Supplier Contact Details.

In our data model, we can then use the (derived) Customer Contact Details attribute view when we work with customers and the (derived) Supplier Contact Details attribute view when we work with suppliers.

Just as with shortcuts on your desktop computer or mobile device, the derived attributed views are dependent on the existence of the attribute view they are based on: If you delete a program, the shortcuts to that program become useless. In the same way, derived attribute views need the base attribute view to function

properly. When you update the base attribute view, the derived attribute views point to the updated version and also provide the updated functionality.

Calculation views of type dimension do not yet have this functionality.

## Analytic Views and Calculation Views of Type Cube with Star Join

There are two types of star join views in SAP HANA: the older star join views, called analytic views, and the newer calculation views of type cube with star join. SAP HANA SPS 11 provides a tool to migrate analytic views to calculation views of type cube with star join.

Similar to the attribute view example, in <u>Figure 6.22</u> you can compare the same information model created as an analytic view (left) to the equivalent calculation view of type cube with star join (right).



**Figure 6.22** Comparing an Analytic View with the Equivalent Calculation View of Type Cube with Star Join

Analytic views always have two nodes (excluding the semantics node). The data foundation node is always the bottom node, and the star join node is the top node. Analytic views are built in the same bottom-up approach that you use for

calculation views: First join multiple transactional tables (with measures) in the data foundation, then, in the star join node, join the data foundation to several attribute views.

The calculation view of type cube with star join has a default star join node at the top (below the semantics node). Again, you have the flexibility to add any of the calculation view nodes below it. In <u>Figure 6.22</u>, we used a join node with the same tables to achieve the equivalent of the data foundation.

Calculation views of type cube with star join have many advantages over analytic views—for example:

- ► You can use any nodes, have a flexible layout, and build up layers as you require. You're not restricted to two fixed nodes.
- Analytic views cannot use full outer and spatial joins.
- ➤ You can't create any hierarchies in analytic views; analytic views can only show the hierarchies they inherit from included attribute views. Because attribute views don't have time-dependent hierarchies, analytic views don't have them either.
- A star join in an analytic view can't point to multiple physical tables used in a single attribute view. For example, say an attribute view uses tables A and B. When you join the fact table in the analytic view to the attribute view and create a join to one field from table A and another field from table B, the analytic view will produce an activation error.

There is only one reason to still use analytic views: Analytic views are the only type of SAP HANA information view that can use temporal joins. (The temporal joins in analytic views are only available in the star join node, and only when you use inner or referential joins.)

## **Migrating Attribute and Analytic Views**

In SAP HANA SPS 11, you can migrate attribute and analytic views to calculation views. As you've seen, calculation views offer far more flexibility and functionality than these older types of views. There are still two cases for which attribute and analytic views cannot be migrated yet, because calculation views do not have certain functionality yet: attribute views with fuzzy text search and analytic views with temporal joins.

To migrate your old attribute and analytic views to calculation views of type dimension and calculation views of type cube with star join, follow these steps:

- 1. Start the migration tool from the QUICK VIEW menu in the MODELER perspective, as shown in <u>Figure 6.23</u>. Select the MIGRATE option. In the dialog box, select the option to migrate ATTRIBUTE VIEWS AND ANALYTIC VIEWS TO CALCU-LATION VIEWS.
- 2. Next, select the attribute and analytic views you want to convert to calculation views (see Figure 6.24).
- 3. Hidden columns have to be made visible during migration; otherwise, the migration tool will not include these fields as outputs in the calculation view that it will create. Therefore, enable the MAKE HIDDEN COLUMNS VISIBLE option.



Figure 6.23 Selecting Migration Options

Reg Migrate Select Packages Select packages that have the objects to be migr the new object types within the selected package	ated. This migratic e.	on operation will save					
Available	Add Remove	Selected Content Selected Selecte					
Make hidden columns visible  Make hidden columns visible  Copy and migrate:  Select Package: book  Browse							

Figure 6.24 Selecting Attribute and Analytic Views to Migrate

- 4. You can simulate the migration by enabling the COPY AND MIGRATE option. The migration tool will not adjust or modify the original attribute and analytic views and will generate the calculation views in a package that you specify for the simulation. This is useful in order to understand the impact of the migration before you proceed with the actual migration.
- 5. Next, an overview screen displays a list of the views that will be impacted (Figure 6.25). Confirm the list of impacted objects by clicking FINISH.
- 6. When you start the migration, it runs as a background job. When the migration has finished, you can check the log file in the JOB LOG VIEW or in the folder specified in the MIGRATION LOG PATH (as shown in Figure 6.23).

tigrate Migrate			×
Impacted Objects			
List of Impacted Objects			
Obiect	Summary		
// book.models::AT PO HEADER	<ol> <li>Migrate objects to target package</li> </ol>		
book.models::AT_PO_ITEM	I Migrate objects to target package		
book.models::AN_PURCHASE_OVERVIEW	Migrate objects to target package		
<			>
	< <u>B</u> ack <u>N</u> ext > <u>F</u> inish	Cance	el

Figure 6.25 Selected Attribute and Analytic Views

There are three points to note about the migration of attribute and analytic views to equivalent calculation views:

- Filters are handled differently in SAP HANA SPS 11. You now use projection nodes with filter expressions. Column filters in the attribute and analytic views will be converted to additional projection nodes with filter expressions. (We'll discuss filter expressions in <u>Chapter 7</u>.)
- Calculation views do not currently have derived attribute view functionality. The migration tools will migrate each of the derived attribute views as a fully independent copy of the base attribute view. There is no dependency to a base (attribute) view once the derived attribute views have been migrated. If you only choose to migrate the derived attribute view, the base attribute view is not migrated, because the new migrated view is now fully independent and does not need the base attribute view any longer.
- Analytic views just need a single analytic privilege for the analytic views and any joined attribute views. After the migration, the calculation view of type cube with star join and any joined calculation views of type dimension will each need an analytic privilege. (We'll discuss analytic privileges in <u>Chapter 13</u>.)

## Important Terminology

In this chapter, the following terminology was used:

### Data sources

SAP HANA information views can use data from a wide variety of sources. The main data sources are as follows:

- Row-based and column-based tables
- ► SAP HANA information views in the SAP HANA system
- Decision tables
- SQL views
- Table functions
- Virtual tables with data from other databases
- ► CDS
- Data sources from another tenant in the SAP HANA system, if SAP HANA is set up as a multitenant database container (MDC) system

## Aggregation node

Used to calculate single summary values from a large list of values; supports sum, count, minimum, maximum, average, standard deviation, and variance.

## Join node

Used to get data sources into information views.

## Projection node

Used to remove some fields from a calculation view, rename fields, filter data, and add new calculated columns to a calculation view.

## Rank node

We can use rank nodes to create top N or bottom N lists of values to sort results.

## Star join node

Used to join a data foundation with fact tables to dimension views. The join types available in the star join node are the same as the normal joins in a join node. It's what they're joining that differs.

## Union node

Used to combine multiple data sources. You can make unions run even faster by using a pruning configuration table.

- Semantics node
   Used to give meaning to the data in information views.
- Calculation view of type dimension/attribute views
   You can use these information views for master data.
- Calculation view of type cube with star join/analytic view
   These views can be used for multidimensional reporting and data analysis purposes.

## Calculation view of type cube These views can be used for more powerful multidimensional reporting and data analysis purposes.

# Practice Questions

These practice questions will help you evaluate your understanding of the topics covered in this chapter. The questions shown are similar in nature to those found on the certification examination. Although none of these questions will be found on the exam itself, they will allow you to review your knowledge of the subject. Select the correct answers and then check the completeness of your answers in the Practice Question Answers and Explanations section. Remember that on the exam you must select all correct answers and only correct answers to receive credit for the question.

- 1. For what type of data are SAP HANA calculation views of type dimension used?
- □ A. Transactional data
- □ **B.** Master data
- $\Box$  **C.** Materialized cube data
- D. Calculated data

- 2. Which of the following node types can you use to build an analytic view? (There are 3 correct answers.)
- □ **A.** Star join node
- □ **B.** Aggregation node
- □ **C.** Data foundation node
- □ **D.** Semantics node
- □ **E.** Union node
- 3. Which types of calculation views can you create? (There are 2 correct answers.)
- □ **A.** Standard
- $\square$  **B.** Derived
- □ **C.** Materialized
- **D.** Time-based
- 4. In which direction do you build calculation views when including the source tables in join nodes?
- □ **A.** From the join nodes up to the semantic node
- □ **B.** From the semantic node up to the default node
- **C.** From the join node down to the default node
- **D.** From the semantic node down to the join nodes
- 5. You rename a field in the semantics node to add clarity for end users. What does SAP HANA use to keep track of what the original field name is?
- □ **A.** The label column property
- □ **B.** The mapping property
- □ **C.** The label property
- **D.** The name property
- 6. You want to use a field in a formula but do not want to expose the values of the original field to the end users. What do you do?
- $\Box$  **A.** Make the field a key column
- □ **B.** Change the data type of the field

- $\Box$  **C.** Rename the field
- $\Box$  **D.** Mark the field as hidden
- 7. Where can you set the default value for the SAP client for the entire calculation view?
- $\Box$  **A.** In the join node of the calculation view
- □ **B.** In the semantic layer of the calculation view
- $\Box$  **C.** In the default node of the calculation view
- $\Box$  **D.** In the Window menu of SAP HANA studio
- 8. True or False: When you mark a calculation view as deprecated, that view no longer works.
- $\Box$  **A.** True
- $\Box$  **B.** False
- 9. What node can you use to generate a column for use in sorting results?
- □ **A.** Aggregation node
- □ **B.** Projection node
- $\Box$  **C.** Rank node
- $\Box$  **D.** Union node
- 10. For what SQL keyword is the aggregation node the equivalent?
- □ A. ORDER BY
- □ **B.** GROUP BY
- □ C. DISTINCT
- $\Box$  **D.** UNIQUE
- 11. What is the default node for a calculation view of type cube?
- □ **A.** Aggregation node
- □ **B.** Projection node
- □ **C.** Star join node
- □ **D.** Join node
- 12. What node is used to link dimension views to a data foundation (fact tables)?
- □ **A.** Join node
- □ **B.** Projection node
- □ **C.** Union node
- D. Star join node
- 13. What data source is available for join nodes in calculation views?
- □ A. All procedures in the current SAP HANA system
- □ **B.** Scalar functions from all SAP HANA systems
- **C.** Calculation views from other tenants in an MDC system
- □ **D.** Web services from the Internet
- 14. What feature is similar between an attribute view and a calculation view of type dimension?
- □ A. Full outer join
- □ **B.** Fuzzy text search attributes
- □ **C.** Derived views
- □ **D.** Left outer join
- 15. Which join types are available in a join node of a calculation view? (There are 2 correct answers.)
- □ **A.** Referential joins
- □ **B.** Spatial joins
- □ **C.** Cross joins
- □ **D.** Temporal joins
- 16. What issue do you have to address after you have migrated your old views to calculation views?
- □ A. Change filters on table columns to filter expressions
- □ **B.** Unhide the hidden fields in the semantics node
- □ **C.** Manually migrate the base view for derived views
- **D.** Check the analytic privileges for star join situations

- 17. What node uses a special configuration table to optimize performance?
- □ **A.** Union node
- □ **B.** Aggregation node
- $\Box$  **C.** Join node
- D. Projection node
- 18. Which features are similar between an analytic view and a calculation view of type cube with star join? (There are 3 correct answers.)
- □ **A.** Fact tables
- □ **B.** Spatial joins
- □ **C.** Temporal joins
- □ **D.** Referential joins
- □ E. Star join nodes

# **Practice Question Answers and Explanations**

1. Correct answer: **B** 

You use SAP HANA calculation views of type dimension for master data.

Transactional data needs a calculation view marked as CUBE. SAP HANA does not store or use materialized cube data. You cannot calculate data when you only work with attributes; you need measures to do that.

2. Correct answers: A, C, D

You use a data foundation, a star join node, and a semantics node to build an analytic view. Aggregation nodes and union nodes are not available in analytic views.

3. Correct answers: A, D

You can create standard and time-based calculation views. Derived views are only available for attribute views. SAP HANA does not use materialized views.

4. Correct answer: A

You build calculation views (when including the source tables in join nodes) from the join nodes up to the semantic node. The semantic node is above the default node, which is above the join nodes. You always start from the bottom and work upwards.

5. Correct answer: **B** 

SAP HANA uses the mapping property to keep track of what the original field name is when you rename a field in the semantic node.

6. Correct answer: **D** 

Mark a field as hidden when you want to use a field in a formula, but don't want to expose the values of the original field to end users.

7. Correct answer: **B** 

You set the default value for the SAP client for the entire calculation view in the semantic layer of the calculation view. You cannot set properties for the entire view in the join or default nodes of the calculation view. The WINDOW menu of SAP HANA studio is used for user-specific system-wide settings, not for a specific calculation view.

8. Correct answer: **B** 

False. When you mark a calculation view as deprecated, that view will still work.

9. Correct answer: C

You use a rank node to generate a rank column for use in sorting results. Aggregation and projection nodes have calculated columns (which we'll discuss in <u>Chapter 7</u>), but not generated columns.

10. Correct answer: B

Aggregation nodes are equivalent to the GROUP BY keyword.

11. Correct answer: A

The default node for a calculation view of type cube is an aggregation node. A projection node is the default node of a calculation view of type dimension. A star join node is the default node of a calculation view of type cube with star join.

12. Correct answer: D

A star join node is used to link dimension views to a data foundation (fact tables).

13. Correct answer: C

Calculation views from other tenants in an MDC system are available as data sources for join nodes in calculation views.

Scalar functions do not return table result sets, and procedures do not have to generate any result sets. (For more information, see <u>Chapter 8</u>.)

14. Correct answer: D

An attribute view and a calculation view of type dimension both have left outer joins. Only calculation views of type dimension have full outer joins. Only attribute views have fuzzy text search attributes and derived views.

15. Correct answers: A, B

Referential joins and spatial joins are available in a join node of a calculation view. Temporal joins are only available in analytic views.

16. Correct answer: D

After you have migrated your old views to calculation views, you have to check the analytic privileges for star join situations. Revealing the hidden fields is done during the migration, not afterwards. The migration automatically changes filters on table columns to filter expressions. You do not have to manually migrate the base view of derived views.

17. Correct answer: A

Union nodes can use a special configuration table to optimize performance for union pruning.

18. Correct answers: A, D, E

An analytic view and a calculation view of type cube with star join both use fact tables, referential joins, and star join nodes. Only calculation views of type cube with star join have spatial joins. Only analytic views have temporal joins.

# Takeaway

You should now know how to create SAP HANA information views and when to create each type of calculation view based on your business requirements. You have learned how to add data sources, create joins, add nodes, and select output fields.

In <u>Table 6.1</u>, we define our different information views and provide a list of their individual features.

Calculation Views of Type Dimension	Calculation View of Type Cube with Star Join	Calculation View of Type Cube
<b>Purpose:</b> Create a dimen- sion for our analytic mod- eling needs	<b>Purpose:</b> Create a cube for our analytic requirements	<b>Purpose:</b> Create more advanced information models
<ul> <li>Replacing attribute views</li> <li>Treats all data as attributes</li> <li>Uses mostly joins</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Replacing analytic views</li> <li>Combines fact tables with dimensions</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Adds extra functionality like aggregations, joins, projections, ranking, and unions.</li> </ul>

 Table 6.1
 Information View Features

# Summary

You learned how to create calculation views, and add data sources, joins, nodes, and output columns. You added meaning to the output columns in the semantics node and set the properties for the view.

We explained when to use attribute and analytic views and how to migrate existing attribute and analytic views to equivalent calculation views.

In the next chapter, we'll discuss how to further enhance our information views with additional functionality, like filter expressions, calculated columns, currency conversions, and hierarchies.

# Advanced Information Modeling

### Techniques You'll Master

- Learn how to define calculated and restricted columns
- Examine filter operations and filter expressions
- Identify when to create variables and input parameters
- Understand currency and currency conversions
- Describe decision tables
- Know how to create hierarchies

In previous chapter we learned how to build SAP HANA information views. In this chapter, we will see how to enhance calculation views with additional functionality, including adding output fields, methods for filtering data, how to convert currencies, how to add business rules, and how to implement hierarchies.

# **Real-World Scenario**

You are working on an SAP HANA modeling project, and are asked to help with publishing the company's financial results for the year.

You copy some of the calculations views that you have created before, and start adding additional features to them. First, you filter the data to the last financial year, and to the required company code. You then implement currency conversions on all the financial transactions, so that the results can be published in a single currency.

The board members aren't sure if they want the results in US dollars, or in euros, so they ask you to give them a choice when they run their queries on the SAP HANA information views. They also ask you to create a dashboard for them, where they can drill down into the results. They want to see where there might be any missing data or issues.

In addition, the CFO wants to use this opportunity to run some what-if analysis scenarios on the data to see where he can improve the company's bottom-line for the new financial year.

Finally, you create an overview report for them, showing the last few years of financial results side-by-side.

# **Objectives of this Portion of the Test**

The purpose of this portion of the SAP HANA certification exam is to test your knowledge of SAP HANA modeling and information views, and how to enhance and refine these views with additional functionality.

The certification exam expects you to have a good understanding of the following topics:

- Calculated columns
- Restricted columns

- ► Filter operations
- Variables
- Input parameters
- Currency and currency conversions
- Decision tables
- Hierarchies

#### Note

This portion contributes up to 15% of the total certification exam score. This is larger than any other portion of the certification exam.

# **Key Concepts Refresher**

In the previous chapter, we saw how a generated rank column can be added to the list of output fields in a calculation view. In this chapter, we will learn about four more such additional output fields. We will see how to add calculated columns, restricted columns, counters, and currency conversion columns to the list of output fields in our calculation views.

In our discussions on these topics, see if you can identity which feature solves each problem described in the real-world scenario described above.

Let's start with the first of our eight topics on how to enhance our SAP HANA information views.

#### **Calculated Columns**

Up to this point, we have created information views using available data sources. However, quite often, we'll want SAP HANA to do some calculations for us on that data to, for example, calculate the sales tax on a transaction.

In the past, this was usually done using reporting tools. Now, SAP HANA has all the data available, and can do the calculations without having to send all the data to the reporting tool. It does the calculations faster than reporting tools, and sends only the results to reporting tools, saving calculation time, bandwidth, and network time.

<u>Figure 7.1</u> illustrates how calculated columns work. When we create *calculated columns* in SAP HANA, it adds additional output columns to our information views. The calculated results are displayed in these calculated columns.

				Calculated	d columns
	Tal	5% discount, but 10% if more than 100 items	15% Sales Tax (VAT)		
ltem	Quantity	Price	Total	Discount	Sales Tax (VAT)
Device	2	\$200	\$400	\$380	\$57
Plug	500	\$5	\$2500	\$2250	\$338
Cable	200	\$10	\$2000	\$1800	\$270
Connector	7	\$20	\$140	\$133	\$20
Adapter	3	\$50	\$150	\$143	\$21

#### Figure 7.1 Calculated Columns Added as Additional Output

On the left side of <u>Figure 7.1</u> is our source data from a table. We added two calculated columns on the right. The first calculated column calculates discounts and the second one calculates the sales tax.

# Note

The calculated columns are part of the information view. The results are not stored anywhere, but are calculated and displayed each time the view is called.

Calculated columns are available in the join, star join, projection, and aggregation nodes. They are not available in the rank and union nodes.

### **Creating Calculated Columns**

In the SAP HANA studio, we create CALCULATED COLUMNS in the OUTPUT area. In the context menu of the CALCULATED COLUMNS, we select the NEW option, as shown in Figure 7.2.

In the CREATE A CALCULATED COLUMN dialog screen, shown in <u>Figure 7.3</u>, we first specify the name and data type of the calculated column.



#### Figure 7.2 Create a New Calculated Column in the Output Area

Calculate	ed Column								×
reate a C Calculated	Calculated	d Column used to derive some meani	ngful inform	ation in th	e form of co	olumns, from	n existing columns.		
Name:*	DEMO_CA	LC_COL							
Data Type:	ta Type: DECIMAL V Length: 15 Scale: 2								
Expression	Expression								
Express	sion Editor								
Valid	Validate Syntax     Language: Column Engine      Column Engine     SQL								
if("Q	UANTITY"	>100, "NETAMOUNT"*0.	95, "NETAÞ	(OUNT ")			SQL	gine	
if("Q	QUANTITY"	>100, "NETAMOUNI"*0.	95, "NETAN Operators	(OUNT ")		_	SQL	gine	
if("Q Element	QUANTITY" Its r pattern	>100, "NETAMOUNT"*0. @+ =†	95, "NETAN Operators	10UNT ")		**	SQL fx Functions Filter pattern		
if("Q Element ▼ Filter ▼ @ C	uANTITY" Its r pattern Columns PURCHA B CPOSSA	>100, "NETAMOUNT""0.	95, "NETAN Operators + /	10UNT ")	*	** )	fx Functions     Filter pattern     Conversion Functions     String Functions     Conversion Functions	o+ ot	
if("Q Elemen ♥ Filter ♥ @ (	UANTITY" ts r pattern Columns PURCHA GROSSA NETAMO	>100, "NETAMOUNT ""0.	95, "NETAN Operators + /	10UNT ")	*	**	fx     Functions       Y     Filter pattern       >     Conversion Functions       >     String Functions       >     Mathematical Functions       >     Mathematical Functions	o₊ o†	
if("Q Elemen ♥ Filter ♥ @ C	ts r pattern Columns GROSSA GROSSA NETAMO TAXAMO INVOICI	>100, "NETAMOUNT""0.	95, "NETAN Operators + / = >=	10UNT")	× ( > isNull	** ) < not	fx     Functions       Y     Filter pattern       >     Conversion Functions       >     String Functions       >     Date Functions       >     Mathematical Functions       >     Mathematical Structures       >     Mathematical Structures       >     Mathematical Structures	o+ o†	
if("Q Element ▼ Filter ▼ @ C	UANTITY" its r pattern Columns PURCHA GROSSA NETAMO TAXAMO INVOICIN Producti QUANTIT	>100, "NETAMOUNT ""0.	95, "NETAN Operators + / = and	10UNT") - % != <= or	* ( ( ) isNull in	<pre>** } contemporation reaction react</pre>	fx     Functions       Y     Filter pattern       >     Conversion Functions       >     Mathematical Functions       >     Mathematical Functions       >     Mathematical Functions       >     Misc Functions       fx     ase()       fx     if()       fx     in()	o+ o†	
if("Q Element ▼ Filter ▼ © C	UANTITY" its r pattern Columns PURCHA GROSSA GROSSA NETAMO TAXAMO FINVOICII FINVOICII OPIOUCH QUANTIT QUANTIT DFIVFR	>100, "NETAMOUNT ""0.	95, "NETAN Operators + / >= and	(OUNT ")	* ( > isNull in	<ul> <li>**</li> <li>)</li> <li>&lt;</li> <li>met</li> <li>match</li> </ul>	fx     Functions       Y     Filter pattern       >     Conversion Functions       >     String Functions       >     Mathematical Functions       >     Date Functions       Y     Misc Functions       fx     if0       fx     if0       fx     in0       fx     issuell0	0+ Ot	

Figure 7.3 Use the Expression Editor to Create the Formula for Calculated Columns

The EXPRESSION EDITOR takes up the rest of the space in the dialog screen. The focus is the formula (called the expression) in the middle.

The three areas at the bottom help us to create the expression:

► Elements

The ELEMENTS area contains all available columns, previously created calculated columns, and input parameters (see the Input Parameters section). We can build our new calculated column on previous calculations, to build up more complex calculations.

Operators

The OPERATORS area contains operators, for example, for adding, multiplying, comparing, or combining columns.

► FUNCTIONS

The FUNCTIONS area contain various useful functions, like converting data types, working with strings, doing the basic mathematical calculations, and working with dates. We also have some extra functions, for example the if() function for if-then-else calculations.

All the examples here were using measures. However, we can also create calculated columns for attributes as well. The functions allow us to work with strings and dates as well, so we can create expressions using attributes.

The LANGUAGE selection allows us to either use a normal expression, which SAP HANA will translate to SQL for us, or directly use SQL syntax.



Tip

We recommend that you use the mouse to click on the various components. You can type the expression directly in the text area, but we found that many people either mistype a column name, or forget that SAP HANA column names can be case-sensitive. By using the mouse, SAP HANA studio assists you with the typing.

The Expression Editor also helps us with on-the-fly syntax checking. In <u>Figure</u> <u>7.4</u>, we see an example of this. In the top example, the Expression Editor highlights the error, even with a tooltip. When we inserted the missing ">" sign, the Expression Editor displays the formula in green text to show that it contains no errors.

With most, if not all, of the enhanced features we discuss in this chapter, we have the ability to add comments. In Figure 7.4 we commented what the formula

meant. This will remind us later what we did, or inform our team members why we wrote the expression the way we did.

Expression Editor	
🥑 Validate Syntax	Language: Column Engine 🗸
<pre>if("QUANTITY" 100, "NETAMOUNT"*0.95, "NETAMOUNT")</pre>	
Expression Editor	
✓ Validate Syntax	Language: Column Engine 🗸
<pre>if("QUANTITY"&gt;100, "NETAMOUNT"*0.95, "NETAMOUNT")</pre>	
Comments for: 🚽 DEMO_CALC_COL	x
If the customer orders more then 100 items, give a 5% discount	

Figure 7.4 On-the-Fly Syntax Checking in the Expression Editor

#### **Calculate before Aggregation in Analytic Views**

In analytic views we have an additional flag (tick box) in the Expression Editor called CALCULATE BEFORE AGGREGATION, as shown in <u>Figure 7.5</u>. The CALCULATE BEFORE AGGREGATION flag is only applicable for measures, and by default this is switched off.

As you know, one of our main modeling rules is "Calculate as late as possible." With addition and subtraction we can delay the calculations to as late as possible. There are cases, for example, with multiplication and division, where we have to do calculations earlier than normal. An example would be when we want to aggregate totals for quantities and price per unit. If we add all the prices first, and all the prices per unit, and then multiply these two sums, we will get totally inaccurate results. In this case we have to do the quantity multiplied by price per unit calculations first for each record, and then we can add up the total costs. To do this, we need to manually enable the CALCULATE BEFORE AGGREGATION flag under the CLIENT AGGREGATION field (see Figure 7.5).

👼 Calculated Colum	n	—		Х
Create a Calcula	ted Column			
Calculated columns	are used to derive some meaningful information in the form of columns, from existing columns.			
Name:*	DEMO_ANALYTIC_VIEW_CALC_COL			^
Label:	Demo of calculated column in an analytic view			
Data Type:	DECIMAL V Length: 15 Scale: 2			<u> </u>
Column Type:	Measure			~
Client Aggregation:	Formula			~
Hidden	Calculate Before Aggregation			
Expression Sema	ntics			
Expression Edito	r			
🤣 Validate Synta	x Language: Colu	mn Engir	ne ~	
if("QUANTIT	Colu Y">100, "NETAMOUNT" * 0.95, "NETAMOUNT")	mn Engin	ie	

#### Figure 7.5 Calculate Before Aggregation Flag

The CALCULATE BEFORE AGGREGATION flag is only in the Expression Editor for analytic views. In calculation views, SAP HANA knows when to do the calculations earlier for accuracy, and does not require us to set a flag.

#### Counters

In aggregation and star join nodes we sometimes want to know how many times in the result set a certain item occurs for an attribute. For example, we might want to know how many unique items were sold in each shop to find the shops with the largest variety. We do this using *counters*.

The NEW COUNTER option is found in the calculated column's context menu in the OUTPUT area of aggregation and star join nodes (see <u>Figure 7.6</u>). In our example, we will put the counter on items sold.

We can also use multiple columns to expand our example to add item categories, for example, to show which shop had the largest variety of items for meats, the largest variety of items for the bakery section, etc.

Output				1	
x 🔺 🔻 🛨 🍠	÷ •		⊕∔ ⊡†		
🗸 🗁 Columns					
PURCHAS	EORDERID: Pro	jection_1.PURCHASEORDER	ID		
- GROSSAN	IOUNT: Project	ion_1.GROSSAMOUNT			
···· NETAMOU	INT: Projection_	1.NETAMOUNT			
	JNT: Projection_	1.TAXAMOUNT			
INVOICIN	GSTATUS: Proje	ection_1.INVOICINGSTATUS			
ProductNa	ame: Projection	1.ProductName			
QUANTITY	Projection_1.0	QUANTITY			
DELIVERY	DATE: Projection	1_1.DELIVERYDATE			
DEMO_CA	LC_COL: Project	ION_I.DEMO_CALC_COL			
Calculated Co Destructed Col	New Cal	ulated Column			
Restricted Col	New Calc	ulated Column			
input Parame	New Cou	nter			
	Paste				
- Kounter					
Create a Cou	inter				
Counters are u	sed to obtain th	e count of distinct values fo	r given set o	f attribute	5.
		[			
Name:^		DEMO_COUNTER			
Label:		Demo for creating counter			~
Column Type:		Measure			
Exception Aga	regation Type:	COUNT DISTINCT			$\sim$
Hidden					
Counter					
Counter					
Colu	mn				Add
🔰 🖡 P	roductName				Parmana
<cli< th=""><th>ck to add &gt;</th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th>Kelliove</th></cli<>	ck to add >				Kelliove
? 📘			Ok	C I	Cancel

Figure 7.6 Create a New Counter

### **Restricted Columns**

The easiest way to explain *restricted columns* is to think of a reporting requirement that you frequently encounter. For example, let's say we have a website where we work with the data of who visited the website. We use a view like the one shown in <u>Figure 7.7</u>. Our data from the source table is in the two columns on the left. We can see how many users connected with which type of device, organized per row.

We would like our report to be like the bottom right of the screen in <u>Figure 7.7</u>, where we have a column for each device, with the total number of users for each

device. You might know this as a pivot table. We already saw in <u>Chapter 4</u> that we could use a union with constant values to achieve a similar result.

We can also achieve this by creating a restricted column for each device. This adds a new additional output column to our view. When we create a restricted column for the mobile phones, we *restrict* our column to only show mobile phone data. Everything else in that column is NULL. When we now aggregate the restricted column, we get the total number of users visiting the website on mobile phones. We create a restricted field for each device to create our report.

Because we need aggregation for this to work properly, restricted columns are only available in the aggregation and star join nodes.

Та	ble		Restricted	d columns			
Device	Number of users	Mobile phone	Tablet	Laptop	Desktop		
Mobile phone	20	20					
Tablet	10		10				
Desktop	10				10		
Mobile phone	10	10					
Mobile phone	40	40					
Laptop	20			20			
Tablet	20		20				
Laptop	30			30			
Mobile phone	50	50					
Mobile phone	40	40					
Laptop	20			20			
Desktop	20				20		
			,	r			
		Aggregated results					
		Mobile phone	Tablet	Laptop	Desktop		
		160	30	70	30		

#### Figure 7.7 Creating Four Restricted Columns and Aggregating the Result Sets

#### Note

We create restricted columns on attributes. For example, it doesn't make sense to create a REPORTING column with a heading of '25' (measure). However, a MOBILE PHONE column (attribute) provides more useful information.

#### **Creating Restricted Columns**

Creating a restricted column is similar to creating a calculated column. In the context menu, as shown in Figure 7.8, we choose the NEW option.



Figure 7.8 Create a Restricted Column

In the dialog screen for creating the restricted column, we specify the name of the restricted column and what data we want to display in the column.

In the RESTRICTIONS area, we can add one or more restrictions, for example, the year has to be 2016, the device has to be a mobile phone, or, as shown in <u>Figure 7.9</u>, if we only want to see the financial information for invoices.

If we add multiple restrictions, SAP HANA automatically creates the relevant AND and OR operators. For example if we have two restriction for the year 2015 and 2016, the Expression Editor will use year = 2015 OR year = 2016.

When we enter a value, like 2016 for the year, we can ask the Expression Editor to give us a list of existing values currently stored in the system. In Figure 7.10 we asked for a list of invoice statuses. In the list, we see I for Invoices, and D for Delivery notes. This popup list is called the *value help* list. You will find these value help lists in all the modeling screens.

In the restricted column creation dialog, in the RESTRICTIONS area, we can choose to use an EXPRESSION rather than specify individual COLUMN values. We can then use the Expression Editor to generate the relevant portion of the SQL WHERE statement directly.

盾 Edit R	estricted Column			_		×
Edit Res	stricted Column Definition					
Restricte	d Columns are used to filter the val	ue based on the user	defined rules	on the attribute values		
Name:*	DEMO_RESTRICTED_COLUMN					
Label:	Demonstrate a restricted column					^
						$\sim$
Column:*	NETAMOUNT					¥
Hidden						
Restrictio	ins					
Colu	mn 🔘 Expression					
Colur	nn	Operator	Value	Include	Add	b
INVO	CINGSTATUS	Equal	1		Dele	te
<click< td=""><td>c to add &gt;</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td></click<>	c to add >					
?				ОК	Cancel	

#### Figure 7.9 Create a Restricted Column for the Net Amount of Invoices

🎼 Val	ue Help Dialog X
Туре:	Fixed ~
	Find
	D
	1
	Value:
	OK Cancel

#### Figure 7.10 Choosing a Restriction Value from a Predefined List of Values

If you first filled in the values in the COLUMN view, and then change to the EXPRESSION view, the Expression Editor automatically convert this for you, as shown in Figure 7.11.

tedit Re	estricted Column		×
Edit Res	tricted Column Definition		
Restricted	I Columns are used to filter the value based on the user defined rules on the attribute value	s	
Name:*	DEMO_RESTRICTED_COLUMN		
Label:	Demonstrate a restricted column		$\hat{}$
Column:*	NETAMOUNT		~
Hidden			
Restrictio	ns nn ®Expression		
Expres	ssion Editor		
	Language: SQL	~	
("1	NVOICINGSTATUS" = 'I')		
? 🗖	ОК	Cancel	

Figure 7.11 Use the Expression Editor to Create Restrictions on Restricted Columns

#### **Creating Restricted Columns Using Calculated Columns**

You can also create a restricted column using a calculated column. Just use the expression if("Device"='Mobile phone', "Number of users", NULL). The if() function in the Expression Editor works similarly as the IF function in Microsoft Excel. If the condition (first part with the equal sign) is true, then show the second part, otherwise show the last part.

Just like with a calculated column, a restricted column does not store data. Each time an information view is used, the restricted column is created and aggregated.



A restricted column differs from a filter or a SQL WHERE condition.

If you filter on the year 2016, all the data in the view will be trimmed to only show the data for 2016. When you create a restricted column for the year 2016, only the data in that column is trimmed for 2016.

# Filters

Sometimes we do not want to show all the data from a specific table. For example, we might only want to show data for the year 2016. In this case, we can apply a *filter*. Filters restrict the data for the entire data source.

When we apply filters, SAP HANA can work a lot faster because it doesn't have to work with/sift through all the data. In the SCENARIO area, select the projection node of your view. Then, in the DETAILS area, select the data source, select the field, and right-click for the context menu. From the context menu, select APPLY FILTER, as shown in Figure 7.12.

In the popup dialog box, we can select the OPERATOR from the dropdown. Normally, it would be EQUAL, but there is a whole list of other operators available in the dropdown list. We then add the filter value by either selecting it from the dropdown or typing it in.

When the filter has been applied, you will see a FILTER icon  $\gamma$  next to the field name in the table.



Figure 7.12 Apply a Filter to a Field in the Projection Node

### **Filter Expressions**

In the OUTPUT area, we also see a FILTER icon  $\sqrt{2}$  next to the output field, as shown in <u>Figure 7.13</u>. At the bottom of the OUTPUT area we find the filter EXPRESSION option.



Figure 7.13 Open Filter Expression Dialog from the Output Area

When we open the filter expression, we see the dialog screen shown in <u>Figure</u> <u>7.14</u>. Just as with the Expression Editor for calculated and restricted columns, we can set the value for the columns, or use the SQL syntax.

Filters and filter expressions are only available in projection nodes.

Filter Expression	— 🗆 X
Edit Filter Expression for Projection	n_1
Filters applied on the columns are executed operations defined in a view.	after performing all the
Expression Editor	
_/ Edit	Language: SQL 🗸 🗸
("QUANTITY" >100)	Column Engine SQL
Elements	Operators
▼ Filter pattern	+ - * *
> 🗁 Columns Calculated Columns	
🗁 Input Parameters	
	>= <= isNull not
	and or in match
	OK Cancel

Figure 7.14 Edit a Filter Expression.

#### **Filtering for SAP Clients**

Filtering of data can be implemented more widely than the examples we have just seen. In <u>Chapter 5</u>, of the Session Client section, we already discussed how

to set the SAP HANA studio preferences to only show data coming from an SAP ERP system for a specific SAP client. In <u>Chapter 6</u>, of the Semantics Node section, we saw how to set an option for filtering to an SAP client in the semantics node. <u>Chapter 8</u> and <u>Chapter 13</u> also provide further details on filtering for an SAP client.

### **Domain Fix Values**

SAP ERP uses the ABAP programming language, which has some powerful data dictionary features. In ABAP, we can define re-usable data elements (like data types). We can use these data elements in our table definitions.

Sometime we want these data elements to only allow a range of values. We define a domain with the range of values, and use this domain with the data element. In all the tables where that specific data element is used, the users can now only enter values that are in the specified range.

Instead of a range, we can also specify fixed values for the domain. This is known as the *domain fix values*. These are values that will not change, and the users can only choose from the available list when they enter data into the fields.

Let's look at some examples: Maybe the users need to enter a gender. The domain values are fixed to *male* and *female*. This is very similar to the value help shown in <u>Figure 7.10</u>. Another example could be the possible statuses of a sales order. The sales order statuses could be *quoted*, *sold*, *delivered*, *invoiced*, and *paid*.

The lists of fixed values are stored in the DD07L and DD07T tables in the SAP ERP system. Because these tables are so valuable for business systems, many times we replicate (or import) these tables to SAP HANA. We can then use these values in SAP HANA for the value help dialog screens, similar to Figure 7.10.

These domain fixed values can now also be used to filter business data, for example we can filter the sales data to the domain fixed value of *paid* to see only the sales that are already paid.

# Variables

In the previous section, we looked at filtering. These filters were all static, in the sense that we could not change them once we specified them. Each time you query the view, the same filters are used.

Frequently, however, we'll want the system to ask us at runtime what we would like to filter on. Instead of always filtering the view on the year 2016, we can specify which year's data we want to see. If we query the view from a reporting tool, we even expect the reporting tool to pop up a dialog box and ask us what we would like to filter on.

This dynamic type of filtering is done with variables.

We define variables in the SEMANTICS node of a calculation view. In <u>Chapter 6</u>, we discussed the first two tabs available in the SEMANTICS node. Now we will look at one of the remaining two tabs, called PARAMETERS/VARIABLES.

In <u>Figure 7.15</u> we see the SEMANTICS node. In the PARAMETERS/VARIABLES tab, we select the CREATE VARIABLE option by clicking the plus icon  $\frac{1}{2}$  to reveal the drop-down menu.

Details					
Columns(11) View Prop	erties Hierarchies Para	ameters/Variables(1)			
		📮 🖻 🔺 🔻	r 📴 🔻	+ • 🥒 🗙	
Name	Label	Value Help Column	Conver	🎽 Create Varia	able
DEMO_VARIABLE	Demonstration for			(🍐) Create Inpu	it Parameter

Figure 7.15 Create a Variable in the Semantics Node

In the CREATE A VARIABLE dialog screen (<u>Figure 7.16</u>) we start by specifying the NAME of the variable.

We have to specify the ATTRIBUTE on which we want to create our variable. This is the field on which we want to implement our "dynamic filter."

In the SELECTION TYPE we can choose what type of variable we want to create. There are three types of variables:

- SINGLE VALUE The variable only asks one (single) value, for example, the year is 2016.
- INTERVAL

The variable asks for from and to values, for example, the years from 2012 to 2015.

RANGE

The variable asks a single value, but combines it with another operator, for example, the year is greater and equal to 2012.

🎼 New Variable				— 🗆	×
Create a Variable					
Variables are used as an expl view data, based on attribut	licit SQL filter dire e column values	ective for view specified in va	consumers to filte ariable UI prompt o	er the of a Bl	
Name:*	DEMO_VARIABI	LE			
Label:	Demonstration	for creating a	variable		~
					~
View/Table for value help:*	book.models::D	EMO_CHAP7	(Current View)		
Attribute:*	INVOICINGSTA	TUS			~
Hierarchy:	<none></none>				~
Selection Type:	Single Value 🗸	Multiple	Entries 🗌 Is Man	datory	
Default Value	Single Value				
Туре С	Range	From	То	Add	
Constant E	qual	I		Remove	
				Remove	
Apply the variable filter to	,				
Attributes				Add	
INVOICINGSTATUS				Remove	
<click add="" to=""></click>					
Manage Mannings					
manage mappings					
(?)			ОК	Cancel	

Figure 7.16 Create a Variable

We can specify a DEFAULT VALUE. If the user selects CANCEL or presses Esc in the VALUE HELP DIALOG, like the one in <u>Figure 7.18</u>, the variable will then use this default value.

When the MULTIPLE ENTRIES flag is enabled, we can use the Ctrl key when selecting (multiple) entries. We can select, for example, the years 2011, 2014, and 2015 from the value help dialog.

By default the variable uses the view or table that it is based on to display a list of available values in the value help dialog. Changing the VIEW/TABLE FOR VALUE HELP option allows us to specify a different view or table for the list of available values in the value help dialog. Ideally, the data source we specify should be in sync with the view we are using the variable on, else the users might choose a value from value help dialog which is not available in the current view, and therefore will not be shown any information. The reason we do this is to ensure we have consistent value help lists for all our different views by specifying the same value help data source for all the views. Sometimes this can also help to speed up the display of the value help.

With the HIERARCHY option we can link a hierarchy to our variable. Users can then drill down using this hierarchy when they want to select a value from the value help dialog. We will learn to set up hierarchies later in this chapter.

Once we have created the variable, it will show up in the COLUMNS tab of the SEMANTICS node, next to the name of the attribute we selected. You can see an example in Figure 7.17.

etails			1				
Columns(	(11) Vi	ew Properties Hiera	archies Parame	eters/Variables(2)			
Local							
Show:	All	~		Ļ٦ [	<b></b>	1 🖻 💼 🥙 🔺 🔻	• 🥖 🚥 📑
Туре	Key	Name		Label	Aggregation	Variable	Semant
1		RB PURCHASEOR	DERID	PURCHASEORDERID		Y	
-		12 GROSSAMOUN	T	GROSSAMOUNT	Sum		
-		12 NETAMOUNT		NETAMOUNT	Sum		
-		12 TAXAMOUNT		TAXAMOUNT	Sum		
1		RB INVOICINGSTA	TUS	INVOICINGSTATUS		Y DEMO_VARIAB	LE
1		RB ProductName		TEXT		7	
8980		12 QUANTITY		QUANTITY	Sum		
1		B DELIVERYDATE		DELIVERYDATE		<b>Y</b>	
9000 C		12 DEMO_CALC_0	COL	DEMO_CALC_COL	Sum		
		12 DEMO_COUNT	FER	Demo for creating c	Count Distinct		
<b></b>		12 DEMO_RESTRI	CTED_COLU	Demonstrate a restri	Sum		
<							2

Figure 7.17 Variable Shown in the Columns Tab of the Semantics Node

When we preview our calculation view, a VARIABLE/INPUT PARAMETERS VALUES dialog screen will appear in the SAP HANA studio. We have to supply these values before SAP will run our view, and return the results.

When we select the ellipsis (...) menu button, the VALUE HELP DIALOG will appear with a list of available values that we can choose from (see Figure 7.18).

Variable/Input Parameter	Operator	From	То	Value Type	Selection Type
DEMO_VARIABLE	Equal	2014-12-0		Attribute Value	Single Value
		Talue Hel	p Dialog		×
					Find
		2014-12-04			
		Value: 2014	-12-04		

Figure 7.18 Variable Value Help Dialog

### **Input Parameters**

*Input parameters* are very similar to variables. However, while variables are specifically created for "dynamic filtering," input parameters are more generic. For example, we can use them in formulas or expressions.

Let's look at an example: An outstanding payments report asks you for how many months outstanding you want to see the results. This time period can then be used in a calculated column's expression to calculate the results we asked for. The same report can be used by the debt collecting department for payments outstanding longer than two months, while the legal department will ask for payments outstanding longer than six months.

Input parameters are created in the semantics node (see <u>Figure 7.19</u>). We can also create input parameters in all the nodes types, except in a union node.

Details						
Columns(11) View Properti	es Hierarchies Para	meters/Variables(2)				
		■ 🗟 🔺	"¦:: ▼	٠	• 🥒 🗙	
Name	Label	Value Help Column	Conve		Create Varia	able
DEMO_VARIABLE	Demonstration			(🛆)	Create Inpu	t Parameter
(A) DEMO_INPUT_PARAM	Demonstration					1

Figure 7.19 Create an Input Parameter

The CREATE AN INPUT PARAMETER dialog screen is shown in <u>Figure 7.20</u>. The various dropdown menu options are shown on the right side of the screen.

We start with the NAME of the input parameter. The PARAMETER TYPE specifies what type of data we expect to use this input parameter for.

There are five types of input parameters we can create:

DIRECT

The end users directly type in the value. We can specify the DATA TYPE of the expected value. There are three data types we can use for DIRECT, namely CURRENCY, UNIT OF MEASURE, and DATE.

► COLUMN

The end users can choose a value from all the possible values in a specified column in the current view.

- DERIVED FROM TABLE
   The end users can choose a value from data in another table.
- STATIC LIST
   The end users can choose a value from a pre-defined (static) list of values.
- DERIVED FROM PROCEDURE/SCALAR FUNCTION The end users can choose a value from a list of values generated by a scalar function or a procedure.

The DEFAULT VALUE can be typed in as a single value, or it can be an expression. Similar to variables, if the user selects CANCEL or presses *Esc* in the value help dialog, the input parameter will use this default value.

Mew Input Para	ameter			-		×	
Create an Inpu	t Parameter						
Input parameters currency conversi	are used to parameter ion, calculated columr	ize the view exe ns or inner filters	ution such as Parameter va	s, to paramete alues may also	ize be		
Name:*	DEMO_INPUT_PARA	М					Direct ~
Label:	Demonstration for cr	reating an input	parameter			^	Direct Column
						$\vee$	Derived From Table
Parameter Type:	Direct		~ M	lultiple Entries	Is Manda	atory	Derived From Procedure/Scalar Function
Default Value							
Туре		Value			Ad	d	Туре
Constant		EUR			Remo	ove	Constant V
							Constant
							Expression
Direct	C						
Semantic Type:	Currency			<b>_</b>		~	
Data Type:*	VARCHAR	Length: >		Scale:			
Conversion Eur	octions						Unit of Measure Date
Internal To Exter	rnal Conversion Functi	ion:				×	
External To Inter	rnal Conversion Functi	ion:				×	
Preserve Ord	ler						
Manage Ma	ppings						
? 📘				ОК	Cance	el	

Figure 7.20 Create an Input Parameter with the Dropdown Menu Options

In <u>Figure 7.20</u>, we created an input parameter called DEMO\_INPUT\_PARAM. We can now use this input parameter, for example, in a calculated column. When we use the input parameter in an expression, we add a \$\$ at the start and end of the name of the input parameter. This makes it very clear that we are referring to an input parameter. The name of our input parameter will become \$\$DEMO\_INPUT\_ PARAM\$\$.

In Figure 7.21 we use the input parameter in an expression. The expression,

```
daysbetween("DELIVERYDATE", $$DEMO_INPUT_PARAM$$)
```

calculates the number of days between the date that the end user supplies and the delivery date.

In this case, the input parameter has a PARAMETER TYPE of DIRECT, and a DATA TYPE of DATE.

📠 Calculated Colum	in	- 0	×
Create a Calcula Calculated columns	ted Column are used to derive some meani	ingful information in the form of columns, from existing columns.	-
Name:* Label:	DEMO_USE_INPUT_PARAM	Parameter	]
Data Type:	DATE	✓ Length: Scale:	]
Column Type:	Attribute	~	
Hidden	Enable client side aggregat	tion <sup>©</sup>	
Expression Seman Expression Edito	ntics r x	Language: Column Engine V	
daysbetween(	"DELIVERYDATE",'\$\$DE	MO_INFUT_FARAM\$\$') > 90	
Elements		Operators fx Functions	
<ul> <li>♥ Filter pattern</li> <li>&gt; Columns</li> <li>⇒ Calculater</li> <li>&gt; ⇒ Restricted</li> <li>&gt; ⇒ Input Para</li> <li>(a) DEMO</li> </ul>	⊕+ ⊖† Columns Columns meters _INPUT_PARAM	+-*/%()=!=><>=isNullandorinmatch	~
? 📘		OK Cancel	

Figure 7.21 Use an Input Parameter in an Expression for a Calculated Column

#### Тір

We have *\$CLIENT\$* and *\$LANGUAGE\$* built into SAP HANA. These do not ask for values at runtime, but instead give the SAP client number filter currently in use, and the log-on language of the end user.

When we preview the calculation view in SAP HANA studio, and the input parameter has a DATA TYPE of DATE, a calendar is displayed where you can choose the date you want (see Figure 7.22).

Variable/Input Parameter	Operator				
	operator	From	То	Value Type	Selection Type
(A) DEMO_INPUT_PARAM	Equal			Date	Single Value
		🕤 Choose a Date	:		×
		Sun 26 3 10 17 24 31	Mon         Tue         We           27         28         25           4         5         6           11         12         13           18         19         20           25         26         27           1         2         3	d Thu Fri Sat 30 1 2 7 8 9 14 15 16 0 21 22 23 7 28 29 30 4 5 6 OK	Cancel

Figure 7.22 Date Input Parameter

### Currency

SAP is well-known for its business systems. An important part of financial and business information models is their ability to work with *currencies*.

In <u>Figure 7.23</u> we can see the OUTPUT area of a calculation view. We have a few output fields that are currency fields, for example, GROSSAMOUNT, NETA-MOUNT, and TAXAMOUNT.

When we look at the PROPERTIES of these fields, they are treated as numeric fields (measures). We can improve on that by changing the Semantic Type property to Amount with Currency Code.

When we change the SEMANTIC TYPE of a field to currency, an ASSIGN SEMANTICS dialog screen like Figure 7.24 appears.



Figure 7.23 Assign an Output Field to the Semantic Type "Amount with Currency Code"

Most of this dialog screen is focused on *currency conversion*. Via the Internet, even small companies can do business internationally. Or a company can buy parts from different suppliers world-wide. Their taxes and financial reporting however happen in their home country.

When converting from one currency to another, we have a *source currency* and a *target currency*. Something else as equally important is the date, because exchange rates fluctuate all the time

But what date do we use? Do we use the date of the quote, the date of the invoice, the date of the delivery, the date the customer paid, the end of that month, or the financial year-end? All of the mentioned dates are valid. It depends on the business requirements.

In SAP systems, the exchange rate data gets stored in some tables prefixed with the TCUR name. There are many programs from banks and other financial institutions that help update the TCUR tables in SAP systems. These TCUR tables are

used by the SAP business systems for currency conversions. SAP HANA also knows how to use the TCUR tables. You can easily get a copy of these tables by installing the SHINE package. It will create these TCUR tables for you to demonstrate currency conversions in its information models.

By default, most of the options in the ASSIGN SEMANTICS dialog screen of <u>Figure</u> <u>7.24</u> are unavailable. Enabling the CONVERSION flag opens up the entire dialog screen.

Semantics for NETAMOUNT – 🗆 X
Assign Semantics
Assign a suitable semantic type and maintain additional properties depending on the chosen semantic type
Semantic Type: Amount with Currency Code  V
Currency: <sup>8</sup> <sup>\$</sup> EUR
Decimal shift Conversion Rounding Decimal shift back
Conversion
Client for currency conversion: SAP_TAINA_DEINO
Source Currency:* st EUR
Target Currency:* (À) DEMO_INPUT_PARAM
Exchange Type:* 🔉 M
Conversion Date:* 📌 20160704
Exchange Rate: <sup>®</sup>
Data Type:*® DECIMAL V Length: 15 Scale: 2
Generate result currency column: NETAMOUNT_CURRENCY
Upon Conversion Failure: Fail
Patt           Set to NULL           Ignore           OK           Cancel

Figure 7.24 Output Field Setup for Currency Conversion

Let's go through some of the options in this dialog screen to learn more about currency fields and currency conversions in SAP HANA:

CURRENCY

We can specify in what currency the current field is.

Decimal Shift

Some currencies require more than two decimal places. This is indicated with this flag.

### ► DECIMAL SHIFT BACK

ABAP programs automatically do a decimal shift. When these ABAP programs work with SAP HANA information views, they might receive currency data from SAP HANA that has already been shifted, and a double decimal shift occurs. In those cases, we need to set this flag to "undo" the extra DECIMAL SHIFT.

Some of the currency conversion-specific options in the dialog screen include:

- SCHEMA FOR CURRENCY CONVERSION You have to specify in which schema the SAP HANA system can find the TCUR tables. SHINE automatically installs these tables in the SAP\_HANA\_DEMO schema.
- SOURCE CURRENCY and TARGET CURRENCY We can specify the specific currencies codes, for example, EUR for euros and USD for United States dollars, directly in these fields. There are two other options as well:
  - COLUMN: If we are storing multiple currencies in the same column, we will have another column that specifies what currency each record is in. We can tell SAP HANA to read the currency codes from that column, and automatically convert each of the individual records.
  - INPUT PARAMETERS: We can choose the currency code to use for the currency conversion at runtime using an input parameter. We can get a financial report to ask an end user if they want the report in euros or dollars, or pick any currency from the list of available currency codes in the value help dialog.

We have to specify the input parameter as a VARCHAR data type with a length of 5 (see Figure 7.20 for an example).

CONVERSION DATE

The date of the conversion is used to read the exchange rate information for that date from the TCUR tables.

► GENERATE RESULT CURRENCY COLUMN The converted currency value is shown in a new additional output column with the specified name.

Some of the remaining options specify what type of currency conversion you want to retrieve from the TCUR tables, for example, are you using the buying rate or the selling rate.

# **Decision Tables**

Decision tables enable us to easily implement business rules in SAP HANA.

The top table in <u>Figure 7.25</u> shows what a typical business rule might look like: If the region is EMEA, and one of the following four conditions are true, for example, more than 100 orders are placed, then the discount is 5%.

The traditional way to implement business rules in business systems has been to hard-code the business rules into the application. This is very laborious, and has some disadvantages, including the following:

► Business users cannot update the business rules themselves. They have to always find a developer, and explain the new business rules.

The developer then codes lots of IF statements into the application.

- ► New rules get tested in the development and quality assurance systems, and after a week or two finally gets deployed into the production system.
- Business users cannot do what-if analysis on production data because the process is very lengthy.

Decision tables in SAP HANA simplify and speed up the entire process. The process then becomes as follows:

- 1. Business users see a table with the business rules, as in <u>Figure 7.25</u>. They can update this table using Microsoft Excel.
- 2. In the background, SAP HANA converts the decision table to a procedure, with all the necessary IF statements.
- 3. The decision table can be used directly in a graphical calculation view. The users can immediately preview the data, and do a what-if analysis. They can tweak the business rules, using different values, and see the results very quickly in SAP HANA.
- 4. Once they are satisfied, they can deploy the final values for the decision table to the production system. They will need the correct authorizations in the SAP HANA system to allow them to update values in the decision table.

The entire process becomes business-driven, rather than slowed down by the need for a developer and a database administrator. Payroll users can, for example, simulate the effects of changes in the tax rules for a new tax year in a few minutes.

REGION	ORDER_RANK	ORDERS	SALES	SALES_RANK	DISCOUNT
	<= 5	>= 100	> 150000	<= 5	5
LIVIEA	> 5	< 100	<= 150000	> 5	2.5
AMED	<= 5	>= 50	> 100000	<= 5	5
AWER	> 5	< 50	<= 100000	> 5	2.5
4.01	<= 5	>= 20	> 30000	<= 5	5
APJ	> 5	< 20	<= 30000	> 5	2.5
AED	<= 5	>= 8	> 3000	<= 5	5
AFN	× 5	10	<- 2000	× 5	2.5
	~ 1	< 0	<= 5000	~ 5	2.3
	Table	SAP_HANA_D	EMO".sap.hana.d	emocontent.epm.d	ata::
Decision 1	Table	SAP_HANA_D ■ "SAP_HANA_D ■ R0 ● COMPANY_	EMO".sap.hana.d	emocontent.epm.d	ata::
E Decision	Table	"SAP_HANA_D     "     "     "     "     "     "     "     "     "     "     "     "     "     "     "     "     R     "     REGION	EMO".sap.hana.d	emocontent.epm.d	lata::
Decision	Table undation	"SAP_HANA_D     "	EMO".sap.hana.d	emocontent.epm.d	ata::
Decision	Table	"SAP_HANA_D COMPANY_ Region SALES Concers SALES	EMO".sap.hana.d NAME	emocontent.epm.d	ata::

Figure 7.25 Create a Decision Table

We create decision tables in the same context menu where we create calculation views. From the context menu of a package, choose NEW, and select the DECISION TABLE option.

A new decision table information view is created. In the SCENARIO area, we will see two nodes—a DATA FOUNDATION node and a DECISION TABLE node. This is shown at the bottom left of Figure 7.25.

As always, we start working from the bottom up. In the data foundation we add any data sources that we need (the bottom right of <u>Figure 7.25</u>). These data sources are normally tables, but can also be calculation views, virtual tables, table functions, or table types.

The ability to use table functions or table types gives us great flexibility. We could have, for example, stores in the company that sell different products. These stores would have their own product inventory tables. Because the product tables have a similar structure, we can decide to re-use the same decision table on all the various product inventory tables. The same discount rules will thus apply to all our stores. At runtime, using the table function or table type, we can decide which of the store's tables to send to the decision table.

Another example could be that we have moved our older 2012 data to an external database like SAP IQ. Using a virtual table, we can use the 2012 data from SAP IQ. At runtime, using the table function or table type, we can decide whether we want to use the latest data from SAP HANA, or the older data from SAP IQ. The table structures for the tables in SAP HANA and SAP IQ are the same, so we can re-use the decision table.

In the DECISION TABLE node, we build the decision table as shown in the top part of <u>Figure 7.25</u>. We build this table in the OUTPUT area of the DECISION TABLE node.

In the DATA FOUNDATION node we have selected our data sources and our output fields. These fields are available in our DECISION TABLE node as VOCABULARY ATTRIBUTES. These are the five columns on the left in our example in Figure 7.25.

We want to use these attributes to decide what the discount should be for our customers. We have to create the discount column as a VOCABULARY PARAMETER.

We can use the VOCABULARY, which consists of the attributes and the parameters, to build CONDITIONS and ACTIONS.

From the context menu, as shown in <u>Figure 7.26</u>, we can choose to add the attributes as conditions and the parameter as an action.



Figure 7.26 Decision Table Node Output Fields

Once our output area is built, SAP HANA can generate a Microsoft Excel file for us. This spreadsheet will have exactly the same layout and column headings as the decision table shown in <u>Figure 7.25</u>. Business users can then fill in the
Microsoft Excel spreadsheet, and upload it back into the SAP HANA system. When we activate the decision table, SAP HANA will automatically create a procedure for us.

We can use the decision table in a graphical calculation view, for example, in a join node, to add the discount field with all our business rules to our information view.

We can also call the generated procedure directly in SQLScript. We will look at SQLScript and procedures in <u>Chapter 8</u>. We pass all the conditions to the procedure using the SQLScript procedure's input parameters.



Unfortunately, the phrase *input parameters* have two meanings in SAP HANA. The first meaning is for the input parameters we discussed in this chapter. The second meaning is that SQLScript procedures and functions can have input parameters and output parameters. In the above paragraph we specified the second meaning when consuming the decision table via SQLScript.

# **Hierarchies**

*Hierarchies* are important modeling artifacts that are often used in reporting to enable intelligent drilldown. In <u>Figure 7.27</u>, we can see an example in Microsoft Excel. Users can start with a list of sales for different countries. They can then drill down to the sales of the provinces (regions or states) of a specific country, and finally down to the sales of a city.

	Α	В	С
1			
2			
3	Row Labels	Sum of Sales	
4	🗄 Germany	2500000	
5	South Africa	2400000	
6	⊟ Gauteng	1400000	
7	Johannesburg	800000	
8	Pretoria	600000	
9	🗏 KwaZulu-Natal	400000	
10	Durban	400000	
11	Western Cape	600000	
12	Cape Town	600000	
13	United States	3900000	
14	Grand Total	8800000	
15			

Figure 7.27 Hierarchy of Sales Data from SAP HANA in Microsoft Excel

We have discussed the concepts of hierarchies in <u>Chapter 4</u> already. We saw that we have two types of hierarchies, namely *level hierarchies* and *parent-child hierarchies*. We saw when we should use each type of hierarchy, and what the differences are between these two types of hierarchies.

You can use multidimensional expression (MDX) queries to use these hierarchies. Just like SQL has become a standard for querying relational databases, MDX is a standard for querying OLAP data. SAP uses BICS instead of MDX when communicating between SAP systems. BICS is a proprietary connection, so SAP can only use it for SAP systems. We use it because it is a lot faster than MDX.

# Creating a Hierarchy

We create a hierarchy in the third tab of the SEMANTICS node in a calculation view, as shown in <u>Figure 7.28</u>. Select the plus icon  $\frac{1}{2}$  in the top-right menu on the HIERARCHIES tab. A CREATE NEW HIERARCHY dialog box will appear.

D	etails						
0	Columns(12) View P	roperties Hierarchies(1) Parameters/Variables(1)					
	Local						
			Ð 🗊 🚚 🕂 🗡 🗙				
	Name	Label					
	HIER_DEMO	Demonstration					

Figure 7.28 Create a Hierarchy

After specifying the NAME of the hierarchy, you can choose the HIERARCHY TYPE. We have level hierarchies and parent-child hierarchies available (see Figure 7.29).

To create a level hierarchy in SAP HANA, you specify the HIERARCHY TYPE as LEVEL HIERARCHY, and then you add the different levels. On each level you select a specific field name in the dropdown. Each level uses a different column in a level hierarchy. You can also specify the sorting order, and on which column it has to sort.

In <u>Figure 7.30</u>, we can see an example of a level hierarchy, using geographic attributes. Level 1 is the country, level 2 is the state or province, and level 3 is the city or town.

鶞 Hiera	rchy				_	o x
Create Create a	Create new Hierarchy Create a new hierarchy and define its properties					
Name:*	Name:* DEMO_HIERARCHY					
Demonstrating hierarchies				<b>~</b>		
Hierarchy	Type:*	Level Hiera	rchy			~
Node	Advan	Level Hiera Parent-Chi	rchy Id Hierarchy			
Node St	yle:* N	lame Only			~	
Level	ø E	lement	Level Type	Order By	Sort Direction	Add
1	<click< td=""><td>to add &gt;</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>Remove</td></click<>	to add >				Remove
						Move Up
						Move Down
?	-				OK	Cancel

# Figure 7.29 Hierarchy Type

ti 🕼	erarchy				_			
Edit H	Edit Hierarchy							
Edit h	Edit hierarchy definition							
Name:		CALCVIEW_HI	ERARCHY					
Label:		Hierarchies in (	Calc Views			<b>^</b>		
Hierarc	hy Type:*	Level Hierarchy	/					
Node	Advan	iced Time depe	endency				l	
Node	Style:* L	evel Name - Cor	mpatibility		~	]		
Leve	el 🥖 E	lement	Level Type	Order By	Sort Direction	Add	l	
1	SUPPL	IER_COUNTRY	REGULAR	SUPPLIER_COUNTRY	Ascending	Remove		
2	SUPPL	.IER_REGION	REGULAR	SUPPLIER_REGION	Ascending			
3	SUPPL	IER_CITY	REGULAR	SUPPLIER_CITY	Ascending	Move Up		
4	<click< th=""><th>: to add &gt;</th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th>Move Down</th><th></th></click<>	: to add >				Move Down		
						-		
						_		
?					ОК	Cancel		

Figure 7.30 Level Hierarchy

In <u>Figure 7.31</u> you can see an example of a parent-child hierarchy. We have an HR organizational structure, with managers and employees. In this case, the manager has the "parent" role, and the employee has the "child" role.

We can also use parent-child hierarchies for cost and profit centers, or for a bill of materials (BOM).

Hierarchy	🖟 Hierarchy — 🗆 🗙						
Create new H	Create new Hierarchy						
Create a new hi	Create a new hierarchy and define its properties						
Name:*	DEM	O_PARENT_CHILD					
Label:	Dem	onstrate a parent-c	hild hierarchy		<b>^</b>		
Hierarchy Type:*	Parer	nt-Child Hierarchy			~		
Node Advan	ced	Time dependency					
🥖 Child		/ Parent	Stepparent	Root Node	Add		
EMPLOYEEID		MANAGERID			Remove		
<click add<="" td="" to=""><td>&gt;</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td></click>	>						
Additional Att	ribute	s					
🥖 Attribut	tes				Add		
NAME_FIRST					Remove		
NAME_LAST							
<click add<="" td="" to=""><td>1&gt;</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td></click>	1>						
? 📘				ОК	Cancel		

Figure 7.31 Parent-Child Hierarchy

## **Time-Dependent Hierarchies**

As of SAP HANA SPS 10, we can now create *time-dependent hierarchies* in calculation views. In the CREATE NEW HIERARCHY dialog box we have another tab available for TIME DEPENDENCY, as shown in <u>Figure 7.32</u>.

The fields in the tab are grayed out, until we enable the ENABLE TIME DEPENDENCY option. Once the rest of the fields become available, we supply the required VALID FROM and VALID TO columns for the time periods.

📓 Hierarchy — 🗆					
Create new Hierarchy					
Create a new hierarchy and define its properties					
Name:*	DEMO_PARENT_CHILD				
Label:	Demonstrate a parent-child hierarchy			<b>~</b>	
Hierarchy Type:*	Parent-Child Hierarchy			~	
Node Advar	ced Time dependency				
<sup>®</sup> ☑ Enable tim	e dependency				
Valid From Co	lumn:			~	
Valid To Column:		~			
-Validity Perio	d				
Interval					
<sup>8</sup> From Pa	irameter:			~	
<sup>13</sup> To Para	neter:			~	
◯ Key Date					
<sup>8</sup> Key Par	ameter:			~	
? 📘	ОК		Cance	el	

Figure 7.32 Time-Dependency for Parent-Child Hierarchies

#### Note

Time-dependent hierarchies are only available for parent-child hierarchies. With level hierarchies, the ENABLE TIME DEPENDENCY option is grayed out.

#### **Hierarchies in Value Help**

As shown in <u>Figure 7.16</u>, we can use hierarchies in variables to drilldown into the list of available values in a value help dialog. In this case, the variable has to be created on the deepest level of the hierarchy, for example, in <u>Figure 7.30</u> the variable has to be created at the city level.

Value help hierarchies can also be time-dependent hierarchies.

# **Important Terminology**

In this chapter we touched on different ways to enhance our SAP HANA information views, and enrich our information models. The following list describes the important terms covered in this chapter:

# Calculated columns

Adds additional output columns to our calculation views, and allows us to calculate new values.

## Counters

Used to understand how many times something has occurred within a result set.

## Restricted columns

Restricts the data shown in a particular column or field and outputs the restricted values in an additional output field.

## Filters

Used if we do not want to show all the data from a specific table or to only show specific data. Can use both static and dynamic filtering.

# Domain fix values

These are values that will not change, and the users can only choose from the available list when they enter data into the fields.

# Variables

There are three types of variables:

- SINGLE VALUE: The variable only asks one (single) value, for example, the year is 2016.
- ► INTERVAL: The variable asks for from and to values, for example, the years from 2012 to 2015.
- RANGE: The variable asks a single value, but combines it with another operator, for example, the year is greater and equal to 2012.

# Input parameters

There are five types of input parameters we can create:

• DIRECT: Directly type in the value. We can specify the DATA TYPE of the expected value. There are three data types we can use for DIRECT, namely CURRENCY, UNIT OF MEASURE, and DATE.

- COLUMN: Choose a value from all the possible values in a specified column in the current view.
- DERIVED FROM TABLE: Choose a value from data in another table.
- ► STATIC LIST: Choose a value from a pre-defined (static) list of values.
- DERIVED FROM PROCEDURE/SCALAR FUNCTION: Choose a value from a list of values generated by a scalar function or procedure.

## Currency conversion

Used when converting from source currency to target currency. A date for the conversion also has to be supplied.

#### Decision tables

Enable you to implement business rules in SAP HANA.

#### ► Hierarchies

Used in reporting to enable intelligent drilldown.

#### ▶ Time-dependent hierarchies

Hierarchies that change over time, for example, before and after a restructuring of the HR organizational structure, and is dependent on the time period of your query.

<u>Table 7.1</u> shows in which node each feature is available. For example, filter expressions are only in projection nodes.

Node Type	Calculated Columns	Columns	Restricted Columns	Input Parameters	Filter Expressions	Generated Rank Columns
Join	Yes	-	-	Yes	-	-
Star Join	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	-	_
Projection	Yes	-	_	Yes	Yes	-
Aggregation	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	-	_
Rank	-	-	-	Yes	-	Yes
Union	-	-	-	-	-	-

Table 7.1Features per Node

# Practice Questions

These practice questions will help you evaluate your understanding of the topics covered in this chapter. The questions shown are similar in nature to those found on the certification examination. Although none of these questions will be found on the exam itself, they will allow you to review your knowledge of the subject. Select the correct answers and then check the completeness of your answers in the Practice Question Answers and Explanations section. Remember that on the exam you must select all correct answers and only correct answers to receive credit for the question.

- 1. In which type of node can you create calculated columns? (There are 2 correct answers.)
- □ A. Rank node
- □ **B.** Union node
- $\Box$  **C.** Join node
- □ **D.** Projection node
- 2. You want to build a hierarchy on a time-based data structure. What type of hierarchy do you use?
- □ **A.** Parent-child hierarchy
- □ **B.** Level hierarchy
- □ **C.** Ragged hierarchy
- □ **D.** Unbalanced hierarchy
- 3. Which are features of a calculated column? (There are 2 correct answers.)
- $\Box$  **A.** It is a column in the result set
- □ **B.** Its calculations are persisted
- $\Box$  **C.** It is created in the output area
- $\hfill\square$  **D.** It is created in the semantics node
- 4. You want to show a male and female option to users. What feature do you use? (There are 3 correct answers.)
- $\Box$  **A.** Domain fix values
- □ **B.** Value help

- □ **C.** Variables
- **D.** Expressions
- **E.** Input parameters
- 5. You are creating a currency conversion. What options do you have for the TARGET CURRENCY field? (There are 3 correct answers.)
- □ **A.** Select a fixed currency
- □ **B.** Select a column
- □ **C.** Use the DERIVED FROM TABLE option
- **D.** Use an input parameter
- **E.** Select a table type
- 6. What can you use as data sources for a decision table? (There are 2 correct answers.)
- □ **A.** Table types
- □ **B.** Scalar functions
- □ **C.** CDS views
- □ **D.** Calculation views
- 7. Where do you create a variable?
- □ **A.** In the context menu of a package
- □ **B.** In the semantics node
- $\Box$  **C.** In the output area of a join node
- **D.** In the scenario area of an aggregate node
- 8. You have logs from a website. How do you show the total number of website visitors that used a mobile phone? (There are 2 correct answers.)
- □ A. Create a restricted column
- □ **B.** Create an action
- □ **C.** Create a filter expression
- D. Create a rank column

- 9. Which can a level hierarchy do?
- □ **A.** Have time-dependency
- □ **B.** Be used for a bill of materials structure
- □ **C.** Enable drill-down in a value help list
- $\Box$  **D.** Show variable deepness in the data
- 10. What can a variable be used for?
- $\Box$  **A.** Currency conversion
- □ **B.** Calculated column expression
- □ **C.** Call decision table in SQLScript
- □ **D.** Filtering
- 11. You are working with a currency measure. What is decimal shift used for?
- □ **A.** Increase the accuracy of the currency conversion
- □ **B.** To undo the decimal adjustment for ABAP
- □ **C.** For currencies with more than two decimal places
- □ **D.** Avoid rounding errors during the conversion
- 12. What variable type do you use if you want to allow the user to choose dates from 2011 to 2014?
- □ **A.** Single value
- □ **B.** Interval
- $\Box$  **C.** Range
- **D.** Multiple entries
- 13. What do you create to find the number of unique items sold per shop?
- □ A. A calculation view with a restricted column in an aggregation node
- □ **B.** A calculation view with a counter in a projection node
- □ C. A calculation view with a counter in an aggregation node
- D. An analytic view with a calculated column in an star join node

- 14. What artifacts do you use in the output area of a decision table node? (There are 2 correct answers.)
- □ **A.** Input parameters
- □ **B.** Restrictions
- $\Box$  **C.** Actions
- **D.** Conditions
- 15. What can you use to limit the number of records produced by a calculation view? (There are 3 correct answers.)
- □ **A.** SAP client restrictions
- □ **B.** Domain fix values
- □ **C.** Filter expressions
- □ **D.** Restricted columns
- **E.** Generated columns
- 16. You created a calculated column in an analytic view for a table containing the number of units ordered, the price per unit, and the number of units in stock. You get the wrong results in your results. What could be the problem?
- □ **A.** You mistyped the calculated column expression
- □ **B.** You chose the SQL expression syntax
- **C.** You did NOT enable calculate before aggregation
- **D.** You did NOT enable the currency conversion
- 17. Where can you create a filter expression?
- □ **A.** In an aggregation node
- □ **B.** In a data foundation node
- $\Box$  **C.** In a projection node
- **D.** In the semantics node
- 18. The company's board members want to run simulations on the year-end financial data. What do you use to build this for them?
- □ **A.** A parent-child hierarchy
- □ **B.** A variable

- $\Box$  **C.** An expression
- □ **D.** A decision table
- 19. Which tables do you need for currency conversion?
- □ A. DD07\*
- □ **B.** TCUR\*
- □ C.BICS\*
- □ D. SHINE\*
- 20. You build a financial report for the company's board members that allows them to choose if they want the report to be in euros or dollars. What do you use?
- □ **A.** An input parameter from an aggregation node
- $\Box$  **B.** A variable from the semantics node
- □ **C.** A variable from a projection node
- **D.** An input parameter from the semantics node
- 21. What type of input parameters do you use to choose the data from a field in the current table?
- $\Box$  **A.** Direct
- $\Box$  **B.** Derived from table
- $\Box$  **C.** Value help
- D. Column

# **Practice Question Answers and Explanations**

1. Correct answers: C, D

You can create calculated columns in a join node and a projection node.

2. Correct answer: B

You use a level hierarchy to build a hierarchy on a time-based data structure. Time-based means you have year on level 1, months on level 2, days on level 3, and hours on level 4. A parent-child hierarchy can be time-dependent. (The words are confusing, so watch out.)

Ragged and unbalanced hierarchies are not mentioned in SAP HANA.

3. Correct answers: A, C

Features of a calculated column:

- It is a column in the result set.
- It is created in the output area.
- Its calculations are NOT persisted! It is NOT created in the semantics nodes.
- 4. Correct answers: B, C, E

You can show a male and female option to users with either variables or input parameters, and then opening the value help.

Domain fix values can be used for filtering. Male and female got mentioned in this section, but the context was completely different.

5. Correct answers: A, B, D

The options you have for the target currency field in a currency conversion are:

- Select a fixed currency
- Select a column
- Use an input parameter
- 6. Correct answers: A, D

You can use table types and calculation views as data sources for a decision table. Scalar functions do not return table-type data. More information will be available in the next chapter.

7. Correct answer: **B** 

You create a variable in the semantics node.

8. Correct answers: A, C

You show the total number of website visitors that used a mobile phone by creating either a restricted column or a filter expression. An action is part of decision tables. A rank column will rank then by numbers, not show the total number. (You could perhaps rank all the data, rank the data, and then search for the total number in the rankings. So technically it is possible, but requires that you still manually search the correct output.)

9. Correct answer: C

A level hierarchy can enable drill-down in a value help list. Only parent-child hierarchies have time-dependency, variable deepness in the data, and can be used for a bill of materials structure.

10. Correct answer: D

A variable can be used for filtering. You will use input parameters for currency conversion, and in calculated column expression. The input parameters when calling a decision table in SQLScript is different from the input parameters discussed in this chapter.

11. Correct answer: C

Decimal shift is used for currencies with more than two decimal places. Decimal shift back is used to undo the decimal adjustment for ABAP.

12. Correct answer: **B** 

You use an interval variable type if you want to allow the user to choose dates from 2011 to 2014. Range would allow for year > 2011. Do not confuse the range type with the interval type.

13. Correct answer: C

You create a calculation view with a counter in an aggregation node to find the number of unique items sold per shop. You need a counter for this, so two answers are eliminated. A calculation view with a counter in a projection node is not valid because a counter cannot be created in a projection node.

14. Correct answers: C, D

You use actions and conditions in the output area of a decision table node. Input parameters are not the same as vocabulary parameters.

15. Correct answers: A, B, C

You can use SAP client restrictions, domain fix values, and filter expressions to limit the number of records produced by a calculation view. Restricted columns do not restrict the number of records.

16. Correct answer: C

If you get errors in a calculated column in an analytic view, you must enable the CALCULATE BEFORE AGGREGATION flag.

17. Correct answer: C

You can only create a filter expression in a projection node.

18. Correct answer: D

You use a decision table to run simulations on the year-end financial data.

19. Correct answer: B

You need the  ${\tt TCUR}\star$  tables for currency conversion. You need the  ${\tt DD07}\star$  tables for domain fix values.

20. Correct answer: D

You use an input parameter from the semantics node (that is where it gets created) to build a financial report for the company's board members that allows them to choose if they want the report to be in euros or dollars. You just reference the already created input parameter in the currency conversion.

21. Correct answer: D

You use a COLUMN type of input parameter to choose the data from a field in the current table. The DIRECT type is used to directly type in values. The DERIVED FROM TABLE type is used to get data from another table.

# Takeaway

You should now know how to enhance SAP HANA information views with the eight different modeling features we've discussed in this chapter.

You have learned how to create calculated and restricted columns to add additional output fields to your information views. You have looked at filters and filter expressions, and learned how to limit the data early in your modeling process.

You can now identify when to create variables and input parameters to allow business users to specify what outputs they want to see in the result sets of your information views at runtime.

Working with currency, you now understand how to add currency conversions to your financial reports. You can now describe decision tables, how to create them, use them, and what value they can add to your business users.

Finally, your now know how to create hierarchies to provide powerful drilldown capabilities for your end users.

# Summary

We learned how to work with calculated columns, restricted columns, and filters in our information views. We added variables and input parameters to add a new level of dynamic interaction to our modeling by allowing the end users to specify what they are looking for in each query of the SAP HANA information views. We also saw how to enrich our information models with currency conversions, decision tables, and hierarchies.

In the next chapter, we will discuss how to use SQL and SQLScript to provide the advanced features that you (occasionally) might not be able to do with the graphical calculation views we discussed in previous chapters.

# SQL and SQLScript

# Techniques You'll Master

- Get a basic understanding of SQL and how to use it with your SAP HANA information models
- Learn SQLScript in SAP HANA and find out how it extends and complements SQL
- Understand how the SAP HANA modeling environment with SQL and SQLScript has changed over the last few years
- Create and use table and scalar functions with your graphical SAP HANA information views
- Develop procedures in SAP HANA using SQL and SQLScript

In many large SAP HANA projects, you'll reach a point at which you need to do something more than what is offered by the graphical information views. Information modeling using SQL and SQLScript offer more powerful options. You lose the productivity and simplicity of working graphically with information views, but you gain flexibility and control.

As SAP HANA has matured, the graphical modeling tools have grown such that the requirements for SQL and SQLScript have been reduced. In the past, once you started working with SQL and SQLScript, you had to continue in that environment (or choose to create any subsequent layers in your information models there as well). This issue has been addressed in the latest versions of SAP HANA.

You can now work graphically with your SAP HANA information views, address the occasional constraint with SQL and SQLScript, and bring this development back into the graphical SAP HANA modeling environment. You can then continue building the remaining layers of your information models using the graphical information views. The focus has therefore dramatically shifted towards the graphical modeling environment.

#### Note

There is definitely less focus now on SQL and SQLScript in the average modeling workflow than there was in the past.

To enable this shift, many of the SAP HANA modeling constructs and objects have changed. If you haven't looked at SQL and SQLScript in SAP HANA in the last two years, you will probably find that everything you knew has changed!

In this chapter, we will get you up to speed quickly on the new SAP HANA information views, how to convert the old information views, and how to integrate all SQL/SQLScript back into the graphical modeling environment.

# **Real-World Scenario**

You have been working on a large SAP HANA project for a few months when you get a request from business users: They love working with the decision tables and updating the values via a Microsoft Excel spreadsheet, but many of their decision tables use exactly the same rules and are based on similar tables. They want to know if there is a way to reuse the same decision table rules and dynamically change the tables used. A few months ago, you would probably have said this was impossible, but you now know that you can base the decision tables on table types, and so you can help these business users.

Soon after, another group of business users asks you if you can help to make security access more powerful and sync it to automatically use their hierarchal organizational structures. You base the analytic privileges on a procedure that easily exploits these structures.

The company is quickly moving into the area of mobile business services. They plan to deliver some new, real-time business dashboards to executives and managers. SAP HANA is an obvious choice, and your modeling and development skills are required to build the link to the mobile screens.

# **Objectives of This Portion of the Test**

The purpose of this portion of the SAP HANA certification exam is to test your knowledge of modeling using SQL and SQLScript.

The certification exam expects you to have a good understanding of the following topics:

- ► Standard SQL and how it relates to SAP HANA
- ► SQLScript in SAP HANA
- ▶ How to create and use user-defined functions, especially table functions
- ▶ Procedures in SAP HANA using SQL and SQLScript

#### Note

This portion contributes up to 10% of the total certification exam score.

# **Key Concepts Refresher**

*Structured Query Language* (SQL) is a widely used database programming language standardized by the American National Standards Institute (ANSI) and the International Organization for Standardization (ISO). The standard is often referred to as ANSI SQL.

Despite the existence of these standards, most SQL vendors extend ANSI SQL to provide enhanced capabilities for their individual database products. Microsoft uses an extended version called Transact-SQL (T-SQL), and Oracle uses PL/SQL.

SAP HANA provides *SQLScript*, which is an extension of ANSI SQL, to provide extra capabilities for the unique in-memory components that SAP deliver. We have already seen many of these features—for example, column tables, parameterized information views, delta buffers, working with multiple result sets in parallel, and built-in currency conversions. The ANSI SQL standard does not provide these features. However, SAP HANA supports ANSI SQL statements.

In this chapter, we provide only a short introduction to SQL and SQLScript, and we do assume some knowledge of SQL.

You can find the full SAP HANA SQL and SQLScript reference guides at *http:// help.sap.com/hana\_platform*.

# SQL

SQL uses a set-oriented approach for working with data.



Тір

Rather than working with individual records, you should focus on working with the entire result set that consists of many data records.

You specify what should happen to all the data records in the result set at once. This allows databases to be efficient when processing data, because they can parallelize the processing of these records. Databases are faster at processing data than application servers, becacause SQL is a set-oriented declarative language, whereas application servers typically use procedural or object-oriented languages that process records one at a time.

## SQL Language

SQL is used to define, manipulate, and control database objects. These actions are specified by various subsets of the language:

## Data Definition Language (DDL)

This is used, for example, to CREATE, ALTER (modify), RENAME, or DROP (delete) table definitions.

## Data Manipulation Language (DML)

This is used to manipulate data—for example, insert new data into a table or update the data in a table. Examples in SQL include INSERT, UPDATE, and DELETE.

## Data Query Language (DQL)

This is used to SELECT (access) data. It does not modify any data.

## Data Control Language (DCL)

This is used for data security—for example, to GRANT privileges to a database user.

## Transaction Control Language (TCL)

This is used to control database transactions—for example, to <code>COMMIT</code> or <code>ROLLBACK</code> database transactions.

SQL is also subdivided into several language elements, as listed in Table 8.1.

Element	Short Description
Identifiers	Names of database objects—for example, a table called BOOKS.
Data types	Specify the characteristics of the data stored in the database; for example, a string can be stored as a NVARCHAR data type.
Operators	Use to assign, compare, or calculate values—for example, =, >=, + (add), * (multiply), AND, and UNION ALL.
Expressions	Clauses that produce result sets consisting of either scalar values or tables consisting of columns and rows of data. Examples include aggregations like SUM, or IFTHENELSE logic using CASE.
Predicates	Specify conditions that can be evaluated to TRUE, FALSE, or UNKNOWN. Can be used to filter statement and query results or to change pro- gram flow. Typically used in the WHERE conditions of the SELECT statement—for example, $A \ge 100$ .

 Table 8.1
 Elements of SQL Language

Element	Short Description
Queries	<b>Retrieve data from the database based on specific criteria. Use the</b> SELECT <b>statement—for example,</b> SELECT * from BOOKS.
Statements	Commands to create persistent effects on schemas or data and con- trol transactions, program flow, connections, and sessions.
Functions	Provide methods to evaluate expressions. Can be used anywhere an expression is allowed. Various functions are built into SQL—for example, LENGTH(BOOKNAME).

#### Table 8.1 Elements of SQL Language (Cont.)

There are a few important points to remember about SQL when working with SAP HANA:

► Identifiers can be *delimited* or *undelimited*, meaning the names of database objects are enclosed in double quotes or not. If you do not enclose identifiers with quotes, they are treated as uppercase. Therefore, BOOKS, Books, and books all reference the same table name.

Delimited identifiers are treated as case-sensitive and can include characters in the name that would be forbidden by undelimited identifiers. SAP HANA uses Unicode, so the range of characters in a name can be wide. In this case, table "BOOKS" and table "books" are treated as two separate tables.

- ► NULL is a special indicator used by SQL to show that there is no value.
- ► The LIKE predicate can be used for SQL searches. SELECT author FROM books WHERE title LIKE '%HANA%'; will search for all books with the word HANA in the title. We will look at this in more detail in <u>Chapter 10</u>.
- Statements in SQL include the semicolon (;) statement terminator. This is a standard part of SQL grammar. Insignificant whitespace is generally ignored in SQL statements and queries and can be used to make such statements and queries more readable.

We'll now look at some SQL statements that correspond to SAP HANA modeling constructs that you're already familiar with.

## **Creating Tables**

The short version of the SQL syntax to a create a table is as follows:

```
CREATE [<table_type>] TABLE <table_name>;
<table_type> ::= COLUMN | ROW | HISTORY COLUMN | GLOBAL TEMPORARY |
GLOBAL TEMPORARY COLUMN | LOCAL TEMPORARY | LOCAL TEMPORARY COLUMN |
VIRTUAL
```

This means that you have to type "CREATE TABLE BOOKS;" to create an empty table called BOOKS. In this example, <tablename> is BOOKS. You can choose what to type in place of the <tablename> placeholder.

Anything in square brackets, like [<table\_type>], is optional. If you want to type something there, choose from the following list. If you want your table to be a column table, type "CREATE COLUMN TABLE BOOKS;", for example. If you do not specify the type of table, the system will create a row table, because that's what ANSI SQL expects. The following are important table types to keep in mind:

#### HISTORY COLUMN

The HISTORY COLUMN table is a special SAP HANA table that stores historical database states. You can execute special SELECT statements with a "time-travel clause" on these types of tables to restore to a certain point in time. We can therefore read a table as it was at any point in time. This can be useful for tables that refer to financial transactions and can completely change the way that systems perform period closings.

#### ► GLOBAL TEMPORARY and GLOBAL TEMPORARY COLUMN

These are temporary tables that are persisted in the database, even between sessions. Any user with the right privileges can read the table definition (metadata). The data in the GLOBAL TEMPORARY table can only be inserted and read by the owner of the table. When the session ends, the table is truncated (emptied).

#### ► LOCAL TEMPORARY and LOCAL TEMPORARY COLUMN

These are temporary tables that are only available for the current session. No other user can read the table definition (metadata) or the data in this table. The data in the local temporary table can only be inserted and read by the owner of the table. When the session ends, the table is dropped (deleted).

## **Reading Data**

The query—the most common operation in SQL—uses the SELECT statement—for example:

```
SELECT [TOP <unsigned_integer>] [ ALL | DISTINCT ]
<select_list> <from_clause> [(<subquery>)] [<where_clause>]
[<group_by_clause>] [<having_clause>] [<order_by_clause>]
[<limit_clause>] [<for_update_clause>] [<time_travel_clause>];
```

One of the shortest statements that can be used to read data from table BOOKS is SELECT \* FROM BOOKS;. This returns all the fields and data from table BOOKS, in effect putting the entire table in the result set. However, we recommend never using SELECT \* especially not with column tables. Because SAP HANA uses primarily column tables, this type of SELECT statement should be avoided.

A better way is to specify the <select\_list>—for example, SELECT author, title, price FROM BOOKS:. In this case, you only read the author, title, and price columns for all the books.

Note the [<time\_travel\_clause>] for use with HISTORY COLUMN tables.

## **Filtering Data**

In SAP HANA, we sometimes use a filter, by using the WHERE clause as part of a SELECT statement—for example:

SELECT author, title, price FROM BOOKS WHERE title LIKE '%HANA%';

## **Creating Projections**

Inside a projection node in SAP HANA views, you can rename fields. This is easily achieved via the AS keyword in SQL—for example:

SELECT author, title AS bookname, price FROM BOOKS;

The title field is now renamed to bookname in the result set.

## **Creating Calculated Columns**

Creating calculated columns looks almost the same as renaming fields, but there is an added formula, as shown:

SELECT author, title, price \* discount AS discount\_price FROM BOOKS;

In this case, we added a new calculated column called discount\_price.

#### **Created Nested Reads and Aggregates**

In SAP HANA views, we often have many layers; in SQL, we use nested SELECT statements. These nested queries are also known as *subqueries*. An example would be as follows:

SELECT author, title, price FROM BOOKS
WHERE price > (SELECT AVG(price) FROM BOOKS);

The SELECT AVG(price) FROM BOOKS statement returns the average price of all the books in table BOOKS. This helps return the books that are more expensive than the average price.

You can create aggregates, like with an aggregation node in a calculation view, using standard aggregation functions in SQL. We discussed aggregation in <u>Chapter 4</u>.

#### **Creating Joins**

SAP HANA views normally have many joins. Here is an example of how to create an inner join between two tables:

```
SELECT BOOKS.author, BOOKS.title, BOOKS.price,
BOOK_SALES.total_sold FROM BOOKS
INNER JOIN BOOK_SALES
ON BOOKS.book_number = BOOK_SALES.booknumber;
```

The field on which both tables are joined is the book\_number field.

#### **Creating Unions**

Union nodes in calculation views can be performed by using the UNION operator-for example:

```
SELECT author, title, price FROM BOOKS
UNION
SELECT author, title, price FROM BOOKS_OUT_OF_PRINT;
```

You can also use the UNION ALL operator instead of UNION. The UNION operator returns only distinct values, whereas UNION ALL will return all records, including duplicate records.

# **Conditional Statements**

You can use the if() function in an expression in which you create a calculated column in SAP HANA. You can also handle if-then logic in SQL via the CASE statement—for example:

SELECT author, title, price, CASE WHEN title LIKE '%HANA'%' then 'Yes' ELSE 'No' END AS interested\_in\_book FROM BOOKS

Here, we have added a calculated column called interested\_in\_book to our query. If the book's title contains the word *HANA*, we indicate that we are interested in it.

# SQLScript

SQLScript exposes many of the memory features of SAP HANA to SQL developers. Column tables, parameterized information views, delta buffers, working with multiple result sets in parallel, built-in currency conversions at the database level, fuzzy text searching, spatial data types, and predictive analysis libraries makes SAP HANA unique. The only way to make this functionality available via SQL queries, even from other applications, is to provide it via SQL extensions.

We've come across many of these features in earlier chapters. In the next chapter (<u>Chapter 9</u>), we will look in more detail at the fuzzy text search, spatial functions, and predictive libraries in SAP HANA. We also will learn more about the Application Function Library (AFL) that include predictive and business functions that can be used with SQLScript.

In <u>Chapter 4</u>, we saw the spatial join type, used between a ST\_POINT data type (like a location) and an ST\_POLYGON (like a suburb). The spatial functions can be called from SQLScript to access and manipulate spatial data.

SAP HANA also has to cater for SAP-specific requirements — for example, limiting data to a specific "client" (e.g., 100) in the SAP business systems. In SAP HANA, you can use a SESSION\_CONTEXT(CLIENT) function in the WHERE clause of a query to limit data in a session to a specific client.

In this section, we will look at the various features of SQLScript.

## Note

In traditional client-server approaches, business logic is executed in the application server. With SAP HANA, much of this logic and the executions are pushed down into the SAP HANA database. This approach is different than the standard SQL way of working. SQLScript caters for these requirements.

#### Separate Statements

One of the unique approaches of SQLScript is the use of variables to break a large, complex SQL statement into smaller, simpler statements. This makes the code much easier to understand and it also helps with SAP HANA's performance, because many of these smaller statements can be run in parallel.

#### Let's look at an example:

```
books_per_publisher = SELECT publisher, COUNT (*) AS
num_books FROM BOOKS GROUP BY publisher;
```

```
publisher_with_most_books = SELECT * FROM
:books_per_publisher WHERE num_books >=
(SELECT MAX (num_books) FROM :books_per_publisher);
```

We would normally write this as a single SQL statement using a temporary table, or by repeating a subquery multiple times. In our example, we've broken this into two smaller SQL statements by using table variables.

The first statement calculates the number of books each publisher has and stores the entire result set into the table variable called books\_per\_publisher. This variable containing the entire result set is used twice in the second statement.

## Тір

Notice that the table variable is prepended in SQLScript with a colon (:) to indicate that this is used as an input variable. All output variables use only the name, and all input variables have a colon prepended.

The second statement uses :books\_per\_publisher as input and uses a nested SELECT statement.

The SQLScript compiler and optimizer will determine how to best execute these statements, whether by using a common subquery expression with database

hints or by combining them into a single complex query. The code becomes easier to write and understand and is more maintainable.

By breaking the SQL statement into smaller statements, we also mirror the way in which we have learned to build graphical information views in SAP HANA. Look at the calculation view in <u>Figure 8.1</u>; if you had to write all of this in SQL, it would be quite difficult to create optimal code.



Figure 8.1 SAP HANA Calculation View in Layers

Just like we start building graphical information views from the bottom up, we do the same with our SQLScript code. We will not write all the SQLScript code here, but just some pseudocode to illustrate the point. We start with a union node in Figure 8.1:

union\_output = SELECT \* FROM AT\_PROD UNION SELECT \* FROM PROD;

The next node is a join node. It uses the output from the union node as the source for one side of the join:

```
join_output = SELECT * FROM :union_output
INNER JOIN SELECT * FROM get_employees_by_name_filter('Jones');
```

Each time, the output from the lower node becomes the input for the next higher node. As you can see, this is easy to write in SQLScript!

#### **Imperative Logic**

Most of the SQL and SQLScript we have worked with to this point has used *declarative logic*. In other words, we have used the set-oriented paradigm that contributes to SQL's performance. We have asked the database to hand us back all of the results immediately when the query has completed. Occasionally, you might prefer to receive the answers to a query one record at a time. This is most often the case when running SQL queries from application servers. In these cases, you will use *imperative logic*, meaning you'll "loop" through the results one at a time. You can also use conditionals, such as in if-then logic.

Imperative logic is (mostly) not available in ANSI SQL, and therefore SAP HANA provides it as part of SQLScript.



#### Hint

Remember that imperative logic does not perform as well as declarative logic. If you require the best performance, try to avoid imperative logic.

There are different ways to implement imperative logic in SQLScript:

► WHILE loop

The WHILE loop will execute some SQLScript statements as long as the condition of the loop evaluates to TRUE:

```
WHILE <condition> DO
... some SQLScript statements...
END WHILE
```

► FOR loop

The FOR loop will iterate a number of times, beginning with a loop counter starting value and incrementing the counter by one each time, until the counter is greater than the end value:

```
FOR <loop-var> IN [REVERSE] <start_value> .. <end_value> DO
... some SQLScript statements...
END FOR
```

## Dynamic SQL and Security

Another powerful feature in SQLScript is the ability to create and execute dynamic SQL. Let's illustrate this via an example. <u>Figure 8.2</u> shows a web form asking for the user's mobile telephone number at the top of the figure. We insert this mobile number into a partially prepared SQL statement, and then execute this SQL statement using the EXEC statement.

Mobile number:         +86 139-1234-5678
Ţ
$\checkmark$
"SELECT col1, col2, col2 FROM employees WHERE mobile_num ='"
& mobile_number & "';"
EXEC "SELECT col1, col2, col2 FROM employees WHERE
NUBILE_NUM - TOU 133-1234-3070 ,
EXEC "SELECT col1, col2, col2 FROM employees WHERE mobile_num = `+86 139-1234-5678';"

Figure 8.2 Dynamic SQL with Values from Web Form

Each user gets a unique SQL statement created especially for him or her. The performance is not as good as static SQL statements, but this is more powerful and flexible.

There is one problem: If you're not careful, hackers can use this setup to break into your system, which has been one of the top security vulnerabilities in web applications for many years now.

Let's look at the web form again. This time, in <u>Figure 8.3</u>, hackers enter more information than just the mobile telephone number. They add a closing quote and a semicolon. When this is inserted into our prepared SQL statement, it closes the current statement. (Remember that SQL statements are terminated by a semicolon.)



Figure 8.3 Dynamic SQL with SQL Injection from Web Form

Anything after this is executed as another SQL statement—so the hackers can enter something like DROP DATABASE that might delete the entire database. Or they can try various SQL statements to read or modify data values in the database.

SAP HANA SPS 11 includes some new features related to this problem, such as the new IS\_SQL\_INJECTION\_SAFE function, which helps prevent such attacks.

If you remember to prevent security vulnerabilities like SQL injection, dynamic SQL can enable you to write some powerful applications. You can change data sources at any time, create new tables in real time and link them to applications, and build adaptive user interfaces.

## **User-Defined (Table and Scalar) Functions**

*User-defined functions* (UDFs) are custom read-only functions in SAP HANA. You write your own functions that can be called in a similar fashion as SQL functions.

There are two types of UDFs: *scalar functions* and *table functions*. The main difference is whether you want a function to return values as simple data types (like an integer) or in complete "table-like" result sets. A scalar function can return

one or more values, but these values have to be single data types. A table function returns a set of data.

Both types of UDFs are read-only. You may not execute any DDL or DML statements inside these functions.

We create functions as shown in Listing 8.1.

#### Listing 8.1 Creating User-Defined Function

Here are a few important points to note with regards to UDFs:

RETURNS

Depending on the type of data we return, RETURNS will be a scalar or a table function.

► LANGUAGE

We can only write UDFs in SQLScript.

SQL SECURITY

Indicates against which user's security privileges this function will be executed:

- ► If we choose the INVOKER option, this function will be executed by the end user calling the function and all security privileges will be limited to that user's assigned authorizations.
- The default for scalar functions is INVOKER, and the default for table functions is DEFINER.
- DEFAULT SCHEMA

When we specify the default schema for this function, we do not have to prepend the schema name before every table name used. We can just write SELECT FROM table instead of SELECT from schema.table.

In the SAP HANA system, you can create UDFs as discussed in <u>Chapter 5</u> (see also Figure 5.14).

We create .hdbscalarfunction objects for scalar functions, and .hdbtable-function objects for table functions. <u>Figure 8.4</u> shows a newly created table function in SAP HANA studio.

Figure 8.4 Newly Created (Blank) Table Function in SAP HANA Studio

The following two subsections look at examples of both scalar functions and table functions.

#### Scalar Functions

Scalar UDF supports primitive SQL types as an input. Let's walk through an example to better understand their usage:

Start by creating a scalar function as in <u>Listing 8.2</u> that takes the price of a book and a discount percentage as the two inputs and creates two output values. The first output value is the price of the book after the discount is applied, and the second is the discount amount.

```
FUNCTION apply_discount (book_price decimal(15,2),
book_discount decimal(15,2))
    RETURNS discounted_price decimal(15,2)
    LANGUAGE SQLSCRIPT
    SQL SECURITY INVOKER AS
BEGIN
    discounted_price := :book_price - ( :book_price * :book_discount);
    discount = :book_price * :book_discount;
END;
```

Listing 8.2 Scalar Function that Returns Two Values

You can call the scalar function with the following code:

SELECT apply\_discount (59.50, 0.1). discounted\_price as your\_book\_price, apply\_discount (59.50, 0.1). discount as discount\_amount from DUMMY;

In this case, you get two values back: 53.55 and 5.95.

<u>Figure 8.5</u> shows a similar example of a scalar function from the SHINE demo content, as shown in SAP HANA studio.



Figure 8.5 Example of Scalar Function Found in SHINE Content

#### **Table Functions**

Table UDF supports table types as an input. Let's walk through an example to better under their usage:

<u>Listing 8.3</u> shows a modified version of a table function found in the SHINE content. This code performs an inner join between an employee table and an address table to find the employee's email address. The neat trick here is in the WHERE clause: SAP HANA performs a fuzzy text search on the employee's last name. You will still get an email address, even if you mistyped the person's last name.

```
Listing 8.3 Table Function that Performs Fuzzy Text Search on Last Name to Find Email Addresses
```

<u>Figure 8.6</u> shows the table function from the SHINE demo content in SAP HANA studio.

```
🔲 get_employees_by_name_filter.hdbtablefunction 💥
RDL (SYSTEM) 192.168.124.130 00
Table Function
1 FUNCTION "SAP HANA DEMO"."sap.hana.democontent.epm.functions::get_employees_by_name_f
2
      RETURNS table ( EMPLOYEEID NVARCHAR(10),
 3
                       "NAME.FIRST" NVARCHAR(40),
                       "NAME.LAST" NVARCHAR(40),
 4
                       EMAILADDRESS NVARCHAR(255),
 5
 6
                      ADDRESSID NVARCHAR(10), CITY NVARCHAR(40),
 7
                       POSTALCODE NVARCHAR(10), STREET NVARCHAR(60))
      LANGUAGE SOLSCRIPT
 8
9
       SOL SECURITY INVOKER AS
10 BEGIN
11 RETURN
12 select a. "EMPLOYEEID", a. "NAME.FIRST",
             a. "NAME.LAST", a. "EMAILADDRESS",
13
             a."ADDRESSES.ADDRESSID" as "ADDRESSID", b."CITY", b."POSTALCODE", b."STREET"
14
15 from "sap.hana.democontent.epm.data::MD.Employees"
16
       as a
17 inner join
18
            "sap.hana.democontent.epm.data::MD.Addresses"
19
         as b
     on a."ADDRESSES.ADDRESSID" = b.ADDRESSID
20
21
          where contains("NAME.LAST", :lastNameFilter, FUZZY(0.9));
22 END;
23
```

Figure 8.6 Example of Table Function Found in SHINE Content

We can use the table function from <u>Figure 8.6</u> in a graphical calculation view. An example is shown in <u>Figure 8.7</u>, in which this table function is used in a join with the result set from a union node. (This is not really a good example—we should really join on the key field—but is used here purely to illustrate the point.)



Figure 8.7 Using Table Function in Graphical Calculation View

## Procedures

A *procedure* is a subroutine consisting of SQL statements. Procedures can be called or invoked by applications that access the database. Procedures are sometimes also known as *stored procedures*.

Procedures are more powerful than UDFs. Whereas UDFs are read-only and cannot change any data in the system, procedures can insert, change, and delete data. You can execute any DDL or DML statements inside a procedure. Whereas a table function can only return one result set, procedures can return many result sets.

Listing 8.4 illustrates how to create procedures.

```
CREATE PROCEDURE <proc_name> [(<parameter_clause>)]
  [LANGUAGE <SQLSCRIPT | R>]
  [SQL SECURITY <DEFINER | INVOKER>]
  [DEFAULT SCHEMA <default_schema_name>]
  [READS SQL DATA [WITH RESULTS VIEW <view_name>]] AS
```
Listing 8.4 Creating Procedures

The following syntax are used in Listing 8.4:

LANGUAGE

We can write procedures in SQLScript or in R. R is a popular open-source programming language and data analysis software environment for statistical computing.

#### ► SQL SECURITY

Indicates against which user's security privileges this function will be executed:

- ► If we choose the INVOKER option, this function will be executed by the end user calling the function, and all security privileges will be limited to that user's assigned authorizations.
- ► The default for procedures is DEFINER (i.e., the \_SYS\_REPO user).
- DEFAULT SCHEMA

When we specify the default schema for this function, we do not have to prepend the schema name before every table name you use.

#### READS SQL DATA

Marks the procedure as being read-only. The procedure then cannot change data or database object, and cannot contain DDL or DML statements. If we try to activate a read-only procedure that contains DDL or DML statements, we will get activation errors.

WITH RESULTS VIEW

Specifies that a view (that we have to supply) can be used as the output of a read-only procedure. When a result view is defined for a procedure, it can be called by an SQL statement in the same way as a table or view!

#### ► SEQUENTIAL EXECUTION

Forces sequential execution of the procedure logic; no parallelism is allowed.

Some important points to note with regards to these procedures:

- ► A procedure does not require any input and output parameters. Input and output parameters must be explicitly typed. The input and output parameters of a procedure can have any of the primitive SQL types or a table type. (Table types will be discussed in the next section.)
- If we require table outputs from a procedure, we have to use table types.
- ► Any read-only procedure may only call other read-only procedures. The advantage of using a read-only procedure is that certain optimizations are available for read-only procedures, such as not having to check for database locks; this is one of the performance enhancements in SAP HANA.
- ► Note that WITH RESULTS VIEW is a sub-clause of the READS SQL clause, so the same restrictions apply to it as those for read-only procedures.

We mentioned that if we require table outputs from a procedure, we have to use table types. In SQLScript, we can also define table types. Table types are similar to database tables, but do not have an instance. They are like a template for future use. They are used to define parameters for a procedure that needs to use tabular results.

Table types are created with the CREATE TYPE statement. The statement used to be CREATE TABLE TYPE, but this syntax has been deprecated. The definition is as follows:

CREATE TYPE <type\_name> AS TABLE (<column\_list\_definition>)

The SQL syntax for defining table types is the same as that for defining new tables.

Let's switch gears. Similar to UDFs, we can create procedures as discussed in <u>Chapter 5</u>, illustrated by <u>Figure 5.14</u>. In this case, we create a .hdbprocedure object.

Figure 8.8 shows a newly created table function in SAP HANA studio.

Procedures are called with the CALL statement. You can call the procedure shown in <u>Figure 8.8</u> with the following statement:

CALL "get\_product\_sales\_price" ('HT-1000', ?);

The results of this call statement, as executed in the SQL Console in SAP HANA studio, are shown in <u>Figure 8.9</u>.



Figure 8.8 Example Procedure Found in SHINE Content

	PRODUCTID	CATEGORY	PRICE	SALEPRICE	
1	HT-1000	Notebooks	956	764.8	
tat	ement 'call	"SAP_HANA_	DEMO".	"sap.hana	.democontent.epm.Procedures::get_product_sales_price" ('HT-1000',?)
tat ucc	ement 'call essfully pre	"SAP_HANA pared	DEMO".	"sap.hana	.democontent.epm.Procedures::get_product_sales_price" ('HT-1000',?)
Stat succ	ement 'call essfully pre ement 'call	"SAP_HANA pared "SAP HANA	DEMO".	"sap.hana	.democontent.epm.Procedures::get_product_sales_price" ('HT-1000',? .democontent.epm.Procedures::get product sales price" ('HT-1000',?

Figure 8.9 Results of Calling a Procedure Directly from SQL Console

You can call procedure with multiple result sets, which reads and writes transactional data from an SAP HANA XS application using server-side JavaScript. The REST-style web services created will use HTTP GET for reading data and HTTP PUT for writing data. You will notice that how we use procedures is quite different from how we use UDFs. We can use procedures in a similar way as functions if we specify the readonly and result view clauses.

In <u>Listing 8.5</u>, we create a procedure that uses a precreated result view called View4BookProc, and a table type called BOOKS\_TABLE\_TYPE.

```
CREATE PROCEDURE ProcWithResultView(IN book_num VARCHAR(13),
OUT output1 BOOKS_TABLE_TYPE)
LANGUAGE SQLSCRIPT
READS SQL DATA WITH RESULT VIEW View4BookProc AS
BEGIN
output1 = SELECT author, title, price FROM BOOKS WHERE
isbn_num = :book_num;
END;
```

Listing 8.5 Read-Only Procedure Using Result View

We can now call this procedure from a SQL statement, just like a table function:

```
SELECT * FROM View4BookProc (PLACEHOLDER."$$book_num$$"=>'978-1-4932-
1230-9');
```

#### **Multilevel Aggregation**

Sometimes, you may need to return multiple result sets with a single SQL statement. In normal SQL, this might not always be possible—but we can use multilevel aggregation with grouping sets to achieve this in SQLScript.

Let's start by looking at an example (<u>Listing 8.6</u>) in SQLScript of how we would create two result sets.

```
-- Create result set 1
books_pub_title_year = SELECT publisher, name, year, SUM(price)
FROM BOOKS WHERE publisher = publisher_id
GROUP BY publisher, name, year;
-- Create result set 2
books_year = SELECT year, SUM(price) FROM BOOKS
GROUP BY year;
```

Listing 8.6 Creating Two Result Sets in SQLScript

You can create both of these result sets from a single SQL statement using GROUP-ING SETS, as shown in Listing 8.7.

SELECT publisher, name, year, SUM(price)
FROM BOOKS WHERE publisher = publisher\_id
GROUP BY GROUPING SETS ((publisher, name, year), (year))

# **Listing 8.7** Creating Multiple Result Sets from Single SQL Statement with Grouping Sets

You now have a good understanding of SQLScript and the powerful capabilities it brings to your modeling toolbox. Let's now look at when you should use this functionality and how to ensure that you use the latest variations of these features.

# Views, Functions, and Procedures

Taking a step back, let's look at how to best address our modeling requirements. In SAP HANA SPS 11 and later we have three main approaches: views, UDFs, and procedures.

Let's first discuss each of these options, and then we'll discuss when you should use each one.

#### **Information Views**

We have discussed SAP HANA information views in detail in preceding chapters. You have built these views using the graphical environment, and you have now also learned how to also create these view using SQLScript.

Some of the characteristics of views include the following:

- Views are treated like tables. You can use SELECT, WHERE, GROUP BY, and ORDER BY statements on views.
- Views are static. They always return the same columns, and you look at a sets of data in the same way.
- They always return one result set.
- Views are mostly used for reading data.

## **User-Defined Functions**

After learning about UDFs, you should be familiar with their characteristics, such as the following:

- ► Functions always return results. A table function returns a set, and a scalar function returns one or more values.
- Functions require input parameters.
- ► The code in UDFs is read-only. Functions cannot change, update, or delete data or database objects. You cannot insert data with functions, so you cannot use transactions or COMMIT and ROLLBACK in functions.
- ► Functions cannot call EXEC statements; otherwise, you could build a dynamic statement to change data and execute it.
- ► You can call the results of functions in SELECT statements and in WHERE and HAVING clauses.
- Functions can be used in a join.
- ► Table functions cannot call procedures, because procedures can change data. You have to hold to the read-only paradigm of functions.
- ► Functions use SQLScript code. This can include imperative logic in which you loop through results or apply an if-then logic flow to the results.

# Procedures

Procedures are the most powerful of the three approaches. Some of the characteristics of procedures include the following:

- ▶ Procedures can use transactions, with COMMIT and ROLLBACK. They can modify tables and data, unless they are marked as read-only. Read-only procedures may only call other read-only procedures.
- ▶ Procedures can call UDFs, but UDFs cannot call procedures.
- Procedures do not have to return any values but may return multiple result sets. Procedures also do not need to specify any input parameters.
- Procedures provide full control, because all code functionality is allowed in procedures.

- Procedures can use try-catch blocks for errors.
- Procedures can also use dynamic SQL—but be aware of security vulnerabilities such as SQL injection when using dynamic SQL.

#### When to Use What Approach

After all that detail, the recommendation of when to use each of the three approaches is quite easy to make.

In order of functionality, we have views, then UDFs, and then procedures; that is, procedures have the most functionality.

In order of performance, we have the reverse. Views give the best performance, then UDFs (because they are permanently read-only), and then procedures.

Use the minimal approach to get the results you require.

If you can do it with views, then use views. If you cannot do it with views, then try using user-defined functions. If that still does not meet the requirements, create a procedure.

## **Catching Up with SAP HANA SPS 11**

<u>Figure 8.7</u> illustrated how to use a table function in a graphical calculation view. This options changes how we approach modeling in SAP HANA projects. The emphasis has moved completely to the graphical modeling environment.

We can work graphically with our SAP HANA views, create UDFs or procedures for the occasional constraint, and bring these back into the graphical SAP HANA modeling environment. We can then continue building the remainder of our SAP HANA information models using the graphical information views.

Many of the SAP HANA modeling constructs and objects in SQLScript have changed to accommodate this shift in emphasis to the graphical environment. In the last few years, almost everything has changed!

Table 8.2 contrasts the old with the new.

Action	The Old Method	The New Method
Create procedures	Create run-time objects <ul> <li>Example:</li> <li>CREATE PROCEDURE</li> </ul>	<pre>Create design-time objects     Example:     Create .hdbprocedure</pre>
Write SQLScript code	Use SQLScript "CE_" functions • Example: CE_UNION_ALL(:A, :B)	Use SQL syntax • Example: A UNION ALL B
Use SQLScript	SQLScript (scripted) calculation views	Table functions (.hdbtablefunction)
Create procedures	Create a procedure in the CONTENT area or Create a .procedure file	Create a .hdbprocedure file
Create table types	CREATE TABLE TYPE	CREATE TYPE

Table 8.2 Changes in SQL and SQLScript

## **Using the Latest Modeling Practices**

To move from the old SQL and SQLScript modeling approaches to the newer techniques, use the following guidelines:

- Many modelers and developers used the SQL Console to create procedures. This created runtime objects, which cannot be transported to the production system. The recommended way is to create design-time objects – for example, .hdbprocedure objects – instead of using the CREATE PROCEDURE statement.
- ► In the early days of SAP HANA, there was a huge emphasis on using certain calculation engine functions (called CE-functions). The performance of these CE-functions was much better (back then) than using standard SQL syntax; you would use CE\_UNION\_ALL(:A, :B) instead of A UNION ALL B to improve performance. This has now changed, and the new recommendation is to forget about CE-functions and use the SQL syntax.
- ► There were two different ways to create procedures before—namely, in the context menu of a package (where we also create graphical views) and by

using a .procedure file. Both of these methods are deprecated. You should now use a .hdbprocedure file to create procedures in SAP HANA.

- ► The old CREATE TABLE TYPE syntax to create a table type is now deprecated and replaced by the new CREATE TYPE syntax.
- When creating calculation views, there is still a dropdown option to create SQLScript calculation views. These are also known as scripted calculation views or script-based calculation views. We recommend not using this type of calculation view; instead, use table functions. In fact, as of SAP HANA SPS 11, the migration tool now migrates script-based calculation views to table functions for you.

We will now see how to use the migration tool to convert script-based calculation views to table functions.

#### **Migrating Scripted Calculation Views**

Start the migration tool from the QUICK VIEW tab in the Modeler perspective. On the next screen (Figure 8.10), you'll see the migration tool dialog.

🌆 Migrate	_		×
Migrate Objects			
Select a migration type and a folder to save the migration job log.			
<ul> <li>Attribute views and analytic views to calculation views.</li> </ul>			
● ▼ Script-based calculation views to graphical calculation views and table functions.			
Select if you want to migrate existing script-based calculation views in a package			
to both standard graphical calculation views and to table functions.			
Classical XML-based analytic privileges to SQL analytic privileges.			
Croste Migration Log			
Migration Log Path: C:\temp		Brow	se
c Davis		Conner	
		Cancel	

#### Figure 8.10 Migration Tool

Here, we chose the option to migrate script-based calculation views to table functions. <u>Figure 8.11</u> shows the next step, in which you select all the calculation views you want to migrate.



Figure 8.11 Selecting Scripted Calculation Views to Convert to Table Functions

Figure 8.12 shows a script-based calculation view before migration.

CV_SALESORDEF	R_RANI	ING_SQL	٢	ź	æ	0	Ġ			5	• 🗾	( -
Scenario	⊕∔ ⊝†	Details		Ou	tpu	t						
Script View		<pre>1 2 /***** Begin Procedure Script *****/ 3 BEGIN 4 var_out = 5 select "COMPANYNAME" as company_name, st 6 select "COMPANYNAME" as company_name, st 7 dense_rank() over ( order by sum("NRIT 8 dense_rank() over ( order by sum("NRIT 9 from "_SYS_BIC"."book.models/AN_SALES 10 where date_sql between :TP_FR_DTE and 11 group by "COMPANYNAME" 13 ) 14 where sales_rank &lt; 11; 15 16 END /****** End Procedure Script ****/ 17</pre>		× • Pro Ge Pr	oper rope	Coli Inpu (a) (c) rties al	COM SALE ORD SALE ORD Ut Pain IP_FR IP_TC	PANY S ERS S_RA ER_R Rame L_DTE D_DTE	(_NA (NK ANK ters IP_1 /alue	• IME	E	

Figure 8.12 Script-Based Calculation View before Migration

The same script-based calculation view was converted to a table function. In <u>Fig-ure 8.13</u>, you can see that both a table function (top part of the figure) and a graphical calculation view that uses this table function (bottom part of the figure) were created.

In this case, we did not have to create the table function manually; the migration tool created it for us.



**Figure 8.13** Scripted Calculation View Migrated to Table Function and Graphical Calculation View

# Important Terminology

The following important terminology was used in this chapter:

► SQL

Structured Query Language (SQL) is a database programming language used to enhance your modeling process when you have requirements graphical views cannot fulfill.

► SQLScript

SQLScript exposes many of the memory features of SAP HANA to SQL developers. This includes working with column tables, parameterized information views, delta buffers, working with multiple result sets in parallel, built-in currency conversions at the database level, fuzzy text searching, spatial data types, and predictive analysis libraries. The only way to make this functionality available via SQL queries, even from other applications, is to provide it via SQL extensions.

# User-defined functions (UDF)

UDFs are custom read-only functions in SAP HANA.

## Procedures (stored procedures)

A *procedure* is a subroutine consisting of SQL statements. Procedures can be called or invoked by applications that access the database.

# Imperative logic

Occasionally, you might prefer to receive the answers to a query one record at a time. This is most often the case when running SQL queries from application servers. In these cases, you will use *imperative logic*, meaning you'll "loop" through the results one at a time

# Dynamic SQL

Dynamic SQL is when you build up SQL strings on the fly using code, and then execute them.

# Practice Questions

These practice questions will help you evaluate your understanding of the topics covered in this chapter. The questions shown are similar in nature to those found on the certification examination. Although none of these questions will be found on the exam itself, they will allow you to review your knowledge of the subject. Select the correct answers and then check the completeness of your answers in the Practice Question Answers and Explanations section. Remember that on the exam you must select all correct answers and only correct answers to receive credit for the question.

- 1. What paradigm describes the SQL language?
- □ A. Set-oriented
- □ **B.** Object-oriented
- $\Box$  **C.** Procedural
- □ **D.** Application-focused

- 2. To what subset of SQL does the SELECT statement belong?
- 🗆 A. DML
- □ **B.** DDL
- $\Box$  **C.** DCL
- $\Box$  **D.** DQL
- 3. True or False: Delimited identifiers are treated as case-sensitive.
- 🗆 A. True
- □ **B.** False
- 4. What is used in SQL to indicate that there is no value?
- 🗆 🛛 A. Zero
- □ **B.** Empty quotes
- C. NULL
- □ **D.** Spaces
- 5. You want to use a table to store results for each session but do not want to recreate the table for every session. What type of table should you create?
- □ **A.** History column table
- □ **B.** Global temporary table
- □ **C.** Local temporary table
- **D.** Virtual table
- 6. What character is used to terminate SQL statements?
- $\Box$  **A.** ? (question mark)
- $\square$  **B.** : (colon)
- $\Box$  **C.** ; (semicolon)
- $\Box$  **D.** . (period)
- 7. What SELECT statement is not recommended for use with column tables?
- □ A. SELECT \*
- □ **B.** SELECT with a time-travel clause

- □ C. SELECT ALL
- **D.** SELECT in a subquery
- 8. True or False: A union returns all values in a result set, even duplicate records.
- $\Box$  **A.** True
- □ **B.** False
- 9. What character is prepended to a SQLScript variable when it is used as an input variable?
- $\Box$  **A.** ! (exclamation mark)
- □ **B.** : (colon)
- □ C. \_ (underscore)
- □ **D.** & (ampersand)
- 10. What should you keep in mind when using imperative logic in SQLScript?
- □ **A.** It delivers the best possible performance.
- □ **B.** You can only use if-then logic.
- □ **C.** You can loop through records.
- □ **D.** It matches SQL's set-oriented paradigm.
- 11. What should you keep in mind when using dynamic SQL? (There are 2 correct answers.)
- □ **A.** It is always bad for security.
- $\square$  **B.** It could be used for SQL injection.
- □ **C.** You can dynamically change your data sources.
- **D.** It delivers the best possible performance.
- **12.** You created a user-defined function with a return type of BIGINT. What type of function have you created?
- $\Box$  **A.** SQL function
- □ **B.** Scalar function

- □ **C.** Table function
- **D**. Window function
- 13. In which programming languages can you create procedures in SAP HANA? (There are 2 correct answers.)
- □ A. SQLScript
- 🗆 **B.** L
- □ C. JavaScript
- 🗆 **D.** R
- 14. You created a user-defined function with the INVOKER security option. Which user's authorizations are checked when the function is executed?
- $\Box$  **A.** The owner of the function
- □ **B.** The \_SYS\_REPO user
- □ **C.** The SYSTEM user
- **D.** The user calling the function
- 15. You created a procedure without defining the security option. Which user's authorizations are checked when the procedure is executed in production?
- □ **A.** The user calling the function
- □ **B.** The system administrator that transported the procedure
- □ **C.** The \_SYS\_REPO user
- **D.** The developer that created the procedure
- 16. What is the preferred way to create a procedure?
- □ **A.** Use the CREATE PROCEDURE statement in the SQL Console.
- **B.** Create a .procedure file.
- **C.** Create a .hdbprocedure file.
- **D.** Use the context menu of a package.

- 17. With which statement can you call a table function? (There are 2 correct answers.)
- 🗆 A. CALL
- □ **B.** INSERT INTO
- □ C. SELECT
- $\square$  **D.** EXEC
- 18. What statement is allowed in a user-defined function?
- □ A. COMMIT
- $\square$  **B.** EXEC
- □ C. INSERT
- 🗆 D.JOIN
- 19. You want to call a procedure in a SELECT statement (like a table function). Which clauses do you have to specify? (There are 2 correct answers.)
- □ A. LANGUAGE SQLSCRIPT
- □ **B.** WITH RESULTS VIEW
- □ C. SEQUENTIAL EXECUTION
- □ **D.** READS SQL DATA
- 20. What statement do you have to run before you can return table results from a procedure?
- □ A. CREATE TABLE TYPE
- □ **B.** CREATE TYPE
- □ C. CREATE TABLE
- □ **D.** CREATE VIEW
- 21. What SQL construct do you use to return multiple result sets from a single SQL statement?
- □ A. GROUPING SETS
- □ **B.** SELECT subquery
- 🗆 C. JOIN
- D. UNION

- 22. What can be used to return multiple result sets?
- □ **A.** Scalar function
- □ **B.** Table function
- □ **C.** Procedure
- $\Box$  **D.** View
- 23. What should you keep in mind about user-defined functions?
- □ **A.** They can use imperative logic.
- □ **B.** They can commit transactions.
- □ **C.** They can use dynamic SQL.
- **D.** They can call procedures.
- 24. What should you keep in mind about procedures? (There are 3 correct answers.)
- $\Box$  **A.** They can call views.
- □ **B.** They are NOT open to SQL injection.
- □ **C.** They must return values.
- **D.** They may have input parameters.
- **E.** They can call table functions.
- 25. What is a new and recommended way to work with SQL and SQLScript?
- □ **A.** Use CE-functions rather than SQL syntax.
- □ **B.** Use .procedure files rather than creating SQL and SQLScript via the package context menu.
- □ **C.** Use table functions rather than scripted calculation views.
- **D.** Create runtime objects rather than design-time objects.
- 26. Which tasks are part of the migration tool workflow? (There are 2 correct answers.)
- □ **A.** The tool requires a graphical calculation view as input.
- **B.** The tool requires a script-based calculation view as input.
- □ **C.** The tool produces only a table function.
- **D.** The tool produces a table function linked to a graphical calculation view.

# **Practice Question Answers and Explanations**

1. Correct answer: A

SQL language uses a set-oriented paradigm. Object-oriented and procedural paradigms are used for application-level programming languages. SQL is database-focused rather than application-focused. (Imperative logic is more application-focused.)

2. Correct answer: D

The SELECT statement belongs to the Data Query Language (DQL) subset of SQL. Data Manipulation Language (DML) refers to SQL statements like INSERT and UPDATE. Data Definition Language (DDL) refers to creating tables and so on. Data Control Language (DCL) refers to security.

3. Correct answer: A

True. Yes, delimited identifiers are treated as case-sensitive. Undelimited (without quotes) identifiers are treated as if they were written in uppercase.

4. Correct answer: C

NULL is used in SQL to indicate that there is no value.

5. Correct answer: **B** 

A GLOBAL TEMPORARY table stores results for each session, but you do not have to recreate the table for every session. It is persisted. History column and virtual tables are not related to sessions. A local temporary table deletes the table after each session.

6. Correct answer: C

A semicolon (;) is used to terminate SQL statements.

7. Correct answer: A

A SELECT \* statement is not recommended for use with column tables. Column tables are stored per column, and SELECT \* forces the database to read every column. It becomes much faster when it can ignore entire columns.

8. Correct answer: B

False. A UNION ALL statement returns all values in a result set, even duplicate records. UNION only returns the unique records.

9. Correct answer: B

A colon (:) is prepended to a SQLScript variable when it is used as an input variable.

10. Correct answer: C

You can loop through records using imperative logic in SQLScript. It does NOT deliver the best possible performance. Declarative logic (the set-oriented paradigm) is much faster. The word *only* makes this statement "You can *only* use if-then logic" false, because we can also use loop logic with imperative logic.

11. Correct answers: B, C

Dynamic SQL can be used for SQL injection, and you can dynamically change your data sources. The word *always* makes the "It is *always* bad for security" statement false. Dynamic SQL does NOT deliver the best possible performance.

12. Correct answer: B

You create a scalar function when it has a return type of BIGINT. This returns a single value, and not a table-like result set. SQL functions and window functions are not user-defined functions.

13. Correct answers: A, D

You can create procedures in SQLScript and R in SAP HANA.

14. Correct answer: D

A user-defined function with the INVOKER security option checks the authorizations of the user calling the function when this function is executed. The \_SYS\_REPO user is used if the DEFINER security option is used. The owner of the function is no longer applicable once the function has been transported to the production system. The SYSTEM user is never used in this context.

15. Correct answer: C

You first have to know that the default security option for a procedure is the DEFINER security option.

The \_SYS\_REPO user is used if the DEFINER security option is used. The user calling the function is used for the INVOKER security option. The developer of the procedure is no longer applicable once the function has been transported to the production system.

16. Correct answer: C

The preferred way to create a procedure is to create a .hdbprocedure file. All the other methods are deprecated! (This shows how much things have changed over the last few years.)

17. Correct answers: C, D

You can call a table function with SELECT and EXEC statements. EXEC can be used to build a dynamic SQL statement that contains a SELECT statement, for example. You CANNOT use a function to INSERT INTO, because it's read-only. CALL is how procedures are called.

18. Correct answers: C, D

JOIN is allowed in a user-defined function. COMMIT, EXEC, and INSERT are not read-only statements. A UDF will not even activate when you have these in the function.

19. Correct answers: B, D

You need the WITH RESULTS VIEW and READS SQL DATA clauses to call a procedure in a SELECT statement.

20. Correct answer: B

You have to run a CREATE TYPE statement before you can return table results from a procedure.

CREATE TABLE TYPE is deprecated.

21. Correct answers: C, D

GROUPING SETS can return multiple result sets from a single SQL statement. All the other statements use multiple sources, but return a single result set.

22. Correct answers: C, D

Procedures can return multiple result sets. Table functions and views can only return single result sets. Scalar functions return (multiple) single values, not sets.

23. Correct answer: A

UDFs can use imperative logic. They cannot commit transactions or use dynamic SQL (because they are read-only), and they cannot call procedures. (However, procedures can call UDFs.)

24. Correct answers: A, D, E

Procedures can call views and table functions, and they may have input parameters. They may, but not *must*, return values. Because they can use dynamic SQL, they are open to SQL injection.

25. Correct answer: C

We recommend using table functions rather than scripted calculation views.

#### 26. Correct answers: B, D

The migration tool workflow requires a script-based calculation view as input, and it produces a table function linked to a graphical calculation view. Graphical calculation views do not need to be migrated. It produces not *only* a table function, but also a graphical calculation view.

# Takeaway

You have new tools and approaches in your modeling toolbox! We started by providing a basic understanding of SQL and how to use it with your SAP HANA information models. You learned about SQLScript in SAP HANA and discovered how it extends and complements SQL, especially by creating and using UDFs and procedures with your graphical SAP HANA information views.

We also discussed how the SAP HANA modeling environment with SQL and SQLScript has changed over the last few years and how to work with the new and recommended approaches.

# Summary

There is now less focus on SQL and SQLScript in our modeling workflow than in the past. We have new tools and approaches to accommodate the changes that have happened in SAP HANA over the last few years as it has matured. You should now be up-to-date with the SQL and SQLScript working environments and know how to use them in your SAP HANA information modeling.

In the next chapter, we will start using exciting features in SAP HANA for searching and analyzing text, utilizing spatial features, and leveraging predictive library functions.

# Text, Spatial, and Predictive Modeling

# Techniques You'll Master

- Know how to create a text search index
- Discover fuzzy text search, text analysis, and text mining
- Understand the key components of spatial processing
- Get to know the types of prediction algorithms
- Learn how to create a predictive analysis model

Now that you understand the basics of SAP HANA information modeling, it's time to take your knowledge to the next level. In this chapter, we will cover three different topics: text, spatial, and predictive modeling. These three topics are independent from each other but can be combined in projects; for an example, see the Real-World Scenario box.

We'll begin our discussion with text modeling—specifically, how to search and find text even if the user misspells it, how to analyze text to find sentiment, and how to mine text in documents. Next, we'll discuss spatial processing and how to combine business data with maps. Finally, we'll look at how to build a predictive analysis model for business users.

# **Real-World Scenario**

You are working on an SAP HANA project at a pharmaceutical company. The company has created a mobile web application with SAP HANA for its sales representatives. However, users are struggling to find products on their mobile phones, because the keyboard is small and the names of the pharmaceutical products are quite difficult to type correctly. Therefore, you implement a fuzzy text search, via which users type roughly what they want, and the SAP HANA system finds the correct products. The company later tells you that this also helped users avoid adding duplicate entries into the system.

You improve this mobile application by suggesting products to the sales reps. You create a predictive analysis model in SAP HANA to help with their sales forecasting by looking at the seasonal patterns to determine when people use certain products more—for example, in the winter.

You also notice that there were many comments about the company's products on Facebook and Twitter. You process these comments in SAP HANA and can quickly tell the marketing department which products people are talking about—and alert the company if people are making negative comments about any product. You provide special alerts to the sales reps to inform the customers about these products.

You finally add some what-if map-based analytics to the mobile app so that sales reps can change the areas where they are working and see the impact on their projected sales figures.

And of course, you win the "Best Employee" award for the year!

# **Objectives of This Portion of the Test**

The purpose of this portion of the SAP HANA certification exam is to test your knowledge of the SAP HANA modeling tools.

The certification exam expects you to have a good understanding of the following topics:

- How to create a text search index
- ► Fuzzy text search, text analysis, and text mining
- The key components of spatial processing
- The types of prediction algorithms
- How to create a predictive analysis model

#### Note

This portion contributes up to 10% of the total certification exam score.

# **Key Concepts Refresher**

We've all heard of the website Google: You type in a few words, and the Google search engine returns a list of web pages that best meet your search query, ranked to your preferences. It is also used to indicate when you type a word incorrectly and suggests another spelling, with the question, DID YOU MEAN...? Now, however, the Google search engine has become so confident that it no longer suggests the correction with a qualifying question, but instead says SHOW-ING RESULTS FOR.... If you're convinced you're original entry is correct, it will allow you to SEARCH INSTEAD FOR [whatever you entered]. Even more revolutionary is the search engine's ability to predict what you want as you type.

Google search is a good example of what we can do with SAP HANA in information models: We can perform fuzzy text searches, like the "Did you mean" example; we can perform text mining to find the best document out of a large collection for a user; and we can perform predictive analysis.

In this chapter, we will also look at text and sentiment analysis and spatial and geo-spatial processing.

# Text

First, let's look at working with the text features in SAP HANA—namely, *fault-tolerant text searches, text analysis*, and *text mining*. However, before we can discuss each of these topics in more detail, you first need to create a full-text index.

# Text Index

To enable the text features in SAP HANA, you need a *full-text index*. Depending on what you specify when you create the full-text index, it gives access to one or more text features. The full-text index will use additional memory to provide the requested text features.

<u>Listing 9.1</u> provides an example of a SQL statement to create a full-text index. In this case, we create a full-text index with the name DEMO\_TEXT\_INDEX on a column called SOME\_TEXT in a column table.

```
CREATE FULLTEXT INDEX DEMO_TEXT_INDEX ON
"TEXT_INDEX"."DEMO_TEXT" ("SOME_TEXT")
LANGUAGE DETECTION ('EN')
SEARCH ONLY ON
FUZZY SEARCH INDEX ON
TEXT ANALYSIS ON
CONFIGURATION 'EXTRACTION_CORE_VOICEOFCUSTOMER'
TEXT MINING OFF;
```

Listing 9.1 SQL Statement to Create a Full-Text Index

Let's examine the different text elements of the SQL statement in Listing 9.1:

► CREATE FULLTEXT INDEX

The first line creates a full-text index from the SOME\_TEXT column in the DEMO\_TEXT table.

## LANGUAGE DETECTION

SAP HANA will attempt to detect the language of your text. You can specify on what languages it should focus with this clause. In this case, we indicated that our text is all in English.

## SEARCH ONLY ON

This clause saves some memory by not copying the source text into the full-text index.

#### ► FUZZY SEARCH INDEX ON

Enables or disables the fault-tolerant search feature. This feature is also called *fuzzy text search*.

#### ► TEXT ANALYSIS ON

Enables or disables the text analysis feature.

#### ► CONFIGURATION

Name of the configuration. The text analysis feature needs a configuration file. Some standard configurations ship with SAP HANA, and you can also create your own.

#### TEXT MINING OFF

Enables or disables the text-mining feature.

#### Note

You normally put the SQL statement in Listing 9.1 in a procedure (using a .hdbprocedure file). This way, you can deploy it later on the production system. The recommended way to create full-text indexes going forward is using Core Data Services (CDS). You can find the CDS syntax in the SAP HANA Search Developer Guide at http://help.sap.com/hana\_options\_adp.

You now can open the definition of the column table by double-clicking the table's name in the CATALOG area. In the INDEXES tab, you'll see the full-text index named DEMO\_TEXT\_INDEX that you just created. When you select this index, you'll see the details of the full-text index as shown in Figure 9.1.

You can see from the checkboxes that we enabled FUZZY SEARCH and TEXT ANAL-YSIS and disabled TEXT MINING in this index.

When fuzzy search is enabled for text-type columns, the full-text index increases the memory size of the columns by approximately an additional 10 percent. When text analysis is enabled, the increase in the memory size due to the fulltext index depends on many factors, but it can be as large as that of the column itself.

SAP HANA will automatically create full-text indexes for columns with data types TEXT, BINTEXT, and SHORTTEXT.

(								
TEXT_INDEX.DEMO_1	TEXT S3							
RDL (SYSTEM) 19	2.168.124.130 00							Be   O 🤣 🖾
Table Name:				Schema		Т	rpe:	
DEMO_TEXT				TEXT_IN	IDEX	v (	olumn Store	~
Columns Indexes Further Pro	perties Runtime Information							
Name Type Indexed Columns								
1 DEMO_TEXT_INDEX	Full-Text Index	"SOME_TEXT"						
Column Name:	SOME_TEXT V Lang	uage Column:	~	Mime Type Column:	~	Fuzzy Search	Text Mining	
SQL Data Type:	NVARCHAR Lang	uage Detection:	'EN'	Mime Type:	~	Search Only	Text Analysis	
Column Store Data Type:	STRING	e Index Ratio:	0.2	Configuration:	EXTRACTION_CORI	Fast Preprocess	Token Separators: /;,.:0	[]<>!?*@+{}="8¢#\$~
						$\square$		
Synchronous means that a will be processed in the ba	n SQL insert (or update) statement ckoround by a queue, so that an S	will return after t OL insert (or upd	the data has been com ate) statement will retu	pletely processed. Async im before the analysis ha	hronous means that new d s finished.	ita		
Synchronour Acu	nchronour			,,				
Synchronods @ Asy	incinionous				/			
Every	minutes					T	)	
After	documents			Fuzzy	Search	I ext Mining		
				Searc	h Only	Text Analysis		
					,		)	

#### Figure 9.1 Full-Text Index Details

For other column types, you must manually create the full-text index. You can only manually create a full-text index for columns with the VARCHAR, NVARCHAR, ALPHANUM, CLOB, NCLOB, and BLOB data types.

When you manually create an index, SAP HANA attaches a hidden column to the column you indexed. This hidden column contains extracted textual data from the source column; the original source column remains unchanged. Search queries are performed on the hidden column, but the data returned is from the source column.



#### Тір

Remember that a full-text index is created for a specific column, not for the entire table. You will have to create a full-text index for every column that you wish to search or analyze.

#### **Text Search**

When you've created a full-text index with the FUZZY SEARCH option enabled, you can do fault-tolerant searches on your text data. (These are also called *fuzzy searches.*) This means we can misspell words, and SAP HANA will still find the text for us. The real-world scenario at the beginning of the chapter illustrates this point in a somewhat exaggerated manner.

SAP HANA will find alternative (US and UK) spellings for words like *color/colour*, *artifact/artefact*, *utilize/utilise*, and *check/cheque*. Incorrectly entered words such as typing *coat*, will still return the correct word, which was probably *cost*.

In <u>Chapter 8</u>, we discussed the LIKE operator in SQL. You can search for a random pharmaceutical product name (like Guaiphenesin) via the following SQL statement:

SELECT productname, price from Products where productname LIKE '%UAIPH%';

This will find the name if you type the first few characters correctly. If you search for "%AUIPH%" instead, you won't find anything.

#### **CONTAINS Predicate**

In SAP HANA, you can use the CONTAINS predicate to use the fuzzy text search feature. In this case, you use the following SQL statement:

```
SELECT SCORE(), productname, price from Products where
CONTAINS(productname, 'AUIPH', FUZZY(0.8)) ORDER BY SCORE() DESC;
```



Remember that your users will not type SQL statements; you'll create these statements in a user-defined function (UDF) or a procedure and call them from your graphical calculation view or your SAP HANA XS application.

The CONTAINS predicate uses the column name you want to search on, the search string itself (even if misspelled), and how "fuzzy" you want the search to be. The fuzziness factor can range from zero (everything matches) to one (requires an exact match).

The SCORE() function helps sort the results from the most relevant to the least relevant.

If you want to search on all columns with a full-text search index, you can specify the CONTAINS predicate as follows:

```
CONTAINS (*, 'AUIPH', FUZZY(0.8))
```

When you search on multiple columns at once, it's called a *freestyle search*. In this case, the asterisk (\*) includes all columns. However, you also can specify which columns you want to include or exclude in the list.

There are some special characters you can use in the search string:

#### Double quotes (")

Everything between the double quotes is searched for exactly as it appears.

Asterisk (\*)

Replaces zero or more characters in the search string; for example, *cat\** matches *cats*, *catalogues*, and so on.

Question mark (?)

Replaces a single character in the search string; for example, *cat?* matches *cats*, but not *catalogue*.

#### SAP HANA Simple Info Access API

The *SAP HANA simple info access* (SINA) API is a client-side JavaScript API for developing your own web-based search interfaces. <u>Figure 9.2</u> shows a demo text search application created with the SINA toolkit.



Figure 9.2 SAP HANA Simple Info Access Demo Search Application

#### Note

SAP HANA now includes an embedded search via the built-in sys.esh\_ search()procedure. With this procedure, you can use an existing ABAP SQL connection instead of an XS OData service for fuzzy text searches in SAP HANA from SAP business applications.

For more information on this new API, see the SAP HANA Search Developer Guide at *http://help.sap.com/hana\_options\_adp*.

#### Fuzzy Text Search in Attribute Views

To date, you can only use fuzzy text searches directly in attribute views; this is one of the few reasons that SAP HANA SPS 11 still uses attributes.

<u>Figure 9.3</u> shows the SEARCH PROPERTIES tab in which you can see an output column's properties. Here, you can enable fuzzy text search for a column and with a particular FUZZINESS THRESHOLD.



Figure 9.3 Output Column Fuzzy Text Search Properties in an Attribute View

#### **Text Analysis**

Once you've created a full-text index with the TEXT ANALYSIS option enabled, you can analyze text with the SAP HANA text analysis feature, both via entity analysis and sentiment analysis.

#### Working with Text Analysis

You create text analysis via the full-text index. The abbreviated statement is as follows:

```
CREATE FULLTEXT INDEX INDEX_NAME ON TABLE_NAME ("COLUMN_NAME")
TEXT ANALYSIS ON
CONFIGURATION 'CONFIG_NAME';
```

You need the TEXT ANALYSIS ON clause and a CONFIGURATION NAME; there are a few built-in configurations, but you can also create your own industry-specific configuration files.

In the earlier example shown in <u>Figure 9.1</u>, we created the full-text index (called DEMO\_TEXT\_INDEX) on the DEMO\_TEXT table. When you look at the table in the CATALOG area, you'll notice that SAP HANA has created an additional table: \$TA\_DEMO\_TEXT\_INDEX (see <u>Figure 9.4</u>). This is the name of the full-text index we created, prepended with \$TA\_.



Figure 9.4 Source Table (DEMO\_TEXT) and \$TA\_ Text Analysis Results Table

You'd expect \$TA\_ to denote *text analysis*—and that's exactly right. You get the text analysis request results back in table \$TA.

ŧ.

Hint

Table \$TA is not the full-text index; it contains the results of the text analysis.

The original table included the following values in the SOME\_TEXT column:

- ► Laura likes apples. Laura dislikes chocolate.
- ► Colin loves running.
- ▶ Danie works for SAP.

#### Figure 9.5 shows the text analysis request results.

🗎 RDL -	TEXT_IND	EX.\$TA_DEMO_TEX	T_INDEX 23							
RDL (	(SYST	EM) 192.168.12	4.130 00							Ge 🤣
SEL	ECT TOP	0 1000 * FROM	"TEXT_INDE	X"."\$TA_DEMO_TEXT_I	NDEX"					^
	ID	TA_RULE	TA_COUNTER	TA_TOKEN	TA_LANGUAGE	TA_TYPE	TA_NORMALIZED	TA_STEM	TA_PARAGRAPH	TA_SENTENCE
1	1	Entity Extraction	1	Laura	en	PERSON	?	?	1	1
2	1	Entity Extraction	2	Laura likes apples	en	Sentiment	?	?	1	1
3	1	Entity Extraction	3	Laura	en	Topic	?	?	1	1
4	1	Entity Extraction	4	likes	en	WeakPositiveSentiment	?	?	1	1
5	1	Entity Extraction	5	apples	en	Topic	?	?	1	1
6	1	Entity Extraction	6	Laura	en	PERSON	?	?	2	2
7	1	Entity Extraction	7	Laura dislikes chocolate	en	Sentiment	?	?	2	2
8	1	Entity Extraction	8	Laura	en	Topic	?	?	2	2
9	1	Entity Extraction	9	dislikes	en	WeakNegativeSentiment	?	?	2	2
10	1	Entity Extraction	10	chocolate	en	Topic	?	?	2	2
11	2	Entity Extraction	1	Colin	en	PERSON	?	?	1	1
12	2	Entity Extraction	2	Colin loves running	en	Sentiment	?	?	1	1
13	2	Entity Extraction	3	Colin	en	Topic	?	?	1	1
14	2	Entity Extraction	4	loves	en	StrongPositiveSentiment	?	?	1	1
15	2	Entity Extraction	5	running	en	Topic	?	?	1	1
16	3	Entity Extraction	1	Danie	en	PERSON	?	?	1	1
17	3	Entity Extraction	2	SAP	en	ORGANIZATION/COMMERCIAL	?	?	1	1

#### Figure 9.5 \$TA\_ Text Analysis Results Table Content

The text analysis determined the following points:

- ► It identified Laura, Colin, and Danie as people.
- It classified SAP as an organization.
- It identified apples, chocolate, and running as topics.
- It rated Laura liking apples as a weak positive sentiment.
- It rated Laura disliking chocolate as a weak negative sentiment.
- It determined that Colin loving running is a strong positive sentiment.

With a different text analysis configuration file, we would have received different results.

Using the standard configuration files, you will be able to identify many of the attributes (master data) in your text data. Identifying measures is not always that easy, however.

#### SAP HANA Text Analysis XS JavaScript API

From SAP HANA SPS 10 on, the SAP HANA Text Analysis XS JavaScript API is available. With this API, you can call text analysis without creating a full-text index or reading the results in the \$TA table.

#### Grammatical Role Analysis

SAP HANA SPS 11 makes the optional Grammatical Role Analysis (GRA) analyzer for English available. It identifies groups of three in the form of subject–verb–object expressions.

For an example, let's look at a well-known phrase:

```
The [SUBJECT]quick brown fox[/SUBJECT] [VERB]jumps[/VERB] over the [DIRECTOBJECT]]azy dog[/DIRECTOBJECT]
```

#### **Text Mining**

Fuzzy searches and text analysis work with a word, sentence, or paragraph—but with text mining, you can work with entire documents. These documents can be web pages, Microsoft Word documents, or PDF files that are loaded into SAP HANA.

*Text mining* uses the full-text indexing and text analysis processes. When using text mining in SAP HANA, you can perform the following tasks:

- Categorize documents
- ► Find top-ranked terms related to a particular term
- Analyze a document to find key phrases that describe the document
- See a list of documents related to the one you ask about
- Access documents that best match your search terms

You can call the text mining features from SQL functions or from web applications that can use the SAP HANA Text Mining XS JavaScript API.

#### Тір

Remember that users will not work at the lower level that we have described in this chapter: They will want to use text features from a browser-based application interface. This is why SAP has focused on supplying various SAP HANA XS JavaScript APIs for SAP HANA modelers and developers. Now that you know how to work with text data in SAP HANA and can use faulttolerant text searches, text analysis, and text mining in SAP HANA modeling work, let's move on to spatial processing.

# Spatial

The next topic we'll discuss is understanding spatial processing in SAP HANA.



Geospatial processing is a subset of spatial processing related to geography. Spatial processing can include CAD models or even the human body and uses a three-dimensional coordinate system that differs from the geospatial coordinates of longitude, latitude, and height above sea level.

We first mentioned spatial processing in <u>Chapter 4</u> when we discussed spatial joins. Now, let's take a closer look at spatial joins in an SAP HANA system.

#### **Spatial Data Types and Joins**

<u>Figure 9.6</u> shows two tables that contain spatial data. One table contains shop locations, and the other table contains city suburb shapes.



Figure 9.6 Two Tables Containing Spatial Data, with a Spatial Join

Here, we stored the shop locations in table GEO\_SHOP, using the ST\_POINT data type.

The following spatial data types are available:

## ST\_Geometry

This the supertype for all the other spatial data types; you can store objects like linestrings, polygons, and circles in this data type. Then you can use the TREAT expression to specify which data type you want to work with. For example, TREAT(geometry1 AS ST\_Polygon).ST\_Area() will take a geometry, treat it like a polygon, and ask the size of the polygon's area.

# ST\_Point

A *point* is a single location in space with X and Y coordinates at a minimum. It can also have a Z coordinate for three-dimensional spatial data. Points are often used to represent addresses, as in the shop example in <u>Figure 9.6</u>.

# ST\_MultiPoint

A *multipoint* is a collection of points. For example, it could represent all the different locations (addresses) where a company has shops.

# ST\_LineString

A *linestring* is a line, which can be used to represent rivers, railroads, and roads. In the shop example, it could represent a delivery route.

# ST\_MultiLineString

A *multilinestring* is a collection of linestrings. In the shop example, this collection could include all the deliveries that a shop has to make on a certain day for which the driver goes to different customers or suppliers.

# ST\_Polygon

A *polygon* defines an area. In the shop example, this is used to represent the suburbs in the second table (<u>Figure 9.6</u>; most suburbs do not have regular square shapes).

# ST\_MultiPolygon

A *multipolygon* is a collection of polygons; for example, the suburbs could be combined to indicate the area of the city or town.

# ST\_CircularString

A *circularstring* is a connected sequence of circular arc segments, much like a linestring with circular arcs between points.

You can join different data spatial types together in a spatial join. Figure 9.7 shows the details of a spatial join. Notice that the SPATIAL PROPERTIES tab is
available for this join type. The PREDICATE dropdown list in this tab allows you to specify how to join the fields.

te Edit Join	
Edit Join	
Edit join definition	
Left Table	Right Table
TRAINERA".GEO_SHOP	Swap Trainera".geo_suburb
Left Column	Right Column
<b>Filter</b> pattern	🌱 Filter pattern
- 12 SHOP_ID	- 12 SUBURB_ID
RB SHOP_NAME	AB SUBURB_NAME
SHOP_LOCATION	
Properties	
Join Type: Inner	Cardinality:
🗖 Dynamic Join	Language Column:
	_
Temporal Properties Spatial Properties	
Predicate: Contains	Distance:
Execute join if predicate	Intersection Matrix:
condition evaluates to: Covered by Covers	
Crosses Disjoint	
Equals	
Choose Validate Join Overlaps	Type and Cardinality, which you can use in your join definition.
Touches	
Within Within Distance	
	Validate Join OK Cancel

#### Figure 9.7 Spatial Join Details

In the shop example, we will use the CONTAINS option, because we want to see which suburb contains which shop addresses (locations).

# Тір

Please don't confuse the CONTAINS option in the spatial joins with the CONTAINS predicate we used when executing a fuzzy text search.

#### Importing and Exporting Spatial Data

In SAP HANA, you can import and export spatial data in the Well-Known Text (WKT) and the Well-Known Binary (WKB) formats. These formats are part of the Open Geospatial Consortium (OGC) standards. You can also import and export the extended versions of these formats, which are used by PostGIS.

In addition, SAP HANA can import ESRI shapefiles and export spatial data in the GeoJSON and Scalable Vector Graphic (SVG) file formats. The SVG file format is maintained by World Wide Web Consortium (W3C) and supported by all modern browsers.

# **Spatial Functions**

You saw an example of a spatial function earlier when we asked for the area of a polygon to be calculated—for example, geometry1.ST\_Area().

Referring back to <u>Figure 9.7</u>, you can ask if a shop's location is in a suburb as follows:

```
SUBURB_SHAPE.ST_CONTAINS(SHOP_LOCATION1)
```

You can also see how far two shops are from each other as follows:

SHOP\_LOCATION1. ST\_WITHINDISTANCE(SHOP\_LOCATION2)

# **Additional Resources**

To learn more about spatial processing in SAP HANA, look at the examples in the SHINE demo content. Here, you can find examples like the one in <u>Figure 9.8</u>, in which you can work with shops on a map on the left of the screen and see their details in the area on the right.



Figure 9.8 Spatial Data Used in a Business Application (SHINE Demo Content)

You can find more information about spatial data in the SAP HANA Spatial Reference Guide at *http://help.sap.com/hana\_options\_spatial*.

# Predictive

Now, let's discuss predictive analysis. We'll look at the SAP HANA predictive analysis libraries and how to use them to create a predictive analysis model.

In this section, we'll look at predicting future probabilities and trends and how you can use this functionality in business. In the real-world scenario at the beginning of the chapter, we described a use case in which you might create a predictive model in SAP HANA to help sales reps with their sales forecasting by looking at seasonal patterns; for example, people use more pharmaceuticals for allergies in the spring.

There are many use cases for the predictive analysis libraries built into SAP HANA: For financial institutions such as banks, you can detect fraud by looking at abnormal transactions. For fleet management and car rental companies, you can predict which parts will break soon in a vehicle and replace them before they actually break.

#### **Predictive Analysis Library**

In SAP HANA, the predictive analysis functions are grouped together in the *Predictive Analysis Library* (PAL). PAL defines functions that you can call from SQL-Script and use to perform various predictive analysis algorithms. The algorithms were chosen by looking at what SAP HANA applications need, what people commonly use, and what the market requests.

In PAL, predictive analysis algorithms are grouped in nine categories; we'll take a quick look at the nine categories and discuss a few popular algorithms in some of these categories. <u>Figure 9.9</u> provides an overview. The categories are as follows:

#### Clustering

With clustering, you divide data into groups (clusters) of items that have similar properties. For example, you can group servers with similar usage characteristics, like email servers that all have a lot of network traffic on port 25 during the day. You might use the popular *K-means* algorithm for this purpose. Another example is computer vision, in which you cluster pictures of human faces using the *affinity propagation* algorithm. Clustering is sometimes also called *segmentation*. The focus of clustering is the algorithm figuring out by itself what is the best way to group existing data together.

# Classification

The process of classification takes historical data and trains predictive models—using, for example, *decision trees*. You can then send new data to the predictive model you've trained, and the model will attempt to predict which class the new data belongs to. This process is often referred to as *supervised learning*. The focus here is on getting accurate predictions for unknown data.

# Regression

Regression plots the best possible line or curve through the historical data. You can then use that line or curve to predict future values. This could be used by the previously mentioned car rental company. The company has had 5,000 of these vehicles before, and so it has good information available to predict when certain parts in a similar vehicle will break.

## Association

For an example of an association, think of Amazon's suggestions: PEOPLE WHO BOUGHT THIS ITEM ALSO BOUGHT THE FOLLOWING ITEMS. The *apriori algorithm* can be used to analyze shopping baskets. It can identify products that are commonly purchased together and group them together in the shop—for example, flashlights and batteries. You could even offer a discount on the flashlights because you know that people will need to buy batteries for them, and you can make enough profit on the batteries. (Notice however that the inverse is not necessarily true; a discount on the batteries will not encourage people to buy flashlights.)

# Time series

For an example of a time series, think of the real-life scenario at the beginning of the chapter, in which we built a predictive model to forecast sales by looking at seasonal patterns. You might also see, for example, a monthly pattern in shops of higher sales after paydays.

# Preprocessing

This category of algorithms is used to prepare data before further processing. These algorithms may improve the accuracy of the predictive models by reducing the noise. You can also identify outliers, or invalid and missing values.

# Statistics

This category includes some statistical algorithms to find out how closely variables are related to—or independent they are from—each other. One example is the *Grubbs' test* algorithm, which is used to detect outliers. This could be used in the fraud detection use case we mentioned earlier, in which certain transactions are different from the others. (Often, we first use a clustering algorithm to group transactions together, and then detect outliers for each group/cluster after.)

# Social network analysis

Currently, the only algorithm in this category is the *link prediction* algorithm, used to predict the likelihood of a future association between two people who have no association yet. This is used by companies like Facebook and Linke-dIn.

# Miscellaneous

Two algorithms fall under this category: The *ABC analysis* algorithm can be used to identify which 20 percent of our customers account for 80 percent of the revenue, and *weighted score tables* can be used to help you decide what to buy when some criteria are more important than others—for example, if you want to buy an SAP HANA server. The speed of the memory weighs more heavily in that decision than disk speeds.

Figure 9.9 shows the PAL algorithms, per category, that are available in SAP HANA SPS 11.

You can find information about each of the PAL predictive functions in the SAP HANA Predictive Analysis Library (PAL) Reference Guide at *http://help.sap.com/ hana\_platform/*.

# Installing PAL

PAL is part of the Application Function Library (AFL) that ships with all SAP HANA systems. AFL is an optional component; if you want to use the predictive analysis algorithms in PAL, you have to install AFL via SAP HANA Application Lifecycle Management. AFL also includes a Business Function Library (BFL).

After the installation, you have to ensure that the script server is started and make sure you have the AFL\_SYS\_AFL\_AFLPAL\_EXECUTE role assigned to your SAP HANA user. (Roles, and how to assign them, are discussed in <u>Chapter 13</u>.)

Clustering	Classification	Regression	Association
Affinity Propagation	Area Under Curve (AUC)	Bi-Variate Geometric Regression	Apriori
Agglomerate Hierarchical Clustering	Back Propagation Neural Network	Bi-Variate Natural Logarithmic	FP-Growth
Anomaly Detection	C4.5 Decision Tree	Regression	K-Optimal Rule Discovery (KORD)
Cluster Assignment	CART Decision Tree	Exponential Regression	
DBSCAN	CHAID Decision Tree	Multiple Linear Regression	Preprocessing
Gaussian Mixture Model (GMM)	Confusion Matrix	Polynomial Regression	Rinning
K-Means	KNN		Rinning Assignment
K-Medians	Logistic Regression (with Elastic	Time Series	Convert Category Type to Binary
K-Medoids	Net Regularization)	ARIMA	Vector
LDA Estimation and Inference	Multi-Class Logistic Regression	Brown Exponential Smoothing	Inter-Quartile Range Test
Self-Organizing Maps	Naive Bayes	Croston's Method	Partition
Slight Silhouette	Parameter Selection and Model Evaluation (PSME)	Forecast Accuracy Measures	Posterior Scaling
	Random Forest	Forecast Smoothing	Principal Component Analysis (PCA)
Statistics	Predict with Tree Model	Linear Regression with Damped	Random Distribution Sampling
Chi-Squared Test for Fitness	Support Vector Machine	Single Exponential Smoothing	Sampling
Chi-Squared Test for Independent		Double Exponential Smoothing	Scaling Range
Cumulative Distribution Function	Social Network Analysis	Triple Exponential Smoothing	Substitute Missing Values
Distribution Fitting	Link Prediction	Seasonality Test	Variance Test
Grubbs' Test	Enk reaction	Trend Test	
Kaplan-Meier Survival Analysis	441	White Noise Test	
Multivariate Statistics	Miscenaneous		
Quantile Function	ABC Analysis		
Univariate Statistics	Weighted Score Fable		
Variance Equal Test			

#### Figure 9.9 Predictive Functions Available in SAP HANA SPS 11, Grouped by Category

You can check if AFL is installed on a system by opening the AFL\_FUNCTIONS view in the SYS schema. If you see lots of entries in this view, then AFL has been installed on that system.

#### **Creating a Predictive Model**

Once PAL is installed, you can create predictive models graphically via the application function modeler (AFM). In <u>Chapter 5</u>, we discussed the steps to create a flowgraph model:

- 1. Create a .hdbflowgraph file in your project in the developer perspective.
- 2. Give your predictive model a name, and choose FLOWGRAPH FOR ACTIVATION AS STORED PROCEDURE.

#### Note

You can also create a predictive model using SQLScript, which is the traditional way to build such models. Building the models graphically using the AFM only became available in the last few releases of SAP HANA.

If you find .aflpmml files, which are AFL models, you will have to convert these to AFM flowgraphs. SAP HANA SPS 11 can still run these files, but you cannot edit them in the AFM.

In the AFM, build a flowgraph model. Start on the left side and work towards the right side, as shown in <u>Figure 9.10</u>. First, drag a table with data into the left side of the work area. Next, select a PAL function from the palette on the right and drag it to the work area. Then, connect the table to the PAL function; the PAL functions are grouped into the categories that we discussed earlier.

In <u>Figure 9.10</u>, we started building the end-to-end scenario to predict segmentation of new customers for a supermarket, as described in the PAL reference guide. The guide describes how to do this by using SQLScript, but it's a good exercise to try to do it via a graphical flowgraph model.



Figure 9.10 Creating a Flowgraph Model in the AFM Tool

Sometimes, you might want to train your model, and then use it later to make predictions. <u>Figure 9.11</u> shows such a model: It starts with some training data that you feed into a *C4.5 decision tree*. The data is used to train the classification

model. You then feed the trained classification model into a prediction function and also give the prediction function some new data. The prediction function applies the trained model to the new data and provides the predicted results in an output table.



Figure 9.11 Predictive Model Created in AFM

SAP HANA automatically converts the graphical flowgraph model into a SQL-Script procedure, and you can then call this procedure when you want to use the predictive model as part of your other SAP HANA information models.

# **Important Terminology**

In this chapter, we looked at the following important terms:

#### Full-text index

Depending on what you specify when you create the full-text index, it gives access to one or more text features. The full-text index will use additional memory to provide the requested text features.

► **Fuzzy text search** Enables or disables the fault-tolerant search feature.

#### ► SAP HANA simple info access (SINA)

The SINA API is a client-side JavaScript API for developing your own webbased search interfaces.

#### Text analysis

Text analysis provides a vast number of possible entity types and analysis rules for many industries in many languages.

#### ► SAP HANA Text Analysis XS JavaScript

With this API, you can call text analysis without creating a full-text index or reading the results in the \$TA table.

#### Text mining

When using text mining in SAP HANA, you can perform the following tasks:

- Categorize documents
- Find top-ranked terms related to a particular term
- Analyze a document to find key phrases that describe the document
- See a list of documents related to the one you ask about
- Access documents that best match your search terms

#### Spatial processing

Simply put, spatial processing uses data to describe, manipulate, and calculate the position, shape, and orientation of objects in a defined space.

#### Predictive Analysis Library (PAL)

Defines functions that you can use to perform various predictive analysis algorithms.

# Practice Questions

These practice questions will help you evaluate your understanding of the topics covered in this chapter. The questions shown are similar in nature to those found on the certification examination. Although none of these questions will be found on the exam itself, they will allow you to review your knowledge of the subject. Select the correct answers, and then check the completeness of your answers in the Practice Question Answers and Explanations section. Remember that on the exam you must select all correct answers and only correct answers to receive credit for the question.

- 1. Which text feature do you use to find sentiment in textual data?
- $\Box$  **A.** Full-text index
- □ **B.** Fuzzy text search
- $\Box$  **C.** Text analysis
- □ **D.** Text mining
- 2. You create a full-text index. For what text feature clause do you need to specify a configuration?
- □ A. SEARCH ONLY
- □ **B.** FUZZY SEARCH INDEX
- □ C. TEXT MINING
- □ **D.** TEXT ANALYSIS
- 3. What is the recommended way to create full-text indexes going forward?
- $\Box$  **A.** User-defined functions
- □ **B.** Procedures
- □ **C.** Core Data Services
- □ **D.** SQL statements in the SQL Console
- 4. For which data types does SAP HANA automatically create full-text indexes? (There are 3 correct answers.)
- □ A. NVARCHAR
- □ **B.** SHORTTEXT
- □ C. BINTEXT
- 🗆 D. CLOB
- □ **E.** TEXT
- 5. What predicate do you use for fuzzy text search in the WHERE clause of a SQL statement?
- □ A. LIKE
- $\square$  **B.** ANY

- □ C.IN
- □ **D.** CONTAINS
- 6. What do you use in a SQL query to sort fuzzy text search results by relevance?
- □ **A.** RANK()
- □ **B.** SCORE()
- □ C. SORT BY
- D. TOP
- 7. What API would you use in SAP HANA SPS 11 to display search results in an ABAP system?
- □ **A.** The esh\_search procedure
- □ **B.** SAP HANA Simple Info Access API (SINA)
- □ C. SAP HANA Text Mining XS JavaScript API
- D. SAP HANA Text Analysis XS JavaScript API
- 8. In what type of view can you use fuzzy text search directly?
- □ **A.** Analytic views
- □ **B.** Calculation views of type dimension
- □ **C.** Calculation views of type cube
- **D.** Attribute views
- 9. True or False: The full-text index is stored in table \$TA.
- 🗆 A. True
- □ **B.** False
- 10. What spatial data type would you use to store multiple shop locations?
- □ A.ST\_Point
- □ **B.**ST\_MultiPoint
- □ C.ST\_Polygon
- □ **D.**ST\_MultiLineString

- 11. Which spatial data formats can you import into SAP HANA? (There are 2 correct answers.)
- □ **A.** Scalable Vector Graphic (SVG)
- □ **B.** Well Known Text (WKT)
- □ **C.** ESRI shapefiles
- D. GeoJSON
- 12. What PAL algorithm category can you use for supervised learning?
- □ **A.** Classification
- □ **B.** Clustering
- □ **C.** Association
- □ **D.** Social network analysis
- 13. What PAL algorithm would you use to analyze shopping baskets?
- □ A. K-means
- □ **B.** Decision tree
- $\Box$  **C.** Apriori
- $\Box$  **D.** Link prediction
- 14. What must be installed for PAL to work?
- □ A. SAP HANA BFL
- □ **B.** SAP HANA AFL
- $\Box$  **C.** SAP HANA AFM
- D. SAP HANA SINA
- 15. What SAP HANA information object does AFM create?
- □ **A.** Attribute view
- □ **B.** Calculation view
- □ **C.** Table function
- □ **D.** Procedure

# **Practice Question Answers and Explanations**

1. Correct answer: C

You use to text analysis (also called *sentiment analysis*) to find sentiment in textual data.

2. Correct answer: D

You need to specify a configuration with the TEXT ANALYSIS clause when you create a full-text index.

3. Correct answer: C

The recommended way going forward to create full-text indexes is using CDS. We never recommend using SQL statements in the SQL Console, because you will have to retype everything again in the production system. Procedures are acceptable and usable, but CDS is the recommended way going forward.

4. Correct answers: **B**, **C**, **E** 

SAP HANA automatically creates full-text indexes for TEXT, BINTEXT, and SHORTTEXT. For NVARCHAR and CLOB, you have to create full-text indexes manually.

5. Correct answer: D

You use the CONTAINS predicate for fuzzy text search in the WHERE clause of a SQL statement. The LIKE predicate only uses exact matching, not fuzzy text search.

6. Correct answer: **B** 

You use the SCORE() function in a SQL query to sort fuzzy text search results by relevance. RANK, SORT BY, and TOP cannot be used to sort SAP HANA fuzzy text search results.

7. Correct answer: A

You use the sys.esh\_search procedure in SAP HANA SPS 11 to display search results in an ABAP system. You can use the current ABAP SQL connection rather than having to use XS JavaScript. SAP HANA SINA is the older SAP HANA XS-based API.

8. Correct answer: D

You use fuzzy text search directly in attribute views; this is currently the only way to use it. This is one of the few reasons to still use attribute views in SAP HANA SPS 11.

9. Correct answer: **B** 

False. The full-text index is NOT stored in the \$TA table.

10. Correct answer: **B** 

Use a ST\_MultiPoint data type to store multiple shop locations. ST\_Point can only store a single shop location, and ST\_Polygon and ST\_Multi-LineString cannot be used for shop locations.

11. Correct answers: B, C

You can import Well Known Text (WKT) and ESRI shapefiles into SAP HANA. You can only export Scalable Vector Graphic (SVG) and GeoJSON file formats.

12. Correct answer: A

You can use the algorithms in the PAL classification category for supervised learning. Clustering is sometimes also called *unsupervised learning*.

13. Correct answer: C

Use the apriori PAL algorithm to analyze shopping baskets.

14. Correct answer: B

You must install AFL for PAL to work. BFL is part of AFL, but completely separate from PAL. AFM is the modeling tool used for graphically designing predictive models, and SAP HANA SINA is the API used for text search.

15. Correct answer: D

AFM creates a procedure.

# **Takeaway**

You now know how to create a text search index for use with the fuzzy text search, text analysis, and text mining features in SAP HANA. You can use these features to provide fault-tolerant searches, sentiment analysis, and document references for the users of your information models.

You should now also understand the key components of spatial processing, which spatial data types are available, and how to perform spatial joins in SAP HANA information views.

Finally, we also discussed the categories and some of the algorithms in PAL and learned how to create a predictive analysis model.

# Summary

We discussed a few aspects of text analysis: how to search and find text even if the user misspells it, how to analyze text to find sentiment, and how to mine text in documents. We explained how to use spatial processing and how to combine business data with maps, and you learned how to build a predictive analysis model for business users.

In the next chapter, we'll look at how to improve SAP HANA information models to achieve optimal performance.

# Optimization of Information Models

# Techniques You'll Master

- Understand the performance enhancements in SAP HANA
- Get to know techniques for optimizing performance
- Learn how to use the SAP HANA optimization tools
- ► Implement good modeling practices for optimal performance
- Create optimal SQL and SQLScript

During our exploration of SAP HANA, we've frequently come across the topic of performance. SAP HANA is well-known for the improvements it brings to business process runtimes and its real-time computing abilities.

In this chapter, we'll discuss some of these performance enhancements built into SAP HANA and review the techniques you've learned previously. We'll then look into new ways of pinpointing performance issues and discuss how to use the optimization tools built into SAP HANA.

Finally, we'll examine some guidelines and best practices when modeling and writing SQL and SQLScript code.

# Real-World Scenario

The CEO of your company reads a 2009 study by Akamai that says that 40 percent of online shoppers will abandon a website that takes longer than three seconds to load.

Therefore, you are tasked to help achieve a response time of less than three seconds for most reports and analytics that sales representatives use. Many such users work on tablets, especially when they are visiting customers. You decide to use a mobile-first approach, creating interactive analytics and reports to reduce network requirements.

Some of the reports currently take more than two minutes to run on SAP HANA. Using your knowledge of optimization, you manage to bring these times down to just a few seconds.

# **Objectives of This Portion of the Test**

The purpose of this portion of the SAP HANA certification exam is to test your knowledge of the SAP HANA modeling tools.

The certification exam expects you to have a good understanding of the following topics:

- ► Performance enhancements in SAP HANA
- Techniques for optimizing performance

- Using the Explain Plan tool, the Visualize Plan tool, the Administration Console, and the Performance Analysis Mode
- Good modeling practices for optimal performance
- Creating optimal SQL and SQLScript

#### Note

This portion contributes up to 10% of the total certification exam score.

# **Key Concepts Refresher**

In the preceding chapters, we've discussed many performance enhancements that are built into the design of SAP HANA; in this chapter, we'll walk through various optimization topics in SAP HANA.

#### Architecture and Performance

The largest and most fundamental change that comes with SAP HANA technology is the move from *disks* to *memory*. The in-memory technology that SAP HANA is built on has been one of the biggest contributors of performance improvements. The decision to break with the legacy of disk-based systems and use in-memory systems as the central focus point (and everything that comes with this) has led to significant changes in performance.

The next step was to combine *memory* and *multicore CPUs*. If we store everything in memory and have plenty of processing power, we do not have to store calculated results. We just recalculate them when we need them—which opens the door to *real-time computing*. Real-time computing requires that results be recalculated each time they're needed, because the data might have changed since the last query.

This combination of memory and CPU processing power led to new innovations. Now, you can combine OLTP and OLAP together in the same system: The OLAP components don't need the storage of precalculated cubes and can be recalculated without impacting the performance of the OLTP system.

Another innovations prompted by combining memory and CPU is *data compression*. This both reduces memory requirements and helps to better utilize CPUs by

loading more data in the level 1 CPU cache. Loading more data into CPUs once again improved performance.

To improve compression, SAP HANA prefers *columnar storage*. Along with many advantages, columnar storage also has a few disadvantages: Inserting new records and updating existing records are not handled as efficiently in column tables as in row tables. To solve this, SAP HANA implemented the *insert-only principle* with *delta buffers*. We use row storage for delta buffers to improve insert speeds and then use *delta merges* to bring the data back to columnar storage, which leads to better read performance.



Тір

The performance improvements in SAP HANA do not mean that we can be negligent in modeling. For example, you should not use SELECT \* statements or choose any unnecessary fields in queries, because doing so decreases the efficiency of the column storage.

Using multicore processors, everything in SAP HANA was designed from the ground up to run in parallel. Even a single aggregation value is calculated using parallelism. This led to SAP HANA growing from a single hardware appliance to a distributed scale-out system that can work across multiple server nodes and finally to multitenant database containers. Tables can now also be partitioned across multiple servers. With more servers, the scale and performance of SAP HANA systems has vastly advanced.

# **Redesigned and Optimized Applications**

While combining memory and processors, we also saw that moving data from memory to application servers is not the optimal way to work with an in-memory database. It makes more sense to push down some of the application logic to the SAP HANA system for fast access to the data in memory and plenty of computing resources for calculations.

SAP started by making SAP HANA available as an accelerator and sidecar solution to improve issues with long-running processes in current systems. Over time, SAP business applications were migrated to SAP HANA and re-engineered to make use of the advantages it offers. With SAP S/4HANA, we now have a system that uses views instead of materialized aggregates in lookup tables, significantly reducing the size of the system, simplifying the code, and enriching the user experience.

# Information Modeling Techniques

In previous chapters, we discussed some techniques that can help optimize information models, such as the following:

- Limit data as quickly as possible. Do this by defining filters on the source data, applying variables in your SAP HANA views, and selecting only the fields that you require in your query results. Also, let SAP HANA perform the calculations and send only the results to a business application, instead of sending lots of data to the application and performing the calculations there.
- ▶ Perform calculations as late as possible. For example, perform aggregation before calculation in analytic views.
- Use referential joins when your data has referential integrity. When working with referential integrity, you do not have to evaluate the join for all queries.
- Similarly, use dynamic joins to optimize the join performance for certain queries.
- Join tables on key fields.
- Use a union instead of a join for combining large sets of data; make unions even more efficient by using union pruning.
- Only use a single fact table in a data foundation of a star join view.
- Build up your information views in layers.

If you use these techniques, you will avoid many optimization hazards. These techniques should be part of your everyday workflow.



#### Tip

The best optimization is no optimization. If you avoid the pitfalls in this chapter, you will not need to optimize later.

In spite of your best efforts, sometimes you need to optimize an information model.

# **Optimization Tools**

When optimizing an SAP HANA information model, a number of tools are at your disposal. You need to know when to pick which optimization tool and how to use it.

## **SAP HANA Engines**

SAP HANA has several internal components called *engines*. Each of these engines is optimized to provide specific functionality for the processing of SAP HANA information models:

#### Row engine

The row engine is used for processing data from row tables and certain features that are traditionally expected from relational databases.

#### Column engine

This engine processes data from the column table and associated features.

#### Join engine

Dimension views almost exclusively use joins between tables and therefore send most of their processing to the join engine.

#### OLAP engine

Star join views are OLAP "cubes." The OLAP engine specializes in handling cube-type processes and is traditionally associated with analytic views.

#### Calculation engine

Calculation views and calculated columns use the calculation engine. The spatial engine is added functionality in the calculation engine that provides the spatial capabilities of SAP HANA.

#### SQL engine

Tip

This engine is used for processing the SAP HANA Live models, which are mostly focused on relational processes.

These engines work together to process information models. However, transferring information from one engine to another can affect performance.

t.

Reduce the amount of data transferred between the engines.

A better idea of how this process between engine works can be seen when using a star join view with calculated columns. In this case, SAP HANA might use the OLAP engine for processing the star join view and the calculation engine for processing the calculated columns. If you plan to use a calculation view of type cube on top of the star join view later, it might make sense to move the calculated columns to the calculation view of type cube. This is in line with our general recommendation to calculate as late as possible.



#### Note

As SAP HANA improves and matures, there will be less emphasis on the engines and the transfer between engines. With SAP HANA now providing a migration tool to help move to calculation views, this implies less emphasis on knowing about and compensating for the transfer between engines.

Now that you have a better understanding of SAP HANA's engines, in the next section we'll begin discussing the tools available for optimizing performance.

## **Explain Plan**

One of the purposes of the *Explain Plan* tool is to show which engines are used when processing an information model and if there is a transfer between engines involved. It also shows what operators are processed—for example, a join, a column table, a column search, or a filter. This tool does not provide any information about the actual processing, such as how many records were processed or how long it took.

You can access the Explain Plan tool from the context menu of the SQL Console.

#### Тір

There is a quick way to reach any SAP HANA view from the SQL Console window: Right-click the name of the view in the CONTENT area and select the GEN-ERATE SELECT SQL option from the context menu. This will open a SQL editor with an equivalent SQL query for the selected information view.

<u>Figure 10.1</u> shows the Purchase Overview calculation view, opened from the SHINE content. From the context menu in the SQL Console, choose the EXPLAIN PLAN option to launch the tool for this SQL query.



Figure 10.1 Open Explain Plan from Context Menu

Figure 10.2 shows the Explain Plan with the SQL query on the top and the execution engines and the names of the operators used when running the SQL query. In the OPERATOR DETAILS column, you can see which tables are used here.

#### Visualize Plan

From the same context menu in the SQL Console, you can also launch the *Visu-alize Plan* tool. The Visualize Plan tool has two options, as shown in Figure 10.3: PREPARE and EXECUTE.

💷 SC	QL <u>h</u> Result			
e E	XPLAIN PLAN FOR			
S	ELECT			
	"PRODUCTID"	,		
	"PRODUCT_TY	PECODE",		
	"PRODUCT_CA	TEGORY",		
	"PRODUCT_CU	RRENCY",		
	"PRODUCT_WE	IGHTUNIT",		
	OPERATOR_NAME	OPERATOR_DETAILS	EXECUTION_ENGINE	DATABASE
1	COLUMN SEARCH	sap.hana.democontent.epm.data::PO.Item.PRODUCTID, sap.hana.democontent.epm.data::MD.P	COLUMN	
2	JOIN	JOIN CONDITION: (INNER) sap.hana.democontent.epm.data::PO.Item.PURCHASEORDERID = sa	COLUMN	
3	COLUMN TABLE		COLUMN	
4	COLUMN TABLE		COLUMN	
5	COLUMN TABLE		COLUMN	
6	COLUMN TABLE		COLUMN	
7	COLUMN TABLE		COLUMN	
8	COLUMN TABLE	FILTER CONDITION: sap.hana.democontent.epm.data::Util.Texts.LANGUAGE = SESSION_CONTE	COLUMN	
9	COLUMN TABLE	FILTER CONDITION: sap.hana.democontent.epm.data::Util.Texts.LANGUAGE = SESSION_CONTE	COLUMN	





Figure 10.3 Visualize Plan Context Menu Options in SQL Console

The Visualize Plan tool visually shows how the SQL query will be prepared and executed. <u>Figure 10.4</u> illustrates the prepared execution plan. The bottom row shows the various column tables that will be read, and the lines going to the next block up (a join node) show how many records will be read from each table. The join node output again shows the number of rows.



Figure 10.4 Prepared Execution Plan Visualized

This information is helpful when you want to reduce the data transferred between layers as quickly as possible or filter as early as possible, as recommended. You can view the prepared plan and find out how many records will be generated in the result set. Then, you can apply a filter, for example, and rerun the prepared plan to see the difference.

Once you've viewed the prepared execution plan, you can execute the SAP HANA information model and call the Visualize Plan tool for the executed plan. You will see the OVERVIEW tab (Figure 10.5).

From the OVERVIEW tab, you can see how long the query took, how much memory it used, the number of tables that were used, and how many records were returned in the result set.

, "PRODUCT_TYPECOD wdfbmt7215:30003 1.00.102.00.1442292917 rel 22.2 MByte(s) 12 5880 5880
-

#### Figure 10.5 Executed Plan Overview Tab

Next to the OVERVIEW tab is the EXECUTED PLAN tab, which shows the executed plan visually, with the execution times for each operator block. You can expand an operator block by clicking on the small triangle at the top-right of the block (see <u>Figure 10.6</u>). Here, you can see the execution time for every block and how many records are passed between the operations.



Figure 10.6 Executed Plan Visualization and Timeline View

<u>Figure 10.6</u> also shows the *timeline view*, which presents timelines for various operations. The top and bottom portions of the screen are linked, so if you select

a line on the timeline view, the corresponding operations block in the top graph is selected as well.

Next to the TIMELINE tab, you'll see the OPERATOR LIST tab (Figure 10.7), which provides more detail on every operator used when executing the query.



Figure 10.7 Executed Plan Visualization and Operator List

As you can see, the Visualize Plan is a powerful tool that can help you optimize SAP HANA information models.

# Administration Console

We briefly mentioned the Administration Console in <u>Chapter 5</u>. There are three tabs that are especially relevant to optimization:

Performance

The PERFORMANCE tab has several subtabs. The SQL PLAN CACHE subtab (shown in Figure 10.8) contains a list of all the SQL statements executed in the SAP HANA system. You can sort this list according to certain criteria, such as the amount of memory used, the number of rows returned, and execution time. That way, you can find the 10 statements that took the most memory

quickly and discover where the memory in your SAP HANA system disappeared to.

You can open any of the SQL statements in the Visualize Plan or in the SQL Console, where you can test variations and measure the impact of your changes.

👪 RDL 😒												-	, 0
🖲 RDL (S	SYSTE	<b>1)</b> 192.168.124	4.130 00						\$	Interval: 60	✓ Sec	onds 📗 🛅	
Overview Lan	ndscape Al	erts Performanc	e Volume	s Configuration	System Information	n Diagnosis Files	Trace Configuration	ı					
Threads Sess	Threads Sessions Blocked Transactions SOL Plan Cache Expensive Statements Trace Job Progress Load												
Enter your f	Enter your filter 👔 Visible rows: 1000/1000 Not all rows are selected. 🖉 Configure 🎲 Filters 👻 🔛 Save as File 💌 🏀									- 🐌			
RB HOST	12 PO	T 12 VOLU	ME_ID	STATEMENT_S	TRING		^			RB STATEMEN	IT_HASH	AB USER	<u>د</u> ه م
localhost localhost	t 30,0 t 30,0	07 03	2 SEL 3 SEL	ECT "PRICE" as T ECT "PRICE" as T	ERM, 'PRICE' as ATT ERM, 'PRICE' as ATT	RIBUTE, COUNT RIBUTE, COUNT	(DISTINCT "PRODUC (DISTINCT "PRODUC	T_ID") as SCOD T_ID") as S	Navigate To	L-35676103-416	48a8f	SYSTEM SYSTEM	
localhost	t 30,0	07	2 SEL	ECT "PRICE" as T	ERM, 'PRICE' as ATT	RIBUTE, COUNT	(DISTINCT "PRODUC	:T_ID") as S 🖕	Quick filter on [SELECT "PRICE" as	TERM1	c4153	SYSTEM	
localhost	t 30,0	03	3 SEL	ECT "PRICE" as T	ERM, 'PRICE' as ATT	RIBUTE, COUNT	(DISTINCT "PRODUC	T_ID") as S	Distinct values for ISTATEMENT ST	RING	c4153	SYSTEM	
localhost	t 30,0	07	2 SEL	ECT "PRICE" as T	ERM, 'PRICE' as ATT	RIBUTE, COUNT	(DISTINCT "PRODUC	T_ID") as S	Company		55fdd	SYSTEM	
localhost	t 30,0	03	3 SEL	ECT "PRICE" as 1	ERM, 'PRICE' as AT	RIBUTE, COUNT	(DISTINCT "PRODUC	T_ID") as S 💷	Copy low		55fdd	SYSTEM	
localhost	t 30,0	07	2 SEL	ECT "PRICE" as 1	ERM, 'PRICE' as AT	RIBUTE, COUNT	(DISTINCT "PRODUC	T_ID") as S	Visualize Plan		bf3f7	SYSTEM	
localhost	t 30,0	03	3 SEL	ECT "PRICE" as I	ERM, 'PRICE' as ATT	RIBUTE, COUNT	(DISTINCT "PRODUC	T_ID") as S	Prepare in SQL Console		bt3t7	SYSTEM	
localnost	C 30,0	07	2 551	ECT PRICE as I	ERM, PRICE as AT	RIBUTE, COUNT	(DISTINCT "PRODUC	T_ID") as S	FROM IL GVC DICITION IN THE INC.	4-063100536301	ato39	SYSTEM	
localnost	c 30,0	03	3 351	ECT PRICE as I	ERM, PRICE as AT	RIBUTE, COUNT	(DISTINCT PRODUC	T_ID ) as SCORI	E FROIVI _SYS_BIC . sap.bc.ina.de	469121085213910	e i atosy	OVETENA	
localhost	C 50,0	07	2 351	ECT PRICE as I	ERIM, PRICE as ATT	DIDUTE, COUNT	(DISTINCT PRODUC	T_ID") as SCORI	E FROM "_SYS_BIC : sap.bc.ina.de	cb0205cc090acc	760-20	OVETENA	
localhost	20,0	03	2 001	ECT PRICE as I	DE "DRICE" EROM	CODINI COUNT	O" "een hene demoe	I D ) as SCOR	erKOW _3Y3_BIC . sap.bc.ma.de	671d67bdae44d	2=97=21	CVCTEM	
localhost	30,0	03	3 551	ECT "PRODUCTI	D" "CATEGORY" "PR	ICE" "SALEDRICE	" FROM "SYSTEM" "	SVS SS2 TMD T	ARLE 3 157612 2244250374012251	ec93f996ca6c70	abf/be0	SYSTEM	
localhost	30,0	07	2 SEI	FCT "PRODUCT	ID" as TERM 'PROD	UCT ID' as ATTR	BUTE COUNT (DIST	NCT "PRODUCT	T ID") as SCORE FROM " SVS BIC"	789e8120f4e172	df52cd4	SYSTEM	
localhost	30 (	03	3 SEI	FCT "PRODUCT	ID" as TERM 'PROD	UCT ID' as ATTR	BUTE COUNT (DISTI	NCT "PRODUCT	T ID") as SCORE FROM " SVS BIC"	789e8120f4e172	df52cd4	SYSTEM	
localhost	30 (	07	2 SEI	ECT "PRODUCT	ID" as TERM 'PROD	UCT ID' as ATTR	BUTE COUNT (DISTI	NCT "PRODUCT	T ID") as SCORE FROM " SVS BIC"	79707e623b310f	7fe1d23	SYSTEM	
localhost	t 30.0	03	3 SEL	ECT "PRODUCT	ID" as TERM, 'PROD	UCT ID' as ATTR	BUTE, COUNT (DISTI	NCT "PRODUCT	T ID") as SCORE FROM " SYS BIC"	79707e623b310f	7fe1d23	SYSTEM	
localhost	t 30,0	07	2 SEL	ECT "PRODUCT	ID" as TERM, 'PROD	UCT_ID' as ATTR	BUTE, COUNT (DISTI	NCT "PRODUCT	T_ID") as SCORE FROM "_SYS_BIC"	4aa5c9b8e3e6ec	0fc2c57	SYSTEM	

Figure 10.8 SQL Plan Cache Subtab in Administrator Console

DIAGNOSIS FILES

Next is the DIAGNOSIS FILES tab. <u>Figure 10.9</u> shows a list of trace and log files. We filtered this list to the "xs" search string, meaning that it only shows files that have "xs" in the file name. You can read these files in SAP HANA studio, or if they're too large, you can download them. You can download them asis or compressed in a ZIP file.

👪 RDL 🕺								
RDL (SYSTEM) 192.168.124.130 00								
Overview Lan	Overview Landscape Alerts Performance Volumes Configuration System Information Diagnosis Files Trace Configuration							
Filter: xs 🗱 Host: <all> 🗸 🕅 Kerge Diagnosis Files 🎥 Delete Trace Files</all>								
Host	Name	Туре	Size (Byte)	) Modif	ied			
localhost	indexserver_localhost.30003.executed_statements.000.tro	Trace	3,990,51	5 2016/		Open		
localhost	xsengine_alert_localhost.trc	Trace	135,96	3 2016/		- open		
localhost	indexserver_localhost.30003.000.trc	Trace	1,987,02	9 2016/		Compress		
localhost	xsengine_localhost.30007.000.trc	Trace	345,52	4 2016/	1	Download		
localhost	indexserver_alert_localhost.trc	Trace	1,691,18	6 2016/	~	D.L.		
localhost	indexserver_localhost.30003.loads.000.trc	Trace	1,408,99	8 2016/	*	Delete		

Figure 10.9 Filtered List of Trace and Log Files in Diagnosis Files Tab

These trace and log files can provide detailed process information, and SAP HANA can trace very specific events; for example, you can limit a trace file to a specific user or application.

► TRACE CONFIGURATION

To set up specific traces, use the TRACE CONFIGURATION tab, shown in <u>Figure</u> <u>10.10</u>. This tab allows you to set up various trace configurations. We won't go into any detail about available trace configurations here; this information is discussed in SAP HANA technical training, because these traces are normally executed by SAP HANA database or system administrators. You'll need to work with your SAP HANA administrator if you want to run any traces.

RDL 23	- 8
( SYSTEM) 192.168.124.130 00	🗞 🕪 Interval: 🔞 🗸 Seconds 📳 🕼
Overview Landscape Alerts Performance Volumes Configuration System Information Diagnosis Files Trac	e Configuration
Database Trace	SQL Trace
Configuration: Default	Status: Inactive
If the database trace is configured, the traces for the trace components of the system (for example, INDEXSERVER and NAMESERVER) are written to files named <servicenames_<host>.<port_number>.&lt;3_digit_file_counter&gt;.trc. Some of these traces are always activated by default.</port_number></servicenames_<host>	If the SQL trace is active, the database calls for the specified database, or application users are traced. The trace data is stored in files starting with sqltrace_ <host>.<pre>sort_number&gt;.&lt;3_digit_file_counter&gt;.py.</pre></host>
User-Specific Trace	Performance Trace
Configuration: Not Specified	Status: Inactive
If the user trace is configured, the traces for the trace components for a specific database or application user (for example, INDEXSERVER and NAMESERVER) are written to files named <servicename>_<host>.<port_number>.<context>.trc.</context></port_number></host></servicename>	If the performance trace is running, the system performance is traced. The trace data is saved to the file specified.
End-to-End Traces	Expensive Statements Trace
The predefined end-to-end traces are used by applications to record the steps through all the available trace components (INDEXSEVRF and NAMESERVER for example) in a configuration. When an end-to-end trace is used, the traces for the trace components are written to files named (servicenameschost >.port_umber >.end-to-end-trace_name>.trc.	Status: Inactive If the expensive statements trace is active, all statements that last longer than the specified threshold are traced. You can analyze the results on the Performance tab under Expensive Statements Trace.

Figure 10.10 The Trace Configuration tab of the Administration Console.

#### **Performance Analysis Mode**

The last tool that we will look at in this chapter is *Performance Analysis Mode*, available from the top-right toolbar when you build SAP HANA information views.

You can switch this mode on or off when designing information views. The tool will analyze your view and suggest possible improvements.

<u>Figure 10.11</u> shows the dropdown menu for Performance Analysis Mode. The first menu option allows you to switch this mode on or off.



Figure 10.11 Performance Analysis Mode Menu

Before we discuss the main features of Performance Analysis Mode, let's briefly detour to look at the last option on the menu shown in <u>Figure 10.11</u>. The VISU-ALIZE VIEW IN PLANVIZ EDITOR option opens a simplified graphical flow of the information view (Figure 10.12).

When you select a node, you can see the attributes and measures on the left of the graphical flow and the input and output fields on the right.



Figure 10.12 Visualize View Called from Performance Analysis Mode Menu

Go back to the Performance Analysis Mode and you will notice that a new tab, PERFORMANCE ANALYSIS, has been added to the VIEW EDITOR in which you design the information view. When you select a node—for example, the join node—in your view, and then then open the PERFORMANCE ANALYSIS tab (top middle), you will now see improvement recommendations from the SAP HANA system.

<u>Figure 10.13</u> returns to the Purchase Overview calculation view from the SHINE content.

democontent.epm.models∷ ®∔ ⊜†	Details	t from what yo W RDL (SYSTE	M) <u>1Warn</u>	elected.			
	Details Performance Analysis			/		_/	
Semantics	Join Details	pin_1		1	l l	/	
ੇ ਛੋਨੂੰ Star Join ⊙Join_1 ਜ਼ੀPROD	Left Table 'SAP_HANA_DEMO"	Right Table "SAP_HANA_DEMO	Join Type Inner	Cardinality	Proposed Card 1n	Referential Inte	Join Validation
Drop Elements Here							
*	<ul> <li>Data Source Details</li> <li>Data sources for the node</li> </ul>	Join_1. Select a data sour	ce for more de	tails.			
	Data Source		Table Type	Partition Ty	/pe l	Number of Rows	
	"SAP_HANA_DEMO"	.sap.hana.democontent	COLUMN	Not Partitio	oned	1000	
G Join_1 & C sap hana democont. sap hana democore.	"SAP_HANA_DEMO"	.sap.hana.democontent	. COLUMN	Not Partitio	oned	5880	
<u> </u>					_/		

Figure 10.13 Performance Analysis Mode Optimization Suggestions

As shown in <u>Figure 10.13</u>, we've highlighted three possible improvement suggestions:

► Recommended join type or cardinality is different from what you have selected.

In this case, we did not specify any cardinality on the join. SAP HANA analyzed the data and view and suggested that a 1..n cardinality should be set. Setting the cardinality will allow SAP HANA to execute the view faster, because it won't have to calculate what the cardinality is first.

# • Recommended: Referential join type.

SAP HANA looked at the data to see if referential integrity was ensured. Because there is referential integrity in this case, SAP HANA suggested that a referential join would be better in the join node of this view.

► Threshold value exceeded. Check performance workbench preferences. Here, SAP HANA looked at how many records will be returned by the join. If the number of records exceeds a threshold, SAP HANA suggests that partitioning the table could speed up the join. The system shows us information about the number of rows and the partitions.

<u>Figure 10.14</u> shows additional information for when you're joining tables from remote sources using SAP HANA smart data access (SDA). (We will discuss SDA in <u>Chapter 14</u>.)

	Details Performance Analysis					
Semantics	▼ Join Details Join details for the node Join_1					
Star Join     OJoin_1     BROD     Drop Bements Here	Left Table "BOOK_DEMO".REMOTE_DB	Right Table "BOOK_DEMO".RE	MOTE_DB	Join Type Inner	Cardinality	Proposed Card 1n
	Data Source Details     Data sources for the node Join_1     Data Source	. Select a data sourc Ta	e for more de	etails. Partition	Туре	Number of Rows
	"BOOK_DEMO".REMOTE_DB.P "BOOK_DEMO".REMOTE_DB.P	0.Header V 0.Item V	IRTUAL	Not Parti Not Parti	tioned tioned	0
REMOTE_DB.PO.Item	<ul> <li>Virtual Data Source Details Properties for the data source</li> </ul>	ce "BOOK_DEMO".R	EMOTE_DB.P	0.Header		
	Property Remote Source		Value REMOTE_E	B		
	Remote DB Remote Owner		<null> SAP_HAN</null>	A_DEMO		
	Remote Object		sap.hana.c	emocontent.	epm.data::PO.	Header



You can set validation rules related to performance in the SAP HANA studio preferences. From the WINDOW menu, select PREFERENCES • SAP HANA • MODELER • VALIDATION RULES. <u>Figure 10.15</u> shows validation rules related to performance.

Preferences			- D X
type filter text	Validation Rules		<b>⟨</b> ¬ ▼ □⟩ ▼ ▼
Kun/Debug     SAP HANA     Administration     Application Development     Communication Log	Server Version: SP7 onwards > Check integrity rules selection	Severity	Description
DDL Source File Editor     Global Settings     Lifecycle Management     Modeler     Attach Delivery Unit to Transport Request (CTS)     Content Presentation     Data Frexiew     Default Model Parameters     Logs     Performance Analysis     SAP Landscape Transformation     Search Options     Walidation Rules     View & Field Name Preferences     View & Effect Name Preferences	>     View_General       >     Join       +     Hierarchies       >     Variables_and_Paramaters       >     Name_and_Description       >     Analytic_Privilege       >     Content       >     DecisionTable       ✓     Performance_Workbench       ✓     Calculation in Filter Expressions Rule       ✓     Calculation in Filter Expressions Rule       ✓     Partition Types in Join Rule	Warning Warning Warning	Check for calculated columns and aggregated columns in filter expressions Check for calculated columns and aggregated columns in join definitions Check for first level partition types of joined tables
> PlanViz 🗸	<		>
0	·		OK Cancel

Figure 10.15 Validation Rules Related to Performance in SAP HANA Studio

# **Best Practices for Optimization**

Performance Analysis Mode suggested some improvements we could make to our information view with regards to specifying the cardinality, using a referential join, and potentially partitioning our tables. In this last section, we will discuss some additional best practices for modeling in SAP HANA. Remember that we mentioned a few earlier in the chapter when we summarized concepts you've learned previously in the book.

We can divide these best practices into two areas—namely, those related to the graphical view design and those related to SQL and SQLScript.

## **Graphic Information Modeling Best Practices**

The following are some additional best practices to optimize graphical information models:

- Minimize data transfer between SAP HANA execution engines.
- Reduce data transfer between information views.
- Implement filters at a table level.
- ► Don't send all information to the analytics and reporting tools; instead, make your reports more interactive and make multiple smaller requests from SAP HANA. The SAP HANA system will use less memory, be more efficient, and respond faster. With less data moving across the network, the user experience improves. In addition, by sending less information to the analytics and reporting tools, you make these tools more mobile-friendly.
- Select only the fields you require; columnar databases don't like working with all the columns.
- Specify the cardinality in a join.
- Use left outer rather than right outer joins.
- Investigate whether partitioning your tables is a valid option.
- ► Let SAP HANA do hard work like aggregations and calculations.



Remember that SAP HANA uses authorizations as a filter. If a user is only allowed to see one cost center, then SAP HANA will use that as a filter to speed up the query. In this case, security is not an overhead as in many other systems but an optimization technique.

#### SQL and SQLScript Guidelines

We mentioned several best practices for optimizing SQL and SQLScript in <u>Chapter 8</u>, including the following:

- ► Do not use SELECT \* statements.
- ► Try to avoid imperative logic with a loop or branch logic. SQL uses a set-oriented approach for best performance.
- Break large, complex SQL statements into smaller independent steps using SQLScript variables. This can improve the parallelization of the execution of the query.
- ► Use procedures or GROUPING SETS to return multiple results sets.

#### Tip

For more optimization and performance tips, watch Werner Steyn's excellent onehour session, named DMM208, from SAP TechEd 2015 at *http://events.sap.com/ teched/en/session/26543*.

You can also attend the HA215 training course. You can find more information about this course at *https://training.sap.com/shop/course/ha215-sap-hana-monitoring-and-performance-tuning-classroom-010-g-en/.* 

# Important Terminology

In this chapter, we covered the following important topics:

#### Architecture and performance

We started this chapter by reviewing the architecture design principles of SAP HANA and how everything contributes to optimal system performance. We

also summarized some of the best practices you've already learned in your information modeling journey.

## Explain Plan

The Explain Plan tool shows the different engines used by SAP HANA to execute a query, along with a list of operators.

# Visualize Plan

The Visualize Plan tool shows graphical flows for both the prepared and the executed plans. We can see the number of records returned per operator in the prepared plan and the number of records along with the time each step of the query took in the executed plan. We can also combine the graphical flow with a timeline and an operator list.

# Administration Console

The Administration Console provides access to the SQL cache of all SQL statements previously run in the SAP HANA system. We can also create and read trace files for identifying exactly what happens in the SAP HANA system when a query is executed.

# Performance Analysis Mode

The Performance Analysis Mode provides suggestions while we are designing a view to potentially improve performance. This tool looks, for example, at join types, referential integrity, cardinality, and partitioning.

# Best practices

Finally, we looked at some best practices for ensuring that SAP HANA information models perform optimally.

# Practice Questions

These practice questions will help you evaluate your understanding of the topics covered in this chapter. The questions shown are similar in nature to those found on the certification examination. Although none of these questions will be found on the exam itself, they will allow you to review your knowledge of the subject. Select the correct answers and then check the completeness of your answers in the Practice Question Answers and Explanations section. Remember that on the exam you must select all correct answers and only correct answers to receive credit for the question.
- 1. What combination enabled real-time computing?
- □ A. In-memory technology with solid-state disks
- □ **B.** In-memory technology and multicore CPUs
- □ C. Multicore CPUs and solid-state disks
- **D.** Multicore CPUs with large level 1 caches
- 2. What are the advantages of columnar storage? (There are 2 correct answers.)
- □ **A.** Improved compression
- □ **B.** Improved data reading performance
- **C.** Improved data writing performance
- **D.** Improved performance when all fields are selected

#### Tip

The following five items list almost exactly the same question, but the answers are different each time.

- 3. What performance technique should you implement to improve join performance?
- □ **A.** Use joins instead of unions for combining large data sets.
- □ **B.** Join on key fields between tables in a dimension view.
- **C.** Do NOT use dynamic joins if you require optimal performance.
- **D**. Always use referential joins in star join views.
- 4. What performance techniques should you implement to improve join performance? (There are 3 correct answers.)
- □ **A.** Use unions instead of joins for combining large data sets.
- □ **B.** Always specify the cardinality of a join.
- □ **C.** Join as many tables as possible in an analytic view's data foundation.
- **D.** Use left outer joins instead of right outer joins.
- **E.** Always mark joins as dynamic to improve performance.

- 5. What performance technique should you implement to improve the performance of SAP HANA information views?
- □ **A.** Build single large views.
- □ **B.** Implement union pruning conditions.
- □ **C.** Output as many fields as possible.
- **D**. Supply reporting tools with all the data in one transfer.
- 6. What performance technique should you implement to improve the performance of SAP HANA information views that include SQLScript?
- □ **A.** Use imperative logic.
- □ **B.** Use SELECT \*.
- □ **C.** Break large statements into smaller steps.
- □ **D.** Use dynamic SQL.
- 7. What performance techniques should you implement to improve the performance of SAP HANA information views? (There are 3 correct answers.)
- □ A. Perform calculation before aggregation in your analytic views.
- □ **B.** Minimize the transfer of data between the execution engines.
- □ **C.** Investigate partitioning of large tables.
- D. Apply filters as late as possible.
- □ **E.** Push down aggregations to SAP HANA.
- 8. What engine executes the spatial queries?
- □ **A.** Calculation
- $\Box$  **B.** OLAP
- $\Box$  **C.** Join
- D. SQL
- 9. What information can you find in the Explain Plan tool? (There are 2 correct answers.)
- $\Box$  **A.** The execution engines used
- □ **B.** The number of records returned in each step

- □ **C.** The time taken for each step
- **D.** The list of operators
- 10. What information can you find in the Visualize Plan tool? (There are 2 correct answers.)
- □ **A.** The execution engines used
- **B.** The number of records returned in each step
- □ **C.** The time taken for each step
- D. The SQL Plan Cache
- 11. What information can you find in the Administration Console? (There are 2 correct answers.)
- □ **A.** The execution engines used
- □ **B.** The trace and log files
- $\Box$  **C.** The list of operators
- **D.** The SQL Plan Cache
- 12. What information can you find in Performance Analysis Mode when you view the analysis for a join node? (There are 2 correct answers.)
- □ A. The suggested filter for the tables in the join node
- **B.** The total number of records returned by the node
- □ **C.** The time taken by the join
- **D.** The tables used by the join in the node

## Practice Question Answers and Explanations

1. Correct answer: **B** 

The combination of in-memory technology and multicore CPUs enabled realtime computing. Solid-state disks are still disks and relatively slow compared to memory. Multicore CPUs with large level 1 caches help, but also need inmemory technology. 2. Correct answers: A, B

The advantages of columnar storage include improved compression and datareading performance. (Because data is compressed, you can read more data at the same IO speed.) Improved data-writing performance is for row storage. Neither column nor row has improved performance when all fields are selected via SELECT \*.

3. Correct answer: **B** 

Joining on key fields between tables in a dimension view will improve join performance. The answer "Use joins instead of unions for combining large data sets" has joins and unions swapped around: You should use unions rather than joins. Dynamic joins are created to improve performance. The word *always* makes the "Always use referential joins" answer wrong.

4. Correct answers: A, B, D

The following are the correct performance techniques to improve join performance:

- Use unions instead of joins for combining large data sets.
- Always specify the cardinality of a join.
- Use left outer joins instead of right outer joins.

You should try to use only one table in an analytic view's data foundation. The word *always* makes the "Always mark joins as dynamic" answer wrong.

5. Correct answer: **B** 

Implementing union pruning conditions will improve the performance of SAP HANA information views. You should not build a single large view; instead, build views up in layers. Use SAP HANA Live as an example. "Output as many fields as possible" is another way of saying "Use SELECT \*"; don't do it. Instead, supply reporting tools with only the data they need right now, make them interactive, and use multiple small requests.

6. Correct answer: **C** 

Breaking large statements into smaller steps will improve the performance of SAP HANA information views that include SQLScript. Do NOT use imperative logic, SELECT \*, or dynamic SQL if you need optimal performance.

7. Correct answers: **B**, **C**, **E** 

The following are the performance techniques you can implement to improve the performance of SAP HANA information views:

- Minimize the transfer of data between execution engines.
- Investigate partitioning of large tables.
- Push down aggregations to SAP HANA.

"Calculation before aggregation" is reversed; to be correct, it should say "aggregation before calculation." Filters should be applied as early as possible.

8. Correct answer: A

The calculation engine executes the spatial queries.

9. Correct answers: A, D

The Explain Plan tool shows the execution engines used and the list of operators.

10. Correct answers: B, C

The Visualize Plan tool shows the number of records returned and the time taken in each step.

The Explain Plan tool shows the execution engines used, and the Administration Console shows the SQL Plan Cache.

11. Correct answers: B, D

The Administration Console shows the SQL Plan Cache and the trace and log files. The Explain Plan tool shows the execution engines used. The Explain Plan and Visualize Plan tools show the operators used.

12. Correct answers: B, D

Performance Analysis Mode shows the total number of records returned and the tables used.

## Takeaway

You now have a checklist of modeling practices to ensure optimal performance for SAP HANA information models, including guidelines for creating optimal SQL and SQLScript.

You have learned how to use the Explain Plan tool to identify the execution engines used and the Visualize Plan tool to find the time taken and number of records returned for every step in a query. You can use the Administration Console to identify long-running and expensive statements and to perform traces of specific queries and user activities. Performance Analysis Mode helps improve your SAP HANA information models by providing optimization suggestions.

## Summary

You've seen that SAP HANA has been built from the ground up with many performance enhancements to enable high-performing processes. However, you still have to do your part if you expect the best results.

You've now created SAP HANA information models with graphical views and with SQL and SQLScript. You've also learned how to optimize your information models.

In the next chapter, we'll look at how to deploy your finished SAP HANA information models to a production environment.

# Administration of Information Models

## Techniques You'll Master

- Learn how to validate information models
- Understand the activation process
- Explain the difference between design-time and runtime objects
- Learn the transport process for importing and exporting objects
- ▶ Understand schema mapping
- Describe delivery units
- ► Perform refactoring techniques on information models
- Document modeling work
- ► Translate information models into other languages

Up to this point, we provided overviews of and instructions for creating information models. In this chapter, we'll look at the steps you need to take to ensure your models are valid. In addition, we'll walk through how to bring these models into a production environment so end users can utilize them. You'll learn how to validate, activate, transport, refactor, document, and translate your information models.

## **Real-World Scenario**

You have created new information models for your project. All the modeling work was performed in your development system. You feel confident about the work you have delivered, so now it's time to take it to the production system. You need to transport your information models through the SAP HANA landscape. Before end users can use your information models in the production system, your models need to be activated in the production system.

As the project progresses, new customer requirements arise. Your information models need to adapt to changing business conditions. You ensure they do so by using the refactoring tools built into the SAP HANA modeling tools. Also, because your end users are scattered across the globe, you have to translate your information models into various languages.

As your project approaches the final go-live date, you must ensure that your information models are properly documented.

# **Objectives of This Portion of the Test**

The objective of this portion of the SAP HANA certification is to test your understanding of how to administrate the information models you have built.

The certification exam expects SAP HANA data modelers to have a good understanding of the following topics:

- Validating and activating models
- ► The difference between design-time and runtime objects
- ► The transport process, exporting and importing information objects, delivery units, and schema mapping

- Refactoring information models
- Documenting and translating information models

#### Note

This portion contributes up to 10% of the total certification exam score.

## **Key Concepts Refresher**

Many of the concepts in this chapter will help you deploy the solutions you build into a live environment for end users. As such, you will start working more closely with an SAP HANA system administrator at this point. Typically, export and import duties are performed mostly by the system administrator.

Some other concepts, like refactoring, are used in larger projects to ensure your modeling work stays fresh and useful. The idea is similar to gardening: You need to mow the lawn, pull weeds, and prune the roses to maintain a beautiful garden. This idea of upkeep can be applied to the administration of your data models.

## Validating and Activating Information Models

Before end users can use your information models, you need to ensure that they are both valid and available to the users. In SAP HANA, *validation rules* are used to check for possible errors that may affect the usability of your models. Once you've worked out all the kinks, you'll need to activate the models to make them available.

#### Validation Rules

SAP HANA has built-in validation rules for the different types of information models and modeling objects. These validation rules check for possible syntax errors and missing properties. When you request a validation run, SAP HANA applies the relevant validation rules to your information model.

Here are some example validation checks:

That a language column is specified when you use a text join (without a specified language column, the text join will not have a 1:1 cardinality)

- That a dimension view has at least one attribute specified as the key attribute
- ► If filter values are valid
- ► That a calculation view does not have any floating (orphan) nodes
- ► That there there are no unjoined (orphan) tables in a view
- ► If attributes or measures are defined for large object data types (e.g., BLOB or CLOB)

You can access the validation rules (see <u>Figure 11.1</u>) in SAP HANA studio by selecting PREFERENCES from the WINDOW menu. Drill down the tree to SAP HANA • MODELER • VALIDATION RULES.

Note Preferences			– 🗆 X
type filter text	Validation Rules		
SAP HANA     Administration	Name	Severity	Description
> Application Development	✓ ■ View_General		
Communication Log	Counter Validate Rule	Error	Check that Counters in the calculation view do not have null or emp
> DDL Source File Editor	Currency Stacking Check	Warning	Checks if there is stacking of currency conversion
Global Settings	Currency Target Hidden Column Check	Warning	Checks if the target currency/unit is a hidden column
> Lifecycle Management	Execute Engine Validate Rule	Warning	Check if the data sources other than table and calculation view are u
✓ Modeler	Filter Validate Rule	Error	Check if the filter value is valid
Attach Delivery Unit to Transport Requ	Floating Node Check Rule	Error	Check if Calculation view does not have any floating node(s)
Content Presentation	History view validation rule	Warning	Checks i) If at least one input of the view is history enabled when the
Data from Local File	Large object data type Check Rule	Error	Check if the attributes/measures are defined on column of data type
Data Preview	Measure Validation Check	Error	Check if i) Aggregation type of measure is valid for its data type ii) D
Default Model Parameters	Rank Node Validate Rule	Warning	Check that filter is defined on projection node on top of rank node
> Logs	Stacked Counter Validate Rule	Warning	Check if stacked counter or currency conversion is defined
Performance Analysis	Star Join Validate Rule	Error	Check if the calculation view having a star join is used inside star join
SAP Landscape Transformation	Table Function Validate Rule	Error	Your table function cannot return a table. The parameters passed to
Search Options	Table Validity Rule	Error	Check that the table exists and user has sufficient privileges to acces
Validation Rules	Validate Data Sources with Right Outer Jo	Error	Validation rule to check if right outer join type or full outer join type,
View & Field Name Preferences	✓ Validate Stacked Aggregations	Warning	If aggregation types of measures in calculation views are STD, VAR, c
View Editor	✓ ✓ Join		
> PlanViz	Join Validity Rule	Error	Check if any unjoined tables exists
> Repository	Join column Data Type Rule	Error	Check that the data types of join columns are compatible
> Runtime	✓ ✓ Hierarchies		
Table Viewer 🗸 🗸	Hierarchy SQL Enable Rule	Error	Check that Hierarchy SQL enabling defined correctly
< >	<		>
?			OK Cancel

Figure 11.1 Validation Rules in SAP HANA Studio

When your information model is ready, you can validate it by clicking the SAVE AND VALIDATE button on the toolbar, as shown in <u>Figure 11.2</u>. You can also SAVE the model and then use the model's context menu to VALIDATE it.

If the system finds an error during validation, you will see a message in the JOB LOG tab in SAP HANA studio (Figure 11.3). Double-click the error message to open the dialog box shown in Figure 11.4. Read the message carefully to understand why SAP HANA does not accept the model as valid. (In this case, you did not specify one of the attributes as a key attribute. To fix this, you will specify one of your attributes as a key attribute in the semantic layer.)

	Open	
$\bigcirc$	Validate	Ctrl+Shift+V
0	Activate	Ctrl+Shift+A
C	Redeploy	
	Revert To Active	
ą;	Data Preview	
	Generate Select SQL	
	Copy Column View Name	
Ð	Where-Used	
в	History	
×	Delete and Activate	
	Auto Documentation	
	Сору	Ctrl+C
	Refactor	>

## Figure 11.2 Validating an Information Model

💽 Problems 🔲 Prope	erties 🍵 History 🥃	Job Log 🐹	
Current History			
Job Type	System	User	Status
Model Validation	RDL	SYSTEM	Completed with errors

## Figure 11.3 Error Found When Validating an Information Model

🍯 Job Details				- 🗆	×
Activation Job	Details				
See below for mo	re information on	the status of the a	ctivation jobs exec	cuted	
Job Details Elaps	sed Time : 1.008				×
Summary Report					*
Name	Туре	Package	Status	Description	
VALIDATE_ER	Attribute View	book.models	•		
Detailed Report ⊕+ ⊡† ☑ Sho ✓ ③ Activatio ✓ ③ book ③ R	ow Errors Only on ID: 63 (Repositor .models::VALIDATE epository: Encount	y: Activation failed _ERROR ered an error in re	l for at least one c	object;At least one i extension; No centi	☆ runtir ral tał
Message :					~
Repository: En No attribute has	countered an error been specified as a	in repository runti key.	me extension; No	ecentral table foun	d. ~
				ОК	

Figure 11.4 Validation Error Dialog Box



With complex data models, the problem often lies in the way you created the joins, so recheck your joins. Often, the easiest way to fix a problem with joins is to delete and recreate the joins.

#### Activation

The next step to get your information models ready for use is to *activate* them. When you click the SAVE AND ACTIVATE button on the toolbar (<u>Figure 11.5</u>), SAP HANA creates an "active" copy of the information model. This active copy is then used by end users.







Tip

We recommend that you get into the habit of using the SAVE AND ACTIVATE button. It saves the information model, checks it against the relevant validation rules, and creates an active version. You do not need to perform a SAVE AND VAL-IDATE action first.

We have seen modelers become confused when using the ACTIVATE menu option alone. They try to activate their model and get errors. After solving the errors, they try to activate again, but keep getting the same errors. This is because they forget to click the SAVE button before activating the model again. Therefore, SAP HANA activated the last saved copy on the server, which still has the same error. Only when they save their changes to the server will SAP HANA activate the latest version that includes the corrections.

By using the SAVE AND ACTIVATE button as we recommend, you can avoid this kind of situation.

Let's dive a little deeper into this activation process.

When you create and validate an information model, it is saved in the CONTENT area of the SYSTEMS view. The objects stored here are called *repository objects* or *design-time objects*. These objects are merely definitions (metadata) for what SAP

HANA should create when running the information models. They are seen as the "inactive" versions, and end users cannot run them.

When you activate an information model, SAP HANA first checks the model against the validation rules. It then creates an "active copy" of the model in the \_SYS\_BIC schema. When you activate the calculation view CV\_CALCVIEW\_DEMO, you will find the "active copy" of that model in the COLUMN VIEWS folder of the \_SYS\_BIC schema, as shown in Figure 11.6.

This "active copy" is referred to as the *runtime version* of the object. End users can only run the active versions of objects. All runtime versions are stored in the CATALOG area of the SYSTEMS view.

🏠 Project Explorer 🏼 🎁 Repo	sitories 💡 Systems 🔀	
<ul> <li>&gt; ■ RDL (RDL_USER)</li> <li>&gt; ■ RDL (SYSTEM)</li> <li>&gt; ■ RDL (SYSTEM)</li> <li>● RDL (SYSTEM)</li> <li>● Content</li> <li>&gt; ● Content</li> <li>&gt; ● Content</li> <li>&gt; ● Attribut</li> <li>&gt; ● Attribut</li> <li>&gt; ● Analytic</li> <li>&gt; ● Calculat</li> <li></li></ul>	e Views (8) : Views (6) tion Views (10) CALCVIEW_DEMO	ject Run-time object
Details		
Columns(10) View Properties	Hierarchies(1) Parameters/\	Variables(2)
General		
RDL.book.models	V_DEMO	Demonstrate creating a calculation view
Data Category: <sup>8</sup>	CUBE	Enable History
Type:	STANDARD	History Input Parameter:
Default Client:	Session Client	V Default Member:
Count Star Column:		Column View Name:SYS_BIC"."book.models/CV_CALCVIEW_DEMO"
Default Schema:		Translate
Apply Privileges:	SQL Analytic Privileges	~

#### Figure 11.6 Active Copy of Information Models in \_SYS\_BIC Schema

#### Note

Design-time definitions generate runtime objects when activated.

If you edit and save (without activating) this information model, you will have two copies of the object on the server: An active runtime version, which users can still use, and a new inactive *design-time version* that you are busy modifying.

You can switch between the active and the inactive versions in the SAP HANA modeling tools via the dropdown menu (see <u>Figure 11.7</u>). If your new model won't activate or contains any sort of similar error, you can compare the two versions to see what was changed and adjust accordingly.



Figure 11.7 Switching between Active and Inactive Information Model Versions

If you do not want to keep changes to the information model, choose the REVERT TO ACTIVE option (see Figure 11.7). SAP HANA then discards your changes and resets the design-time version back to the runtime version. You can only revert to a changed version you saved, but have not yet activated. Once you've activated the new version, you cannot revert to a previous version any longer.

If you are happy with your changes, you can activate the new version with the changes made. The existing runtime version is replaced by the newer version of the information model, provided your model passes the validation rules.

SAP HANA uses the \_SYS\_REPO user to execute activated models. To do this, the \_SYS\_REPO user must be able to read the tables in your schema. Otherwise, your information views cannot be activated. We discuss how to do this in <u>Chapter 13</u>.

## **Transporting Information Models**

When working with SAP systems, you will have to deal with *transports*. SAP systems are used by many of the largest corporations in the world and for missioncritical systems. These corporations expect the SAP production (live) systems to be exceptionally stable and robust. If someone frequently makes changes directly to a running production system, the chance of making a mistake becomes quite large. For this reason, SAP established a standard way to deploy SAP systems and update them to increase stability. In a standard SAP environment, you will find three systems instead of just a single production system, as shown in <u>Figure 11.8</u>:

## Development system

This is where all of your modeling and development work is done. Once the development work is finished, it is copied ("transported") to the quality assurance system.

## • Quality assurance system

This is where all testing is done before moving to the production system. The quality assurance system is normally a recent copy of the production system. Any errors created in this system would also create errors in the production system. By catching them here, we can ensure an error-free production environment. When all errors have been fixed, the error-free development and modeling work is finally transported to the production system. This setup is important for ensuring stable business systems.

## Production system

This is the area where companies' business activities occur and where end users perform functions for their daily work.



Figure 11.8 Standard SAP System Landscape

You can copy all your SAP HANA packages, information models, and objects to quality assurance and production systems using transports. You can also use transports to update the sandbox ("playpen") and training systems.

In SAP HANA, you can combine several packages with all their modeling objects into a single artifact called a *delivery unit*. A delivery unit therefore consists of one or more packages. Each package in a delivery unit can contain many information models.



Note

You can only transport design-time objects with delivery units (i.e., those contained in the REPOSITORY OF CONTENT areas). You cannot transport runtime objects (e.g., tables with their content).

In the following subsections, we will discuss the different methods for importing and exporting information models in SAP HANA. We'll begin with a general discussion on importing and exporting content, before diving into special topics including using the SAP HANA Application Lifecycle Manager, exporting extra data, importing objects via scheme mapping and mass copy, and comparing native vs. imported objects.

# Importing and Exporting from the Development System to the Quality Assurance and Production Systems

The first method that you can use to transport your SAP HANA modeling work is to export it from the development system and then import it into the quality assurance and production systems.

You can access the IMPORT and EXPORT options from either the QUICK VIEW menu in the Modeling perspective or from the FILE • EXPORT and FILE • IMPORT menu options.

Figure 11.9 shows the EXPORT dialog screen.

Here, we opened the SAP HANA CONTENT folder in the dialog box to export SAP HANA content. The following options are found in this folder:

► CHANGE AND TRANSPORT SYSTEM (CTS)

This option is used by SAP HANA system administrators in cases in which a company has many other SAP business systems. They will use the Change and Transport System (CTS) of SAP Solution Manager to manage all of the company's SAP transports. This provides control over large volumes of transports from all SAP development systems to their respective production systems.

## Delivery Unit

You can use this option to export and import delivery units.

📓 Export — 🗆 🗙
Select You use this option to export all packages that make up a delivery unit and the relevant objects contained therein to the client or to the SAP HANA server file
Select an export destination:
type filter text
<ul> <li>&gt; General</li> <li>&gt; Install</li> <li>&gt; Java</li> <li>&gt; Plug-in Development</li> <li>&gt; Run/Debug</li> <li>&gt; SAP HANA</li> <li>&gt; SAP HANA Content</li> <li>Change and Transport System (CTS)</li> <li>Delivery Unit</li> <li>Developer Mode</li> <li>SAP Support Mode</li> <li>&gt; Team</li> <li>&gt; XML</li> </ul>
? < <u>Back</u> <u>Next &gt;</u> <u>Finish</u> Cancel

Figure 11.9 Importing and Exporting Content from SAP HANA

Developer Mode

You can manually transport a few selected or individual information models from one system to another by exporting them and importing them into the quality assurance or production system. You can also use this to mode make backups of your own information models.

► SAP SUPPORT MODE

When you encounter problems with your SAP HANA system, you can log an SAP message with SAP Support. Sometimes, SAP Support will ask you to send some of your information models so that it can replicate the problem on its own servers. SAP Support will not use your system to try and solve the problem. You can export the relevant information models to SAP Support via this mode.

<u>Figure 11.10</u> shows the options for exporting a delivery unit. Select the name of the delivery unit you want to export. You can also choose the time period of the latest changes to objects in the delivery unit. Optionally, you can choose whether the delivery unit should be exported to the server or to your client machine (e.g., your laptop).

盾 Export Thro	ugh Delivery Unit					×
Select Deliv	ery Unit					~
Select the deliv	ery unit containing all the objects th	at you want to expo	ort.			
Delivery Unit:	DEMO_DELIVERY_UNIT(RdL)					~
Alias:						
Consider re	leased version					
List of Packag	es					
🖶 book 🖶 book.mo	dels					
Filter by tim	e					
Select Time	nterval					
Time Interval From:	Last Week Last Month Time Range	To:			0	
Export Locatio	on					
Export to 3	Server 🔿 Export to Client					
?		< <u>B</u> ack	<u>N</u> ext >	<u>F</u> inish	Cano	:el

#### Figure 11.10 Exporting a Delivery Unit



You cannot export and import a package alone. You can transport packages contained in a delivery unit, or you can transport the objects contained inside a package using the developer mode. If you want to transport a single package, the easiest way is to create a new delivery unit containing just that one package.

#### Using the SAP HANA Application Lifecycle Manager

Another method you can use to transport your SAP HANA modeling work is to use the SAP HANA Application Lifecycle Manager, shown in <u>Figure 11.11</u>.

You can access this built-in transport tool from the context menu of your SAP HANA system. This is especially useful for companies that do not have other SAP systems or SAP Solution Manager to manage their transports. This web-based interface also works well on larger mobile phones and tablets.

#### **Exporting Data (Extra)**

There is a special method to export and import tables with their data between systems. This method is not automated like transports, but it can still be quite useful—for example, to build a training system.

HANA Applic	ation Lifecycle Management			
HOME PRO	DDUCTS TRANSPORT INSTALLATION	SETTINGS		
	Products	Delivery Units	Transport Overview	Extenting OK Warning Fai Enror
	Settings	Packages (Web-based Development Workbench)	Systems           ✓         1 5 ystem(s)           Ø         0 system(s)           Ø         0 system(s)	
	Linstaliation	Configuration Services (Process Engine)	Changes	Transport

**Figure 11.11** Transporting SAP HANA Objects Using the SAP HANA Application Lifecycle Manager

Access the same IMPORT and EXPORT menu options as for the transports, but in this case open the SAP HANA folder in the dialog box and select CATALOG OBJECTS (see Figure 11.12) to export SAP HANA data tables.

	Keport X
K Export	Select Export all catalog objects to a file system.
Options for Catalog Object Export RDL 192.168.124.130 00	Select an export destination: Type filter text
Export Selection Column Table Format: DINARY Export Catalog Objects: Oncluding data Including dependencies Export Location © Export catalog objects on server Other default directory Directory: //usr/sap/RDL/HDB00/work Catalog objects on server Directory: //usr/sap/RDL/HDB00/work Catalog objects on second directory	>     General       >     Install       >     Delug-in Development       >     Run/Debug       >     BA HANA       IIII Catalog Objects       •     Galadog Delug-tonet       >     SAP HANA Content       >     Team       >     MAL
O Export catalog objects to current client Directory:	Cancel
Esport Options Number of Parallel Threads: 1	
< Back	Next > Finish Cancel

#### Figure 11.12 Exporting Data Tables

You can export the tables in either CSV or binary format.

#### Importing Objects with Schema Mapping

Sometimes, you may find that a schema in a development system is named differently than a similar schema in the production system. If someone named the original schema SALES\_DEV in a development system, such a name makes no sense in the production system. Therefore, it's renamed to SALES in the production system. When you create information models in the development system using the PRODUCTS tables from the SALES\_DEV schema, SAP HANA uses the naming convention <schema name>. (e.g., SALES\_DEV.PRODUCTS) for tables used in the models. If you now transport these information models to the production system, the models expect the PRODUCTS table in the SALES\_DEV schema. The table has to exist already in this exact location. If the schema or table is not found, you will receive an activation error. In this example, the schema is now simply called SALES, so you will receive an error when transporting the models.

You can work around this problem by using *schema mapping*. You can create such a schema mapping in the production system, as shown in <u>Figure 11.13</u>. You can find the SCHEMA MAPPING functionality in the QUICK VIEW menu (see <u>Figure 11.13</u>).

📝 Quick View 🕅			
Filter values	😭 [+] [·		
▼ SAP HANA Modeler			
☆ 🚳 Delivery Units	•		
😭 🏢 Generate Time Data	•		
😭 🚋 Configure Import Server	•		
😭 🎒 Data Provisioning	🕼 Schema Mapping		- 🗆 X
☆ 🖮 Import	Schema Mapping		
☆ 🛃 Export	Manage mapping between autho	oring and physical schemas.	
☆ 😼 Mass Copy			
☆ 📲 Migrate	Authoring Schema	Physical Schema	Add
☆ 📀 Validate	SALES_DEV <click add="" to=""></click>	SALES	Remove
☆ 🔘 Activate			
☆ 📀 Redeploy			
☆ 🗐 Auto Documentation			
☆ 🚼 Switch Ownership			
☆ 📲 Change Authoring Schema	?	< Back Next >	inish Cancel
☆ 🖺 Schema Mapping	· ·		
☆ 瞻 Maintain Package Specific Default	Schema 🕨		
☆ 🗙 Delete Inactive Objects	•		

Figure 11.13 Schema Mapping

The original schema name in the development system is called the Authoring Schema. The target schema in the production system is called the Physical Schema.

After you set up the schema mapping and import the data models, all references to the SALES\_DEV.PRODUCTS table are automatically changed to refer to the SALES.PRODUCTS table. In this case, you do not receive activation errors because the PRODUCTS table already exists in the SALES schema in your production system.



Schema mapping is applied on information models as part of the import process.

#### Maintaining a Default Schema for a Package

We can use schema mapping to map multiple authoring schemas to a single target schema. For example, the BOOK\_DEMO and SAP\_HANA\_DEMO authoring schemas might both map to the physical BOOKS schema in the production schema. If you do this, SAP HANA studio might not be able to determine which authoring schema an information model must reference when doing schema mapping.

You can therefore specify the default schema for models in a package. When you import information models contained in such a package into the target schema, SAP HANA studio knows what the authoring schema is, and can perform the mapping to the physical target schema. This is a new feature in SAP HANA SPS 11.

Figure 11.14 shows that the BOOK package is mapped to the BOOK\_DEMO schema as its default schema, and the SAP.HANA.DEMOCONTENT package is mapped to the SAP\_HANA\_DEMO schema as its default schema.

You can leave the PACKAGE NAME field open. In <u>Figure 11.14</u>, we have a blank PACKAGE NAME field, and a DEFAULT SCHEMA named DEFAULT\_SCHEMA\_FOR\_OTHER\_PACKAGES. In this case, all other packages in the system that do not have a default schema specified will use this DEFAULT\_SCHEMA\_FOR\_OTHER\_PACKAGES schema for their default schema.

<b>1</b>	Maintain Package Specific Default S	chema —	o x
Mai	ntain Package Specific Def	fault Schema	
Ma	intain a default schema for each pa	ckage.	
	Package Name	Default Schema	Add
	🖶 book	BOOK_DEMO	Remove
	🖶 sap.hana.democontent	SAP_HANA_DEMO	Remove
		DEFAULT_SCHEMA_FOR_OTHER_PACKAGES	
	<click add="" to=""></click>		
?	)	< <u>B</u> ack <u>N</u> ext > <u>Finish</u>	Cancel

Figure 11.14 Maintain Default Schemas for Packages

#### Importing Objects with Mass Copy

In the QUICK VIEW menu (see <u>Figure 11.13</u>), you can find the MASS COPY option. Mass copy allows you to copy many information models at the same time and keep the references between the copied models consistent. All references are updated automatically. For example, you could create a limited SAP HANA sandbox (playpen) environment to quickly test some modeling and reporting functionality.

You could also think of this as a "Mass Import" option. The MASS COPY option can be used to import SAP HANA application content created by SAP or SAP partners into your SAP HANA landscape. This application content can consist of many SAP HANA information models and objects.

#### Native vs. Imported Objects

To further ensure the stability of production systems, SAP HANA marks all transported objects as *imported objects* in the production system. In the development system, where they were created, they are marked as *native objects*. SAP-created objects will be marked as imported objects in all your systems—even in your development system—because you did not create them.

## Hint

Imported objects should not be edited. If you want to make changes, you can make a copy of the relevant objects and modify the copy. This ensures that you do not lose all your changes when SAP updates SAP-provided content. When the new version of the SAP content is imported, it will overwrite all the current objects. All your changes would be lost if you modified the imported objects directly.

## **Core Data Services**

SAP takes the concept of design-time versus runtime objects to the next level with *Core Data Services* (CDS) in SAP HANA (CDS was discussed in <u>Chapter 4</u>). You can think of CDS as a more intelligent activation process that combines with transports to allow activation in other SAP HANA systems as well.

CDS data sources are fully transportable. Previously, you had to ensure that all tables required by your information models were available in the target system before you could import your models, but with CDS data sources, you can now import and activate the data sources together with your information models.

The SHINE demo package is a good example of CDS data sources in action. You do not have to create a schema, tables, or import data into these tables. When SHINE is imported into your SAP HANA system, it automatically creates all that content for you using CDS statements. This means there is no need to do schema mapping in your target system.

## **Refactoring Information Models**

*Refactoring* is the process of restructuring your information models without changing their external behavior (i.e., their result sets). You do this to improve, simplify, and clarify the design of your models—for example, when you move information models inside the system from one package to another, or when you rename an information model.

You can access the REFACTOR option from the context menu of an information model, as shown in Figure 11.15.



	Open			
0	Validate	Ctrl+Shift+V		
0	Activate	Ctrl+Shift+A		
0	Redeploy			
	Revert To Active			
đ	Data Preview			
	Generate Select SQL			
	Copy Column View Name			
Ð	Where-Used			
5	History			
×	Delete and Activate			
	Auto Documentation			
	Сору	Ctrl+C		
	Refactor	>	Move	Alt+Shift+V
			Rename	Alt+Shift+R

Figure 11.15 Refactoring Information Models

Renaming or moving an information model is not always a trivial task. If the information model is used in many other models, you will have to update those models as well. You can easily find yourself having to update hundreds of information models when simply trying to rename a single dimension view.

The REFACTOR option in SAP HANA takes care of this process for you. The only case in which you will still have to manually help with the refactoring process is when the information model is also used in some SQL or SQLScript code, and with updating the security authorization when you move the models to another package.

## Refactoring and Restructuring Nodes in a Graphical Calculation View

<u>Figure 11.16</u> shows the context menu of a node in a graphical calculation view. From this menu, you can rename the node.

In this case, you can also go further and replace the data sources used in the node, or even replace or delete the entire node. However, such actions are not normally part of refactoring because the result set of the information model will change.

CalcRestrictedR	e		
OAdd_Discount			
O Add_Discou	Expand/Collapse		
🗧 😸 Actual_Planne	Data Preview		
et_employee	Select All		
	Deselect All		
🕒 🎖 Actual_Plar 📑	Auto-Layout		
e AT_PROD	Rename		
	Maintain Comment		
Crop Elements	Сору	>	
	Remove and Replace With	>	Node
×	Remove		Data Source
	Export Diagram	Ctrl+O	

Figure 11.16 Restructuring and Refactoring Nodes in Graphical Calculation View

#### Tip

Replacing the data source in a node is useful when you have to create different information models that are based on similar data tables. You can make a copy of an existing view, and then change the data source to a similar table. SAP HANA will ask you to verify the mapping of the old data source to the new data source. It will then keep as much of the current information intact as possible. This can save you many hours of building similar information models.

#### Where-Used

In the refactoring process, you may have to figure out where a specific information model is used. <u>Figure 11.17</u> shows the context menu of an information model. By selecting the WHERE-USED menu option, SAP HANA finds all the places where that information is used.

Open		😥 Whe	re-Used List 🔀		2		
Validate	Ctrl+Shift+V Selected:AT_BUYER (book:models)						
Activate	Ctrl+Shift+A	+Shift+A Number of Usages:5					
© Redeploy							
Revert To Active		Туре	Used In	Package			
CHI Data Daniani		4	AP_SALES_ORDER	book.models			
C Data Preview		9	AN_SALES_ORDER_DYNAMIC_TIME_PERIOD	book.models			
Generate Select SQL		9	AN_SALES_ORDER_LITE	book.models			
Carry Calvera View Name		9	AN_SALES_ORDER_RANKING	book.models			
copy column view Name		9	AN_SALES_OVERVIEW_WO_CURR_CONV	book.models			
Where-Used							
History				· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			
🗙 Delete and Activate							
Auto Documentation							
Сору	Ctrl+C						
Refactor	>						

Figure 11.17 Where-Used List

The WHERE-USED functionality was used in older versions of SAP HANA to find out where to rename an information model. This feature shows you a list of models that use your information model. These models will be affected when you rename the information model, and will therefore also need updating. The new REFACTOR • RENAME feature makes this task much easier. It renames the information model and updates all the models where it is used to ensure everything still works post-renaming. This feature became available as of SAP HANA SPS 10.

#### History

Just below the WHERE-USED menu option in the context menu of an information model (<u>Figure 11.17</u>), you will see the HISTORY menu option. The HISTORY feature shows which users updated and activated the current and previous versions of an information model.

#### Deprecate

Sometimes, you create a new variation of an information model that is better than the older version. However, you cannot simply get rid of the older version; it might be used in many other information models, and you do not have time to make the necessary changes in all those models. In this case, you can go to the properties of your information model and mark the information model as *deprecated* by selecting the DEPRECATE checkbox, as shown in Figure 11.18.

Details				
Columns(10) View Properties	Hierarchies(1) Paramete	rs/Variab	les(2)	
General				
RDL.book.models	/_DEMO		Demons	trate creating a calculation view
Data Category: <sup>8</sup>	CUBE	~	Enable History	
Туре:	STANDARD	$\sim$	History Input Parameter:	~
Default Client:	Session Client	~	Default Member:	
Count Star Column:			Column View Name: Deprecate	"_SYS_BIC"."book.models/CV_CALCVIEW_DEMO"
Default Schema:			🗹 Translate	
Apply Privileges:	SQL Analytic Privileges	~		

Figure 11.18 Deprecating an Information Model

This does not stop the old version of the information model from working. However, it will produce a warning if you or any of your colleagues try to use the old version when creating new models. The MODEL IS DEPRECATED message indicates that everyone should use the newer variation of the information model.

## **Documenting Information Models**

As you near the end of a modeling project, documentation becomes important. You need to hand your modeling work over to someone else. There are always good reasons for the many decisions you make, such as why the various nodes of a calculation view are in a specific order. Documentation tools and features in SAP HANA allow you to communicate that information to anyone who may work on your project in the future.

#### Comments

In SAP HANA, you can document various aspects of information models using comments. <u>Figure 11.19</u> shows what the comments look like.



Figure 11.19 Documenting a Join Node of a Graphical Calculation View

A yellow comments popup will open when you click on the STICKY NOTE icon.

## Auto Documentation

In the context menu of an information model (see <u>Figure 11.20</u>), you'll find another useful documentation feature: AUTO DOCUMENTATION.



#### Figure 11.20 Auto Documentation Option in an Information Model's Context Menu

The AUTO DOCUMENTATION feature documents graphical information models in SAP HANA. <u>Figure 11.21</u> shows an example of the output generated.

culation View			SAD	PRODUCT_CURRENCY	PRODUCT_CURRENCY	Attribute	Mapping [Filters]: Ranking_Top10 . PRODUCT_CURRENCY Data Type: INVARCHAR (5)
port							Drill down enablement: Drill Down
							Default Aggregation: NONE
Calculation Vi	ew 🗊			PRODUCT_NAME	PRODUCT_NAME	Attribute	Engine Aggregation: NONE Mapping [Filters]: Ranking_Top10 .PRODUCT_N Data Type: NVARCHAR (1024)
General							Drill down enablement: Drill Down
Name Value		Nam	e Value				Default Apprecation: NONE
Name : CV C	ALCVIEW DEMO	State	s : active				
Owner : SYST Default Schema:	Ем	Defa	ult Client : Session Client Category : CUBE	SUPPLIER_CITY	SUPPLIER_CITY	Attribute	Mapping [Filters]: Ranking_Top10 .SUPPLIER_CI Data Type: VARCHAR (40)
Apply Privileges: SQL	Analytic Privileges	Tran	alate : 🗹				Drill down enablement: Drill Down
Deprecate : 🔲		Enab	le History : 🔲				Default Aggregation: NONE
History Input Parameter	ra -						Engine Aggregation: NONE
Default Member : Subtype : STAN	DARD			SUPPLIER_COUNTRY	SUPPLIER_COUNTRY	Attribute	Mapping [Filters]: Ranking_Top10 . SUPPLIER_COUNTRY Data Type: IIVARCHAR (3)
Enable Hierarchies SQL	: Denlich						Drill down enablement: Drill Down
Label : Demo	onstrate creating a calculati	on view Com	pent :				Default Appresation: NONE
			Trong T				Engine Aggregation: NONE
				SUPPLIER REGION	SUPPLIER REGION	Attribute	Mapping (Filters); Kanking Top10.
Advanced	Value	Name	Value	SUPPLIER_REGION	SUPPLIER_REGION	Attribute	SUPPLIER_REGION Data Type: IVVARCHAR (4)
Advanced Name Cache Invalidation Perio	Value od : NONE	Name Execu	Value të in :	SUPPLIER_REGION	SUPPLIER_REGION	Attribute	SUPPLER_REGION Data Type: IV/ARCHAR (4) Drill down enablement: Drill Down
Advanced Name Cache Invalidation Perio Execution Hints :	Value od : NONE	Name Execu	Value te in :	SUPPLIER_REGION	SUPPLIER_REGION	Attribute	Mapping (riters): kanking (op10). SUPPLER, REGION Data Type: IV/ARCHAR (4) Drill down enablement: Drill Down Default Aggregation: NONE
Advanced Name Cache Invalidation Perio Execution Hints : Columns	Value od : NONE	Name Execu	Value te în :	SUPPLIER_REGION     PRODUCT_PRICE	SUPPLIER_REGION PRODUCT_PRICE	Attribute Measure	Adgoing ("Intercip), and many, copil 0. Spart Type: IV/ARCHAR (4) Data Type: IV/ARCHAR (4) Della down enablement: Drill Down Default Aggregation: IDUE Empire Aggregation: IDUE Angoing (Filter): Banking, Copil 0. PRODUCT, PROCE Delta Type: DECEMAL (5.2)
Advanced Name Cache Invalidation Periv Execution Hints : Columns Name	Value od : NONE Labol	Name Execu Type	Value te in : Details	SUPPLIER_REGION     PRODUCT_PRICE	SUPPLIER_REGION PRODUCT_PRICE	Attribute Measure	sopPittET_resc() buta Type: IVAXLAB (4) Drill down enablement: Drill Down Default Aggregation: I/DIE Engine Aggregation: I/DIE Engine Aggregation: I/DIE Mapping [Filter]; Banking_Top10. PPODUCT_PREICE Data Type: I/DEMAL (45,2) Drill down enablement: Drill Down
Advanced Name Cache Invalidation Periv Execution Hints : Columns Name COMPANYNAME	Value od : NOHE Label COMPAI/THAME	Name Execu Type Attribute	Value Le In : Details Magning [Filters]: Revising Top10 .COMPLITINALE Data Type: IVACHAR (00)	SUPPLIER_REGION PRODUCT_PRICE	SUPPLIER_REGION PRODUCT_PRICE	Attribute	Supering actions in the providence of the second se
Advanced Name Cache Invalidation Periv Execution Hints : Columns Name COMPANYIVAME	Value od : NOHE Label COMPANTHAME	Name Execu Type Attribute	Value te la : Details	<ul> <li>SUPPLIER_REGION</li> <li>– PRODUCT_PRICE</li> </ul>	SUPPLIER_REGION	Attribute	Seperat generating and the providence of the second
Advanced Name Cache Invalidation Peris Execution Hints : Columns Name COMPAINTIAME	Value d : NONE Label COMPAINTAME	Name Execu Type Attribute	Value te ln : Defails Accepting (Titlers): Ranking Top10 .COMPANYINAME Data Topse IV/ACK48 (85) Diff down mathematic Drill Down Default Agregation: HOIE EDFault Agregation: HOIE	- SUPPLER_BEGION - PRODUCT_PRICE - VAT	SUPPLIER_REGION PRODUCT_PRICE VAT	Attribute Measure Measure	Sole of the second seco
Advanced Name Cache Invalidation Peri- Execution Hints : Columns Name COWPAINTLAME	Value od : NOIE Label COMPAITMAME	Name Execu Type Attribute	Value  te in :  Cetanis  Association  Association  Cetanis  Divil down establement: Drill Down  Drill Drill	- SUPPLIER, REGION - PRODUCT_PRICE - VAT	SUPPLIER_REGION PRODUCT_PRICE VAT	Attribute Measure Measure	Seperating Sectory and Legion - Construction of the Sector - Secto
Advanced Name Cache Invalidation Perio Execution Hints : Columns Name COMPAINTUAKE	Value od : HOIRE Label COMPANTIAME PRODUCTID	Name Execu Type Attribute	Value  E e In :  Defails  Magging (Filters): Basing Top10COMPANYINAME Data Type: IVACHAR (80)  Drill down enablement: Drill Down Defail: Agergation: IVOIE  Fopine Agergation: IVOIE  Magging (Filters): Basing Top10PRODUCTID Data Type: IVACHAR (91)	- SUPPLIER_BEGION - PRODUCT_PRICE - VAT	SUPPLIER_REGION PRODUCT_PRICE VAT	Attribute Measure Measure	Subject [1] seccipit and [1] seccipit an
Advanced Name Cache Invalidation Perio Execution Hints : Columns Name COMPAINYNAME PRODUCTID	Value di : HOHE Label COMPARTHAME PRODUCTID	Name Execu Type Attribute Attribute	Value te lin : Magnite (Fitters): Reasing. Top10 .COMPLITINALE Dat Type (WARCHAR (86) Datit Days Type (100) Datit Type (WARCHAR (100) Da	- SUPPLER, REGION - PRODUCT, PRICE - VAT	SUPPLIER,REGION PRODUCT_PRICE VAT	Attribute Measure Measure	Seperating Sectors and Sectors
Advanced Name Cache Invalidation Perts Execution Hints : Columns Columns ComPANYIAWE PRODUCTID	Value d : Iroite Labet COMPAINTIANE PRODUCTID	Name Execu Type Attribute	Value  te In :  Default  Magging (Filters): Rawing: Top10 .COMPANYIAME Dotal Type: INVACCHAR (80)  Drill down enablement: Drill Down Default Aggregation: INDIE  Engine Aggregation: INDIE  Default Aggregation: INDIE  Default Aggregation: INDIE  Drill down enablement: Drill Down Default Aggregation: INDIE  Drill down enablement: Drill Down Drill Down enablement: Drill Down Drill Down Default Aggregation: INDIE	- SUPPLIER, REGION - PRODUCT_PRICE - VAT	SUPPLIER_REGION PRODUCT_PRICE VAT	Attribute Measure Measure	Supergraphic Section and Logico - Supergraphic Section and Logico - Data Type I IVACIAN (4) Drill down enablement: Drill Down Default Agropotion: IOIE Figure Agropotion: IOIE March Section - IOIE Data Type I ECENAL (15.2) Drill down enablement: Drill Down Default Agropotion: SUM Drill down enablement: Drill Down Default Agropotion: SUM Engine Agropotion: SUM
Advanced Name Cache Invalidation Peri Execution Hints : Columns Name COMPARTIMANE	Value d : Tiolie Eanst Companymane PRODUCTID	Name Execu Type Attribute	Value te In :: Default Macping (Titlers): Basking, Top10COMPANTINAME Data Types (IVARCHAR (85) Did Stoppes (IVARCHAR (85) DID S	- SUPPLER_REGION - PRODUCT_PRICE - VAT	SUPPLIER_REGION PRODUCT_PRICE VAT	Attribute Measure Measure	Selecting Sectors and Sectors
Advanced Nare Cache Invalidation Peri Execution Pints : Columns Nare CokePatryTuME PRODUCTID PRODUCT_CATEGORY	Value d : HORE Ladel COMPANYTIAME PRODUCT_CATEGORY	Name Execu Type Attribute Attribute	Value  Edit ::  Control  Contr	- SUPPLER, REGION - PRODUCT, PRICE - VAT Input Parameters New	SUPPLIER, REGION PRODUCT_PRICE VAT	Attribute Measure Measure	Segerging genophic Data Type: IVRACINA (4) Drill down enablement: Drill Down Default Ageregation: IONE Mapping Gittens): Fankhr, Torbo J. Product J. Proc. Data Type: DCLMAL (15,2) Drill down enablement: Drill Down Default Ageregation: SUM Data Type: DCLMAL (15,2) Drill down enablement: Drill Down Default Ageregation: SUM Default Ageregation: SUM
Advanced Name Cache Invalidation Perf Execution Hints : Columns Mane COMPAINTMANE PRODUCTID PRODUCT_CATEGORY	Value d : IfOHE Labet COMPANYNIANE PROQUCTLD PROQUCT_CATEGORY	Name Execu Type Attribute Attribute	Value te in :  Coccaits  Accepting (Filters): Bassing_Top10COMPAUTYIAME Dath Type: HVMCCH4R (08) Doit down enablement: Drill Down Default Agergeston: HORE Figure agergeston: HORE Dath Type: HVACH4R (10) Drill down enablement: Drill Down Default Agergeston: HORE Figure Agergeston: HORE Figure Agergeston: HORE Figure Agergeston: HORE Default Agergeston: HORE Default Agergeston: HORE Dath Type: HVACH4R (40) Drill down enablement: Drill Down Default Agergeston: HORE Agergeston: HORE Dath Type: HVACH4R (40) Drill down enablement: Drill Down Default Agergeston: HORE Dath Type: HVACH4R (40) Drill down enablement: Drill Down Default Agergeston: HORE Dath Type: HVACH4R (40) Drill down enablement: Drill Down Default Agergeston: HORE Dath Type: HVACH4R (40) Drill down Default Agergeston: HORE Dath Type: HVACH4R (40) Drill down Default Agergeston: HORE Dath Type: HVACH4R (40) Drill down Default Agergeston: HORE Dath Type: HVACH4R (40) Drill down Default Agergeston: HORE Dath Type: HVACH4R (40) Drill down Dath Type: HVACH4R (4	- SUPPLIER, BEGION - PRODUCT_PRICE - VAT Input Parameters Nore - ORAN (INVT_PARAMET	SUPPLIER, REGION PRODUCT_PRICE VAT Ladret En Deno_HIPAT_PARAMETE	Attribute Measure Measure	Operating Sectors and Sectors
Advanced Have Cache Invalidation Perio Becution Hints : Columns Name COMPANYLAME PRODUCTIO PRODUCT_CATEGORY	Value d : HOIE Label COMPARTIANE PRODUCT_D PRODUCT_CATEGORY	Name Execu Type Attribute Attribute	Value  E lin ::  Magning [Files]: Reasing_Top10 .COMPUTITURE Dat Type IV/ACK48 (80) Diffi down emablement: Drill Down Defxil Zagregation: IIOIE Engine Agergation: IIOIE Dif down engineent: EVIII Down Dif down and Engine IIOIE Dat Type IVACIAR (40) IIII down and Engine II:OII	- SUPPLER_REGION - PRODUCT_PRICE - VAT Input Parameters Name OEMO_INPUT_PARAMETE	SUPPLIER, REGION PRODUCT_PRICE VAT LADH IR DEMO_INPUT_PARAMETE	Attribute Measure Measure Type R Direct	Seeing Lysicol, and Lysicol. Seeing Lysicol, Markan Schuler, Schu
Advanced Nane Cache Invalidation Peri- Elecution Hints : Elecution Hints : Columns Nane COMPAINTAME PRODUCT_CATEGORY	Value d 3: IKOIE Lebet COMPARTIANE PRODUCT_CATEGORY	Name Execu Type Attribute Attribute	Value  Lecalis  Association  Association  Difficient:  Difficient: Difficient: Diff	- SUPPLIER, REGION - PRODUCT_PRICE - VAT Input Parameters Reco - OCEAO_INPUT_PARAMETE	SUPPLIER, REGION PRODUCT_PRICE VAT IN DEMO_HIPVT_PARAMETE	Attribute Measure Measure R Direct	Supergraphic Section and Logico - Supergraphic Section and Logico - Data Type (11/2014) (4) (4) Drill down enablement: Drill Down Default Agregation: IDRIE Propose Agregation: IDRIE Propose Agregation: IDRIE Propose Agregation: IDRIE Propose Agregation: IDRIE Default Agregation: SIM Default Agregation: SIM Explore Agregation: SIM
Advanced Name Cache Invalidation Perf Execution Hints : Columns Name COMPAINTUME PRODUCTID PRODUCT_CATEGORY	Value d 3 HORE LENG COMPARTMANE PRODUCT_CATEGORY	Name Execu Type Attribute Attribute	Value  e In ::  Default Assepting (Fitters): Banking, Top10COMPANTINAME Data Types (IVARCHAR (85)) Dirit down malatement: Drill Down Default Aggregation: IDIE Engline Aggregation: IDIE Engline Aggregation: IDIE Dirit down malatement: Drill Down Default Aggregation: IDIE	- SUPPLER, REGION - PRODUCT_PRICE - VAT Input Parameters Reco	SUPPLIER, REGION PRODUCT_PRICE VAT LANK IS DEMO_INPUT_PARAMETE	Attribute Measure Measure R Direct	Depending Sectors and Sectors
Advanced Name Cache Invalidation Perio Execution Hints : Columns Name PRODUCT_CATEGORY	Value d : ICHE Ladel COMPANYIAME PRODUCTID PRODUCT_CATEGORY	Name Execu Type Attribute Attribute	Value  E III :  Constant	- SUPPLER, REGION - PRODUCT, PRICE - VAT Input Parameters New DEMO_LIFUT_PARAMETE	SUPPLIER, REGION PRODUCT_PRICE VAT Ladwet ER DEMO_HHUT_PARAMETE	Attribute Measure Measure Type R Direct	Operating Sectors and Sectors

Figure 11.21 Example Documentation Generated by Auto Documentation

## **Translating Information Models**

SAP HANA also provides functionality to help you prepare your information models for consumption by end users who communicate in other languages. In this section, we will focus on the translation of labels and how to use the Repository Translation Tool (RTT).

## **Translating Labels**

You can open the MULTI-LANGUAGE SUPPORT dialog box (see <u>Figure 11.22</u>) by clicking on the WORLD icon (leftmost icon resembling a globe) on the information model toolbar (refer back to <u>Figure 11.5</u>).

fine object labels in different la	text tables		
guage Dutch(Netherlands)		~	Load 1
ow All			
P Filter			
Name	Existing Label	Translated Label	
CV_CALCVIEW_DEMO	Demonstrate creating a calculation view	Tonen het creëren van een Calculation V	iew
CALCVIEW_HIERARCHY	Hierarchies in Calc Views can now also have time dependency!		
CALCVIEW_VARIABLE	Variable are also linked to hierarchies in calculation views		
DEMO_INPUT_PARAMETER	DEMO_INPUT_PARAMETER		
COMPANYNAME	COMPANYNAME	BEDRIJFSNAAM	
PRODUCTID	PRODUCTID	PRODUKTID	
PRODUCT_NAME	PRODUCT_NAME	PRODUCT_NAAM	
PRODUCT_CATEGORY	PRODUCT_CATEGORY		
PRODUCT_PRICE	PRODUCT_PRICE		
PRODUCT_CURRENCY	PRODUCT_CURRENCY		
SUPPLIER_REGION	SUPPLIER_REGION		
SUPPLIER_COUNTRY	SUPPLIER_COUNTRY		
SUPPLIER_CITY	SUPPLIER_CITY		
WAT	VAT		

Figure 11.22 Translating Information Model Labels

Select the language that you require from the LANGUAGE dropdown menu, and click the LOAD TEXT button. You can then translate all the labels in your information model.

#### **Repository Translation Tool**

SAP HANA also provides a command-line tool known as the *Repository Translation Tool* for exporting, uploading, downloading, and importing language files. These language files contain all the text of repository objects and are in a standard format for customer or partner usage. Because RTT is a command-line tool, you will need to ask your SAP HANA system administrator for access to it.

# Important Terminology

In this chapter, we covered the following important terminology:

## Validation rules

SAP HANA has built-in validation rules for the different types of information models and modeling objects. Validation rules check for possible syntax errors and missing properties. When you request a validation run, SAP HANA applies the relevant validation rules to your information model.

## Repository objects (design-time objects)

These objects are definitions (metadata) for what SAP HANA should create when running information models and are saved in the CONTENT area of the SYSTEMS view. They are seen as the "inactive" versions, and end users cannot run them.

## Runtime version

When you activate an information model, SAP HANA checks the model against the validation rules, then creates an "active copy" of the information model in the \_SYS\_BIC schema. This active copy is called a runtime version.

## Development system

This is where all of your modeling and development work is done.

## Quality assurance system

This is where all testing is done before moving to the production system. The quality assurance system is normally a recent copy of the production system. Any errors created in this system would also create errors in the production system. By catching them here, you can ensure an error-free production environment.

## Production system

This is the area where companies' business activities occur and where end users perform functions for their daily work.

## Delivery unit

A single artifact made up of combined packages that contain all modeling objects. A delivery unit therefore consists of one or more packages. Each package in a delivery unit can contain multiple information models.

## • Change and Transport System (CTS)

Used by SAP HANA system administrators to manage the company's SAP transports.

## Developer Mode (importing and exporting)

Used to manually transport a few selected or individual information models from one system to another by exporting them and importing them into the quality assurance or production system. You can also use this to mode make backups of your own information models.

## SAP Support Mode (importing and exporting)

When you encounter problems with your SAP HANA system, you can log an SAP message with SAP Support. You can export the relevant information models to SAP Support via this mode.

## ► SAP HANA Application Lifecycle Manager

Built-in transport tool that supports all phases of application lifecycle. This is especially useful for companies that do not have other SAP systems or SAP Solution Manager to manage their transports. This web-based interface also works well on larger mobile phones and tablets.

## Schema mapping

Used to transport SAP HANA objects from one system to another when physical schema in the target system does not match the authoring scheme in the source system.

## Authoring schema

Schema used in the development system when building information models.

Mass copy

Mass copy allows you to duplicate an information model and where all references from the other models are updated automatically.

## Imported objects

Objects that originated from another system. These are normally transported objects in the production system. SAP-created objects will be marked as imported objects in all your systems—even in your development system—because you did not create them.

## Native objects

Original objects in the development system.

Refactoring

The process of restructuring your information models without changing their external behavior to improve, simplify, and clarify the design of your models.

## Auto Documentation

Feature that documents graphical information models in SAP HANA.

# Practice Questions

These practice questions will help you evaluate your understanding of the topics covered in this chapter. The questions shown are similar in nature to those found on the certification examination. Although none of these questions will be found on the exam itself, they will allow you to review your knowledge of the subject. Select the correct answers and then check the completeness of your answers in the Practice Question Answers and Explanations section. Remember that on the exam you must select all correct answers and only correct answers to receive a point for the question.

- 1. For which of the following tasks can you use Auto Documentation?
- □ **A.** Documenting all transported information models
- □ **B.** Documenting all graphical information models
- □ **C.** Documenting all activated information models
- □ **D.** Documenting all created information models
- 2. Which are valid descriptions of delivery units? (There are 2 correct answers.)
- □ **A.** Always consist of one package
- □ **B.** Are used to transport runtime objects
- $\Box$  **C.** Can be exported
- □ **D.** Can be imported

- 3. Which of the following describe design-time objects? (There are 3 correct answers.)
- □ **A.** Repository objects
- □ **B.** Native objects
- □ **C.** Catalog objects
- □ **D.** Inactive
- $\Box$  **E.** Active
- 4. Which of the following are examples for validation rules? (There are 2 correct answers.)
- □ **A.** Check that tables contain data
- □ **B.** Check formulas in calculated columns
- **C.** Check that attribute views have a key attribute specified
- D. Check that graphical calculation views have no orphan nodes
- 5. Schema mapping is used during which process?
- □ **A.** Importing
- □ **B.** Activation
- □ **C.** Exporting
- **D.** Validation
- 6. True or False: CDS can improve security in a production environment.
- □ **A.** True
- □ **B.** False
- 7. Which of the following statements describe a standard SAP system landscape used for transports?
- □ **A.** It consists of only a quality assurance and a production system.
- □ **B.** The quality assurance system is normally a recent copy of the production system.
- □ **C.** Transports go from production to quality assurance.
- **D.** You perform development in the quality assurance system.

- 8. True or False: CDS only works with runtime objects.
- $\Box$  **A.** True
- □ **B.** False
- 9. Which statements describe the mass copy feature in SAP HANA? (There are 2 correct answers.)
- □ **A.** It can be used to create a sandbox (playpen) environment.
- **B.** It is used to import an application from an SAP partner.
- **C.** It is used to transport data tables.
- **D**. It can be used to fix models when schemas have different names.
- 10. In which schema does SAP HANA store an activated graphical calculation view?
- □ A. SYSTEM
- □ **B.** SYS
- □ C.\_SYS\_BI
- □ **D.**\_SYS\_BIC
- 11. Which tab in SAP HANA studio shows validation check errors?
- $\Box$  **A.** Problems
- □ **B.** Properties
- $\Box$  **C.** History
- □ **D.** Job Log
- 12. What happens when you activate an information model? ? (There are 2 correct answers.)
- □ **A.** It generates a runtime object.
- $\Box$  **B.** It reverts to the active version.
- $\Box$  **C.** It checks the validation rules.
- **D.** It exports an active version.

- 13. You want to use a web-based transport system on your Apple iPad. What tool do you use?
- □ A. SAP Solution Manager
- □ **B.** SAP HANA Application Lifecycle Manager
- □ **C.** Developer mode
- $\Box$  **D.** CTS
- 14. True or False: When you mark an information model as deprecated, it no longer works.
- □ **A.** True
- □ **B.** False
- 15. Refactoring is used with which of the following actions?
- □ **A.** Improving your modeling design
- □ **B.** Translating
- □ C. Transporting
- **D.** Documenting
- 16. Which export option can you use to make backups of your own information models?
- $\Box$  **A.** CTS
- □ **B.** Delivery units
- □ **C.** Developer mode
- □ **D.** SAP Support mode
- 17. For what tasks would you use the Where-Used feature in SAP HANA?
- □ **A.** To find all places a transport is imported
- □ **B.** To find all places where translations exist
- □ **C.** To find all places a user updated information models
- **D.** To find all places an information model is used

- 18. When do you always have both an active and an inactive version of an information model available in the SAP HANA development system?
- □ **A.** When you edit an existing model
- □ **B.** When you create a new model
- $\Box$  **C.** When validation of a model fails
- **D**. When you selected REVERT TO ACTIVE on an inactive version
- 19. Your schemas in development and production have different names. What do you use to ensure you do not receive activation errors when importing information models into production?
- □ **A.** Mass copy
- □ **B.** Schema mapping
- □ **C.** Refactoring
- $\Box$  **D.** CDS
- **20.** In which subfolder of the \_SYS\_BIC schema do you find activated information models?
- □ A. COLUMN VIEWS
- $\Box$  **B.** Procedures
- $\Box$  **C.** VIEWS
- $\Box$  **D.** Functions
- 21. Which actions does refactoring typically use? (There are 2 correct answers.)
- □ **A.** Transporting
- □ **B.** Deleting
- $\Box$  **C.** Moving
- □ **D.** Renaming
# **Practice Question Answers and Explanations**

1. Correct answer: **B** 

Auto Documentation is for documenting graphical views (see <u>Figure 11.18</u>). It does not document scripted calculation views. All the other options could contain scripted views. Watch out for the word *all* in the answers.

2. Correct answers: **C**, **D** 

See <u>Figure 11.9</u>. Delivery units can contain more than one package. Watch out for the word *always* in the answers. Delivery units transport design-time objects, not runtime objects. Once the design-time objects are imported into the SAP HANA system, activation is used to create the corresponding runtime objects.

3. Correct answers: A, B, D

Design-time objects are inactive repository objects, stored in the CONTENT area, and need to be activated. During activation, runtime objects are created in the CATALOG area.

4. Correct answers: C, D

"Check that attribute views have a key attribute specified" is a valid rule (see <u>Figure 11.4</u> as an example).

"Check that graphical calculation views have no orphan nodes" is mentioned in the list of examples described just before <u>Figure 11.1</u>. There is no validation rule to check that tables contain data. Checking formulas in calculated columns is done in the Expression Editor.

5. Correct answer: A

Schema mapping is used during the importing process. During the export, you don't know what schemas are available in the target system. Activation and validation are running in the same system and are unrelated to schema mapping. See just below Figure 11.12.

6. Correct answer: A

Core Data Services (CDS) can improve security because you do not need to give someone authorization to create tables and schemas in a production system. If no one has those authorizations, then you have improved the security. See the Core Data Services section for more information.

# 🕇 Тір

Remember that simple true or false questions do not occur in the certification exam. The other questions with at least four answers are more representative of the questions you will find in the certification exam.

### 7. Correct answer: **B**

The quality assurance system is normally a recent copy of the production system is one of the aspects of a standard SAP system landscape used for transports.

Watch out for the word *only* in the first answer, which makes it a wrong answer. It consists NOT only of a quality assurance and a production system, but also a development system. See <u>Figure 11.8</u> for a correct illustration. Transports go from quality assurance to production, not the other way around. You do NOT development in the quality assurance system, but in the development system.

8. Correct answer: **B** 

CDS objects are design-time objects. They create runtime objects when they are activated. The word *only* makes this statement false. See the Core Data Services section.

9. Correct answers: A, B

The mass copy feature in SAP HANA can be used to create a sandbox (playpen) environment, and is used to import an application from an SAP partner. Mass copy does not transport data tables. You need to perform an export and import to transport data tables, because they are runtime objects. CDS addresses this problem by making them design-time objects. Schema mapping is used to fix models when schemas have different names, not mass copy. See the Importing Objects with Mass Copy section.

10. Correct answer: D

**SAP HANA store activated graphical calculation views in the** \_SYS\_BIC schema (see <u>Figure 11.6</u>).

11. Correct answer: D

SAP HANA studio shows validation check errors in the JOB LOG tab (see <u>Figure 11.3</u>).

12. Correct answers: A, C

When you activate an information model it checks the validation rules and generates a run-time object. Remember that activation also triggers a validation, hence answer C is also correct. See the Activation section.

Reverting to the active version is not done at activation, but *before* activating a newer version, to go back to older active version. Active (run-time) versions are not exported. Design-time versions are exported. Remember, activation also triggers a validation.

13. Correct answer: **B** 

SAP HANA Application Lifecycle Manager is a web-based transport system that you can use on your Apple iPad (see <u>Figure 11.11</u>). SAP Solution Manager and Change and Transport System (CTS) are the traditional SAP transport tools. Developer Mode is the mode to export, for example, single SAP HANA views. This is normally run from SAP HANA studio, which does not run on your Apple iPad.

14. Correct answer: **B** 

When you mark an information model as deprecated, it *does* still work. It merely warns developers or modelers who want to use it that there is an updated version available.

15. Correct answer: A

Refactoring is used to improve your modeling design. You can use it, for example, to rename SAP HANA models. Translating is used to translate your models to other languages (e.g., Chinese). Transporting is taking your modeling work from the development system to the production system. Documenting is writing documents and explaining your modeling work.

16. Correct answer: C

The Developer Mode allows you use to make backups of your own information models (see the description of <u>Figure 11.9</u>). The Change and Transport System (CTS) and delivery units are used to transport your information models to the production system. SAP Support Mode is used to send your information models to SAP if you have a problem with your SAP HANA models.

17. Correct answer: D

You use the Where-Used feature in SAP HANA to find all the places an information model is used (see <u>Figure 11.17</u>). You would use the Change and Transport System (CTS) to find all places a transport is imported. You could use the semantic node in an SAP HANA view to find all places where translations exist for specified fields. You use HISTORY to find which information models a user updated.

18. Correct answer: A

You only have both an active and an inactive version of an information model available in the SAP HANA development system when you edit an existing model. With a new model, there is no active version yet. When validation fails, both versions could (perhaps) exist, but this not guaranteed; for example, when validating a new model there is not yet an active version. Watch out for partially true answers. The word *always* in the question makes this answer wrong! If you have already clicked the REVERT TO ACTIVE button, then the inactive version is gone. At that point, you only have the active version.

19. Correct answer: **B** 

"Your schemas in development and production have different names." This sentence immediately indicated that we are asking about schema mapping (see Figure 11.13).

With mass copy, you normally do not have the development schema or system, as these belong to either SAP or a third-party developer/partner. Refactoring is used for renaming and moving SAP HANA information models inside the same system, not between systems as the question indicates. CDS does not fix different schema names.

20. Correct answer: A

You find activated information models in the COLUMN VIEWS subfolder of the \_SYS\_BIC schema (see Figure 11.6).

21. Correct answers: C, D

Refactoring typically uses moving and renaming (see Figure 11.15).

# Takeaway

You should now know how to validate and activate information models and understand what happens behind the scenes when you activate a model. The concept of transporting design-time objects is important when preparing a project for the go-live date. You might have to implement techniques such as schema mapping to ensure a smooth transport process for your information models.

Like gardening to maintain an attractive lawn, you might also need to refactor your modeling work to keep it up-to-date. You've also learned how to document and translate your information models to make them useful for as many people as possible.

# Summary

In previous chapters, we focused on how to create information models. In this chapter, we discussed how to validate, activate, transport, refactor, document, and translate your information models.

By now, you should have a good idea of how to set up an SAP HANA production environment for end users who will use your information models in their everyday business.

With this we have completed the modeling topics inside SAP HANA as a platform. The next chapter concentrates on how SAP is using calculations views with business transactional systems like SAP ERP, using SAP HANA as the database.

# **SAP HANA Live**

# Techniques You'll Master

- Understand the concepts behind SAP HANA Live
- Get to know the two architecture options for SAP HANA Live
- ► Learn about SAP HANA Live's virtual data model and understand what you are allowed to use and modify within it
- Choose the correct SAP HANA Live views for your reports
- Know how to use the SAP HANA Live Browser tool
- Know how to use the SAP HANA Live Extension Assistant
- Design your own SAP HANA Live views
- ► Extend and adapt standard SAP HANA Live views for your reporting requirements

Thus far, we have primarily discussed using SAP HANA as a modeling and development platform (see the sections on the sidecar and platform architecture deployment scenarios in <u>Chapter 3</u>). In this chapter, we'll turn our attention to the architecture deployment scenario, in which SAP HANA—via SAP HANA Live—is used as the database for SAP business systems such as SAP Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP), SAP Customer Relationship Management (CRM), and SAP Supply Chain Management (SCM).

# Real-World Scenario

Imagine that you are asked to help design and develop some new reports for a company—but these are not the usual management reports. The company wants to streamline its product deliveries.

The company has been struggling to continuously plan the shipping of its products during the day. The company receives a shipping schedule from the data warehouse system every morning, but traffic jams and new customer orders quickly render this planned schedule useless. This causes backlogs at the loading zones and costs the company more in shipping because it can't combine various customer orders in a single shipment.

Someone has tried using a Microsoft Excel spreadsheet, but the data is not kept up-to-date, and it cannot consolidate the data from all the data sources. After hearing about SAP HANA's ability to analyze data in real time, the company asks you to create some real-time delivery planning reports.

You know that there are prebuilt SAP HANA Live information models available for the SAP ERP system, and you can use a few of these SAP HANA Live information models to meet this business need quickly.

# **Objectives of This Portion of the Test**

The objective of this portion of the SAP HANA certification is to test your knowledge of SAP HANA Live concepts. The certification exam expects you to have a good understanding of the following topics:

- ► SAP HANA Live concepts and architecture
- ► A high-level overview of SAP HANA Live implementation

- ► The architecture of SAP HANA Live with the virtual data model (VDM)
- How to find and consume the right SAP HANA Live information models using the SAP HANA Live Browser
- How to extend and modify the available SAP HANA Live models to address business requirements

#### Note

This portion contributes up to 10% of the total certification exam score.

# **Key Concepts Refresher**

Simply put, SAP HANA Live uses predelivered content in the form of calculation views for real-time operational reporting. In this chapter, we'll look first at the real-world scenario again. Then we'll walk through the history of business information systems to understand the problem posed in this scenario better and determine how using SAP HANA Live addresses this problem. Then, we'll look at what necessitated SAP HANA Live, similar to <u>Chapter 3</u>, in which we discussed the impact SAP HANA's fast memory had on systems that traditionally used slower disk memory.

From there, we'll dive into the architecture of SAP HANA Live, its VDM, its many views, and steps for installation and administration. After we've covered these foundational topics, we'll shift our attention to the primary tools used within SAP HANA Live: SAP HANA Live Browser and SAP HANA Live Extension Assistant. Finally, we'll discuss the steps for modifying SAP HANA Live information models.

### **Background Information**

Many years ago, SAP only had a single product, called *SAP R/3*. This offering blossomed into the SAP ERP system that we still use today. SAP ERP did everything for companies, from finances to manufacturing, procurement and sales to delivery, and payroll to stores management. The SAP ERP system was a transactional system, what we now call an *online transactional processing* (OLTP) system

(also called an *operational system*). All reports were run from within this system, although they tended to be simple "listing" reports.

Over time, the need arose for more complex reports. In response, more advanced analytics and dashboard tools were provided. Through these tools, people learned how to use *cubes* to analyze data. When developers tried to build these new analytics into the transactional system, they discovered that these new reporting features had a huge impact on the performance of the SAP ERP system. A single reporting user running a large cube could consume more data from the database than hundreds of transactional users. It was unacceptable that a single user could slow the entire system down.

To address performance issues, all reporting data from the transactional system was copied to a newly invented *reporting system*. The era of data warehouses had arrived. All reporting data is updated from the transactional system to the data warehouse during the night. This way, the performance of the transactional system remained acceptable during the workday. The new data warehouses were called *online analytical processing* (OLAP) systems, and OLTP and OLAP went their separate ways (see Figure 12.1).



Figure 12.1 Separate OLTP and OLAP Systems

This departure helped the performance of both systems but eventually led to countless other headaches. Reports were always outdated now because yesterday's data was used for the reports. We could not see what was happening in the OLTP system in real time. People then started using Microsoft Excel spreadsheets to address some of the issues, which in turn led to more problems and risks (e.g., reports that didn't agree, wrong formulas, and an inability to consolidate information).

#### Note

Our real-world scenario at the start of the chapter provides a good example in which yesterday's data cannot address today's traffic jams.

How did SAP address these new issues with SAP HANA? By introducing SAP HANA Live, which moves the operational reporting functionality from the data warehouse back into the operational system.

A question quite often arises: "Can SAP HANA just replace an entire data warehouse like SAP Business Warehouse (BW)?"

The short answer is: "No, SAP HANA cannot fully replace SAP BW." Data warehouses are multipurpose. In the real-world scenario we used for this chapter, we only looked at the operational reporting aspects of data warehouses, which are not particularly strong points for such systems. If you had a single operational system with a single warehouse for reporting, you could do everything with SAP HANA—but reality tends to be more complex.

Most companies use their data warehouses to consolidate data from many systems, as shown in <u>Figure 12.2</u>. They use data warehouse features such as the following:

- Data governance
- ▶ Preconfigured content in the form of cube definitions and reports
- Data lifecycle management, including data aging and a complete history of business transactions
- Cross-system consistency and integration
- Planning, consolidation, and consumption

#### Тір

It makes no sense to try to get rid of data warehouses completely due to operational reporting issues. A better solution is to focus on addressing the few problematic areas in which data warehouses are not optimal.



**Figure 12.2** Data from Multiple Business Systems Consolidated into Data Warehouse for Reporting, Transactional History, and Aging

Because SAP BW is now primarily used for data warehousing, operational reporting needed to be shifted back to SAP ERP. To enable this functionality, SAP ERP uses SAP HANA as a database. This allows companies to run their operational reports, even with complex analytics, on real-time SAP ERP data directly from the underlying SAP HANA database via information models.

SAP HANA Live is the tool used to install, select, maintain, and modify these information models. SAP HANA Live is not only limited to SAP ERP, but also is available for many other SAP business systems, such as SAP CRM, SAP SCM, SAP Governance, Risk, and Compliance (GRC), and SAP Product Lifecycle Management (PLM).

Some of the benefits of SAP HANA Live include the following:

- ► Real-time reporting and analytics on up-to-date information.
- ► SAP HANA does not need to store precalculated aggregates in cubes.

- OLTP and OLAP run in the same system, which can help reduce the total cost of ownership (TCO).
- Open for access by any reporting tool or application.
- Customers and partners can extend it to suit their needs.

Now that you have a better understanding of how SAP HANA Live came to be, the following subsections will dive further into SAP HANA Live's architecture, virtual data model (VDM), views, installation and administration procedures, and modifications.

# Architecture

SAP HANA Live needs an SAP HANA database. Connecting to an SAP HANA database can be achieved in two ways (in this case, we just concentrate on the SAP ERP system, but this also applies to all the other SAP business systems like SAP CRM, SAP SCM, SAP GRC, and SAP PLM; see Figure 12.3):

#### SAP HANA as a database

The first option is to migrate an SAP ERP system's database to SAP HANA. No additional systems are required. This is also known as the integrated scenario.

#### SAP HANA as a sidecar

The second option is to keep the SAP ERP database and install an SAP HANA system as a sidecar (as discussed in <u>Chapter 3</u>). Then, replicate the required database tables to the SAP HANA system using SAP LT Replication Server (SLT). You can find more information about SLT in <u>Chapter 14</u>. SLT enables real-time replication so that SAP HANA always has the latest data available. For this scenario, you need to install the SLT and SAP HANA systems as well. This is also known as the side-by-side scenario.

After you've connected to an SAP HANA database, you can build reports, analytics, and dashboards directly on the SAP HANA Live content. Other applications can also call this content directly.

#### Note

In both architectural scenarios, SAP HANA Live is installed in the SAP HANA database.



Figure 12.3 Architecture Options for SAP HANA Live

# Virtual Data Model

SAP HANA Live content consists primarily of calculation views that are designed, created, and delivered by SAP. These calculation views are built for operational reporting instead of analytical reporting purposes, and therefore use mostly join nodes. The information models are relational rather than dimensional (cube-like), and therefore use the SQL engine rather than the calculation engine. A system administrator loads the SAP HANA Live content into the SAP HANA database. These calculation views are layered in a structure called the SAP HANA Live *virtual data model* (VDM). SAP HANA Live is structured internally as shown in <u>Figure 12.4</u>.

The VDM consists of the following types of views:

### Private views

These are built directly on the database tables and on other private views. These denormalize the database source data for use in the reuse views.

### Reuse views

These structure the data in a way that business processes can use. These views can be reused by other views.

### Query views

These can be consumed directly by analytical tools and applications. They are not reused by other views. These views are used when designing reports.

### Customer query views

These are created either by copying SAP-provided query views or by creating your own query views. You can add your own filters, variables, or input parameters to these views. You can also expose additional data fields or hide fields that are not required.

### Value help views

These are used as lookups (i.e., dropdown lists or filter lists) for selection lists in analytical tools and business applications. They make it easier for users to filter data by providing a list of possible values to choose from. Value help views are not used in other VDM views; they are consumed directly by analytical tools and business applications.



Figure 12.4 SAP HANA Live Virtual Data Model



You should never call private and reuse views directly.

You can build your reports, analytics, or business applications directly on query views. These can be either SAP-provided query views or custom query views. When you run your report, these query views are called. They in turn call the relevant reuse views, which call the relevant private views, which in turn read the relevant database tables. The value help views are called whenever drop-down lists are used to display possible values that a user can choose from.



#### Note

It is not recommended to modify any SAP-provided VDM views because all SAPprovided VDM views are overwritten when a newer version of the SAP HANA Live content is installed. There is no mechanism like the one in ABAP, in which the system asks if you want to keep any customer changes.

Therefore, you should always make a copy of a VDM query view to modify, rather than modifying the original.

### **SAP HANA Live Views**

Most of the SAP-provided SAP HANA Live views are calculation views. All the SAP HANA modeling techniques that you've learned are relevant to these views. Figure 12.5 shows an example of such a calculation view.

You will notice several characteristics of these calculations views in Figure 12.5:

- They contain several layers (nodes). This is to denormalize the source data. Normalizing data is normal in an OLTP system to improve performance but is not required for analytics.
- There are many joins. These are used to combine reuse views to create the VDM query view.
- The views might have variables, input parameters, and calculated attributes. The use of input parameters has been limited due to the fact that some reporting tools have difficulty using them. Default values are always supplied for the input parameters.





Calculation views use the SQL engine instead of the OLAP engine. We discussed these engines in <u>Chapter 10</u>. There are several reasons for using the SQL engine instead of the OLAP engine. The main reason is that we are working with data from an OLTP system, which consists of line-level transactions rather than aggregates, so we do not require the features of the OLAP engine. Another good reason is for performance; for example, we do not want to pass data between execution engines.

### Installation and Administration

SAP HANA Live is installed in the SAP HANA database. A system administrator will normally install the SAP HANA Live content package.

All SAP HANA Live information can be found at *http://help.sap.com/hba*.

You will need to define a schema mapping (see <u>Chapter 11</u>) before importing the SAP HANA Live content package. The schema name that SAP used to develop the SAP HANA Live information models will not be the same as the schema name of your source system.

Once you've installed SAP HANA Live on an SAP HANA system, you will see the content in the CONTENT folder, under SAP • HBA, as shown in Figure 12.6. You can

explore the calculation views in SAP HANA studio or the SAP HANA web-based development workbench. We do not recommend that you change the views here. All the SAP-provided VDM views are overwritten when a newer version of the SAP HANA Live content is installed. There is no mechanism in place within SAP HANA Live to ask if you want to keep any customer changes, so you could lose all your hard work during an SAP HANA Live update.







SAP HANA Live has its own release cycles and timelines. SAP HANA Live content updates do not have to correspond to the SAP HANA system update cycles and timelines.

In the SAP • HBA package, you will also find various web-based tools for working with SAP HANA Live content:

SAP HANA Live Browser

This tool is used to find the right query views for your reporting needs.

 SAP HANA Live Extension Assistant This tool helps you copy and modify views based on your business requirements.

If you have set up the SAP HANA database in a sidecar configuration, you also need to do the following:

- ► Install SLT.
- Replicate the relevant tables from the source database to the SAP HANA database. The SAP HANA Live Browser tool will help you select the correct tables for the views you require (see the SAP HANA Live Browser section for more information).

In the SAP documentation, you will also find references to a *rapid deployment solution* (RDS) for SAP HANA Live. This is an optional consulting service that SAP offers (for a fee) to help you install SAP HANA Live on your SAP systems.

In the next section, we'll look at the full breadth of SAP HANA Live Brower's functionality.

### SAP HANA Live Browser-Browse and Use Views

The SAP HANA Live Browser tool is a web-based (HTML5) application that enables you to find the correct views for your reporting or analytics requirements. Sometimes, you might need to ask an SAP functional person that knows the source system well to help you find the required views. Fox example, to find sales information in an SAP ERP system, you might need the advice of an SAP Sales and Distribution (SD) consultant.

You can find the SAP HANA Live Browser tool (<u>Figure 12.7</u>) by accessing *http:// <SAP HANA server hostname>:8000/sap/hana/hba/explorer*. (This assumes that the instance number is 00.)

In this section, we will walk through the different areas found in SAP HANA Live, the ALL VIEWS toolbar, and the SAP HANA Live version for business users.

#### Areas

We start by looking at the ALL VIEWS section of the tool (see Figure 12.7).

Here you can search for views by typing a part of the name of the view in the FILTER field. For each view, you can see the following information:

- View name
- Description of the view
- View category (private, reuse, or query view)
- View type (mostly calculation views)
- To which area of the application the view is applicable
- ► In which SAP HANA package the view is located

Figure 12.8 shows a partial list of views that we can use for procurement reports.

er 👘 🖌 🕅	Vie	ws in HAN	A						
/lews	Vie	ews in l	HANA						
<ul> <li>BC - Basis Components</li> <li>CA - Cross-Application Basis Compo</li> </ul>			🕂 📎 💀 🖪 🖌					Ex	port
CO - Controlling	т Го	Favorite	View Name	View Description	Package	Application Comp	View Category	View Type	
EC - Enterprise Controlling			AccountingDocumentType	Master data for accounting d	sap hba.ecc	BC-APT	Reuse	CalculationView	
FI - Financial Accounting			ControllingDebitCreditCodeQuery	Master data of Controlling De	sap hba.ecc	BC-DWB-DIC-AC	Querv	CalculationView	
FIN - Financials			ControllingDebitCreditCode	Master data of Controlling De	san bha err	BC-DWB-DIC-AC	Reuse	CalculationWew	
FS - Financial Services			ControllingDebitCreditCodeName	Private view	san bha ecc	BC-DWB-DIC-AC	Reuse	CalculationView	
<ul> <li>LE - Logistics Execution</li> </ul>				Linite of Measurement	capinbaloco	BC-SEV-ASE-LIOM	Rauca	CalculationView	
<ul> <li>LU - Logistics - General</li> <li>MM Materiala Management</li> </ul>			Colondari/conflocad/ariant	ColondarVeorBecord/eriont	cap hbc ccc	BC PEV BPE	Drivoto	CalculationView	
PA - Personnel Management			Calefiliar FearBaseuvariant	Driveto view	sap.nba.ecc	BC-SRV-BSF	Private	CalculationView	
PM - Plant Maintenance		74	Operate Davis database	Private view	sap.nba.ecc	BC-SRV-BSF	Private	Calculationview	
PP - Production Planning and Control		77	specialmenodwithDate	Private view	sapinbalecc	BC-SRV-BSF	Private	Calculationview	
PS - Project System			ControllingObject	CONTROLLING_OBJECT	sap.nba.ecc	CA	Private	Calculationview	
SD - Sales and Distribution	-		MaterialExternalNumber	Material Exteral Number	sap.hba.ecc	CA	Undefined	CalculationView	
NA - undefined			PaymentTermsQuery	Master data of payment terms	sap.hba.ecc	CA-BK	Query	CalculationView	
			PaymentTerms	Master data of payment terms	sap.hba.ecc	CA-BK	Reuse	CalculationView	
			CharacteristicDesc	List of descriptions for chara	sap.hba.ecc	CA-CL	Reuse	CalculationView	
			CharacteristicValueDesc	List of descriptions for the val	sap.hba.ecc	CA-CL	Reuse	CalculationView	
			CountryQuery	Master data for country	sap.hba.ecc	CA-EPT-HCO	Query	CalculationView	
			CurrencyQuery	Master data of Currency	sap.hba.ecc	CA-EPT-HCO	Query	CalculationView	
			SAPClientQuery	Query view for SAP clients	sap.hba.ecc	CA-EPT-HCO	Query	CalculationView	
			YearMonthQuery	YearMonthQuery	sap.hba.ecc	CA-EPT-HCO	Query	CalculationView	
			Address	Master data for Address	sap.hba.ecc	CA-EPT-HCO	Reuse	CalculationView	
			CityCode	Master data for city	sap.hba.ecc	CA-EPT-HCO	Reuse	CalculationView	
			CommunicationMediumTure	Magtar data for communicati	san hha ecc	CALEPT-HCO	Reuse	Calculation//iew	





Figure 12.8 Filter String Entry to Find Views

You can easily mark an SAP HANA Live view as a favorite by clicking on the empty star to the left of the view name (<u>Figure 12.9</u>). From the MY FAVORITES tab in the SAP HANA Live Browser, you can see a list of all your favorite views.

You also can see a list of invalid views (Figure 12.10). Views can appear on this list if they are missing underlying tables or dependent views. Such views will not activate, either.

Views in HANA							
Views in HANA							
Favorite View Name	Vi	ew Description	Package				
PurchaseOrderValueQuen	y Di	isplays the purchase order	sap.hba.ecc				
Select to add to favorites							
SAP HANA Live				-			
SAP SAP HANA Live							
SAP SAP HANA LIVE ALL VIEWS MY FAVO	DRITE	S SEARCH INVALID	views				
SAP SAP HANA Live ALL VIEWS MY FAVO	DRITE:	S search invalid	VIEWS				
SAP SAP HANA Live ALL VIEWS MY FAVC	DRITE: Views in H/ Views in	S search invalid Inna I HANA	VIEWS				
SAP SAP HANA Live ALL VIEWS MY FAVC Filter Views • MM - Materials Management	DRITES Views in H/ Views in	S SEARCH INVALID INNA IN HANA	VIEWS				
SAP SAP HANA Live ALL VIEWS MY FAVC Filter Views MM - Materiais Management	Views in HA Views in HA Views in Favorit	S SEARCH INVALID INNA IN HANA I CP I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I	VIEWS a ew Description	Package			
SAP SAP HANA Live ALL VIEWS MY FAVC Filter Views MM - Materials Management	Views in H/ Views in H/ Views in Favorit	S SEARCH INVALID INA HANA C New Nafad View Nafad VurchaseOrderValue D	VIEWS	Package sap hba.ex			

Figure 12.9 Mark SAP HANA Live Views as Favorites

SAF HANALIVE								wecome b	Line   Abi
ALL VIEWS MY FAVOR	ITES	SEA	RCH INVALI	D VIEWS					
iter 6	. Dt	Vie	ews in HANA						
Views		Vie	ews in HANA						
<ul> <li>sap.hba.ecc</li> </ul>			2						Export
		ъ	View Name	View Description	Package	Application Component	View Category	View Type	
			BOMExplosionQuery	Query view for BOM exp	sap.hba.ecc	LO-MD-BOM	Query	CalculationView	1
			BillingBlkdSalesDocu	Analytical report "List of	sap.hba.ecc	SD-SLS	Query	CalculationView	
			BillingBlkdSalesDocu	Analytical report "List of	sap.hba.ecc	SD-SLS	Query	CalculationView	
			CaseReasonQuery	Master data of case rea	sap.hba.ecc	FIN-FSCM-DM	Query	CalculationView	
			DeliveryBlkdSalesDocu	Query view for delivery	sap.hba.ecc	SD-SLS	Query	CalculationView	
			DeliveryBlkdSalesDocu	Query view for delivery	sap.hba.ecc	SD-SLS	Query	CalculationView	
			MfgOrderltemOpenYiel	Open yield for each ma	sap.hba.ecc	PP-SFC	Query	CalculationView	
			MfgOrderltemOpenYiel	Open yield for each ma	sap.hba.ecc	PP-SFC	Query	CalculationView	
			MfgOrderltemOpenYiel	Open yield for each ma	sap.hba.ecc	PP-SFC	Query	CalculationView	
			ProjectCompletionPerc	Provides the actual and	sap.hba.ecc	PS-IS	Query	CalculationView	
			ProjectEarnedValueQuery	Provides the cumulativ	sap.hba.ecc	PS-IS	Query	CalculationView	
			ProjectMilestoneTrend	Analyze dates and use t	sap.hba.ecc	PS-IS	Query	CalculationView	
			ProjectMilestoneTrend	Provides the number of	sap.hba.ecc	PS-IS	Query	CalculationView	
			ProjectPurchaseOrderlt	Identifies the number of	sap.hba.ecc	PS-IS	Query	CalculationView	
			PurchaseContractLeak	Returns the spend of p	sap.hba.ecc	MM-PUR-HbA	Query	CalculationView	
			PurchasingSpendOffC	Analyzes the total spen	sap.hba.ecc	MM-PUR-HbA	Query	CalculationView	

Figure 12.10 List of Invalid SAP HANA Live Views

#### All Views Toolbar

You can access many features in SAP HANA Live Browser from a provided toolbar (see Figure 12.11).



Figure 12.11 SAP HANA Live Browser Toolbar

The following functions are available from the toolbar:

► OPEN DEFINITION 🔠

The OPEN DEFINITION tab (<u>Figure 12.12</u>) shows the metadata of the SAP HANA Live view. These fields are available for your reports and analytics. If you need other fields, you will have to use the SAP HANA Live Extension Assistant.

Views in HANA	# sap.hba.ecc/	PurchaseOrderVa	nlueQuery ×								
Name			Package	Package 7				Туре			
PurchaseOrderV	alueQuery		sap.hba.ec	sap.hba.ecc				CalculationView			
Columns											
Column Na	Position	SQL Data T	Length	Column Sto	is Nullable	Default Val	lue Compressi	Index Type	Comments		
SAPClient	1	NVARCHAR	3	STRING	TRUE		DEFAULT	FULL			
Vendor	2	NVARCHAR	10	STRING	TRUE		DEFAULT	FULL			
VendorName	3	NVARCHAR	35	STRING	TRUE		DEFAULT	FULL			
Plant	4	NVARCHAR	4	STRING	TRUE		DEFAULT	FULL			
PlantName	5	NVARCHAR	30	STRING	TRUE		DEFAULT	FULL			
Material	6	NVARCHAR	18	STRING	TRUE		DEFAULT	FULL			
MaterialName	7	NVARCHAR	40	STRING	TRUE		DEFAULT	FULL			
YearMonth	8	VARCHAR	6	STRING	TRUE		DEFAULT	FULL			
YearWeek	9	VARCHAR	6	STRING	TRUE		DEFAULT	FULL			
CompanyC	10	NVARCHAR	5	STRING	TRUE		DEFAULT	FULL			
EffectivePur	11	NVARCHAR	5	STRING	TRUE		DEFAULT	FULL			
EffectivePur	12	DECIMAL	26	FIXED	TRUE		DEFAULT	FULL			

#### Figure 12.12 Open Definition Tab Showing SAP HANA Live View Metadata

- OPEN CONTENT
   The OPEN CONTENT tab (Figure 12.13) shows a preview of the data an SAP HANA Live view will produce.
- ► OPEN CROSS REFERENCE → The OPEN CROSS REFERENCE tab (Figure 12.14) shows an interactive and graphical depiction of all the related tables and views used by this specific SAP HANA Live view. You can also see an outline version instead of the graphical version.

Variables/Input Para	meter Values					×
Variable/Parameter ID	From		То	Value Type	Selection Type	
V_SAPClient*				AttributeValue	SingleValue	_
V_Vendor				AttributeValue	Range	
🐸 V_Plant				AttributeValue	Range	
🐸 V_Material				AttributeValue	Range	
					OK	Cancel
Views in HANA	hba.ecc/SalesOrderQuery	×				
ap.hba.ecc/Sale	sOrderQuery					
SAPClient	SalesOrder	OrganizationDivis	sion DivisionNan	ne DistributionCha	annel DistributionChannelN Sale	esGrout
800	0000007378	00	Cross-divisi	on 10	Final customer sales 240	· ^
800	0000006419	00	Cross-divisi	on 12	Sold for resale 130	
800	0000011644	00	Cross-divisi	on 10	Final customer sales 100	
800	0000009220	00	Cross-divisi	on 12	Sold for resale 111	
800	0000003220	00	Cross divisi	on 10	Einal customer sales 101	
800	0000006955	00	Cross divisi	on 10	Final customer sales 101	
800	0000009744	00	Cross-divisi	on 10	Final customer sales 221	
800	0000010644	00	Cross-divisi	on 10	Final customer sales 321	
800	0000011916	00	Cross-divisi	on 10	Final customer sales 101	1
800	0000000252	00	Cross-divisi	on 10	Final customer sales 221	,
800	000009353	00	Cross-divisi	on 10	Pold for rocolo 101	
800	0000010233	00	Cross-divisi	un 12	Sold for resaile 101	
000	0000000529	00	Cruss-divisi	un 10	Final customer sales 130	,
000	0000007000	0.0	Cross-divisi	on 12	Sold for resale 111	
800	0000005836	00	0	10	0-116	
800	0000005836	00	Cross-divisi	on 12	Sold for resale 130	)
800 800 800	0000005836 0000013067 0000009268	00	Cross-divisi Cross-divisi	on 12 on 10	Sold for resale 130 Final customer sales 322	2

#### Figure 12.13 Show Content Tab Displaying Data Produced by an SAP HANA Live View

► TAG 🦠

The TAG tab (Figure 12.15) allows you to add your own keywords (tags) to describe SAP HANA Live views. You can use these tags to group some SAP HANA Live views that you would like to use in your reporting, analytics, or dashboards.

► GENERATE SLT FILE

The GENERATE SLT FILE icon allows you to generate configurations for SLT in order to replicate only the tables that you require for your reporting or analytics. This function is only required if you are using SAP HANA Live in a sidecar configuration. You will not replicate the entire source system to the SAP HANA database, but only the tables used by the business end users.



**Figure 12.14** Cross Reference Tab Showing Related Tables and Views Used by This SAP HANA Live View (Graphical Version)

Views in HANA	🗞 sap.hba.ecc/Purch	aseOrderValueQuery ×
Added Tags		
Add New Tags	Purchasing	Add
	Click to hide my other tag	js
	Click to hide my other tag	js

Figure 12.15 Adding Tags to an SAP HANA Live View

► OPEN VIEW IN SAP LUMIRA and OPEN VIEW IN ANALYSIS OFFICE The last two tabs on the SAP HANA Live Browser toolbar allow you to open the specified SAP HANA Live view in either SAP Lumira (<u>Figure 12.16</u>) or the SAP Analysis for Office reporting tools. This allows you to create reports easily and quickly.

The SAP HANA Live Browser does not show you the actual models or where they are used in your reports. Use SAP HANA studio or the SAP HANA web-based development workbench to view SAP HANA Live models.



Figure 12.16 Output of an SAP HANA Live View for Sales in SAP Lumira

#### **SAP HANA Live Browser for Business Users**

Up until now, we have discussed the developer edition of the SAP HANA Live Browser. There is also a business user version of SAP HANA Live Browser available at *http://<SAP HANA server host>:8000/sap/hana/hba/explorer/buser.html*.

This version only allows you to find a model, preview the content, and open the view in SAP Lumira or SAP BusinessObjects Analysis, edition for Microsoft Office. It is meant for nontechnical users, such as functional consultants or specialists.

Advanced features like generating SLT files, viewing broken models, tagging a model, or opening graphical cross references are not available in the business user edition of the SAP HANA Live Browser.

# SAP HANA Live Extension Assistant-Modify Views

<u>Figure 12.5</u> showed an example of an SAP HANA Live view, which is similar to any other view in SAP HANA. There are two ways to modify SAP HANA Live views.

We can use SAP HANA studio and the SAP HANA web-based development workbench to modify, preview, test, debug, and trace SAP HANA Live information models, similar to all the other SAP HANA views we created in previous chapters.



Here are some guidelines for creating your own SAP HANA Live views:

- Try to use graphical calculation views of type cube, with an aggregation node as the top node.
- Set the calculation view to execute using the SQL engine.
- Do not use attribute or analytic views.
- > You can combine standard SAP HANA Live views with your own custom views.

Another tool that can be used to modify SAP HANA Live views is the SAP HANA Live Extension Assistant.

Figure 12.17 shows the SAP HANA Live Extension Assistant tool.

SAP HANA Live views do not expose all their attributes and measures; SAP has carefully chosen a subset of these elements for the most common business processes. However, there are many hidden fields. You can use the SAP HANA Live Extension Assistant to change which fields are hidden or shown in a particular view.



Tip

Don't delete the fields you're not using; just mark them as hidden. SAP HANA's optimization is very good, and hiding a field does not increase the run time of queries.

You can extend reuse and query views, and you can extend a particular view multiple times.



Figure 12.17 SAP HANA Live Extension Assistant in SAP HANA Studio

The SAP HANA Live Extension Assistant has a few restrictions that you need to be aware of:

- It cannot extend a query view that contains a union node.
- It cannot extend a query view that contains an aggregation node as one of the middle nodes. An aggregation node as the top node is normal and allowed.
- It cannot extend your own custom views. It only recognizes SAP-delivered views.



You should not extend SAP-delivered views. Make a copy, and extend that instead.

# Important Terminology

In this chapter, we covered the following important terminology:

# Operational reporting

Operational reporting is reporting that is done on transactional data (e.g, sales and deliveries) to enable people to do their work today (e.g., like delivering a sold item). SAP BW reports are normally the next day only, and do not help with, for example, today's deliveries. SAP HANA Live is meant only for operational reporting requirements in SAP operational systems like SAP ERP.

# SAP HANA Live

SAP HANA Live consists of SAP-created calculation views (for the most part) and several tools for working with these SAP HANA views.

# SAP HANA Live views

The SAP HANA Live views are organized in an architectural structure called the *virtual data model (VDM*). The different SAP HANA Live views are:

- Private views: These are built directly on the database tables and on other private views. These denormalize the database source data for use in the reuse views.
- *Reuse views*: These structure the data in a way that business processes can use. These views can be reused by other views.
- *Query views*: These can be consumed directly by analytical tools and applications. They are not reused by other views. These views are used when designing reports.
- Customer query views: These are created either by copying SAP-provided query views or by creating your own query views. You can add your own filters, variables, or input parameters to these views. You can also expose additional data fields or hide fields that are not required.
- ► Value help views: These are used as lookups (i.e., dropdown lists or filter lists) for selection lists in analytical tools and business applications. They make it easier for users to filter data by providing a list of possible values to choose from. Value help views are not used in other VDM views; they are consumed directly by analytical tools and business applications.

### ► SAP HANA Live Browser

The SAP HANA Live Browser tool is a web-based (HTML5) application that enables you to find the correct views for your reporting or analytics requirements.

#### ► SAP HANA Live Extension Assistant

The SAP HANA Live Extension Assistant tool is used to modify SAP HANA Live views.

# Practice Questions

These practice questions will help you evaluate your understanding of the topics covered in this chapter. The questions shown are similar in nature to those found on the certification examination. Although none of these questions will be found on the exam itself, they will allow you to review your knowledge of the subject. Select the correct answers and then check the completeness of your answers in the Practice Question Answers and Explanations section. Remember that on the exam you must select all correct answers and only correct answers to receive credit for the question.

- 1. Where is SAP HANA Live installed?
- 🗆 A. On SLT
- □ **B.** On the SAP ERP application server
- $\Box$  **C.** In the reporting tool
- □ **D.** In the SAP HANA database
- 2. Which engine do most SAP HANA Live views use?
- □ **A.** SQL engine
- □ **B.** OLAP engine
- □ **C.** Join engine
- □ **D.** Calculation engine

- 3. Which of the following views can you extend with the SAP HANA Live Extension Assistant?
- $\Box$  **A.** Query views with a union
- □ **B.** Reuse views
- $\Box$  **C.** All SAP-delivered views
- □ **D.** Your own custom views
- 4. Which sentence best describes SAP HANA Live?
- □ **A.** Operational reporting moving back to the OLTP system
- □ **B.** Analytical reporting moving back to the OLAP system
- □ **C.** Operational reporting moving back to the OLAP system
- D. Analytical reporting moving back to the OLTP system
- 5. Which of the following are features of a data warehouse? (There are 3 correct answers.)
- □ **A.** Consolidation
- □ **B.** Data governance
- $\hfill\square$  **C.** Both OLTP and OLAP in one system
- □ **D.** Real-time reporting
- □ **E.** A full transactional history
- 6. What tool generates files to help configure SLT table replication?
- □ A. SAP HANA Live Extension Assistant
- □ **B.** Authorization Assistant
- □ C. SAP HANA studio
- □ **D.** SAP HANA Live Browser
- 7. True or False: You can create custom query views by directly modifying SAPdelivered query views.
- $\Box$  **A.** True
- □ **B.** False

- 8. True or False: When you upgrade SAP HANA Live content, you can choose to keep your modifications.
- 🗆 A. True
- □ **B.** False
- 9. Which of following are features associated with SAP HANA Live? (There are 2 correct answers.)
- □ **A.** A new data warehouse
- □ **B.** Hundreds of predeveloped views
- $\Box$  **C.** Web-based tools
- **D.** Precalculated aggregates stored in cubes
- 10. Which of the following terms are associated with an operational system? (There are 2 correct answers.)
- $\Box$  A. OLTP
- $\Box$  **B.** OLAP
- □ **C.** Transactional
- D. Data warehouse
- 11. True or False: SAP HANA Live replaces SAP BW.
- $\Box$  **A.** True
- $\square$  **B.** False
- 12. True or False: You can view metadata of SAP HANA Live views with the business user version of the SAP HANA Live Browser.
- 🗆 A. True
- $\square$  **B.** False
- 13. In which package in SAP HANA will you find the SAP HANA Live views?
- □ A. /sap/hana/democontent
- $\square$  **B.** /public
- $\Box$  **C.** /sap/hba
- □ **D**. */sap/bc*

14. As what are most of the views in SAP HANA Live created?

- □ **A.** Table functions
- □ **B.** Calculation views
- $\Box$  **C.** CDS data sources
- $\Box$  **D.** Cubes
- 15. Which of the following VDM views can be called by applications and reports? (There are 2 correct answers.)
- □ **A.** Reuse views
- □ **B.** Value help views
- □ **C.** Private views
- **D.** Query views

# **Practice Question Answers and Explanations**

1. Correct answer: D

In the SAP HANA database (see <u>Figure 12.3</u>). The SAP LT Replication Server (SLT) is only used for the sidecar scenario. You still need to install SAP HANA Live, even if we do not have a sidecar scenario, so this is obviously wrong. We have ABAP code in the SAP ERP application server, not SAP HANA calculation views. Reporting tools have nothing to do with SAP HANA. They can use SAP HANA views, but they cannot be run in the reporting layer.

2. Correct answer: A

Most SAP HANA Live views use the SQL engine. See the last bullet point after Figure 12.5.

3. Correct answer: **B** 

You can extend reuse and query views with the SAP HANA Live Extension Assistant. You cannot extend query views with a union node or your own custom views.

4. Correct answer: A

Operational reporting moving back to the OLTP (operational) system. See the Background Information section.

5. Correct answers: A, B, E

Data warehouse features include consolidation, data governance, and a full transactional history. Please note that the question did not specify that this is an SAP BW on SAP HANA system. It asked about a generic data warehouse. Having both OLTP and OLAP in one system is only available for SAP HANA real-time reporting. For a full list of data warehouse features, refer to Figure 12.2.

6. Correct answer: **D** 

The SAP HANA Live Browser can help generate files for SLT replication. SAP HANA Live Extension Assistant is used for modifying SAP HANA Live views. The Authorization Assistant helps with creating users and roles for SAP HANA Live. The SAP HANA studio does not have this functionality See the SAP HANA Live Browser section for more information.

7. Correct answer: A

This is actually a "bad" question. It is clear from this chapter that you *should not* create custom query views by directly modifying SAP-delivered query views. However, the question asked if you *can* do it. Technically, it's possible—but you will lose all your hard work during the next update of the SAP HANA Live content.

8. Correct answer: **B** 

When you upgrade the SAP HANA Live content, there is no option for you to keep your modifications. All changes to SAP-delivered content will be lost. This is different than the process in ABAP systems, which do ask if you want to save your modifications.

This question was very similar to the previous question. In the certification exam you will not find one question providing the answer to another. The SAP team ensures that this does not happen.

9. Correct answers: **B**, **C** 

SAP HANA Live consists of hundreds of predeveloped views, as well as some web-based tools. SAP HANA Live is not a new data warehouse, as we clearly specified that it will not replace SAP BW. With SAP HANA we do not store pre-calculated aggregates in cubes. This is only done in old non-SAP HANA data warehouses. See the Architecture section. 10. Correct answers: A, C

An operational system is the transactional (OLTP) system. See the Background Information section.

11. Correct answer: B

SAP HANA Live does *not* replace SAP BW. Only the operational reporting portion moves back from the data warehouse to the transactional system.

12. Correct answer: B

You cannot view the metadata of SAP HANA Live views within the business user version of the SAP HANA Live Browser. This version is meant for nontechnical users. See the SAP HANA Live Browser for Business Users section.

13. Correct answer: C

The SAP HANA Live views are in the */sap/hba* subpackage. <u>Figure 12.6</u> shows the SAP HANA Live content in SAP HANA studio.

14. Correct answer: B

Most of the views in SAP HANA Live are calculation views. See <u>Figure 12.5</u> in the SAP HANA Live Views section.

15. Correct answers: B, D

Query views and value help views can be called by applications and reports (see <u>Figure 12.4</u>). Reuse views and private views may not be called directly.

# **Takeaway**

You should now know what SAP HANA Live is, the concepts behind it, and the architecture options. You will also have an idea of what is involved with the installation.

You can use your understanding of the VDM to choose which views can be used, modified, or extended, and you can use the SAP HANA Live Browser tool to help design your reports.

# **Summary**

In this chapter, you used your knowledge of SAP HANA modeling in a scenario in which SAP HANA is used as a database for SAP business systems like SAP ERP.

The difference here is that SAP has developed hundreds of SAP HANA views already, and you can tap into this vast resource to build powerful analytical reports quickly.

We have now covered the pure modeling topics. The next chapters will focus on complementary actions and requirements—for example, security, how to load data into SAP HANA, and which reporting tools to use with SAP HANA.
# Security

## Techniques You'll Master

- ► Know when to use SAP HANA security
- Understand how users, roles, and privileges work together
- Know how to create new users and roles
- Learn the various types of privileges
- Explain analytic privileges

In this chapter, we'll discuss how to implement security on the information models you've built. Security is frequently a specialist area, with people dedicated to looking after system security and user administration.

We will not go into all the details of SAP HANA security in this chapter, but we'll give you a good overview to help you with most of the scenarios you will encounter in your day-to-day information modeling work and those that are covered on the exam.

## Real-World Scenario

You get an error message in SAP HANA indicating that you do not have sufficient privileges to do a certain task. In cases like these, you will need to know how to resolve this kind of error message. For this situation, the answer is simply granting a right to a special user. In some cases, you may need to build special roles and privileges.

In other cases, you may be asked by the project manager to assist with setting up the security on the information models. Because you built these information models in SAP HANA, you will have a good idea of which users should have certain privileges.

# **Objectives of This Portion of the Test**

The purpose of this portion of the SAP HANA certification exam is to test your knowledge of SAP HANA security.

The certification exam expects you to have a good understanding of the following topics:

- ▶ When to use SAP HANA security, and when to use application security
- ► How users, roles, and privileges work together
- Understanding system users and how to create new users
- Building a new role
- Assigning the various types of privileges to a role
- Working with analytic privileges
- Migrating old analytic privileges in SAP HANA SPS 11

#### Note

This portion contributes up to 5% of the total certification exam score.

## **Key Concepts Refresher**

Security determines what people are allowed to do and see in business applications. Although we want to stop any unauthorized people from getting access to company information, we also want to allow business users to do their work without hindrance. There are various ways to achieve this balance in SAP HANA.

In this section, we will discuss the basic use cases for security in SAP HANA and important security concepts. We will then look at how to create users, how these users can access the system, and what roles and privileges these users should get to achieve their goals.

#### **Usage and Concepts**

Let's begin by looking at when to use security measures in SAP HANA before tackling important concepts.

#### **Use Cases**

The use cases for implementing security in SAP HANA depend on the deployment scenario. Let's look at the different deployment scenarios and their security management:

#### SAP HANA as a database

In a deployment scenario in which SAP HANA is used as the *database* for business applications like SAP ERP, SAP CRM, and SAP BW, you do not need to create SAP HANA users and roles for the business users. These users log into the various SAP systems via the SAP NetWeaver application servers and all end user security is managed by these applications. This is shown on the left side of <u>Figure 13.1</u>. You will still need to create a few SAP HANA users and roles for the system administrator users, but you do not need to create anything for the business users.



Figure 13.1 Security for SAP HANA as Database vs. Platform

## • SAP HANA as a sidecar or platform

In deployment scenarios in which SAP HANA is used as a *sidecar* or a *plat-form*, end users need to log in and work directly in the SAP HANA system. In such cases, you definitely need to create users and assign roles for these users. In this chapter, we will focus primarily on these scenarios.

#### SAP HANA Live

For SAP HANA Live, you also need end users to log in and work in the SAP HANA system. However, sometimes they also work in SAP HANA Live models via SAP applications. In this case, you need to manage the users in the SAP applications and use the *Authorization Assistant* tool to automatically create the correct SAP HANA Live users and roles inside the SAP HANA system. This chapter will not focus on this use case.

We've mentioned users and their roles in this section. In the next section, we'll look at how these concepts work together in SAP HANA.

#### **Security Concepts**

Figure 13.2 illustrates how privileges, roles, and users fit together in SAP HANA:

Privileges

Privileges are the individual rights you can grant to a role or a user.

Roles

A *role* in SAP HANA is a collection of granted privileges. You can combine several roles into another role, which is called a *composite role*.

Users

*Users* are identities in the SAP HANA system that you assign to business people using your system. You do not assign privileges directly to users, even though it is possible to do so in SAP HANA. The best practice is to assign privileges to a role and then assign that role to users.



Figure 13.2 Assign Privileges to Roles and Roles to Users

We start the security process shown in <u>Figure 13.2</u> with privileges; assign certain privileges to a role, and then assign that role to the users.



Note

In SAP HANA, the default behavior is to deny access. You cannot do anything in the system until you have been granted a privilege.

These privileges and roles all add up to give a complete portfolio of what users are allowed to do. If something is not specified in a granted role or privilege, SAP HANA denies access to that action.

#### **Using Security in SAP HANA**

To begin using security in SAP HANA, go to the SECURITY area of the SYSTEMS tab in SAP HANA studio, or open the SAP HANA web-based development workbench and select the SECURITY block, as shown in <u>Figure 13.3</u>. You can also go to this area directly in your browser via *http://<servername>:8000/sap/hana/ide/ security/*, where "8000" is the port number (if your SAP HANA system is installed as instance 00).



**Figure 13.3** Security Areas in SAP HANA Studio and SAP HANA Web-Based Development Workbench

In this area, you can begin creating users and roles, which we'll discuss next.

#### Users

In this section, we'll look at the two important system users in SAP HANA and the steps for creating users.

#### System Users

Figure 13.4 shows a list of all the users in the USERS area of SAP HANA studio. The system users are SYS, SYSTEM, and a few \_SYS\_ users.



Figure 13.4 Users in SAP HANA System

There are two important system users in SAP HANA:

SYSTEM

The SYSTEM user is the main SAP HANA user. When the system is installed, this user can do everything. However, do not be surprised when you later get authorization messages saying that the SYSTEM user does not have privileges to perform certain tasks. Remember that SAP HANA by default denies access to everything. Any models that you have created since the system installation are new objects. You have to explicitly grant access to these new models to the SYSTEM user before it is allowed to use them.



#### Note

Auditors normally require that the SYSTEM user is locked and disabled in an SAP HANA system to improve security.

#### \_SYS\_REPO

The \_SYS\_REPO user is the owner of all the activated objects in the SAP HANA system. We discussed activation in <u>Chapter 11</u>, and showed that an activated copy of an object is created in the \_SYS\_BIC schema (see <u>Figure 11.6</u>). SAP HANA uses the \_SYS\_REPO user to execute activated models.

To be able to do this, the \_SYS\_REPO user must be able to read the tables in your schema. If not, your information views cannot be activated. One of the most common questions on SAP HANA forums is from people asking why they cannot activate newly created information views when they are the owners of the views.



You must grant SELECT rights for your schema to the \_SYS\_REPO user via the GRANT SELECT ON SCHEMA "SCHEMA\_NAME" TO \_SYS\_REPO WITH GRANT OPTION; statement.

#### **Creating Users**

You can create your own users from the context menu in the USERS area. Rightclick and select the NEW USER option, as shown in <u>Figure 13.5</u>.

✓ Security		٦			
🐮 Security		- 1			
🗸 👬 Users		_			
ê û	New User				
<u>0</u>	New Restricted User				
(2)	Refresh F5	1			
1 😝	Find User				
🕴 🔆	Filters				
_SYS_TASK					
SYS_XB					
> 🙀 Roles		┛			

Figure 13.5 Creating New User via the Context Menu

On the next screen, as shown in <u>Figure 13.6</u>, you can enter the details for the new user. You can choose a name for the user, a validity period, and the default session client. This is the fifth time we've set the default session client when working with SAP business applications. The other four were as follows:

- Setting the preferences in SAP HANA studio (Chapter 5)
- Setting the default client in the semantics node of any information view (<u>Chapter 6</u>)

- Creating a filter by using the \$\$client\$\$ variable (Chapter 7)
- Using the SESSION\_CONTEXT(CLIENT) statement (<u>Chapter 8</u>)

👔 *RDL - New User 🕱	- 8
RDL (RDL_USER) 192.168.124.130 00	Br 🚱 📀
User User Parameters	
💡 New User	
User Name*: DEMO_USER Disable ODBC/JDBC access	
Authentication Password Password*: Confirm*:	SAML SAP Logon Ticket
External ID*:	X509 SAP Assertion Ticket
Valid From: Valid Until:	
Session Client: 0 100	
Granted Roles System Privileges Object Privileges Analytic Privileges Package Privileges Applie	ation Privileges Privileges on Users
÷ X	Details
Role Grantor	

Figure 13.6 Screen for Creating a New User

Except for these standalone fields, the screen is divided into two main areas. The area near the top is for authentication, and the bottom area is for authorization:

#### Authentication

*Authentication* answers the question, "Who are you?" It is concerned with identifying users when they log in and making sure they really are who they claim to be.

#### Authorization

*Authorization* answers the question, "What are you allowed to do?" This identifies which tasks a user can perform in the system.

In the AUTHENTICATION area, you can specify if you can log in using a username and password, or whether you should use one of the many *single sign-on* options available in SAP HANA. The most popular single sign-on option is Kerberos, which most companies use together with their Microsoft Active Directory services. When a user logs into the company's network infrastructure, the Kerberos server issues a security certificate. When that user gets to the SAP HANA system and the Kerberos option is enabled for that SAP HANA user, the system will automatically ask for and validate this certificate and will then allow the user access to the SAP HANA system. With single sign-on, users do not have to enter a username and password each time they use the SAP HANA system.

In the AUTHORIZATIONS area at the bottom of <u>Figure 13.6</u>, you can assign roles (or privileges) to the new user. Click the plus sign **P** in the GRANTED ROLES tab for a list of available roles in the SAP HANA system, as shown in <u>Figure 13.7</u>. You can select one or more roles from the list (press <u>Ctrl</u> to select multiple roles).

You can save your changes by pressing Ctrl+S or by clicking the DEPLOY button on the top-right of the screen.

🖉 Select Roles 🛛 🗖	×
Enter search string to find a role.	•
**	
<u>M</u> atching items:	
AFL_SYS_AFL_TABLEREDIST_EXECUTE     AFL_SYS_AFL_TABLEREDIST_EXECUTE_WITH_GRANT_OPTION     AFLPM CREATOR ERASER EXECUTE	^
P CONTENT_ADMIN	
MODELING	
PUBLIC	
RESTRICTED_USER_JDBC_ACCESS	
RESTRICTED_USER_ODBC_ACCESS	
SAP_INTERNAL_HANA_SUPPORT	
sap.bc.ina.service.v2.userRole::INA_USER	
Sap.hana.admin.cockpit.sysrep.roles::SysRepAdmin	
Sap.hana.admin.roles::Administrator	
Variation and the second secon	
V san.hana.backup.roles::Administrator	·
MODELING	
? OK Cance	ł

Figure 13.7 Choosing Roles

Once you have selected a role for the new user, it is shown in the AUTHORIZA-TIONS area. In this example, we chose the CONTENT\_ADMIN role for the user (Figure 13.8). The blank PUBLIC role is automatically added for all users in the SAP HANA system.

Granted Roles System Privileges Object Privileges Ar	nalytic Privileges Package Pr	ivileges	Application Privileges Privileges on Users
+ ×	<b>Y</b>	24 <del>-</del>	Details for 'CONTENT_ADMIN'
Role	Grantor		
CONTENT_ADMIN	SYSTEM		Grantable to other users and roles
PUBLIC	SYS		

#### Figure 13.8 Roles Assigned to User



Users in an SAP HANA system are not transportable. You cannot create users in a development system and transport them to the production system with all their roles and privileges.

#### **Roles**

In the previous section, we looked at creating users and assigning them roles. In this section, we will take a deeper dive into SAP HANA's roles and discuss the various template roles available and the steps for creating a role in the system.

#### **Template Roles**

You can see all the roles in SAP HANA in the ROLES area of the SYSTEMS tab of SAP HANA studio (see Figure 13.9).



Figure 13.9 Some SAP HANA Template Roles

SAP provides a few *template roles* that you can use as examples for building your own, or you can use them as a starting point and extend them. We do not recommend modifying any of the template roles directly; instead, copy them and modify the copy.

The following two template roles are important:

MONITORING

This is a role that provides read-only access to the SAP HANA system. You provide this, for example, to a system administrator or monitoring tool that needs to check your system. Users that have this role assigned cannot modify anything in the system.

MODELING

This role is given to modelers so they can create information models in the SAP HANA system. We do not recommend giving this role to any user in the production system. Users with this role assigned can create and modify objects in the system and can read all data, even sensitive or confidential data.

## **Creating Roles**

You can create custom roles from the context menu in the ROLES area. Select the NEW ROLE option from the context menu. In the next screen, as shown in Figure 13.10, enter the details for your new role.

💃 RDL - DEMO_USER 🛛 🗿 *RDL - New Role	8		- 8
RDL (RDL_USER) 192.168.124.130	00		Br   📀   🖗
🗿 New Role			
Role Name DEMO_ROLE	Schema BOOK_DEMO		Select Schema
Granted Roles Part of Roles System Privileg	es Object Privileges Analytic	Privileges	Package Privileges Application Privileges Privileges on Users
+ ×		Y 👯 🔻	Details for 'CONTENT_ADMIN'
Role	Grantor		
CONTENT_ADMIN	RDL_USER		Grantable to other users and roles
-			

Figure 13.10 Creating New Role

Once you have provided the ROLE NAME and details, you can save and deploy your role by clicking on the DEPLOY button in the top-right corner of the screen.

You can also take another role and extend it. You can, for example, have a custom role built for your team members. You can then create a new custom role for the project manager by taking the team member role and extending it with a few more privileges. In Figure 13.10, we selected the CONTENT\_ADMIN role by clicking on the plus sign in the GRANTED ROLES tab. We can now extend this role by adding more privileges to our new role.



There is no concept in SAP HANA of taking away privileges, because the default behavior is to deny access.

#### Runtime vs. Design-Time Roles

If you use SAP HANA studio to create roles, they are created as *runtime objects* and cannot be transported to the production system. (For more details about the difference between design-time and runtime objects, see <u>Chapter 12</u>.)

However, you can create the roles as design-time files in the SAP HANA webbased development workbench. By using the EDITOR area rather than the SECU-RITY area shown in <u>Figure 13.3</u>, you can create roles as repository objects.

In <u>Figure 13.11</u>, we create a new ROLE from the context menu in our package. This creates an .hbdrole file in the repository. In the SAP HANA web-based development workbench, we can then edit this role exactly like any other role, as shown in the middle of <u>Figure 13.11</u>. If we try to edit this .hdbrole file in SAP HANA studio, however, we can use only a text editor instead of the usual graphical editor.

#### Тір

When creating roles, we recommend that you create them as .hdbrole files in the SAP HANA web-based development workbench. These roles are the design-time objects and can be transported to the production system. This improves security, because you need someone with rights to create roles in the production system.

#### Creating a new .hdb role file in the web-based editor

SAP HANA	Web-based Develo	pment Workbe	nch: Editor			
	۹ 🐐 🖉					
🛓 👝 Content						
🚁 🌐 book						
🦾 🌐 mod	als					
🖶 🌐 public	New	>	File (Ctrl+A	Alt+N)		
🗝 🌐 sap	Import	>	Package (	Ctrl+Alt+Shift+N)		
ıً 🖶 system	Export Package		Role			
	Undo (Ctrl+Z)		Calculation	n View	Rol	e
	Redo (Ctrl+Y)		Analytic Pr	ivilege		

#### Adding privileges to the design-time role

					Nov	w editing: /	/book/models/DEM
≱. 🧽 Content ∳ 🖶 book	*DEMO_DESIG	NTIME ×					
🛓 🌐 models	🛔 book.mode	Is::DEMO_DESIG	NTIME_ROLE				
<ul> <li>– CV_CALCVEW_DEMO.calculationview</li> </ul>							
<ul> <li>CV_CALCVIEW_DEMO.calculationview</li> <li>CV_CUSTOMER_DISCOUNT_BY_BANKING_AN</li> </ul>	Granted Roles	System Privileges	Object Privileges	Analytic Privileges	Package Privileges	Applicat	ion Privileges
CV_COSTOMER_DISCOUNT_BY_RANKING_AN     CV_DEMO_SCRIPTED_CALCVIEW.calculationvi      CV_VEMO_SCRIPTED_CALCVIEW.calculationv       CV_VEMO_SCRIPTED_CALCVIEW.calculationv       CV_VEMO_SCRIPTED_CALCVIEW.calculationv       CV_VEMO_SCRIPTED_CALCVIEW.calculationv       CV_VEMO_SCRIPTED_CALCVIEW.calculationv       CV_VEMO_SCRIPTED_CALCVIEW.calculationv       CV_VEMO_SCRIPTED_CALCVIEW.calculationv        CV_VEMO_SCRIPTED_CALCVIEW.calculationv        CV_VEMO_SCR	+ -				Display: 10	-	Privileges
CV_SALESORDER_RANKING.calculationview	Object Name			Object Type	Origin		CREATE ANY
- 📄 CV_SALESORDER_RANKING_SQL.calculationv - 📄 CV_SALES_ORDER_RANKING_AND_DISCOUN	sap.hana.dem	content.epm.data:SA	P_HANA_DEMO.hdbsc	SCHEMA	Design Time		ALTER     DROP
CV_SALES_YEAR_COMPARISON.calculationvie     DEMO_DESIGNTIME_ROLE.https://							EXECUTE
DEMO_PROCEDURE.procedure							SELECT
- DT_CUSTOMER_DISCOUNT_CALCULATION.ht							INSERT
DT_TAX_CALCULATION.hdbruldec							UPDATE

The SAP HANA studio cannot edit the .hdb role file graphically



**Figure 13.11** Creating Design-Time Roles in SAP HANA Web-Based Development Workbench

#### Privileges

In SAP HANA, there are five types of privileges:

- ► System
- Object
- ► Analytic
- Package
- Application

When you build or extend a role, you can assign a type of privilege. Each of these privileges has its own tab in the role editing screen. You can add new privileges in each tab by clicking on the plus sign button.

A dialog box will present a list of relevant privileges to choose from. All of these dialog boxes have a text field in which you can type some search text. The list of available privileges will be limited according to the search text you type.

You can select multiple privileges from the list by clicking on the first privilege and then holding the <u>Ctrl</u> key while selecting the other privileges.

In this section, we will discuss the different types of privileges available in SAP HANA.

#### **System Privileges**

*System privileges* can be associated with the phrase "system administration." These privileges grant users the rights to work with the SAP HANA system. Most of the system privileges are applicable to database and system administrators. <u>Figure 13.12</u> shows some examples of system privileges.

RDL - DEMO_USER 🛛 🖗 *RDL - New Role 😒			-		
RDL (RDL_USER) 192.168.124.130 00				ŝ	
New Role     Role Name DEMO_ROLE Sch	ema BOOK_DEMO	Select Schema			
Granted Roles   Part of Roles   System Privileges   Ob	ect Privileges Analytic F	Privileges Package Privileges Application Privileges Privileges on Use	ers		
System Privilege CREATE SCHEMA EXPORT	Grantor RDL_USER RDL_USER	Grantable to other users and roles			
← REPO.WORKJN_FOREIGN_WORKSPACE ← TABLE ADMIN	RDL_USER RDL_USER RDL_USER	Select System Privileges     Enter search string to find a system privilege.     **     Matching terms:	- C		
			ок С	ancel	

Figure 13.12 Assigning System Privileges to Roles

There are a few system privileges shown that are relevant to information modelers:

- REPO.EXPORT and REPO.IMPORT
   These are required to export and import delivery units. You need these if you want to transport modeling work to the production system.
- REPO.MAINTAIN\_DELIVERY\_UNITS This allows you to create and edit delivery units.
- ► REPO.WORK\_IN\_FOREIGN\_WORKSPACE

This system privilege is useful if a team member is away on summer vacation and you need to activate some of his or her information models.

#### **Object Privileges**

*Object privileges* are used to assign rights for users to data source objects, including schemas, tables, virtual tables, procedures, and table functions.

Granting object privileges requires very basic knowledge of SQL syntax. This makes sense, because you're working with data sources. You will have to know basic SELECT, INSERT, UPDATE, and other SQL statements. The right side of <u>Figure 13.13</u> shows the options for assigning object privileges.

	💃 RDL - DEMO_USER 🛛 🖗 *RDL - DEMO_RO	)LE (BOOK_DEMO) 🔀			- 8
	RDL (RDL_USER) 192.168.124.130 0	ю			Br 🖸 🖉
	DEMO_ROLE (BOOK_DEMO)				
	Granted Roles   Part of Roles   System Privilege	es Object Privileges Analytic P	rivileges Package P	rivileges Application Privileges Pri	vileges on Users
	÷ ×		🍸 💱 🔫	Privileges for 'BOOK_DEMO'	
	Catalog Object	Grantor			Grantable to Others
	BOOK_DEMO	RDL_USER			⊖ Yes ⊖ No
				CREATE ANY	Ves No
				CREATE TEMPORARY TABLE	○ Yes ○ No
Seler	t Catalog Objects	- 0	×	CREATE VIRTUAL FUNCTION PACKAGE	◯ Yes ◯ No
				DEBUG	◯ Yes ◯ No
Enter se	arch string to find a catalog object.		•	DELETE	○ Yes ● No
demo				DROP	○ Yes ○ No
Matchin	ig items:		_	<b>EXECUTE</b>	○ Yes ○ No
BO	OK_DEMO	(hier/CALCVIEW HIERARCHY ( SVS F	<u>^</u>	INDEX .	○ Yes ○ No
il boo	ok.models/CV_CALCVIEW_DEMO/COMPANYNAME/hier/	COMPANYNAME (_SYS_BIC)		✓ INSERT	⊖ Yes   No
boo	ok.models/CV_CALCVIEW_DEMO/Measures/hier/Measure	s (_SYS_BIC)		REFERENCES	◯ Yes ◯ No
the second	ok.models/CV_CALCVIEW_DEMO/PRODUCT_CATEGORY/I	hier/PRODUCT_CATEGORY (_SYS_BIC)		SELECT	Yes O No
boo	ok.models/CV_CALCVIEW_DEMO/PRODUCT_CORRENCT/	PRODUCT_NAME (_SYS_BIC)		SELECT CDS METADATA	○ Yes ○ No
boo	ok.models/CV_CALCVIEW_DEMO/PRODUCTID/hier/PROD	UCTID (_SYS_BIC)		SELECT METADATA	○ Yes ○ No
boo	ok.models/CV_CALCVIEW_DEMO (_SYS_BIC)			TRIGGER	○ Yes ○ No
	MO USER			UPDATE .	○ Yes
III REN	/OTE_DB.PO.Header_LOCAL (BOOK_DEMO)				
III REN	/OTE_DB.PO.Header (BOOK_DEMO)				
<	NOTE DEPOSITEM LOCAL (BOOK DEMO)	>			
🚜 BO	OK_DEMO				
?		OK Cancel			

Figure 13.13 Assigning Object Privileges to Roles

#### **Analytic Privileges**

With object privileges, you can grant rights for someone to read all the data from a data source—but how do you limit access to sensitive and confidential data, or limit access to the data that people can see or modify to certain areas only? For example, you may need to ensure that managers can only edit data of employees reporting directly to them, that someone responsible for only one cost center accesses only the correct information, or that only board members can see financial results before they are announced.

*Analytic privileges* can be used to limit data at the row level. This means that you can limit data—for example, to show only rows that contain data for 2016, or your employees, or your cost center.

#### Tip

We are sometimes asked how to limit data at the column level. For example, a company wants to allow employees to see all their colleagues' details, except their salaries. How do we hide the Salaries column?

This is not possible with analytic privileges, but it is with *views*. Simply create a view on the employees table and make sure the Salaries column is not part of the output field list, and then grant everyone access to the view.

<u>Figure 13.14</u> shows how to assign analytic privileges to a role. The figure shows only a small portion of the work involved. Here, we assign the precreated analytic privileges to a role. We will look at how to create these analytic privileges later in this section.

#### Тір

In <u>Figure 13.14</u>, we assigned an analytic privilege called \_SYS\_BI\_CP\_ALL to a role. Be careful when assigning this analytic privilege; it grants access to the entire dataset of the information views involved. This analytic privilege should not be granted to end users in a production system.

Also note that this privilege is part of the MODELING role. Once again, the MODEL-ING role should not be granted to any end users in a production system.

Think about how analytic privileges behave when they are used with *layered information views*. Assume you need access to information about your cost center. Let's view this from the reporting side. You run a report that is calls view A.

, RDL - DEMO_USER         , -RDL - DEMO_KOLE (E           RDL (RDL_USER)         192.168.124.130 00	300K_DEMO) 23	B	0	
Granted Roles   Part of Roles   System Privileges   O	bject Privileges Anal	ytic Privileges Package Privileges Application Privileges Privileges on Users	Ÿ 24 ▼	
Analytic Privilege	Grantor			
	_SYS_REPO			
🔿 book.models/AP_DEMO	_SYS_REPO			
book.models/AP_DEMO2	_SYS_REPO	10 Select Analytic Privileges	- 0	×
sap.hana.democontent.epm.models/AP_PU	IRCH, SYS_REPO	Enter search string to find an analytic privilege.  Matching items:  SYS BL (2 ALL  Gook.models/AP_DEM02  Gook.models/AP_DURCHASE_ORDER_PROD_CAT  Gook.models/AP_PURCHASE_ORDER_PROD_CAT  GOOK.models/AP_PURCH		-
		₹_SYS_BLCP_ALL ② OK	Ca	ncel

#### Figure 13.14 Assigning Analytic Privileges to Roles

View A then calls another view, called B. (View A is built on top of view B.) You can only see your cost center information if you have an analytic privilege that allows you to see the information being assigned to both views. If you have the analytic privilege assigned to only one of the two views, you will not be able to see your cost center information.

Now that you have a basic understanding of analytic privileges, in the next two subsections we will discuss how to create and maintain them.

#### Creating Analytic Privileges

You can create analytic privileges in the same context menu where you created all your SAP HANA information views. In the context menu, select NEW • ANA-LYTIC PRIVILEGE..., as shown in Figure 13.15.

In the dialog box (<u>Figure 13.16</u>), enter the name of the new analytic privilege. The default choice for TYPE is SQL ANALYTIC PRIVILEGE.

🗸 🗁 Content				
🗸 🌐 book				
🗸 🗄 models				
> 🗁 A	New	>	<b></b>	Package
> 🗁 A 🛌	Find	Ctrl+F	1	Attribute View
> 🗁 🤇 🌄	Refrech	E5		Analytic View
> 🗁 A 🛀	Nerrean		- 13	Calculation View
) 💆 🖞 🔳	Auto Documentation		. A	Analytic Privilege
s 🗰 public 🛛 🕥	Activate			Drocoduro
s de can	Redeploy		-	Procedure
t <sup>#</sup> system-I	Edit		0	Decision Table
> 🗁 Provisioning 😖	DI			
> 🦢 Security	Delete	Delete		

## Figure 13.15 Context Menu for Creating New Analytic Privilege

🍯 New Analyt	ic Privilege				-			×
Create an Ar Enter the requi	n <b>alytic Privilege</b> red details.	e						>
Name:*	DEMO_ANALYTIC	_PRIV						
Label:	Demo Analytic Pri	iv						ŝ
Package:*	book.models						Brow	se
Type:*	SQL Analytic Privil	ege				~	í —	
Create new							1	
O Copy from							Brow	se
٢							<u> </u>	_
$\bigcirc$		< <u>B</u> ack	N	ext >	<u>F</u> inish		Cancel	1
Select Inf	ormation Models			🗸 🗁 Cor	itent			
× #	book			~ 🖶	book			
~	🖶 models			~	🖶 models	Views (1	n	
> #9 > #9	<ul> <li>Analytic View</li> <li>Calculation V</li> <li>Calculation V</li> <li>CV_CALC</li> <li>CV_SALES</li> <li>CV_SALES</li> <li>CV_SALES</li> <li>CV_SALES</li> <li>CV_SALES</li> <li>PURCHAS</li> <li>public</li> <li>sap</li> <li>system-local</li> </ul>	ws (a) ws (b) itews (b) VIEW_DEMO SORDER_DYNA SORDER_RANA SORDER_RANA SORDER_RANA S_YEAR_COMF SE_OVERVIEW	Add Remove		Crycal	CVIEW_[	DEMO	
?		> < <u>B</u> ack	Ne	xt >	<u>F</u> inish	Can	cel	

**Figure 13.16** Creating New Analytic Privilege

#### SQL-Based Analytic Privileges

In SAP HANA SPS 10, the new SQL-based analytic privileges became the default choice. In SAP HANA SPS 11, we now have a migration tool to convert the old XML-based analytic privileges to the new SQL-based analytic privileges. (The old XML-based analytic privileges are also called *classical analytic privileges*.)

The new SQL-based analytic privileges are more powerful, allowing you, for example, to use hierarchies in your analytic privileges. This is useful when working with many company structures, like an HR structure or a financial cost center hierarchy.

In the next step, choose the information views that you want to restrict access to.

Once you have selected the information views, you can create the row-level access restrictions. On the left side of the screen in <u>Figure 13.17</u>, you can add more information views. On the right side of the screen, create your restrictions.

book.models::DEMO_ANALYTIC_PRIV RDL (RDL_USER) 📀 🔍 🖬 📴 🖇			
General <ul></ul>			
Label: Demo Analytic Priv Privilege Validity Defines the Privilege Validity	d		
Type: SQL Analytic Privilege Operator Inclusion From To Rem	nove		
Secured Models			
Restrictions apply to all the models shown in the list below.			
Content     Add     Associated Attributes Restrictions			
Remove Select attributes to assign analytic privileges.			
Attributes Origin Description Count	l		
SUPPLIER_COU 🕄 CV_CALCVIEW_DEMO (book.models) 2			
Assign the restrictions for SUPPLIER_COUNTRY			
Fixed (2) Hierarchy Percent			
Type Operator Value Kerno	ve		
Fixed Equal ZA			
Fixed Equal Dig			
Analytic Privilege Users/Roles			

Figure 13.17 Assigning Analytic Privilege Restrictions

There are three ways to specify the restrictions:

Attributes

With this option, you first select the attributes that you want to create the restrictions on. In this example, we chose the SUPPLIER\_COUNTRY field. You then have to specify the restrictions. In this example, we restrict the suppliers to be from ZA (South Africa) or DE (Germany) only. You can see this more clearly in Figure 13.18

Restrictions based on attributes

sociated Attribut	es Restrictions				
elect attributes to	assign analytic privileges.				
					Add
Attributes	Origin		Description	Count	Demession
SUPPLIER_CO	U 🗐 CV_CALCVIEW_DEMO	(book.models)		2	Kemove
Assign the restrict	ions for SUPPLIER_COUNTRY				
					Add
Fixed (2) Hie	rarchy				
T	Operator	Value			Remove
iype					
Fixed	Equal	ZA			

#### Restrictions based on a SQL expression

○ Attrik Define r	utes   SQL Editor   Dynamic  strictions based on SQL expression	
1	((("SUPPLIER_COUNTRY" = 'ZA') OR ("SUPPLIER_COUNTRY" = 'DE'))	))

#### Restrictions based on a procedure



Figure 13.18 Three Ways to Assign Analytic Privilege Restrictions

► SQL EDITOR

If you used the running example with the ATTRIBUTES option and then changed the selection to SQL EDITOR, SAP HANA studio automatically converts this to a SQL WHERE clause—in this example:

((SUPPLIER\_COUNTRY = 'ZA') OR (SUPPLIER\_COUNTRY = 'DE'))

DYNAMIC

The last option is the most powerful. You can base your restrictions on the result set from a procedure. The procedure must be a read-only procedure that only has one output parameter. You must also ensure that the \_SYS\_REPO user can execute the procedure.

Finally, you have to ensure that the relevant information views can use the new SQL analytic privileges, which you can do in the semantics node of the information view by setting the APPLY PRIVILEGES field to SQL ANALYTIC PRIVILEGES. (See Figure 13.19.)

Assign the	e restrictions for SUPPLIER_COUNTRY				
Fixed (1	) Hierarchy				
🔔 Onl	y Calculation views with SQL access to	hierarchies a	are supported		
book.mo	odels::CV_CALCVIEW_DEMO RDL (RDL)	_USER) ສີ			
DOOK.M	odels::CV_CALCVIEW_D		Details		
d 30 mm			Columns(10) View Propert	ies Hierarchies(1) Parameters/Variables(2)	
🗁 ↔			General		
O Join Union	Semantics  Aggregation  Aggregation  Aggregation		RDL.book.mode	EW_DEMO	
Proje 1 Aggr	Ranking_Top10		Data Category: <sup>®</sup>	CUBE ~	
E	😑 🛅 CalcRestrictedRena		Туре:	STANDARD ~	
Rank			Default Client:	Session Client ~	
	CalcRestrictedRe		Count Star Column:		
	⊖ @Add_Discount		Default Schema:		
		•	Apply Privileges:	SQL Analytic Privileges 🗸 🗸 🗸	
	- O Add_Discount			Classical Analytic Privileges	
-	😑 🏅 Actual_Planned			SQL Analytic Privileges	

Figure 13.19 Ensuring Information Views Can Use SQL-Based Analytic Privileges

If you do not set this option correctly, you will receive warnings that the SQL analytic privileges will have no effect on the information view. The SQL analytic privileges will also send warnings that you cannot use hierarchies in the information view.

With the focus now firmly on the new SQL analytic privileges, let's see how we can migrate our old analytic privileges to the new SQL analytic privileges.

#### Migrating Analytic Privileges

A new feature in SAP HANA SPS 11 is the ability to migrate older modeling content to the newer formats. Instead of having to recreate your information views, scripted calculation views, and analytic privileges in the newer formats, SAP has provided a migration wizard to assist you.

Start the migration process by going to the QUICK VIEW tab in the Modeler perspective in SAP HANA studio. SAP HANA SPS 11 includes a number of new options in the QUICK VIEW tab. Select the MIGRATE option to start the process, as shown in <u>Figure 13.20</u>.

Vuick View	
Filter values	Migrate – – ×
▼ SAP HANA Modeler	Migrate Objects
☆ 🚳 Delivery Units	Select a migration type and a folder to save the migration job log.
☆ 🇱 Generate Time Data	○
☆ ኪ Configure Import Server	Select if you want to minrate existing attribute views or analytic views in a narkane
☆ 🎒 Data Provisioning	to standard graphical calculation views.
☆ 🖮 Import	○ ▼ Script-based calculation views to graphical calculation views and table functions.
☆ 🛃 Export	Select if you want to migrate existing script-based calculation views in a package to both standard graphical calculation views and to table functions.
☆ 😪 Mass Copy	● ▼ Classical XML-based analytic privileges to SQL analytic privileges.
☆ 📲 Migrate →	Select if you want to migrate existing classical XML-based analytic privileges to
☆ 🛛 Validate	SQL analytic privileges.
☆ © Activate	Create Migration Log
📩 💿 Redeploy	Migration Log Path: C-\temp
☆ 🗐 Auto Documentation	
☆ 🗞 Switch Ownership	
☆ 📲 Change Authoring Schema	< <u>B</u> ack <u>N</u> ext > Einish Cancel
☆ 🖺 Schema Mapping	•
☆ 瞻 Maintain Package Specific Default Sch	ema 🕨
☆ 🗶 Delete Inactive Objects	•

**Figure 13.20** Starting Migration: Classical XML-Based Analytic Privileges to SQL Analytic Privileges

In the next dialog box, select the Classical XML-Based Analytic Privileges to SQL Analytic Privileges option (Figure 13.20).

You can then select all the analytic privileges you need to migrate. Finally, the migration wizard shows you a summary screen before processing the analytic privileges (see Figure 13.21).



Figure 13.21 Migration Summary

The migration process will even update the affected information views by automatically setting the APPLY PRIVILEGES option TO SQL ANALYTIC PRIVILEGES. (See <u>Figure 13.19</u> for an example of this setting.)

#### **Package Privileges**

*Package privileges* are granted rights to work in packages in the CONTENT area of the SYSTEMS tab in SAP HANA studio. Packages contain all the information views and modeling objects.

*Packages* are normally in a tree structure, with packages, subpackages, and subsub-packages. When you are granted access to a higher-level package via a package privilege, you automatically also get access to all the subpackages underneath it. For example, if you have access to the воок package as shown in <u>Figure 13.22</u>, you also have access to the воок.модеls subpackage.

🗿 RDL - DEMO_USER 🛛 🖗 *RDL - DEM	IO_ROLE (BOOK_DEMO) 🔀		- 8	
RDL (RDL_USER) 192.168.124	I.130 00		🕞 💿 🔗	
DEMO_ROLE (BOOK_DEMO)				
Granted Roles   Part of Roles   System Pri	ivileges Object Privileges Analytic Privilege	s Package Privileges Application Privileges F	Privileges on Users	
Package Name	Grantor RDL_USER	Grant privileges on repository packages to a modify objects.	authorize user to	
🖶 Root Package	RDL_USER	Grantal	ble to Others	
		Privileges for Native Packages		
Select Repository Packages	– 🗆 X	REPO.EDIT_NATIVE_OBJECTS	⊖ Yes   No	
Enter search string to find a package privilege.	•	REPO.ACTIVATE_NATIVE_OBJE CTS	🔾 Yes 💿 No	
book Matching itemp		REPO.MAINTAIN_NATIVE_PAC	🔿 Yes 🖲 No	
the book		Privileges for Imported Packages		
book.models     Root Package     sap.hana.ide.ise.zen_rt_components_pagebook     sap.hana.ide.ise.zen_t_components_pagebook	-	The imported objects should normally only be changed by re- imports. In rare cases where immediate fixes are required, you can grant the necessary authorization for imported packages		
sap.nana.ide.ise.zen_rt_components_pagebook.resources     sap.nana.ide.ise.zen_rt_components_pagebook.resources.     sap.ui5.1.test-resources.sap.viz.demokit.dataset.bookstore	js e_fiori	□ REPO.EDIT_IMPORTED_OBJECT	◯ Yes ◯ No	
		BJECTS	◯ Yes ◯ No	
		CKAGES	○ Yes ○ No	
Catalog	OK Cancel			

Figure 13.22 Assigning Package Privileges to Roles

There also is a special ROOT PACKAGE privilege that grants access to all packages in the SAP HANA system, even packages that will be created at a later date.

The right side of <u>Figure 13.22</u> shows you how to grant privileges to repository (design-time) packages. For SAP HANA Live, you will need the top REPO.READ or read privilege, as well as PRIVILEGES FOR NATIVE PACKAGES.

#### **Application Privileges**

*Application privileges* are used to grant rights to SAP HANA XS applications. These application privileges are created by the developers of these web applications. In this step, you merely assign these privileges to a role.

In <u>Figure 13.23</u>, we assign the SAP.HANA.DEMOCONTENT.EPM::ADMIN application privilege to the role. This specific privilege allows a user to administrate the SHINE demo application.



Figure 13.23 Assigning Application Privileges to Roles

We have now assigned the various types of privileges to a role. Once you are satisfied with the role, you can assign it to users.

## **Testing Security**

Often, when you are building a role and assigning privileges, you need to test whether the role is working correctly. You can do this easily in SAP HANA studio by connecting to the same SAP HANA system with two different users.

In Figure 13.24, we connected to the RDL system with both the SYSTEM user and RDL\_USER. When we look in the CONTENT areas of both, they look similar—but in the RDL\_USER user area everything we run is checked against the authoriza-

tions of the RDL\_USER user, whereas everything in the SYSTEM user area is checked against the authorizations of the SYSTEM user.

✓ 🔃 RDL (RDL_USER)
> 🗁 Catalog
🗸 🗁 Content
🗸 🖶 book
🗸 🖶 models
> 🧁 Calculation Views (6)
> 🧁 Analytic Privileges (5)
> 🗁 Procedures (1)
✓
DT_CUSTOMER_DISCOUNT_CALCULATION
DT_TAX_CALCULATION
> 🌐 public
> 🖶 sap
> 🖶 system-local
> 🗁 Provisioning
> 🗁 Security
✓ I RDL (SYSTEM)
> 🗁 Catalog
🗸 🧁 Content
🗸 🖶 book
🗸 🖶 models

Figure 13.24 Testing User Authorizations in SAP HANA Studio

This makes it easy to check one user area while fixing any mistakes in the other user area.

## **Important Terminology**

In this chapter, we covered the following terminology:

Users

Identities in the SAP HANA system that you assign to business people using your system. The best practice is to assign privileges to a role and then assign that role to users. The following are two important system users:

- ► SYSTEM: The main SAP HANA user. When the system is installed, this user can do everything.
- SYS\_REPO: The owner of all the activated objects in the SAP HANA system. SAP HANA uses the \_SYS\_REPO user to execute activated models.
- Roles

A *role* in SAP HANA is a collection of granted privileges. You can combine several roles into another role, which can be called a *composite role*.

#### Template roles

Templates that you can use to build your own roles. The following two template roles are important:

- ► MONITORING: Provides read-only access to the SAP HANA system. Users that have this role assigned cannot modify anything in the system.
- MODELING: Given to modelers so they can create information models in the SAP HANA system. Users with this role assigned can create and modify objects in the system and can read all data, even sensitive or confidential data.

## Authentication

Identifies users when they log in and ensures they are who they claim to be.

#### Authorization

Identifies which tasks a user can perform in the system.

#### Privileges

The individual rights you can grant to a role or a user. In SAP HANA, there are five types of privileges:

- ► *System privileges*: These privileges grant users the rights to work with the SAP HANA system. Most of the system privileges are applicable to database and system administrators.
- ► *Object privileges*: These privileges are used to assign rights for users to data source objects, including schemas, tables, virtual tables, procedures, and table functions. Requires very basic knowledge of SQL syntax.
- ► Analytic privileges: These privileges control access to SAP HANA data models. There are two types of analytic privileges: classic XML-based analytic privileges and the new SQL-based analytic privileges that came with SAP HANA SPS 10. In SAP HANA SPS 11, there is a migration tool to convert the old XML-based analytic privileges to the new SQL-based analytic privileges.
- ► *Package privileges*: These privileges grant rights to work in packages. Packages contain all the information views and modeling objects.
- ► *Application privileges*: These privileges are used to grant rights to SAP HANA XS applications.

## Restrictions in analytic privileges

You can implement row-level access restrictions using analytic privileges.

# Practice Questions

These practice questions will help you evaluate your understanding of the topic. The questions shown are similar in nature to those found on the certification examination. Although none of these questions will be found on the exam itself, they will allow you to review your knowledge of the subject. Select the correct answers and then check the completeness of your answers in the Practice Question Answers and Explanation section. Remember that on the exam you must select all correct answers and only correct answers to receive credit for the question.

- 1. Which are the recommended assignments in SAP HANA? (There are 2 correct answers.)
- $\Box$  **A.** Privileges to users
- □ **B.** Roles to users
- $\Box$  **C.** Roles to roles
- □ **D.** Roles to privileges
- 2. In which SAP HANA deployment scenarios will end users be created as users in the SAP HANA system? (There are 2 correct answers.)
- □ **A.** SAP BW powered by SAP HANA
- □ **B.** SAP S/4HANA
- □ **C.** SAP HANA as a platform
- □ **D.** SAP HANA Live
- 3. True or False: The default behavior of SAP HANA is to allow access.
- □ **A.** True
- □ **B.** False
- 4. Your newly created information view does NOT want to activate. For which system user must you grant read access to your schema?
- □ A.\_SYS\_REPO
- □ **B.** SYSTEM
- 🗆 C. SYS
- □ **D.**\_SYS\_TASK

- 5. What do you have to assign to users to allow single sign-on?
- □ **A.** SQL analytic privileges
- □ **B.** Kerberos authentication
- □ **C.** TRUST ADMIN system privilege
- □ **D.** Application privileges
- 6. Where do you graphically create a design-time role in SAP HANA?
- □ **A.** In the SECURITY area of the SAP HANA web-based development workbench
- □ **B.** In the ROLES area under SECURITY in SAP HANA studio
- □ **C.** In the REPOSITORY area in the development perspective in SAP HANA studio
- **D**. In the EDITOR area of the SAP HANA web-based development workbench
- 7. What system privilege do you need to create a delivery unit?
- □ A. REPO.EXPORT
- □ **B.** REPO.IMPORT
- □ C. REPO.MAINTAIN\_DELIVERY\_UNITS
- □ **D.** REPO.WORK\_IN\_FOREIGN\_WORKSPACE
- 8. True or False: Object privileges on a table with SELECT rights will allow you to access to all the data.
- $\Box$  **A.** True
- □ **B.** False
- 9. What can you use to limit users to see only 2016 data? (There are 2 correct answers.)
- $\Box$  **A.** An object privilege
- □ **B.** A SQL analytic privilege
- $\Box$  **C.** A view with a filter
- $\Box$  **D.** A view with a restricted column

- 10. You have two calculation views for viewing manufactured products. The WORLD calculation view shows worldwide information. The INDIA calculation view is built on top of the WORLD calculation view and shows information for Indian products. What privilege must you assign to see your department's specific data in a report built on the INDIA calculation view?
- □ **A.** An analytic privilege on the WORLD calculation view
- **B.** An analytic privilege on the INDIA calculation view
- **C.** An analytic privilege on the both calculation views
- **D.** An object privilege on the WORLD calculation view
- 11. True or False: You can limit access to a subpackage if you have given access to the higher level package.
- 🗆 A. True
- □ **B.** False
- 12. You have created a SQL analytic privilege on an information view. Where do you tell the view to enable SQL analytic privileges?
- □ **A.** In the semantic node of the information model
- □ **B.** In the restrictions settings of the SQL analytic privilege
- □ C. In the SAP HANA studio preferences
- $\Box$  **D.** In the migration tool
- 13. What does the migration tool allow you to migrate?
- □ **A.** XML analytic privileges to table functions
- □ **B.** XML analytic privileges to SQL analytic privileges
- □ **C.** SQL analytic privileges to XML analytic privileges
- D. Object privileges to SQL analytic privileges

## **Practice Question Answers and Explanations**

1. Correct answers: **B**, **C** 

We can assign roles to other roles and roles to users in SAP HANA. We can assign privileges to users, but this is not recommended. We cannot assign roles to privileges. We can only assign privileges to roles. 2. Correct answers: C, D

End users are created as users in the SAP HANA system in the SAP HANA as a platform deployment scenario. With SAP HANA Live, users are created in the SAP application server, and they are automatically created by the Authorization Assistant in SAP HANA. With SAP BW on SAP HANA and SAP S/ 4HANA, users are created in the SAP application servers, not in SAP HANA.

3. Correct answer: **B** 

False. The default behavior of SAP HANA is to deny access. Please note that True or False questions are included to help your understanding, but the actual certification exam does not have such questions.

4. Correct answer: A

You must grant read access to your schema for the \_SYS\_REPO user if your newly created information view does NOT want to activate.

5. Correct answer: **B** 

You have to assign Kerberos authentication to users to allow single sign-on

6. Correct answer: **D** 

You can graphically create a design-time role in the EDITOR area of the SAP HANA web-based development workbench. In the SECURITY area of the workbench, you can create only runtime roles. In the ROLES area under SECURITY in SAP HANA studio, you can create only runtime roles. In the REPOSITORY area in the development perspective in SAP HANA studio, you can only create a design-time role as a text file, not graphically.

7. Correct answer: C

The REPO.MAINTAIN\_DELIVERY\_UNITS system privilege allows you to create a delivery unit. REPO.EXPORT and REPO.IMPORT are used for transporting, not for creating delivery units. REPO.WORK\_IN\_FOREIGN\_WORKSPACE allows you to activate colleagues' information views and is not related to delivery units.

8. Correct answer: A

True. Yes, an object privilege on a table with SELECT rights will allow you to access all the data.

9. Correct answers: **B**, **C** 

You can use a view with a filter or a SQL analytic privilege to limit users to see only 2016 data. A view with a restricted column will show all the data in all the fields, except in the restricted column.

10. Correct answer: C

An analytic privilege on both calculation views.

11. Correct answer: **B** 

False. You cannot limit access to a subpackage if you have given access to the higher-level package.

12. Correct answer: A

You tell the view to enable SQL analytic privileges in the semantic node of the information model.

13. Correct answer: **B** 

The migration tool migrates XML analytic privileges to SQL analytic privileges.

## Takeaway

You should now have a good overview of security in SAP HANA, especially as it relates to information modeling. You should understand when to use SAP HANA security and how users, roles, and privileges work together.

You know how to create new users and roles and how to assign the various types of privileges, and you can explain analytic privileges, how to create them, and how to migrate them to the newer SQL-based analytic privileges.

In your journey, you also learned best practices and picked up practical tips to work with in your SAP HANA projects.

## Summary

We started by looking at when to use SAP HANA security and when to use an application's security. We then went into the details of creating users and roles and assigning privileges. Along the way, we went into more details on analytic privileges, which these are particularly applicable to our modeling knowledge.

In the next chapter, we will explain how to get data from various outside sources into SAP HANA for use with your information models.

# **Data Provisioning**

## Techniques You'll Master

- Learn what data provisioning is
- Understand the basic data provisioning concepts
- Get to know the various SAP data provisioning tools available for SAP HANA
- Know when to use the different SAP data provisioning tools in the context of SAP HANA
- Identify the benefits of each data provisioning method
- Gain a working knowledge of some features in a few of the SAP provisioning tools

In this chapter, we will cover how to provide data to SAP HANA information models and the basic principles and tools used for data provisioning in SAP HANA. For our information models to work properly, we need to ensure that we get the right data into SAP HANA at the right time.

There are people who specialize in each of the data provisioning tools discussed, and there are special training courses for every one of these tools. Our aim, therefore, is not to dive deep into detail about the various concepts and tools, but to give you a high-level working knowledge of what each tool does, to understand the concepts involved when provisioning data into SAP HANA, to enable you to have a meaningful conversation on the topic, and to help you when choosing the right tool for your business requirements.

## **Real-World Scenario**

You start a new project that involves SAP HANA, and you are asked to provide data for the SAP HANA system.

You start by asking important questions about the expected data provisioning: Where is the data stored currently? Is the data clean? Will the data be updated in the source systems, or is this a once-off data provisioning process? Does the business need the data in real time, or is a delay of some hours acceptable? Does the data need to be stored in the SAP HANA system? Does the business already have a data provisioning tool that you can re-use? Will the data provisioning process be limited to SAP HANA only?

After evaluating all these factors, you recommend the right data provisioning tool to the business, one that is applicable to its budget, circumstances, and requirements.

# **Objectives of This Portion of the Test**

The objective of this portion of the SAP HANA certification is to test your highlevel understanding of the various SAP data provisioning tools available for getting data into an SAP HANA system.

The certification exam expects you to have a good understanding of the following topics:
- General data provisioning concepts
- Different SAP data provisioning tools
- ► Similarities and differences between the various provisioning tools
- When to use a particular SAP provisioning tool
- High-level understanding of features of some of the SAP data provisioning tools



#### Note

This portion contributes up to 5% of the total certification exam score.

# **Key Concepts Refresher**

In <u>Chapter 4</u>, we started by looking at the basic information modeling concepts. <u>Figure 4.11</u> presented an overview diagram of the different types of information models in SAP HANA and how they all work together to help solve business requirements. This overview diagram is shown again in <u>Figure 14.1</u>. This diagram can be considered a summary of the entire book!

So far, we have focused our attention on the bottom half of the diagram: on information modeling inside SAP HANA. In this chapter, our attention shifts to the upper left corner of the diagram. You need to know how to supply your SAP HANA information models with the data they require.

SAP HANA does not really differentiate whether the data comes from SAP or from non-SAP source systems. Data is data, regardless of where it comes from. Combined with the fact that SAP HANA is a full platform—and not just a dumb database—this makes it an excellent choice for all companies. SAP HANA is meant not only for traditional SAP customers but also for a wide range of other companies, from small startups to large corporations. In fact, SAP now actively supports thousands of startups, helping them use SAP HANA to deliver innovative solutions that are "nontraditional" in the SAP sense.

In this chapter, we will look at the various data provisioning concepts and tools.



Figure 14.1 Overview Diagram and Where Data Provisioning Fits

# Concepts

*Data provisioning* is used to get data from a source system and provide that data to a target system. In our case, we get this data from various source systems, whether they're SAP or non-SAP systems, and our target is always the SAP HANA system.

We are not too concerned in this chapter about the different types of data whether financial transactional data, spatial data, real-time sensor data, social media data, or aggregated information. We will focus instead on the process of providing the data to SAP HANA.

Data provisioning goes beyond merely loading data into the target system. With SAP HANA and some of its new approaches to information modeling, we also have more options available to us when working with data from other systems. We do not always have to store the data we use in SAP HANA as with traditional

data loading. We now also have the ability to consume and analyze data once, never to be looked at again.

#### Extract, Transform, and Load

Extract, Transform, and Load (ETL) is viewed by many people as the traditional process of retrieving data from a source system and loading it into a target system. <u>Figure 14.2</u> illustrates the traditional ETL process of data provisioning.



#### Figure 14.2 Extract, Transform, and Load Process

The ETL process consists of the following phases:

Extraction

During this phase, data is read from a source system. Traditional ETL tools can read many data sources, and most can also read data from SAP source systems.

Transform

During this phase, the data is transformed. Normally this means cleaning the data, but it can refer to any data manipulation. It can combine fields to calculate something (e.g., sales tax, or filter data, or limit the data to the year 2016). You set up transformation rules and data flows in the ETL tool.

Load

In the final phase, the data is written into the target system.

The ETL process is normally a batch process. Due to the time required for the complex transformations that are sometimes necessary, tools do not deliver the data in real time.

With SAP HANA, the process sometimes changes from ETL to *ELT*. This is because SAP HANA has some data provisioning components built in, as shown in <u>Figure 14.3</u>. In this case, we *extract* the data, *load* it into SAP HANA, and only then *transform* the data



Figure 14.3 Extract, Load, and Transform Process

#### Initial Load and Delta Loads

It is important to understand that loading data into a target system happens in two distinct phases, as illustrated in Figure 14.4.



Figure 14.4 Initial Load of Tables and Subsequent Delta Updates

We always start by making a full copy of the data that we need from the source system. If we require an entire table, we make a copy of the table in the target system. This is called the *initial load* of the data. We can limit the initial load with a filter (e.g., to load only the latest 2016 data).

Sometimes this step is enough and we do not need to do anything more. If we set up a training or a testing system, we do not need the latest data in these systems.

Many times, however, we need to ensure that our copy of the data in the target system stays up-to-date. Business carries on, and items are bought and sold. Each new transaction can change the data in the source system. We need a mechanism to update the data in the target system. We could just delete the data in the target system and perform the initial load again. For small sets of data, this approach can work, but it quickly becomes inefficient and wasteful for large datasets.

A more efficient method is to look at the data that has changed and apply the data changes to our copy of the data in the target system. These data changes are referred to as the *delta*, and applying these changes to the target system is called a *delta load*. The various data provisioning tools can differ substantially in the way they implement the delta load mechanism.

#### Replication

Replication emphasizes a different aspect of the data loading process.

ETL focuses on ensuring that the data is clean and in the correct format in the target system. Replication does less of that, but gets the data into the target system as quickly as possible. As such, the replication process appears quite simple, as shown in Figure 14.5.

The extraction process of ETL tools can be demanding on a source system. Because they have the potential to dramatically slow down the source system due to the large volumes of data read operations, the extraction processes are often only run after hours.

*Replication* tools aim to get the data into the target system as fast as possible. This implies that data must be read from the source system at all times of the day and with minimal impact to the performance of the source system. The exact manner in which different replication tools achieve this can range from using database triggers to reading database log files.



#### Figure 14.5 Replication of Tables

With SAP HANA as the target system, we achieve real-time replication speeds. (We've worked on projects where the average time between when a record is updated in the source system to when the record is updated in SAP HANA was only about 50 milliseconds!)



#### Тір

We often use real-time replication with SAP HANA to leverage the speed of SAP HANA for our data analysis.

#### **SAP Extractors**

Normally, we think of data provisioning as reading the data from a single table in the source system and then writing the same data to a similar table in the target system. However, it is possible to perform this process differently, such as reading the data from a group of tables and delivering all this data as a single integrated data unit to the target system. This is the idea behind SAP *extractors*.

The standard approach for taking data from an SAP business system to an SAP BW system (Figure 14.6) uses extractors. There are thousands of extractors predelivered by SAP for SAP business systems. Extractors are only found in SAP systems.

In the scenario shown in <u>Figure 14.6</u>, the extractor gathers data from multiple tables in the SAP source system. It neatly packages this data for consumption by the SAP BW system in a flat data structure (datasource). Extractors provide both initial load and delta load functionality. All this happens in the SAP source system.





In the SAP BW target system, you create an *InfoPackage* to help schedule delta loads. SAP BW receives the data from the remote data source and applies the transformation and activation processes to the data before storing it in SAP BW. The data can be stored in a *DataStore Object* (DSO) or *InfoProvider*. A report can read the data from the SAP BW InfoProvider.

SAP BW rose in popularity with many companies due to the large number of extractors that SAP provides with it. These extractors are well-documented and make it easy to find the data you are looking for.

For example, say you want to create a report using procurement data. You find the extractors that contain the data you need and select the best one for your needs. You activate this extractor: It then automatically creates the correct data structures for you in the SAP BW system and populates them with the data you asked for. You then build your report on these data structures. Even if the provided data structures are not 100% what you were looking for, it is easier to modify something that is 95% complete than to create it all from scratch.

#### **Database Connections**

SAP HANA provides drivers known as SAP HANA clients that allow you to connect to other types of databases. Let's look at some of the common database connectivity terminology you might encounter:

Open Database Connectivity (ODBC)

ODBC acts as a translation layer between an application and a database via an ODBC driver. You write your database queries using a standard application

programming interface (API) for accessing database information. The ODBC driver translates these queries to database-specific queries, making your database queries database and operating system independent. By changing the ODBC driver to that of another database and changing your connection information, your application will work with another database.

## Java Database Connectivity (JDBC)

JDBC is similar to ODBC but specifically aimed at the Java programming language.

## Object Linking and Embedding, Database for Online Analytical Processing (ODBO)

ODBO provides an API for exchanging metadata and data between an application and an OLAP server (like a data warehouse using cubes). You can use ODBO to connect Microsoft Excel to SAP HANA.

## Multidimensional expressions (MDX)

MDX is a query language for OLAP databases, similar to how SQL is a query language for relational (OLTP) databases. The MDX standard was adopted by a wide range of OLAP vendors, including SAP.

#### Business Intelligence Consumer Services (BICS)

BICS is an SAP-proprietary database connection. It is a direct client connection that performs better and faster than MDX or SQL. Hierarchies are supported, negating the need for MDX in SAP environments. Because this is an SAP-only connection type, you can only use it between two SAP systems—for example, from an SAP reporting tool to SAP BW.

The fastest way to connect to a database is via dedicated database libraries. ODBC and JDBC insert another layer in the middle that can impact your database query performance. Many times, however, convenience is more important than speed.

## **SAP Data Services**

*SAP Data Services* is a powerful ETL tool. It can read most known data sources, transform and clean data, and load data into target systems. It has been available for many years, and was previously called SAP BusinessObjects Data Services.

SAP Data Services runs on its own server, as shown in <u>Figure 14.7</u>, and requires a database to store job definitions and metadata. In many cases, this database is Microsoft SQL Server, but could be an SAP HANA database as well.



Figure 14.7 SAP Data Services

In this section, we'll look at using SAP Data Services for extracting data, transforming and cleansing data, and finally round-out our discussion by looking at its primary benefits.

#### **Extracting Data**

The extraction capabilities of SAP Data Services are well-known in the industry. It can read many data sources—even obscure ones, like old COBOL copybooks. However, SAP Data Services can also read all the latest social media feeds available on the Internet, and it can communicate with most databases and large business applications.

SAP Data Services can get data from SAP business systems in various ways. We can use it to directly read a system's databases. We could also use some of the built-in extractors we discussed in the SAP Extractors section. However, it cannot use all the SAP extractors. For example, if you need extractors that require activation afterwards, then the SAP Direct Extractor Connection (DXC) discussed in the SAP Direct Extractor Connection (DXC) discussed in the other hand, you are already extensively using SAP Data Services in your company, and you do not require all the extractors, SAP Data Services is a better choice.

Another way SAP Data Services can get data from SAP business systems is by using an ABAP data flow. *ABAP* is the programming language that SAP uses to write the SAP Business Suite systems. SAP Data Services can write some ABAP code that you can load into the SAP source system. This code becomes part of an

ABAP data flow and is a faster and more reliable way to extract the data from an SAP source system.

## **Transforming and Cleaning Data**

There is no better SAP tool than SAP Data Services for providing complex transformations. SAP Data Services is actually several products combined. When people refer to SAP Data Services, they normally refer to the data provisioning product called *Data Integrator*. Another product called *SAP Data Quality Management* is also combined under the SAP Data Services product name.

All SAP Data Services products ensure that you have clean and reliable information to work with. You may have heard the old saying, "garbage in, garbage out." If you have rubbish data going into your reporting system, you get rubbish data in your reports. SAP HANA's great performance does not make this go away. It just changes that old saying to, "garbage in, garbage out *fast*!"

## **Benefits of SAP Data Services**

Use SAP Data Services for data provisioning when:

- ► A strong ETL tool is required because no other tool can read certain data sources (e.g., legacy systems)
- ► Transformation of data is required—for example, when data is not clean
- Real-time data provisioning is not a business requirement
- ► A customer already has an instance of SAP Data Services running and requires you to use the current infrastructure and skills available

# **SAP LT Replication Server**

*SAP LT Replication Server* (SLT) is a data provisioning tool that uses replication to load data into SAP HANA. Remember that the focus of a replication server is to load data into the target system as fast as possible.

SLT started as a tool that SAP developed and used internally to help companies migrating data between SAP systems—for example, when companies wanted to consolidate systems after a merger or acquisition. SLT is written in ABAP and

runs on the SAP NetWeaver platform, just like SAP ERP and other SAP business systems. SLT was successfully used for years for data migrations, but became more popular and well-known with the arrival of SAP HANA.

#### Тір

SLT is one of the most popular SAP data provisioning tools for SAP HANA. This is due to its real-time replication capabilities, and the fact that it understands SAP source systems well due to it running on the SAP NetWeaver platform.

SLT works with both SAP and non-SAP source systems. It uses the same database libraries as the SAP Business Suite and therefore supports all the same databases as the SAP business systems, including SAP HANA, SAP ASE, SAP MaxDB, Microsoft SQL Server, IBM DB/2, Oracle, and Informix. We recommend that SLT be installed on its own server, as shown in <u>Figure 14.8</u>, even though you can install it inside an SAP NetWeaver–based source system.



Figure 14.8 SLT Replication Server

#### **Trigger-Based Replication**

The method that SLT uses for real-time replication is trigger based. A *trigger* is a feature that all databases have, whereby they can trigger an action when data

changes in a table. For example, if data is updated or deleted or new data is inserted in a specific table, you can set up a database trigger to also write these changes to a special replication log table. SLT replication is also known as *triggerbased replication*. The impact of the SLT replication on the source systems is minimal because database triggers are quite efficient.

SLT performs the initial load of the database tables without the use of triggers. The delta load mechanism is trigger based. SLT creates triggers in the source systems on the tables it replicates. Any changes made to the source tables after the initial load are collected in logging tables in a separate database schema. SLT then quickly applies all these changes to the SAP HANA target tables and empties the logging tables in the source system. The logging tables are therefore normally kept very small.

Some database administrators do not like triggers on their critical legacy production systems. In such cases, you should consider using SAP Replication Server, which has even less of an impact on source systems than SLT.

#### **SLT Replication Process**

SLT consists of a few modules: The *read module* reads the delta data from the logging tables in the source system, the *controller module* controls the replication, and the *write module* loads the data into the SAP HANA target system.

The write module uses a database connection to the target SAP HANA system, as shown in <u>Figure 14.9</u>. SLT can also load data into other target databases.

All the SLT modules are written in ABAP. The controller and write modules are always run within the SLT system.

If the source system is an SAP system, which also uses ABAP code, then the read module is run from within the SAP source system. ABAP modules in different systems communicate with each other using a *remote function call* (RFC) connection.

If the source system is not an SAP system, then the read module ABAP code cannot run in the source system. In this case, the read module is run in the SLT system, and a database connection is used to read the delta data from the logging tables in the source system's database.



Figure 14.9 SLT Replication Process for SAP and non-SAP Source Systems

#### **Other SLT Replication Features**

You can perform filtering and simple transformations as you load the data into SAP HANA by calling ABAP code inside SLT. Because SLT uses ABAP code, you can create more complex transformations, but this would interfere with the real-time advantages of SLT. If you require complex transformations or data cleaning, consider using SAP Data Services.

Because SLT can read data from older SAP systems, it can also read non-Unicode data from these systems. SLT converts this data to Unicode while it is replicated to SAP HANA. This is required, because SAP HANA uses Unicode.

#### Creating and Managing an SLT Replication Configuration

<u>Figure 14.10</u> shows the last summary step for creating an SLT replication configuration. You can see that the source system is an SAP system because we specified an RFC connection.

Create Configuration						
Specify General Data	2 Specify Source System	3 Specify Target System	4 5 Specify Transfer Settings Review and	6 d Create Confirmation		
Previous     Create Configuration	n 🕨 Close					
Review your settings and choose C	Create Configuration to creat	te the configuration.				
Connection to Source System			Data Transfer Settings			
RFC Connection      DB Connect	tion		Initial Load Mode:	Resource Optimized		
RFC Destination:	SLT_CLNT		Data Class of Tablespace:			
Allow Multiple Usage:	<b>v</b>					
Read from Single Client:			Job Options			
			No. of Data Transfer Jobs:	003		
Connection to Target System			No. of Initial Load Jobs:	000		
ORFC Connection	tion		No. of Calculation Jobs:	000		
Database System:	HANA					
Administration User Name:	SYSTEM		Replication Options			
Passw ord:	•••••		<ul> <li>Real Time</li> </ul>			
Host Name:			Schedule by Interval	000		
Instance Number:	00		O Schedule by Time	00:00:00		

#### Figure 14.10 Setting Up SLT Replication Configuration

Within the SLT replication server, we can also monitor, manage, and troubleshoot the replication.

#### **Monitoring SLT from SAP HANA Studio**

You can also monitor and control the replication from SAP HANA studio. From the QUICK VIEW menu in the Modeler perspective, select the DATA PROVISIONING option. Figure 14.11 shows the resulting SLT data provisioning screen.

You can choose which tables you want replicated to the SAP HANA target system with the LOAD and REPLICATE buttons on the right. The LOAD button will perform only an initial load of the selected tables, whereas the REPLICATE button will perform an initial and a continuous delta load of the selected tables.

🔟 Quick Launch	🗿 Data Provisio	ning Editor 🛛	3					
SLT Based Table Data Provisioning								
SAP Source System and HANA Target Schema Selection								
Select Source Sys	Select Source System RDL(ddcdc00 RDL 14)							
Target Schema								
Source Details -								
Source System I	D R	DL	Host Name	of Source System				
SLT Replication S	Server System ID 🖪	DL	Host Name	of SLT Replication Server Syst	:em			
Data Load Mana	gement							
	gemene							
	_				_			
<b>Filter pattern</b>			1	,	Û	Load		
Filter pattern Schema	Table Name	Action	Status	Start Time	Ũ	Load Replicate		
Filter pattern Schema RDL200_15	Table Name DD02L	Action Replicate	Status	Start Time	Î	Load Replicate		
Filter pattern Schema RDL200_15 RDL200_15 RDL200_15	Table Name DD02L DD08L	Action Replicate Replicate	Status In Process In Process	Start Time	Î	Load Replicate Stop Replication		
Schema RDL200_15 RDL200_15 RDL200_15	Table Name DD02L DD08L DD02T	Action Replicate Replicate Load	Status In Process In Process In Process	Start Time	Û	Load Replicate Stop Replication		
Filter pattern Schema RDL200_15 RDL200_15 RDL200_15	Table Name DD02L DD08L DD02T	Action Replicate Replicate Load	Status In Process In Process In Process	Start Time	Î	Load Replicate Stop Replication Suspend		
Fiker pattern Schema RDL200_15 RDL200_15 RDL200_15	Table Name DD02L DD08L DD02T	Action Replicate Replicate Load	Status In Process In Process In Process	Start Time	Û	Load Replicate Stop Replication Suspend Resume		
Filer pattern Schema RDL200_15 RDL200_15 RDL200_15	Table Name DD02L DD08L DD02T	Action Replicate Replicate Load	Status In Process In Process In Process	Start Time	Û	Load Replicate Stop Replication Suspend Resume Jobs		
Filter pattern Schema RDL200_15 RDL200_15 RDL200_15	Table Name DD02L DD08L DD08L DD02T	Action Replicate Replicate Load	Status In Process In Process In Process	Start Time	1	Load Replicate Stop Replication Suspend Resume Jobs		
Filter pattern Schema RDL200_15 RDL200_15 RDL200_15	Table Name DD02L DD08L DD08L DD02T	Action Replicate Replicate Load	Status In Process In Process In Process	Start Time	1	Load Replicate Stop Replication Suspend Resume Jobs		

Figure 14.11 Controlling SLT Replication from SAP HANA Studio

To speed up the selection of tables from the source system, SLT always replicates tables DD02L, DD08L, and DD02T. These tables contain the list of tables available in the source system. Having the full list of available tables in SAP HANA speeds up the table selection for the data provisioning administrator.

Once the replication is running, you can SUSPEND and RESUME the replication with the appropriate buttons. You can use these options to pause the SLT replication when needed, such as when you need to perform maintenance on any of the replication servers.

If you no longer wish to replicate the tables, you can permanently stop the replication by using the STOP REPLICATION button.

#### **Benefits of SLT**

Use SLT for your data provisioning needs when:

- Replication of data is preferred to transformation
- There is a business requirement or preference to get the data into SAP HANA in real time

- The use of triggers is acceptable
- ► Replication of data from older SAP systems is required

#### **SAP Replication Server**

*SAP Replication Server* (SRS), previously called Sybase Replication Server, also uses replication to load data into SAP HANA. The focus of a replication server is to load the data into the target system as fast as possible, with minimal impact on the source system.

#### **Log-Based Replication**

SRS differs from SLT in that it uses the database log files for real-time replication, as shown in <u>Figure 14.12</u>. Its delta load mechanism is log-based. As data changes in tables, all databases write these changes into a database log file. SRS reads these database log files to enable table replication. SRS replication is also known as *log-based replication*. This log file replication mechanism has even less of an impact on the source system than SLT.



#### Figure 14.12 SAP Replication Server

SRS works with both SAP and non-SAP source systems and supports many databases. Replication servers do not focus on the filtering or transformation of data before loading the data into SAP HANA.

The database log files contain all the changes in a database. SAP Replication Server can use this information to replicate entire databases. For example, SAP ASE databases use SRS to replicate the database log files for disaster recovery purposes.

SLT became more popular with increased use of SAP HANA systems because SLT understands SAP systems.

#### **Benefits of SAP Replication Server**

Consider using SRS for your data provisioning needs when:

- Replication of data is preferred to transformation
- There is a business requirement or preference to get the data into SAP HANA in real-time
- The use of triggers is not acceptable
- No pool or cluster tables need to be replicated
- The business requires minimal impact on the source system
- Database replication is needed for disaster recovery purposes

## **SAP Direct Extractor Connection**

The purpose of *SAP Direct Extractor Connection* (DXC) is to use extractors from SAP systems to load data into SAP HANA. When the extractors require activation, SAP Data Services might not be able to use these complex extractors. A good business case for DXC is to use it to load some financial data from an SAP Business Suite system into SAP HANA with minimal modeling effort.



DXC only works with SAP source systems, because only SAP systems use extractors.

You can replicate the multiple financial tables from the SAP source system using SLT, but you will end up with many tables inside SAP HANA, as shown in the

top process diagram in <u>Figure 14.13</u>. You will then have to create a complex data model to join all the tables and manipulate the data in SAP HANA.



#### Figure 14.13 Replication vs. Extractors for Data Provisioning

By using the extractors via DXC, financial data is delivered to you in SAP HANA in a nicely packaged way that is immediately usable, and you don't have to create a complex data model in SAP HANA (see the bottom process diagram in <u>Figure 14.13</u>). The disadvantage of this option is that these extractors are not available in real time. If you require real-time replication, then SLT or SRS is a better option.

As we discussed in the SAP Extractors section, SAP extractors were created to easily load data from SAP business systems into SAP BW. Even though SAP Data Services can use some of the extractors, only an SAP BW system can use all of the available extractors.

There may be times when you want to use SAP extractors to load data into SAP HANA, but without your data making a pit stop at SAP BW before moving into SAP HANA, which wastes both time and disk space. DXC provides an alternative option.

The only system that really can read all the available extractors is an SAP BW system. Instead of installing yet another SAP BW system for providing data to SAP HANA, we use the embedded SAP BW in the SAP source system. SAP business systems are all built on the SAP NetWeaver platform, and SAP BW is part of the SAP NetWeaver platform. Therefore, all ABAP-based SAP NetWeaver systems have an SAP BW system embedded. Normally, this embedded SAP BW system is not activated; it just lies dormant.

<u>Figure 14.6</u> illustrated how extractors normally work with SAP BW; compare that to <u>Figure 14.14</u>. Normally, the SAP BW system is external to the SAP source system, but in this case, we activate the embedded SAP BW system inside the SAP source system.



Figure 14.14 Direct Extractor Connection

The process flow is almost exactly the same. You have an SAP extractor, it puts the data in the data source and populates the delta queue, the InfoPackage schedules the loading of the delta data into the SAP BW system, and we transform and activate the data.

There are a few notable exceptions, however:

- The data source in this case requires a key field.
- ► DXC is also installed in the SAP system. The SAP BW system thinks it is writing the data into a DSO, but DXC instead intercepts the data writing process and sends it to SAP HANA via an HTTP connection.
- ► Inside SAP HANA, DXC writes the data into an *In-Memory DataStore Object* (IMDSO)—the SAP HANA memory-optimized version of an SAP BW DSO.

Consider using DXC for your data provisioning needs when:

- All the source systems are SAP systems.
- ► The business wants to use SAP extractors to minimize the modeling effort in SAP HANA.
- Real-time data provisioning is not a business requirement.

## **SAP HANA Smart Data Access**

*SAP HANA smart data access* (SDA) provides SAP HANA with direct access to data in a remote database. In this case, we do not store the data in the SAP HANA database; we can access it at any time. We merely consume the remote data when required.

#### **Virtual Tables**

SDA allows you to create *virtual tables*, empty tables that point to tables or views inside another database somewhere (see <u>Figure 14.15</u>). Some databases have a similar feature called *proxy tables*, also sometimes called *data federation*.

SDA has various database *adapters* it uses to connect these virtual tables to a large number of databases. These adapters include the following:

- ► SAP HANA, SAP ASE, SAP IQ, and SAP MaxDB
- ► Hadoop (Hive), Spark, and SAP HANA Vora

- ► IBM DB2 and IBM Netezza
- Microsoft SQL Server
- Oracle
- Teradata

SDA can also use an ODBC framework to connect to other databases via ODBC connectivity.



#### Figure 14.15 SDA and Virtual Tables

When you ask for data from a virtual table, SAP HANA connects to the remote database across the network, logs in, and requests the relevant data from the remote table or view. You can combine the data from the remote database table with data stored in SAP HANA. You can use a virtual table in SAP HANA information models, just like native SAP HANA tables. SDA will automatically convert the data types from those used in the remote database to SAP HANA data types.

#### SDA Virtual Tables vs. SAP HANA Native Tables

You cannot expect the same performance from SDA virtual tables as from SAP HANA native tables. SAP HANA tables are loaded in the memory of SAP HANA. The data from the virtual table is fetched from a relatively slow disk-based database across the network.

Keep in mind that SDA reads data from remote tables directly, as it is stored. It cannot do any data cleansing as it reads data from remote tables. SAP HANA also

does not have any scheduling tool, so SDA cannot be used for ETL processes or replication. It just reads the data from the remote tables as the need arises; for example, a reporting query requires data to be stored in a remote table.

SAP HANA provides optimizations for SDA virtual tables:

- ► SAP HANA caches data that it reads from remote databases. If the data is found in the cache, the data is read from the cache and no request is sent to the remote database.
- SAP HANA can use *join relocation*. If you join two virtual tables from different remote databases, it can copy the smaller remote table to a temporary table in the remote system with the larger table. It then requests the second remote system to join the larger table to the temporary table.
- SAP HANA can push down queries to remote databases if it will execute faster in the remote database, rather than copy lots of data via the network. For example, a remote database can calculate an aggregate faster on half a million records than it will take to the copy these records across the network for SAP HANA to aggregate.
- ► SAP HANA also has optimization features for aggregating data. It uses functional compensation to compensate for certain (missing) features in other databases.

#### Implementing SDA

It's easy to create and use virtual tables with SDA. Once the relevant database adapter is set up, you can create a new virtual table, as shown in Figure 14.16.

In the SYSTEMS tab, open the PROVISIONING folder. From the context menu, select NEW REMOTE SOURCE. On the right side of the screen, you can see the settings for connecting to the remote database. In this case, it shows a remote SAP HANA system.

Once the remote source is created, you can drill down in the REMOTE SOURCES folder to find the remote table you want to use.

From the context menu of the remote table, select ADD AS VIRTUAL TABLE, provide a name for your virtual table, select a schema in your local SAP HANA system, and click on CREATE (see <u>Figure 14.17</u>). You can find the newly created virtual table in your local SAP HANA schema.

SAR HANA Development - Remote Sourcer System: RDI Host: 192 168 124 128 Inst	tance: 00 Connected User: SVSTEM	System Usage: Custom		
Bur she mark bevelopment - kenote sources system, koe most rise root evenos	ance, to connected oser. STSTEIN	system usage. custom.		
File Edit Navigate Search Project Run Window Help				
	▼ \$\\$ \$\ <b>-</b> \$\ -			
🕒 Project Explorer 🍈 Repositories 💡 Systems 💥 🗖 🗖	👪 RDL 🛛 🤪 book.models::A	N_PURCHASE_OVERVIEW		
📴 🕶 🛄 👪 🕶 📇 🤝	RDL (SYSTEM) 192.10	58.124.128 00		
	Source Name			
Backup	PEMOTE DP			
> 🦢 Catalog	REMOTE_DB			
> 🗁 Content	Type filter			
V 🗁 Provisioning	Property name	Value		
hiji Smart Data Access	<ul> <li>Connection Properties</li> </ul>			
Emote Sources	Adapter Version	1.0		
Security Console	Connection Mode *	Adapter Properties		
New Remote Source	Data Source Name	Not applicable		
Refresh E5	Driver *	libodbcHDB.so		
	Server *			
	Port *			
	DML Mode	readonly		
	Extra Adapter Properties			
	✓ Credentials			
	Credentials Mode *	Technical user		
	User Name *			
	Password *			

Figure 14.16 Create New Remote Source for SDA



Figure 14.17 Adding a New Virtual Table in SAP HANA

You can use your newly created virtual tables in SAP HANA information models (<u>Figure 14.18</u>), just like you would do normally with SAP HANA in-memory tables.



Figure 14.18 Using Virtual Tables in SAP HANA Modeling

All features of SAP HANA information models are available. <u>Figure 14.19</u> shows what the PERFORMANCE ANALYSIS information looks like for an SAP HANA calculation view using two virtual tables.



Figure 14.19 Performance Analysis Mode for Calulation View with Virtual Tables

#### **Big Data Use Case**

We often hear about people wanting to put all their data into a single physical data warehouse to analyze it there. Some variations are called *data lakes*. This scenario is referred to as *big data* (see Figure 14.20, left).



Figure 14.20 Logical Data Warehouse Use Case for SDA

There are a few problems with the physical data warehouse approach:

- ► You have to duplicate all your data, so your data is double the size, and you now need more storage. You essentially have doubled your cost and effort.
- You have to copy all of that data via the network, which slows your network.
- The data in the new data warehouse is never up-to-date, and as such, the data is never consistent.

► The single data warehouse system itself cannot handle all the different types of data requirements, such as unstructured data, graph engine data, key-value pairs, spatial data, huge varieties of data, and so on.

These are some of the issues we deal with in the physical data warehouse scenario, and with such issues, it might be better to consider a *logical data warehouse*. You keep the data in your source systems, don't duplicate it via the network, and don't store copies of it. This is where SDA fits in. You create virtual tables for the various data sources. All the data is stored inside SAP HANA and behaves just as in a single data warehouse. You get the data from the various source databases only when required, and can then access those bits of specific data, combine them with other data, and report on it (see Figure 14.20, right).

## Data Archiving Use Case

SDA can help implement data archiving of SAP HANA data, as shown in <u>Figure</u> <u>14.21</u>.



Figure 14.21 Data Archiving Use Case for SDA

Let's think about a retail company. Retail companies have millions of transactional records in their databases. For example, they have a few reports that analyze and compare this year's Mother's Day sales to last year's Mother's Day sales. Most of their reports, however, only use the last six weeks of data, analyzing and comparing items such as this month's payday sales to last month's sales.

The retail company does not want to load all its retail data into SAP HANA. Why would you load rarely used data into expensive memory? Using SDA, a company

can write the rarely used data—anything older than six weeks—into an SAP IQ database (a columnar disk-based database) for archiving. This is called *warm data*. The data in SAP HANA is called *hot data*.

The company can now create a simple view that combines the warm archived data in SAP IQ with the hot data in SAP HANA.

For all reports on newer (hot) data only, the SAP HANA system still delivers typical fast reporting times. If you request a report that uses older (warm) data, the report will be somewhat slower because it will combine data from SAP HANA and SAP IQ. However, this slower response is acceptable because these types of reports are not run very often, and the cost savings justify the slower responses.



Although the virtual table technology for SDA seems quite simple, the implemented use cases can have a huge impact.

#### **Benefits of SDA**

Consider using SDA for your data provisioning needs when

- ▶ You do not need to store all the data inside SAP HANA
- You use a logical data warehouse or are presented with a big data scenario
- ▶ You need integration with Hadoop
- You use a smaller SAP HANA system
- ▶ Real-time data provisioning is not a business requirement
- ► SAP HANA performance is not required
- ▶ You have no need to transform or clean data

#### **SAP HANA Enterprise Information Management**

*SAP HANA smart data integration* (SDI) and *SAP HANA smart data quality* (SDQ) together are referred to as *SAP HANA Enterprise Information Management* (EIM). Both are optional SAP HANA components that you can purchase.

As shown in <u>Figure 14.22</u>, SDI and SDQ can work similarly to ELT (refer back to <u>Figure 14.3</u>).



Figure 14.22 Smart Data Integration and Smart Data Quality Modules in SAP HANA

Using various adapters, including SDA adapters, we can replicate or consume data into SAP HANA. Then, using SDQ capabilities, we can transform and clean that data.

#### **SAP HANA Smart Data Integration**

SDI can use various adapters to replicate, load, or consume data into SAP HANA.

Via SDA adapters, SDI can consume data from a large list of databases using virtual tables. SDI has some real-time adapters, for example, reading the database log files of source systems like Oracle, Microsoft SQL Server, and IBM DB2 databases. These same adapters can be used to read data from SAP systems like SAP ERP. SDI also has a real-time adapter for Twitter, as well as batch adapters for reading web services via OData and for reading data from Hadoop Hive.

The difference between the log-based adapters for SDI and SRS is that SDI is limited to SAP HANA as your target system for your data provisioning, whereas a standalone SRS system can have many target systems.

#### **SAP HANA Smart Data Quality**

SDQ has similar advantages as SAP Data Services for data cleaning and transformation, and you would choose it for the same reasons. It also provides complex transformations of your data. The data flows in SDQ use the hdbflowgraph features inside SAP HANA and therefore also use AFM. (We used this tool for predictive models in <u>Chapter 9</u>.) These data flows work differently than in SAP Data Services. You will therefore not be able to simply copy and paste your SAP Data Services data flows into SDQ.

SDQ is limited to SAP HANA as your target system for your data provisioning, whereas a standalone SAP Data Services system can have many target systems.

#### **Benefits of SAP HANA Enterprise Management**

Consider using SAP HANA EIM (SDI and SDQ) for your data provisioning needs when:

- An ELT tool is required
- Transformation of the data is required, such as when the data is not clean
- ▶ Real-time data provisioning might be a business requirement
- Replication of data is required, with later transformation of the data
- The only data provision target is SAP HANA

## **SAP HANA Smart Data Streaming**

*SAP HANA smart data streaming* (SDS) provides SAP HANA with the ability to observe, process, and analyze fast-moving data. This was previously a standalone product called Sybase Event Stream Processing (ESP). It is now part of SAP HANA and extends the capabilities of the SAP HANA platform with the addition of real-time event stream processing.

Just like SDI and SDQ, SDS is an optional SAP HANA component that you can purchase.

#### **Data Streaming**

Let's look at an example of why you might use data stream processing.

Say that you want to monitor some manufacturing equipment. Sensor data tells you the equipment temperature, but that data alone is not very interesting. If the equipment temperature is 90°C and the pressure is high, that might be normal. However, if the temperature is 180°C when the pressure is high, that could indicate a dangerous situation in which equipment could be blown apart, causing

accidents and manufacturing losses. You want to receive an alert before a situation becomes critical and to analyze the temperature and pressure trends over time and the relationship between these factors.

The temperature data is not important, and you do not want to store this data. The data, once exposed and processed, is no longer useful. You just want to find the trend, see the relationships between the data, and react when certain conditions are met within a certain time period.

Data streaming and the processing of such information is different than a single event, like a database trigger. Figure 14.23 illustrates the data streaming process.





Another example to illustrate the use of SDS is in stock trade. You can have many streams of financial data coming in at very high speeds. How do you react to these continual data streams in a short span of time? What do you react to? A single stock going down may not be a problem, but if many stock prices start going down quickly within a certain time window—say, five minutes—that could indicate a stock market crash. The single price values are of little importance. The important information is found in combining many trends and finding the trend in a certain time window.

The *Internet of Things* (IoT) is not in the future: It's already here. Millions of devices are now connected and delivering information. We even have lightbulbs with built-in Wi-Fi that can be controlled from an app on your smartphone. How do you take advantage of all the data that's available? How do you collect it and analyze it?

With SDS, you can not only analyze data streams but also store this data and perform deeper, wider analytics of it at a later stage. In this way, SDS and SAP HANA complement each other.

#### **Computation Continuous Language**

With SDS, you can define continuous queries on streaming data and specify how the system must react to these events (see Figure 14.24).



Figure 14.24 Example CCL Flow in Visual Editor for Smart Data Streaming

You can define streaming *projects*, which define input streams, continuous queries, and outputs. These projects are defined in the stream processing language called *Computation Continuous Language* (CCL). A streaming plug-in for SAP HANA studio provides both a CCL editor and a visual editor, along with testing tools. SDS uses AFM.

#### **Benefits of SDS**

Consider using SDS for your data provisioning needs when:

- ► You need to analyze real-time streaming data for events in a certain time window and react to the same
- ► Fast-moving data is observed, processed, and analyzed, but not stored
- Data is processed as-is: There is no data cleaning, but you have to find a signal in spite of the noisy data

# Flat Files or Microsoft Excel Datasheets

*Flat files* (also called *CSV files*) or *Microsoft Excel datasheets* are the simplest way to provision data to SAP HANA. Especially in proof-of-concept (POC) or sandbox testing projects, you can waste time connecting SAP HANA to the various source systems. You do not need the latest data; you just want to find out if an idea you have for information modeling will work.

As such, it makes sense to ask the business to provide you with the data in flat files, and then you can load the data into SAP HANA for the POC or sandbox development (see Figure 14.25).



Figure 14.25 Loading Data into SAP HANA from Text Files or Microsoft Excel Datasheets

Just watch out for security concerns. Many companies have a rule that data at rest (i.e., on disk) should be encrypted. In this case, security policies will prevent you from using this method.

Loading data files into SAP HANA is simple and quick. From the IMPORT menu, select DATA FROM LOCAL FILE (Figure 14.26). On the following screen, specify the file and where you want to import it to in SAP HANA.

If you are importing multiple files to the same database table—for example, 2014, 2015, and 2016 data files—you will be asked to map the data fields. The import process only allows a simple 1:1 mapping, as shown in <u>Figure 14.27</u>. This mapping is used if some of the fields in the data files are in a different order than the previously imported data files.

Select Import data from .csv,.xls,.xlsx files to local system Select an import source: Type filter text Select an import source: SAP HANA Select block of the text of text o	Import Import	_ 🗆 ×
Import data from .csv,.xls,.xlsx files to local system	Select	
Select an import source: Sype filter text  General  Gene	Import data from .csv,.xls,.xlsx files to local system	Ľ
type filter text         Image: General         Image: Seneral         Imag	Select an import source:	
General     G	type filter text	

#### Figure 14.26 Importing Data from a File Stored on Your Personal Computer

🖥 Import Data from Local File 📃								_ 🗆 ×		
Manage Table Definition and Data Mappings										
Manage table definition for new tables and source target column mappings										
Source File(VKORG_TEXTS.csv)	Source File(VKORG_TEXTS.csv) Target Table(SYSTEM.VKORG_TEXTS_43)									
Proposed Table Structure 📴 🔀		Store Type	Colum	in store		•			-	- +
Name		Name		DataType	L.	S. Key	N	D	Mapp	D
AB VKORG	·	🕨 🕨 🕨	KORG	NVARCHAR	4				VKOR	
AB VKORG_DESC		🕨 🕨 🕨	KORG_DE	NVARCHAR	10				VKOR	

Figure 14.27 Simple Mapping of Fields

Consider using data files for your data provisioning needs when:

- You only need to load the data once
- There is no connection available to the source systems
- You need simple and quick loading of data
- Data security is not a concern

## Web Services (OData and REST)

We won't discuss web services in detail in this text, but of course you can consume data from a source system that provides it via web services. You can consume these web services using the SAP HANA XS development environment inside SAP HANA.

The SAP HANA XS engine can consume OData and REST web services, as shown in <u>Figure 14.28</u>. The data is normally transferred in JavaScript Object Notation (JSON) format rather than XML format.



Figure 14.28 Data Provisioning via Web Services

Consider using web services for your data provisioning needs when the source systems only expose their data as *web services*. This is typical of *web and cloud applications*.

# **Important Terminology**

In this chapter, we cover the following important terms:

Data provisioning

Get data from a source system and provide that data to a target system.

```
▶ Extract, Transform, and Load (ETL)
```

The ETL process consists of the following phases:

• *Extraction*: Data is read from a source system. Traditional ETL tools can read many data sources, and most can also read data from SAP source systems.

- *Transform*: Data is transformed. Normally this means cleaning the data, but it can refer to any data manipulation.
- *Load*: Data is written into the target system.

#### Initial load

The process of making a full copy of data from the source system. If we require an entire table, we make a copy of the table in the target system.

#### Delta load

Look at the data that has changed and apply the data changes to the copy of the data in the target system. These data changes are referred to as the *delta*, and applying these changes to the target system is called a *delta load*.

#### SAP extractors

Reads data from a group of tables, and delivers the data as a single integrated data unit to the target system.

#### Open Database Connectivity (ODBC)

ODBC acts as a translation layer between an application and a database via an ODBC driver. Database queries are written using a standard API for accessing database information. The ODBC driver translates these queries to database-specific queries, making your database queries database and operating system independent. By changing the ODBC driver to that of another database and changing your connection information, your application will work with another database.

#### ► Java Database Connectivity (JDBC)

JDBC is similar to ODBC but specifically aimed at the Java programming language.

## Object Linking and Embedding, Database for Online Analytical Processing (ODBO)

ODBO provides an API for exchanging metadata and data between an application and an OLAP server (like a data warehouse using cubes). You can use this to connect Microsoft Excel to SAP HANA.

#### Multidimensional Expressions (MDX)

MDX is a query language for OLAP databases, similar to how SQL is a query language for relational (OLTP) databases. The MDX standard was adopted by a wide range of OLAP vendors, including SAP.

## Business Intelligence Consumer Services (BICS)

BICS is an SAP-proprietary database connection. It is a direct client connection that performs better and faster than MDX or SQL. Hierarchies are supported, negating the need for MDX in SAP environments. Because this is an SAP-only connection type, you can only use it between two SAP systems—for example, from an SAP reporting tool to SAP BW.

## SAP Data Services

Solution used to integrate, improve the quality of, profile, process, and deliver data.

## ► SAP LT Replication Server (SLT)

Uses replication to load data into SAP HANA. Remember that the focus of a replication server is to load data into the target system as fast as possible.

## SAP Replication Server (SRS)

Uses replication to load data into SAP HANA. SRS differs from SLT in that it uses the database log files for real-time replication. SRS reads these database log files to enable table replication. SRS replication is also known as *log-based replication*.

## SAP Direct Extractor Connection (DXC)

Uses extractors from SAP systems to load data into SAP HANA using the embedded SAP BW system in SAP NetWeaver Systems.

#### SAP HANA smart data access (SDA)

Provides SAP HANA with direct access to data in a remote database.

## SAP HANA smart data integration (SDI)

Uses various adapters to replicate, load, or consume data into SAP HANA.

# SAP HANA smart data quality (SDQ) Used to cleanse and enrich data persisted in the SAP HANA database.

## SAP HANA smart data streaming (SDS)

Allows you to observe, process, and analyze fast-moving data. You can create continuous projects in CCL to model streaming information. You can then issue continuous queries to analyze the data.
# Practice Questions

These practice questions will help you evaluate your understanding of the topic. The questions shown are similar in nature to those found on the certification examination. Although none of these questions will be found on the exam itself, they will allow you to review your knowledge of the subject. Select the correct answers and then check the completeness of your answers in the Practice Question Answers and Explanations section. Remember that on the exam you must select all correct answers and only correct answers to receive credit for the question.

- 1. Which of the following SAP data provisioning tools can provide real-time data provisioning? (There are 3 correct answers.)
- 🗆 A. SDI
- □ **B.** SAP Data Services
- $\Box$  **C.** SRS
- $\Box$  **D.** DXC
- 🗆 E. SLT
- 2. What is the correct sequence for loading data with SAP Data Services?
- □ A. Extract Load Transform
- □ **B.** Load Transform Extract
- □ C. Load Extract Transform
- □ **D.** Extract Transform Load
- 3. You are loading data into SAP HANA using DXC. Which of the following are executed in the embedded SAP BW system? (There are 3 correct answers.)
- □ **A.** InfoPackage
- □ **B.** Transformation
- □ **C.** Extractor
- **D.** Activation
- 🗆 E. IMDSO

- 4. Which of the following database terms are used when providing OLAP data with hierarchies? (There are 3 correct answers.)
- $\Box$  **A.** ODBC
- $\Box$  **B.** ODBO
- $\Box$  **C.** BICS
- D. JDBC
- $\Box$  **E.** MDX
- 5. Which of the following data provisioning tools can provide a delta load of a table from the source system?
- $\Box$  **A.** SDS
- □ **B.** SDA
- $\Box$  **C.** DXC
- $\Box$  **D.** Flat files
- 6. Which of the following data operations can you perform with SDA? (There are 3 correct answers.)
- □ **A.** Data federation
- □ **B.** Logical data warehouse
- □ **C.** Physical data warehouse
- D. Big data
- □ **E.** Real-time replication
- 7. You get the following requirements from a customer: They have a lot of purchasing data in their SAP system which they wish to analyze in SAP HANA. They want to have reports every morning showing the total expenditure per department. Their SAP BW developers have not yet had any SAP HANA training. Which data provisioning tool would you recommend?
- □ A. SLT
- □ **B.** SDA
- $\Box$  **C.** EIM
- $\Box$  **D.** DXC

- 8. You want to pause the SLT replication in SAP HANA studio. What do you select to achieve this?
- □ A. QUICK VIEW DATA PROVISIONING STOP
- □ **B.** QUICK VIEW IMPORT SELECTED IMPORT OF METADATA
- □ C. QUICK VIEW DATA PROVISIONING SUSPEND
- **D.** QUICK VIEW CONFIGURE IMPORT SERVER
- 9. Which programming language do you use for streaming projects?
- $\Box$  **A.** CCL
- □ **B.** JavaScript
- $\Box$  C. SQL
- **D.** SQLScript
- 10. You want to retrieve data from a web application. Which of the following could you use? (There are 3 correct answers.)
- 🗆 A. JSON
- □ **B.** REST
- $\Box$  **C.** JDBC
- $\Box$  **D.** BICS
- 🗆 E. OData
- 11. True or False: SAP Data Services can read all the SAP extractors.
- 🗆 A. True
- □ **B.** False
- 12. Why would you recommend SAP Replication Server?
- □ **A.** If the data contains some rubbish information in several places.
- □ **B.** If database administrators do not want triggers in their database.
- □ **C.** If the data is financial ticker tape data.
- $\Box$  **D.** If the source data is in a virtual table.

- 13. Which data provisioning tools can use SAP HANA adapters? (There are 2 correct answers.)
- $\Box$  **A.** SDA
- □ **B.** SDS
- □ C. SDI
- $\Box$  **D.** SRS
- 14. Which of the following data provisioning tools can you use to read data directly from Twitter? (There are 3 correct answers.)
- □ A. SRS
- □ **B.** SAP HANA XS engine
- □ **C.** SAP Data Services
- 🗆 D. SDI
- 🗆 E. SDA

# **Practice Question Answers and Explanations**

- Correct answers: A, C, E SDI, SRS, and SLT. Also see <u>Table 14.1</u> for a quick reference.
- 2. Correct answer: **D**

EXTRACT • TRANSFORM • LOAD. SAP Data Services is an ETL tool.

- Correct answers: A, B, D InfoPackage for scheduling the data provisioning, transformation, and activation. The in-memory DSO is in SAP HANA. The extractor is in the SAP source system (see <u>Figure 14.15</u>).
- 4. Correct answers: B, C, E ODBO (used with Microsoft Excel), BICS (used between SAP systems only), and MDX (query language for OLAP, like SQL is a query language for relational databases). See the Database Connections section.
- 5. Correct answer: C

DXC provides delta loads. SDS performs neither initial nor delta loads. SDA and flat files could only perform an initial load.

6. Correct answers: A, B, D

Data federation, logical data warehouse, and big data. SDA is not used to load data for a physical data warehouse because there is no delta load mechanism. SDA cannot perform real-time replication because there is no delta load mechanism.

7. Correct answer: D

DXC. The data is in an SAP system. "Their SAP BW developers" implies that they know SAP BW well. They want to do minimal modeling in SAP HANA because they do not know it very well yet. A report with total expenditure per department is a simple aggregation report in SAP HANA, provided all the data is in a single unit—which DXC provides.

8. Correct answer: A

QUICK VIEW • DATA PROVISIONING. STOP will permanently stop the replication. The other two answers are not valid. Note that the two invalid answers do exist in the system. In the SAP HANA certification exams, all answer options have to exist in the system.

9. Correct answer: A

CCL. See the Computation Continuous Language section.

10. Correct answers: A, B, E

JSON, REST, and OData are all associated with web services (see the Web Services (OData and REST) section).

Web applications (in the cloud or on the Internet) do not allow JDBC database connections.

Web applications are not necessarily SAP systems that understand BICS. Again, a web application will not allow database connections via the Internet for security reasons.

11. Correct answer: **B** 

False. SAP Data Services cannot read all the SAP extractors (see Figure 14.7).

12. Correct answer: B

Database administrators do not want triggers in their database. This means that you cannot use SLT, so SRS is an option. If the data contains some rubbish information, it will need cleaning, and you will want to use SAP Data Services or SDQ. Financial ticker tape data means that this is streaming data, so use SDS. If the data is a pool table, then you should use SLT (or possibly SAP Data Services; look back at one of the previous questions). 13. Correct answers: A, C

SDA and SDI use the SDA adapters. To use the built-in adapters, the data provisioning tools also have to be built in. SDS reads streaming data, but not by using the adapters. SRS reads database log files. Even though SDI can use logbased adapters, SRS does not use these because SRS is not built into SAP HANA.

14. Correct answers: B, C, D

Twitter does have web services. This is not specified in the book, so in the actual exam this option would not appear because it makes too many assumptions. For the purposes of this book, we assumed that everyone knows what Twitter is and that it has web services. SAP Data Services can read social media feeds. Refer to the Extracting Data section. SDI has a Twitter adapter. See the SAP HANA Smart Data Integration section.

# Takeaway

You should now have a high-level understanding of the various SAP data provisioning tools available for getting data into an SAP HANA system and what each one does.

When asked to recommend an SAP data provisioning tool during a project, you can use <u>Table 14.1</u> as a quick reference.

Business Requirement	Data Provisioning Tool
Real-time replication	SLT, SRS, or SDI
ETL, data cleaning	SAP Data Services or SDQ
Extractors	SAP Data Services or DXC
Streaming data	SAP ESP or SDS
Federation, big data	SDA
POC, dev, testing	Flat files or Microsoft Excel datasheets

 Table 14.1
 Choosing a Data Provisioning Tool

# Summary

You've learned the various data provisioning concepts and looked at the different SAP data provisioning tools available in the context of SAP HANA. They all have their own strengths, and you now know when to use the various tools.

In this chapter, we looked at how to get data into SAP HANA. In the next chapter, we will do the opposite—that is, get data out of SAP HANA.

# Utilization of Information Models

# Techniques You'll Master

- Get insight into business intelligence concepts
- Understand the strategic direction of SAP business intelligence tools
- Differentiate between authors and consumers of business information
- Learn about the different SAP business intelligence tools
- Get to know the characteristics and high-level features of some business intelligence tools
- Identify when to use which SAP business intelligence tool
- Discover alternatives for providing information from SAP HANA to business users

This chapter is the last step to making your SAP HANA information models useful to people and businesses. In your work, you need to find ways to present the right information to the right people, at the right time, in the right way. You need to help end users with their responsibilities, analysts and decision makers to find new and innovative ways to grow their businesses into new areas, and executives to achieve their vision.

The focus of this chapter is business intelligence and how it relates to SAP HANA. Each of the SAP business intelligence tools have dedicated training courses, and there are specialists in each of the analytics topics. The objective of this chapter, and this particular portion of the exam, is therefore not to dive into all the deep details of the various tools. Rather, we aim to give you high-level working knowledge of what each tool does, present the concepts involved when consuming data from SAP HANA, and help you decide which tools are right for your particular business requirements.

### **Real-World Scenario**

You are working on an SAP HANA information modeling project and have created a few calculation views for a new business process.

In SAP HANA studio, you used the OPEN DATA PREVIEW feature to give managers an idea of what information they can expect from the calculation views. They like what they see, and want to deploy this solution to the users in the business. They ask you which business intelligence tool they should use.

You know that business needs are just as important as the technical capabilities of each tool and ask relevant questions in light of this fact. After evaluating business and technical requirements, you recommend the right business intelligence tool for the circumstances.

# **Objectives of this Portion of the Test**

The objective of this section of the SAP HANA certification is to test your highlevel understanding of the various methods available to present information from an SAP HANA system to business users. The certification exam expects you to have a good understanding of the following topics:

- General concepts of business intelligence for consumers of SAP HANA information models.
- List the connectivity methods for the business intelligence tools.
- Different SAP business intelligence tools.
- Characteristics and high-level features of the various business intelligence tools.
- When to use a particular SAP business intelligence tool with SAP HANA.
- Alternatives for providing information from SAP HANA to business users.

#### Note

This portion contributes up to 5% of the total certification exam score.

# **Key Concepts Refresher**

In <u>Chapter 14</u>, we discussed how to provide data to SAP HANA systems. We started with the overview diagram shown in <u>Figure 14.1</u>, which we said could be viewed as a summary of the entire book.

We are now at the last step in the modeling process, in which you present your SAP HANA information models to the world!

#### Тір

It will be useful to take another look at the Database Connections section in <u>Chapter 14</u>, which we will build on in this chapter.

Let's start by looking at *reporting* and the evolution of business intelligence.

### **Business Intelligence Concepts**

If you worked with data and modeling in the 1990s, you might have used something like Microsoft Visual Basic or Borland Delphi. Back then, you created reports for end users via reporting tool like Crystal Reports, which was one of the most-used reporting tools of the era. Another tool that financial people and engineers often used was Microsoft Excel. Both these tools surprisingly are still in use today and are discussed in this chapter.

*Reports* mostly consisted of thousands of lines of transactional line items, printed out on reams of papers. To make sense of all this data, you need to see the patterns or exceptions in all that text and form a mental picture. Over time, reporting tools improved and allowed you to embed simple graphs. You could develop more complex reports that resembled tax forms, with lots of blocks and lines. Instead of filling in these forms with a pen, they were populated from a database and then printed. (Workflows were still largely paper based.)

During those days, you needed programming skills to use reporting tools, as well as a working knowledge of databases. Reports were therefore developed by IT and were quite prescriptive. Developing these reports took time, and they could not be changed easily. Because running these reports was time-consuming, they were scheduled to be run and printed at night. Each morning, you would find your printed reports on your desk.

Business Objects acquired Crystal Reports from Seagate in 2003, and SAP acquired Business Objects in 2007. Today, we still have SAP Crystal Reports, albeit a largely improved version. However, this is no longer the only reporting tool available.

We have moved from simple reporting to the concept of business intelligence, which includes powerful analytics, data mining, and data science. "Reporting" as we once knew it is now merely a subsection of a much wider topic. We have moved from paper-based forms and workflows to web-based options and mobile consumption, and we now have the tools to enable it all.

In this chapter, we will only focus on the tools that are relevant for SAP HANA. Most of the tools are generic tools; that is, they are not specific to SAP HANA alone. Therein lies some of the complexity when choosing the right tool for the job!

*Business intelligence* can be described as taking raw (transactional) business data and transforming it into useful information for the purpose of business analysis. Building information models in SAP HANA can be seen as part of this process. We enable people to process large volumes of data to find new opportunities based on insights gained from our information models. Hopefully, this can provide businesses with a competitive market advantage and long-term sustainability.

Business intelligence can consist of the following:

- *Reporting* of historical and current information. We described reporting in the previous section. A *report* is a document that can contain information organized in a tabular or a graphical format.
- ► *Analytics*, through which we discover meaningful patterns in data and use visualization techniques to promote insight.
- *Complex event processing*, such as SAP HANA smart data streaming (SDS).
- ▶ *Predictive analytics*, through which we attempt to forecast what will happen.
- Prescriptive analytics, through which a business acts on predictive analytics for example, by replacing a part in a machine before it breaks, because the predictive analytics indicate a high chance of the part breaking soon.
- Text mining, data mining, and process mining.
- ► *OLAP*—that is, SAP BW systems and data warehouses can be seen as a subsection of business intelligence.

#### **Convergence of SAP's Business Intelligence Tools**

Over the years, SAP has collected and developed a large number of business intelligence tools. Some were added when SAP acquired Business Objects. Others were business intelligence tools developed for use with SAP Business Warehouse (BW). Others are new tools recently developed to make use of SAP HANA or to add new business intelligence features, such as visualization and predictive analysis.

The middle column of <u>Table 15.1</u> shows a list of the available SAP business intelligence tools: There are 15 tools listed! SAP realized that this list is too long and decided to trim it to just five, which are shown in the right column. SAP calls this the *convergence* of its business intelligence tools.

Convergence of SAP BI Tools							
Office Integration	<ul> <li>SAP BusinessObjects Analysis, edition for Microsoft Office (Analysis Office)</li> <li>Live Office</li> <li>EPM Add-In</li> <li>BEX Analyzer</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>SAP BusinessObjects Analysis, edition for Microsoft Office (Analysis Office)</li> </ul>					
Applications and Dashboards	<ul> <li>SAP BusinessObjects Design Studio</li> <li>SAP BusinessObjects Dash- boards</li> <li>SAP BusinessObjects Analy- sis, edition for online analy- tical processing (Analysis OLAP)</li> <li>BEX Web Application Designer</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>SAP BusinessObjects Design Studio</li> </ul>					
Data Discovery	<ul> <li>SAP Lumira Desktop</li> <li>SAP Lumira Server</li> <li>Set Analysis</li> <li>SAP BusinessObjects Explorer</li> </ul>	► SAP Lumira					
Reporting	<ul> <li>SAP Crystal Reports</li> <li>SAP BusinessObjects Web Intelligence</li> <li>SAP BusinessObjects Desk- top Intelligence</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>SAP Crystal Reports</li> <li>SAP BusinessObjects Web Intelligence</li> </ul>					

 Table 15.1
 Convergence of SAP Business Intelligence Tools

SAP split the list of tools into four types, grouped by use cases rather than by features and functions. For each category (shown in the left column of <u>Table 15.1</u>), SAP selected only one or two business intelligence tools that will be actively developed and improved going forward. The tools not on this list will *converge* into the selected SAP business intelligence tool(s) for each category. These older tools will not stop working or disappear; they will still be maintained and supported, but they will not continue to be developed.

SAP also will not force people to migrate to the new, shorter list of tools. Because many of the tools have been in use for more than 20 years, it is not a simple matter to just "kill" the old products. Millions of reports are still running daily using these old tools. Such large-scale migrations are not feasible.

SAP recommends that all new projects should preferably use the list of SAP business intelligence tools in the right column. All the unique features might not yet be available in these five SAP BI tools, but they will be included over time.

The selected SAP business intelligence tools for each of the four content types are as follows:

#### Microsoft Office integration

The SAP reporting tool going forward is SAP BusinessObjects Analysis, edition for Microsoft Office. This tool runs as a Microsoft Office plug-in.

#### Applications and dashboards

SAP BusinessObjects Design Studio is a relatively young tool for creating dashboards and web applications.

#### Data discovery

SAP Lumira is also a young tool, one that integrates very well with SAP HANA. It is strong with visualization and working with all different kinds of information. It is an easy tool to learn, so end users can quickly create impressive results.

#### Reporting

The tools selected here are SAP BusinessObjects Web Intelligence and SAP Crystal Reports.

All five of the selected tools work well together, so you can publish results from one tool and consume it in another.

You should focus mainly on these five SAP business intelligence tools. SAP Business Explorer (BEx) tools are specifically for SAP BW and will not be discussed in this chapter.

#### **Creators and Consumers**

*Creators* use SAP's business intelligence tools to build models, reports, and analytics. *Consumers* use the same tools, but only to view the results. The dividing line is not always clear. It can be blurred with power users, who do a bit of both.

Тір

What is important here is that all of these people use the same business intelligence tools; they just use them in totally different ways. How each group uses these tools factors into deciding which tool to use.

#### **Professionally Authored and Self-Service**

Because people use these business intelligence tools differently, it is easy to see that some tools suit one group of people more, and other tools suit another group more.

Some SAP business intelligence tools suit an approach called *professionally authored*. These types of tools expect IT folks, creators, analysts, data scientists, and power users to be the creators and designers. Other tools suit a more relaxed approach. They make it easy for average end users, decision makers, and power users to find, discover, visualize, and consume information. This is the *self-service* approach.



#### Note

You can use the same tools with either approach. Some tools just seem to encourage a certain approach, as we will discuss when we look at individual tools.

There is also a group that lies in between these approaches. This group includes analysts who author business intelligence content for their own use or for use within their department or line of business (LOB).

These different groups are shown in <u>Figure 15.1</u>, which nearly summarizes the entire chapter. By looking at the usage patterns, the types of users, and the business intelligence tool categories, you can start to make a decision about which tool to use.



Figure 15.1 Four Types of SAP Business Intelligence Tools and Three Types of Users

#### **Trusted Data**

The concept of *professionally authored* is associated with a concept called *trusted data*. SAP BusinessObjects Design Studio is an example of a trusted visualization and dashboard creation tool. With these types of tools, you are restricted to trusted data sources, such as universes, BEx queries, and SAP HANA views. These data sources are seen as "trusted" because they are managed and governed by IT. Although SAP BusinessObjects Design Studio leans towards creating professionally authored dashboards and applications, it is specifically focused to consume trusted data sources. It does not even allow you to connect to some types of data sources. SAP Lumira, on the other hand, allows you to be as open and free for your data discovery needs and allows you to connect it to a large variety of information sources.

#### **SAP Cloud for Analytics**

In all areas of SAP, there is an emphasis on making sure products also work in the cloud. We have seen that even SAP HANA has cloud deployment (see the Cloud Deployments section in <u>Chapter 3</u>), and SAP business intelligence tools are

no exception. SAP created a new cloud product offering called *SAP Cloud for Analytics*, which provides analytics functionality on SAP HANA Cloud Platform (HCP).

In this chapter, we will focus our attention on the on-premise SAP business intelligence tools. This does not mean that we will completely ignore the cloud; for example, you can publish directly from SAP Lumira, an on-premise SAP BI tool, to the cloud.

# **Business Intelligence Tools for Microsoft Office Integration**

Tools that integrate with parts of Microsoft Office fall within this section as they relate to SAP HANA. They mostly focus on Microsoft Excel but can also use Microsoft PowerPoint.

The convergence of the SAP's business intelligence tools means that we will not pay any attention in this chapter to Microsoft Live Office, the EPM Add-In, or the BEx Analyzer.

We'll look at two tools specifically: Microsoft Excel; and SAP BusinessObjects Analysis, edition for Microsoft Office (occasionally referred to as Analysis Office).



Note

The official name is SAP BusinessObjects Analysis, edition for Microsoft Office. Analysis Office is not an official abbreviation, but we have seen it used in several publicly available SAP slide sets and published YouTube videos. You will also find it commonly used in online forms, such as those at SAP Community Network (SCN).

In the certification exam, the official name of an SAP product is always used. Sometimes, the exam will display the abbreviated name as well—for example, SAP HANA smart data access (SDA).

#### **Microsoft Excel**

Let's start with Microsoft Excel, which is obviously not an SAP tool, but has probably been the most widely used and best-known business intelligence tool available for more than 30 years. As much as financial and engineering departments love Microsoft Excel, many IT departments hate it. The difference lies in their approach to the same tool. People with a self-service approach love it, whereas people with a professionally authored approach hate it. IT does not control and manage it, so it is seen as "unprofessional."

#### Fact Sheet

<u>Figure 15.2</u> presents many useful facts about Microsoft Excel. We will use Microsoft Excel as an example to describe the layout of the fact sheet. We use this same layout to help you learn the features for each of the SAP business intelligence tools that we discuss in this chapter. The features presented in the fact sheets were selected to help you choose the correct tools when consuming your SAP HANA information models.

	Microsoft Excel								
	BI tool			SAP HANA database connection					
$\bigstar$	BI tool broad category	Self-service			Database connection	ODBO			
	BI tool content type	Office Integration			Query language	MDX			
	Main keywords	Excel, MDX, ODBO		Coding in the BI tool					
	Users				Scripting (Microsoft Exce	el)	Ø		
8	Who creates content?	Self-Service (Analyst)							
8	Who consumes it?	LOB, Department							
	•								

#### Figure 15.2 Microsoft Excel Fact Sheet

Let's start at the top left of the fact sheet. Microsoft Excel is a self-service business intelligence tool and falls into the Office Integration category because it is actually a part of Microsoft Office. What do we learn from this?

- Because it is a self-service tool, this tells us that the users are self-service users or analysts, who consume it themselves or in their department. (Look again at <u>Figure 15.1</u>.)
- ► Because it falls into the Microsoft Office integration category, we know that the tool environment is Excel-based. Other business intelligence tools can, for example, be Eclipse-based or web-based. The end user also consumes the

content created with this business intelligence tool in Microsoft Excel, either on their desktops or their tablets with the Microsoft Excel mobile app. Other end user consumption environments include dashboards, web applications, printed reports, web pages, or mobile apps.

Microsoft Excel uses the ODBO driver to connect to SAP HANA. It is the only business intelligence tool that uses this driver. The ODBO driver implies that it uses MDX, which means it can read cubes. This means that Microsoft Excel is able to consume SAP HANA analytic and calculation cube views. By knowing that ODBO uses MDX and that MDX reads cubes, you just have to remember that Microsoft Excel uses ODBO.

### Using Microsoft Excel with SAP HANA

Microsoft Excel is the ultimate self-service business intelligence tool. However, despite all its flexibility, it is also easy to use it "incorrectly." If you import 700,000 records into Microsoft Excel and then build a pivot table on that data, you are not using Excel in the best possible way. If you use it that way, you use Microsoft Excel as a database—and it is not meant to be a database. You are also straining the network while transferring that much data.

A better way to use Microsoft Excel is to connect it to SAP HANA, as shown in <u>Figure 15.3</u>. You can then build the pivot table directly on the SAP HANA view. In this case, SAP HANA performs all the calculations, and Microsoft Excel displays the results. The 700,000 records stay in SAP HANA, and the minimum amount of data is transferred via the network. SAP HANA usually also uses less memory and thus is faster.

The best way to test if you are using business intelligence tools correctly is to ask, will it work on a mobile device, like a tablet? If you load 700,000 records into Microsoft Excel, it will not work on your tablet. The tablet simply does not have enough memory, and your mobile data costs will be high. With the "correct" way, on the other hand, you could probably get this setup working on the mobile app version of Microsoft Excel if you had the correct driver installed.

An added benefit is that your reports and analytics become interactive; for example, drilldowns are easy to implement.



#### A pivot table with SAP HANA data. All calculations are done by SAP HANA.



#### Figure 15.3 Use SAP HANA Information Models with Hierarchies in Pivot Table

#### SAP BusinessObjects Analysis, Edition for Microsoft Office

SAP BusinessObjects Analysis, edition for Microsoft Office consists of plug-in tools for Microsoft Excel and Microsoft PowerPoint and therefore is a Microsoft Office integration type of business intelligence tool. The main user group for this is analysts, as the product name indicates.

Like Microsoft Excel, SAP BusinessObjects Analysis, edition for Microsoft Office is a self-service business intelligence tool. In this case, however, the focus is on working with trusted data (see <u>Figure 15.4</u>).

	SAP BusinessObjects Analysis, edition for Microsoft Office (Analysis Office)								
	BI tool			SAP HANA database connection					
$\bigstar$	BI tool broad category	Self-service			Database connection	BICS, using ODI	ВС		
	BI tool content type	Office Integration			Query language	BICS, SQL			
	Main keywords	Excel plug-in, Free- format, Analysis	ĺ	Coding in the BI tool					
	Users				Scripting (Microsoft Exce	1)	Ø		
8	Who creates content?	Analyst, Power user							
8	Who consumes it?	LOB, Department							
	Main keywords     Excel plug-in, Free-format, Analysis       Users     Users       Who creates content?     Analyst, Power user       Who consumes it?     LOB, Department				Coding in the E	l)			

Figure 15.4 SAP BusinessObjects Analysis, Edition for Microsoft Office Fact Sheet

Because SAP BusinessObjects Analysis, edition for Microsoft Office focuses on trusted OLAP data sources and is an SAP business intelligence tool, the preferred BICS connection is expected.

<u>Figure 15.5</u> provides a snapshot of SAP BusinessObjects Analysis, edition for Microsoft Office.

	🔒 10 v (11 v	<del>-</del>						8	iook1 - Mic	rosoft Excel						
F	le Home	Insert	Page Layout	Formulas E	Data Revie	w View	Live Of	fice Ar	alysis	EPM Data	Manager					ద 🕜 🗖 🖓 🛙
Inse So	it Data Refresh urce - All - Data Sour	Create Reload Add ~ ce	Medo - Messages Actions	Prompts Filter	Sort Hierar Data Analysis	thy Calculati	ons M D To D	embers * easures * itals * isplay	Condition Formatting	al New Fo g Cells * Ce Formi	mat IIs *	stab = s =	Insert Info Filter Chart + Field - Chart Chart Chart Component	Convert to Lau Formula D	nch Query esigner Tools	Display Design Pause Design Panel
	A1	- (	∫x 'PF	RODUCT_CATEG	GORY											~
	А		В	С	D	E	F	G	н	1	J	-	Analysis			+ ×
1	PRODUCT_C/	TEGORY	NETAMOUNT	TAXAMOUNT	QUANTITY								Find			× AA
2	Beamer		246,176.00	46,773.44	344.00											
3	Electronics		312,499.24	59,375.24	596.00								Data Source		[]]] Columns	
4	Flat screens		742,656.00	141,104.64	1,044.00								PURCHASE_OVERVIEW		Measures	
5	Flat-screen te	levision	566,740.00	107,680.60	460.00							- 1			- NETAMOUNT	
6	Graphic cards		47,047.60	8,939.24	668.00							- 1	COMPANYNAME		OLIANTITY	
7	Handheld		481,024.00	91,394.56	552.00							- 1	H LURKENUT			
8	Handhelds		56,884.00	10,807.96	204.00							- 1	E LIFECYCLESTATUS			
9	Hardware		6,216.00	1,181.04	148.00							- 1				
10	Headset		47,360.00	8,998.40	408.00							- 1				
11	High Tech		1,890.00	359.88	596.00							- 11	■ PRODUCT_DESCRIPTION     ■			
12	Ink jet printer	s	49,048.00	9,319.12	352.00							- 1	E PRODUCT_NAME			
13	Input device		19,760.00	3,754.40	76.00							- 1			Rows	17
14	Keyboards		6,008.00	1,141.52	292.00							- 1		JRE	E-PRODUCT_CATEGORY	
15	Laser printers		168,760.00	32,064.40	304.00							- 1			L. All Members Select	ed
16	MP3-Player		89,336.00	16,973.84	552.00							- 1	PRODUCTID			
17	Mice		3,872.00	735.68	464.00							- 1	PRODUCTPICURL     PRODUCTPICURL     PRODUCTPICURL			
18	Multi function	printers	39,168.00	7,441.92	352.00							-=	PURCHASEORDERITEM			
19	Notebooks		1,458,552.00	277,124.88	984.00							- 1				
20	Others		36,758.72	6,983.92	1,120.00							- 1	SUPPLIER_BUILDING     ■			
21	PC		875,004.00	166,250.76	540.00							- 1	SUPPLIER_CITY     SUP			
22	Scanner		96,124.00	25,043.50	240.00							- 1	E SUPPLIER_COUNTRY			
23	Scanner and F	rinter	131,912.00	23,063.20	720.00							-	E SUPPLIER POSTALCODE		L	
24	Speakerr	_	13 520 00	2 568 80	376.00										🙄 Background Filter	
20	Workstation o	ncemble	8.320.000.00	1.580.800.00	552.00								SUPPLIER_STREET     SUPPLIER     SUPPLIER_STREET     SUPPLIER     SUPPL			
27	Total Result	inseringie	13.864.476.76	2,634,251,44	12.040.00											
28	rotar Acsure			-,,-												
												_				

**Figure 15.5** SAP BusinessObjects Analysis, Edition for Microsoft Office Microsoft Excel Plug-In

On the top of the screen, notice that there is a new menu option and ribbon bar available inside Microsoft Excel after you've installed the plug-in. The ANALYSIS screen on the right looks very similar to the pivot table that Microsoft Excel users are accustomed to.

# **Business Intelligence Tools for Applications and Dashboards**

SAP business intelligence tools for applications and dashboards are used for tasks such as creating dashboards for executives and decision makers and web applications for end users. This category of tools focuses on professionally authored results for trusted data.

We will look at SAP BusinessObjects Design Studio in this section. The other SAP business intelligence tools in this category will converge to SAP BusinessObjects Design Studio, which is the main tool in the applications and dashboards category.

SAP BusinessObjects Design Studio is used to create dashboards, OLAP web applications, and guided analytics. It features native (direct) connections to SAP BW and SAP HANA.

SAP BusinessObjects Design Studio concentrates on trusted data, and therefore uses BICS connectivity. The SAP BusinessObjects fact sheet is shown in <u>Figure 15.6</u>.

SAP BusinessObjects Design Studio								
	BI tool			SAP HANA database connection				
	BI tool broad category	Professionally authored			Database connection	BICS, using JDBC		
	BI tool content type	Applications and Dashboards			Query language	SQL		
0	Mainkeywords	Dashboard, Application, Scripting		Coding in the BI tool				
Users					Scripting (JavaScript)			
8	Who creates content?	IT, Analyst, Power User						
8	Who consumes it?	Executive, Decision maker, End-user						

Figure 15.6 SAP BusinessObjects Design Studio Fact Sheet

SAP BusinessObjects Design Studio was built with mobility in mind, so it features both Apple iPad support and an HTML5 user interface.

SAP BusinessObjects Design Studio falls into the professionally authored category, in which analytic content is centrally governed. It tends to be more of a developer's tool, so some knowledge of JavaScript is required to get the most out of it. In addition, it draws a strong distinction between creators and consumers. The creators are normally IT professionals, and the consumers are normally executives and decision makers. Remember that these lines between creators and consumers can blur; for example, a CIO is the executive in charge of IT.

SAP BusinessObjects Design Studio has an Eclipse-based what you see is what you get (WYSIWYG) design environment, as shown in <u>Figure 15.7</u>.



Figure 15.7 Designing a Dashboard in SAP BusinessObjects Design Studio

### **Business Intelligence Tools for Data Discovery**

SAP's business intelligence tools for data discovery focus on self-service and visualization. These tools are easy to learn and have a wide audience. They also connect to more data sources than other business intelligence tools that focus on trusted data only.

SAP's business intelligence tools in this category will converge to SAP Lumira. We will look at two SAP BI tools: SAP Lumira and SAP Predictive Analytics, which runs on SAP Lumira.

#### SAP Lumira

SAP Lumira is a comparatively new tool for the self-service and visualization of analytics. It was designed with SAP HANA in mind, so it leverages SAP HANA features to deliver fast results.

SAP Lumira had separate desktop, server, and cloud versions, but these are now converging into a new version of SAP Lumira. The new SAP Lumira integrates with SAP Cloud for Analytics. It is also easy to consume SAP Lumira content on mobile devices via the SAP BusinessObjects BI Mobile app.

SAP Lumira is well suited for ad hoc types of analytics; you can view and visualize any type of data in the way you like with minimal effort. In contrast to SAP BusinessObjects Design Studio, it does not focus only on trusted data; SAP Lumira connects to all the SAP HANA information models, like dimension views and OLAP views (see Figure 15.8).

	SAP Lumira								
	BI tool			SAP HANA database connection					
$\bigstar$	BI tool broad category	Self-Service			Database connection	JDBC			
	BI tool content type	Data Discovery			Query language	SQL			
	Main keywords	Visualization, Self- service, Storyboards		Coding in the BI tool					
	Users				Scripting				
2	Who creates content?	Analyst, Power user							
8	Who consumes it?	Executive, Decision maker, End-user							

Figure 15.8 SAP Lumira Fact Sheet

<u>Figure 15.9</u> shows the visualization options available in SAP Lumira. Here, you can see information from the SAP HANA Interactive Education (SHINE) procurement views displayed on a geo cloropleth map. On a *cloropleth* map, the countries that sold more products are a darker green color than the countries that sold less.



Figure 15.9 Data from SAP HANA Information Model on Geo Cloropleth Chart

You can combine multiple graphs (see <u>Figure 15.10</u>) or tables with information to create storyboards in SAP Lumira. You can then publish these storyboards to the web or to the cloud.

For more information on features such as infographics that are updated in real time and Smart Bus Cockpits, go to *http://help.sap.com/lumira*. You can download SAP Lumira at *http://www.saplumira.com*.

#### **SAP Predictive Analytics**

SAP Predictive Analytics is based on SAP Lumira technology. It is a combination of SAP Lumira and two older products: SAP Predictive Analytics and SAP InfiniteInsight.



Figure 15.10 SAP Lumira Storyboard

SAP Predictive Analytics' features are similar to those of SAP Lumira. However, a large amount of extra functionality is available for this product, especially for data scientists, a very small group of people that will use this functionality. Self-service tools like SAP Lumira cater to about 97% of the business intelligence audience. Designers of tools that create professionally authored content are about 3% of the business intelligence audience. Data scientists are perhaps only 0.01% of the audience.

You can use SAP Predictive Analytics to build predictive models, which can use an automated predictive library. Data scientists can also use the advanced features of SAP Predictive Analytics to integrate their own R language code, for example.

An example of how to use predictive models is to analyze the "churn" of banking customers. By looking at all the customers' transactions and historical data, predictive models can be taught to identify when banking customers are likely to change to another bank. A personal banker can then get an alert to contact the customer and fix any issues before they leave the bank.

Executives and decision makers generally will not use predictive models, but they will be able to act on the results of these models.

# **Business Intelligence Tools for Reporting**

In this section, we will look at two SAP business intelligence tools in the reporting category: SAP BusinessObjects Web Intelligence and SAP Crystal Reports.

#### SAP BusinessObjects Web Intelligence

SAP BusinessObjects Web Intelligence, popularly called Webi, is one of the most popular SAP business intelligence tools because it is easy to work with, yet powerful and fast enough to get the job done. You might hear SAP business intelligence people say, "When in doubt, use WebI." See <u>Figure 15.11</u>.



Figure 15.11 SAP BusinessObjects Web Intelligence Fact Sheet

SAP BusinessObjects Web Intelligence is useful for many users and can be used for both self-service purposes and professionally authored reports. It was one of the first self-service style business intelligence tools from SAP. Because self-service BI tools allow users to use most business intelligence information sources, SAP BusinessObjects Web Intelligence can use all the SAP HANA tables and views.

End users can consume SAP intelligence reports using the mobile app or via a browser.

#### **SAP Crystal Reports**

We mentioned SAP Crystal Reports in the Business Intelligence Concepts section earlier in this chapter. In this section, we'll dive deeper into the product details. There are two versions of SAP Crystal Reports to note: SAP Crystal Reports for Enterprise and SAP Crystal Reports 2011/2013. In this section we will specifically look at SAP Crystal Reports for Enterprise.

SAP Crystal Reports for Enterprise is used to create reports, which often have the exact specifications and look of the existing paper forms. The term "pixel-perfect" describes this requirement. It focuses on professionally authored reports, which can be viewed on desktops, browsers, and offline. <u>Figure 15.12</u> shows the fact sheet.

SAP Crystal Reports for Enterprise can use a wide variety of data sources, including SAP HANA tables and views.

	SAP Crystal Reports for Enterprise									
		BI tool			SAP HANA database connection					
	${\star}$	BI tool broad category	Professionally authored			Database connection	ODBC, JDBC			
	<u>I.</u>	BI tool content type	Reporting			Query language	SQL, MDX			
		Mainkeywords	Pixel-perfect, Line-item, Reporting		Coding in the BI tool					
Γ	Users					Scripting				
	8	Who creates content?	IT, Developer, Power user							
	8	Who consumes it?	End-user							

Figure 15.12 SAP Crystal Reports for Enterprise Fact Sheet

# **Choosing the Right Business Intelligence Tool**

You should now have a high-level understanding of the various SAP business intelligence tools available and what each one does. When asked to recommend an SAP business intelligence tool on a project, you can use <u>Table 15.2</u> as a quick reference.

SAP Business Intelligence Tool
SAP BusinessObjects Analysis, edition for Microsoft Office
SAP BusinessObjects Design Studio
SAP BusinessObjects Design Studio
SAP BusinessObjects Web Intelligence or SAP Crystal Reports
SAP Lumira or SAP BusinessObjects Web Intelligence
SAP BusinessObjects Design Studio or SAP Crystal Reports
SAP BusinessObjects Analysis or SAP BusinessObjects Design Studio
SAP Lumira, SAP BusinessObjects Web Intelligence, or SAP Crystal Reports
SAP BusinessObjects Analysis, edition for Microsoft Office and SAP BusinessObjects Design Studio
Microsoft Excel and SAP Crystal Reports for Enterprise

#### Table 15.2 SAP Business Intelligence Tool Options

See if you can expand this table. What SAP business intelligence tool would analysts use? Which would you recommend for trend analysis?

# **Alternative Consumption Methods for SAP HANA**

To this point, we have only discussed which business intelligence tools you can use to consume SAP HANA information models—but SAP HANA views can also be used in many other ways to show business information.

#### **SAP HANA Studio Preview**

Another way that we can view information created by SAP HANA views is with the Data Preview feature in SAP HANA studio or the SAP HANA web-based development workbench. We discussed this feature in <u>Chapter 5</u> in the Data Preview and Catalog Area sections (see <u>Figure 5.5</u> and <u>Figure 5.18</u>).

In the Data Preview of SAP HANA studio, you can show raw data, apply filters to data, show distinct values, and analyze data. We hinted at this way of consuming SAP HANA information in the real-world scenario presented at the start of the chapter.

#### Using SAP HANA Information Models in SAP HANA XS

In <u>Chapter 3</u>, in the SAP HANA as a Platform section, we discussed the SAP HANA Extended Application Services (XS) component that is built into SAP HANA. SAP HANA is more than just a database. Although the primary focus of both this book and the exam are modeling, there is also another capability that makes SAP HANA invaluable: developing custom web applications using information models, OData and REST services, and the SAPUI5 framework. This method of development is also known as Model-View-Controller (MVC).

The following looks at the three layers used in MVC:

Models

The types of models are same SAP HANA information models that we have created in this book—for example, calculation views. You can also create the models in SQLScript.

### Controllers

Controllers are the "glue" holding models and views together. You can use OData or REST services with XSJS (XS JavaScript) to expose SAP HANA information models as web services. These web services consume the information in information models—provided of course that the end users have the necessary authorizations. The information gathered by the controllers is sent to the views using the normal HTTP protocol used by the web. The OData or REST web services are available to the web and can be used via RESTful HTTP commands such as GET, PUT, POST, and DELETE. The data is sent to the SAPUI5 views in either XML or JavaScript Object Notation (JSON) format. Controllers are written with server-side JavaScript.

#### SAPUI5 views

These are not the same as calculation views in SAP HANA; they refer to the HTML5 screens displayed in the web browser. SAPUI5 uses client-side Java-Script.

Note the differences in where the JavaScript runs. For controllers, the Java-Script runs on the SAP HANA server. The views are displayed in the browser, so the JavaScript code runs inside the browser on the end user's device.

#### **Further Information**

The SAP HA450 training course and the free openSAP training courses on SAP HANA development go into more details on this topic.

#### Using SAP HANA Information Models in SAP BW

We discussed SAP BW running on SAP HANA in the SAP HANA as a Database section of <u>Chapter 3</u> (see also <u>Figure 3.11</u>).

SAP BW has its own information modeling objects—for example, InfoCubes and Data Store Objects (DSOs). The objects in SAP BW are built in the application server layer. Even if SAP BW is powered by SAP HANA and these SAP BW objects are optimized for SAP HANA, they are still completely different from the normal SAP HANA information models, like calculation views.



Figure 15.13 SAP BW Information Objects and SAP HANA Information Models Together

You can have a single SAP HANA system in which one portion is used as the SAP HANA database for an SAP BW system and another portion is used for SAP HANA as a platform. Let's call the SAP BW portion *BW1* and the SAP HANA platform portion *HA1*, as shown in Figure 15.13.

The BW1 portion will contain SAP BW modeling objects, and the HA1 portion will contain SAP HANA calculation views.

In a system like this, we can perform the following tasks:

- ► Enable the SAP BW system to consume the SAP HANA calculation views from the HA1 portion.
- Get the SAP BW system to generate normal SAP HANA views in HA1 to expose the SAP BW information for consumption by SAP HANA.

You can use the HA1 portion with all the standard SAP HANA modeling, data provisioning, and utilization techniques.

#### SAP BW Consuming SAP HANA Information Models

Say that you have built a calculation view in the HA1 portion. You can use that calculation view in the BW1 portion and make it available for the SAP BW application server by creating a Transient Provider in SAP BW. You can combine this calculation view with another SAP BW cube by using a Composite Provider. In this way, you can combine historical data in the SAP BW system with operational data in the SAP HANA system.

#### SAP BW Generating SAP HANA Views

SAP BW powered by SAP HANA is also able to automatically create a calculation view in the HA1 portion. This calculation view exposes the data in an SAP BW cube or DSO. You can then combine the SAP BW–created calculation view with other SAP HANA views, and can then consume SAP BW data inside SAP HANA.

When you change the structure of your SAP BW information objects, the SAP BW–created calculation view will be recreated automatically.

# **Important Terminology**

In this chapter, the following important terms were discussed:

#### Business intelligence

Taking raw (transactional) business data and transforming it into useful information for the purpose of business analysis. Building information models in SAP HANA can be seen as part of this process. Business intelligence can contain the following:

- Reporting
- Analytics
- Complex event processing
- Predictive analytics
- Prescriptive analytics
- Text mining, data mining, and process mining
- OLAP

### Report

A document that can contain information organized in a tabular or a graphical format.

#### Professionally authored tools

These types of tools expect IT folks, creators, analysts, data scientists, and power users to be the creators and designers.

#### Self-service tools

These types of tools allow the average end users, decision makers, and power users to find, discover, visualize, and consume information.

# Practice Questions

These practice questions will help you evaluate your understanding of the topics covered in this chapter. The questions shown are similar in nature to those found on the certification examination. Although none of these questions will be found on the exam itself, they will allow you to review your knowledge of the subject. Select the correct answers, and then check the completeness of your answers in the Practice Question Answers and Explanations section. Remember that on the exam you must select all correct answers and only correct answers to receive credit for the question.

- 1. You need a business intelligence tool that is Microsoft Excel-based and can use parent-child hierarchies. Which tool do you use?
- □ A. SAP Lumira
- □ **B.** SAP BusinessObjects Design Studio
- □ C. SAP BusinessObjects Web Intelligence
- D. SAP BusinessObjects Analysis, edition for OLAP
- 2. You are given an old government paper form with lines, blocks, and fields. You are asked to create a report that looks like this form. Which business intelligence tools do you use?
- □ A. SAP BusinessObjects Web Intelligence
- □ **B.** SAP Crystal Reports for Enterprise
- □ C. SAP BusinessObjects Design Studio
- D. SAP Lumira
- 3. You have a discussion with board members of a company. They want your recommendation on a business intelligence tool that they can use on their Apple iPad to display KPI dashboards. They also want a WYSIWYG design environment that allows scripting, should it be required. Which tool do you recommend?
- □ A. SAP BusinessObjects Design Studio
- □ **B.** SAP Lumira
- □ **C.** SAP Crystal Reports for Enterprise
- D. SAP BusinessObjects Web Intelligence
- 4. What do you use a Transient Provider for?
- □ **A.** To use an SAP HANA calculation view in Microsoft Excel
- □ **B.** To expose an SAP HANA calculation view as an OData web service
- □ C. To expose an SAP BW information object inside SAP HANA
- **D.** To use an SAP HANA calculation view in the SAP BW application

- 5. You want to publish your business intelligence content directly to SAP Cloud for Analytics. Which tool do you use? (There are 2 correct answers.)
- □ **A.** SAP Predictive Analytics
- □ **B.** SAP Lumira
- □ **C.** SAP Crystal Reports for Enterprise
- D. SAP BusinessObjects Analysis, edition for Microsoft Office
- 6. Which business intelligence tool queries SAP HANA using MDX?
- □ A. SAP BusinessObjects Analysis, edition for Microsoft Office
- □ **B.** SAP Lumira
- □ C. SAP BusinessObjects Web Intelligence
- □ **D.** Microsoft Excel
- 7. Which business intelligence tools use BICS connectivity to SAP HANA? (There are 2 correct answers.)
- □ **A.** Microsoft Excel
- □ B. SAP BusinessObjects Analysis, edition for Microsoft Office
- □ **C.** SAP Lumira
- D. SAP BusinessObjects Design Studio
- 8. Which business intelligence tool can publish storyboards?
- □ A. SAP BusinessObjects Analysis, edition for Microsoft Office
- □ **B.** SAP BusinessObjects Design Studio
- □ C. SAP BusinessObjects Web Intelligence
- D. SAP Predictive Analytics
- 9. Which of the following ways of publishing SAP HANA information model content could require some JavaScript knowledge? (There are 2 correct answers.)
- □ A. Creating business intelligence content with SAP BusinessObjects Design Studio
- □ **B.** Creating a composite provider in SAP BW
- □ C. Creating a report in SAP Crystal Reports for Enterprise
- D. Creating a REST web service in the SAP HANA XS engine

## **Practice Question Answers and Explanations**

1. Correct answer: C

SAP BusinessObjects Analysis, edition for Microsoft Office is Excel-based and can handle parent-child hierarchies.None of the other three business intelligence tools are Excel-based

2. Correct answer: B

SAP Crystal Reports for Enterprise create pixel-perfect reports. SAP Business-Objects Design Studio is not a reporting tool. SAP BusinessObjects Web Intelligence SAP Lumira are not used for creating pixel-perfect reports.

3. Correct answer: A

SAP BusinessObjects Design Studio can display results on a mobile device, has a WYSIWYG design environment and scripting, and can be used to create dashboards. SAP Lumira and SAP BusinessObjects Web Intelligence are not dashboard-building tools.

4. Correct answer: C

You use a Transient Provider to expose an SAP BW information object inside SAP HANA. See SAP BW Consuming SAP HANA Information Models.

5. Correct answers: A, B

SAP Lumira can publish your business intelligence content directly to the SAP Cloud for Analytics. SAP Predictive Analytics is built on SAP Lumira. See the SAP Cloud for Analytics section.

6. Correct answer: D

Microsoft Excel queries SAP HANA using MDX via the ODBO driver. See <u>Figure 15.2</u>. It is the only business intelligence tool in this chapter that uses the ODBO driver.

7. Correct answers: B, D

SAP BusinessObjects Analysis and SAP BusinessObjects Design Studio use BICS.

8. Correct answer: D

SAP Predictive Analytics is based on SAP Lumira, and SAP Lumira can publish storyboards.

9. Correct answers: A, D

JavaScript knowledge may be required for SAP BusinessObjects Design Studio (see <u>Figure 15.6</u>) and when creating a REST web service (see Using SAP HANA Information Models in SAP HANA XS). You create a composite provider in SAP BW via the application server, and the process does not require coding. Creating a report in SAP Crystal Reports for Enterprise does not require JavaScript.

## Takeaway

You now should understand general concepts of business intelligence when using SAP HANA information models. You learned about the different SAP business intelligence tools, their characteristics and high-level features, and when to use a particular tool.

In addition, you learned about some of the alternatives for providing information from SAP HANA to business users—for example, using the SAP HANA XS engine or SAP BW.

## Summary

In this chapter, we looked at various business intelligence concepts—for example, differentiating between creators and consumers of business information. Once we had discussed the strategic direction of the different SAP business intelligence tools, we covered the tools in more detail and summarized their features in the fact sheets. We also discussed when to use which tool, and we presented alternative ways of utilizing SAP HANA information models.

This chapter completes your learning experience with SAP HANA modeling. We wish you the best of luck with your SAP HANA certification exam.

# **The Author**



**Rudi de Louw** is an SAP HANA architect for SAP in South Africa, as well as an international speaker and trainer, principal consultant, and mentor. He has been working with SAP HANA for more than 5 years, and is the SAP HANA and big data market unit champion. He helped to set up several SAP HANA certification exams and is also the content owner for the SAP HANA professional certification examination.

Rudi has provided software and technology solutions to

businesses for more than 25 years, and has been with SAP since 1999. He has a passion for sharing knowledge, understanding new technologies, and finding innovative ways to leverage these to help people in their development.

## Index

#### Α

ABAP, 477 ABC analysis algorithm, 329 Accelerator deployment, 84 profitability analysis, 84 ACID-compliant database, 75 Administration, 367, 368 Administration Console, 152, 163, 343, 352, 360, 365 diagnosis files, 163 performance, 163 Affinity propagation, 328 Aggregation node, 197, 213, 216, 219 calculated columns, 226 restricted columns, 232 Aggregations, 129, 136, 344 Algorithms, 327 Amazon Web Services (AWS), 47, 49, 88, 94 American National Standards Institute (ANSI), 271 Analytic privileges, 449, 460, 465 assign to role, 450 create, 450 migration, 455, 463 Analytic views, 123, 136, 137, 144, 182, 208, 215 calculate before aggregation, 229 create, 186 migration, 209 temporal joins, 220 vs. calculation views of type cube with star join, 208 Analytics, 159, 517, 538 API, 318, 333 SAP HANA simple info access (SINA), 318 SAP HANA Text Analysis XS JavaScript, 322 SAP HANA Text Mining XS JavaScript, 322 Application Function Library (AFL), 278, 329 Application Function Modeler (AFM), 179, 330, 331, 332, 336 editor, 168 PAL, 168

Applications, 344 development, 167 privileges, 457 Apriori algorithm, 328 Architects, 25 Architecture, 69, 90, 343, 359 Association algorithms, 328 Asynchronous replication, 79 Attribute views, 123, 136, 144, 182, 205, 217 create, 186 derived, 207 migration, 185, 209 vs. calculation view of type dimension, 205 Attributes, 101, 120, 121, 135 calculated columns, 228 geographic, 254 restricted columns, 232 restrictions, 453 vocabulary, 252 Authentications, 441 Authorization Assistant, 436 Authorizations, 359, 441, 442 Auto Documentation, 387, 392, 397 Automated predictive library, 531 Average, 129

#### В

Backups, 76, 154 Best practices, 134 BEx Analyzer, 522 Big data, 493 *limitations*, 493 BIGINT, 307 Bookmark questions, 59 Bottlenecks, 69 Branch logic, 359 Bring-your-own-license, 89 Business Explorer (BEx), 519 Business Function Library (BFL), 329 Business information, 513 Business intelligence, 513, 514 applications and dashboards, 527 choosing the right tool, 533 consuming information models, 515 convergence of tools, 517 data discovery, 529 fact sheet, 523 history, 516 reporting, 532 tools, 519 Business Intelligence Consumer Services (BICS), 476, 504, 526, 540 Business rules, 250 BW362, 29, 38

### С

C HANAIMP, 27 C\_HANAIMP\_11, 17, 24 scoring, 33 C\_HANATEC, 27, 29 C4.5 decision tree, 331 Caching, 127 Calculated columns, 102, 223, 225, 226, 258, 260, 276, 278 analytic views, 263 counters, 230 create, 226 input parameters, 244 Calculation engine, 346, 365 Calculation view of type cube, 124, 136, 144, 183, 214, 216 aggregation node, 219 create, 188 Calculation view of type cube with star join, 123, 136, 144, 183, 208, 210, 214, 220 advantages, 209 create, 188 star join node, 200, 219 vs. analytic views, 208 Calculation view of type dimension, 123, 136, 144, 183, 189, 205, 214, 217 create, 187 migration, 210 projection node, 219

Calculation views, 126, 185, 263, 346, 536 adding data sources, 192 adding nodes, 191 create, 186 creating joins, 193 default nodes, 190 output area, 246 save and activate, 196 selecting output fields, 194 variables, 241 Calculations, 134, 345 CALL statement, 290 Cardinality, 106, 193, 356, 358, 361 many-to-many, 107 many-to-one, 107 one-to-many, 106 one-to-one, 106 types, 106 Catalog, 178 SAP HANA studio, 155, 156, 176 SAP HANA web-based development workbench, 171 table context menu, 156 table preview, 172 tables, 156 CDS views, 117, 135, 139 ABAP, 118 benefits, 117 data sources, 118 Certification prefixes, 26 track, 23 Change and Transport System (CTS), 376 Characteristics, 120 Circularstring, 324 Classical analytic privileges, 204 Classification algorithms, 328 Classroom training, 36 Clients, 168 Client-side JavaScript, 86 Cloud, 170 deployments, 87 Clustering algorithms, 327, 329 Cold data, 79 Column, 103 engine, 346

Column (Cont.) store, 156 table, 78, 157, 272 views, 156 Column Views folder, 373 Columnar storage, 344, 361 Column-based databases, 73 input parameters, 243, 259 storage, 73 table, 68, 156, 176 Column-oriented tables, 103 Comments, 387 Complex event processing, 517, 538 Composite Provider, 537 Compression, 62 Computation Continuous Language (CCL), 499 Conditional statements, 278 Consumers. 520 Consumption, 534 Contains predicate, 317 Content, 159 create modeling object, 162 packages, 159 SAP HANA studio, 155, 159 SHINE package, 161 subpackages, 159 Context menu, 156 Controllers. 535 Convergence, 517 Core Data Services (CDS), 101, 117, 145, 184, 213, 315, 383, 393 Count, 129 Counters, 230, 258 new, 231 CPU in parallel, 71 speed, 64 Create Fulltext Index, 314 Creators, 520 CSS, 86, 151 CSV files, 500 Cubes, 101, 119, 135, 137, 144 Currency, 246, 248 conversion, 247, 248

Currency (Cont.) conversion options, 249 conversion schema, 249 decimal shift, 248 decimal shift back, 249 source and target, 247 Currency conversions, 102, 223, 259, 261, 278, 299 Customer query views, 411, 424

#### D

Dashboards, 534 Data aging, 72, 79 archiving, 494 backups, 76 category, 187, 188 compression, 343, 361 discovery, 519, 529 federation, 488 filter, 276 foundation, 122, 126, 135, 145, 251, 345 integration specialist, 25 lakes, 493 noise, 328 persistence, 77 provisioning specialist, 25 read, 276, 361 records, 272 scientists, 25 sources, 184, 213 streaming, 497 types, 273 volume, 76, 77, 78, 79, 99 Data Control Language (DCL), 273, 306 Data Definition Language (DDL), 273, 284, 306 Data foundation node, 215 Data Manipulation Language (DML), 273, 306 Data modeling artifacts, 127, 136 concepts, 101 limit and filter, 134 Data preview, 157 analysis, 159

Data preview (Cont.) distinct values, 159 sort current dataset, 158 sort entire dataset, 158 sorting and exporting, 158 Data provisioning, 467, 502 concepts, 470 replication vs extractors, 486 tools, 469 Data Query Language (DQL), 273, 301, 306 Database administrators. 25 column-oriented, 68 connections, 475 deployment, 82, 83 development, 167 migration, 82, 90 to platform, 69 views, 104 Datahub. 54 Datasets, 54 DataStore Object (DSO), 475 Decimal shift, 262 Decision tables, 102, 184, 213 trees, 328 Decision tables, 223, 250, 261, 263 create, 251 nodes, 252 output fields, 252 Declarative logic, 281 Dedicated hardware, 79 Default schema, 284, 289 Default view node, 190 Definer, 284 Delimited identifiers, 274, 306 Delivery units, 367, 375, 376, 391, 397, 462 Delta, 503 buffer, 73, 74, 278, 299, 344 load, 473, 484, 503 merge, 73, 74, 344 store, 74 Deployment, 61 accelerator, 84 cloud, 87 database, 82, 83

Deployment (Cont.) development platform, 84, 85 scenarios, 61, 79, 93 sidecar solution, 80 virtual machine, 87 Deprecate, 204, 216, 386 Derived attribute views, 207 Derived From Procedure/Scalar Function input parameter, 243, 259 Derived From Table input parameter, 243, 259 Design-time definitions, 373 objects, 368 roles, 445 Design-time objects, 372, 390, 393 CDS, 383, 398 delivery units, 397 Developer Mode, 377, 391, 399 Developer perspective, 153, 164 *Repositories tab*, 153 Systems tab, 153 Developers, 25 Development object, 167 system, 250, 375, 390 Development platform deployment, 84 programming languages, 85 SAP HANA XS, 85 Diagnosis Files tab, 163, 353 Dictionary compression, 68 Dimension tables, 119, 120, 125, 135 Dimension views, 123, 125, 136, 183, 185, 200, 205, 217, 361 Direct input parameter, 243, 258 Disaster recovery, 79 Distinct values, 159 Distributed database, 75 Documentation, 387 Domain fix values, 238, 258, 260 Dynamic data tiering, 79 join, 110, 116, 135, 194, 345 restrictions, 454 SQL, 282, 295

Ε

E HANAAW ABAP certification, 29 E\_HANABW SAP BW on SAP HANA certification, 29 E\_HANAINS installation certification, 29 Eclipse, 151, 153 Editor, 173 SAP HANA web-based development workbench, 173 E-learning, 36 Elimination technique, 58 Engines, 346, 358, 362 Entity analysis, 320 Exam objects, 31 process, 33 questions, 56 structure, 31 EXEC statement, 282 Execution plan, 350, 351 Explain Plan, 343, 347, 360, 362, 365 Export, 376, 379, 395 delivery units, 368 information models, 368 Expression Editor, 228 calculated columns, 227 elements, 228 functions area, 228 operators area, 228 restricted columns, 233 Expressions, 223, 273 Extract, Transform, and Load (ETL), 471, 502 Extraction, 471

#### F

Facets, 120 Fact tables, 101, 119, 121, 122, 126, 135 Fault-tolerant text search, 314, 316 Fields *hide*, 216 *original*, 215 *output*, 194 *rename*, 215 Filters, 169, 236, 258, 345, 358, 462 *expressions*, 223, 237, 263 Filters (Cont.) operations, 223 operators, 236 variables, 239 Flat files, 500 use cases, 501 Flowgraph, 164, 167 For loop, 281 Free access. 46 Freestyle search, 317 Full outer join, 108, 110, 194 Full-text index, 314, 316, 320, 332, 334 columns, 315 hidden column, 316 Functions, 156, 274 Fuzzy text search, 207, 210, 278, 286, 299, 311, 313, 315, 316, 319, 332, 335 alternative names, 317

#### G

Generate SLT File, 419 GeoJSON, 326 Geospatial processing, 323 Global Temporary, 275 Global Temporary Column, 275 Google, 313 Grammatical Role Analysis (GRA), 322 Granted Roles tab, 442, 445 Graphical calculation views, 173, 174, 186, 385.422 decision tables, 250 refactoring and restructuring, 384 Graphical data models, 70, 97 Graphical flowgraph model, 331 Graphical information models, 358 Group by, 197, 216 Grouping sets, 359 Grubbs' test algorithm, 329 Guidelines, 134

#### Н

HA100, 37 HA215, 38 HA300, 38 HA400, 38 HA450, 38, 536 Hardware, 51 Hierarchies, 101, 132, 133, 223, 253 *BICS*, 254 *create*, 254 *MDX*, 254 *time-dependent*, 207, 256 *value help*, 257 High availability, 75 *shared disk storage*, 75 History, 386 *column*, 275 Hot data, 79, 495 HTML5, 85, 86, 151, 170 Hybrid cloud, 88, 91

## I

Identifiers, 273, 274 if(), 228, 278 Imperative logic, 281, 302, 359 Import, 376, 379 delivery units, 368 information models, 368 objects, 382, 383, 391 Index server, 77 Indexes, 156 InfoCubes, 536 InfoPackage, 475, 508 InfoProvider, 475 Information modelers. 25 Information models, 536 activate, 368, 369, 372, 394 administration, 367, 368 Auto Documentation, 387 build, 125 comments, 387 deprecated, 386, 395 documentation, 367, 369, 387 labels, 389 mass copy, 382 refactoring, 367, 369, 383, 392 SAP BW, 536 SAP HANA XS, 535, 542 schema mapping, 380 techniques, 345 translation, 367, 369, 389

Information models (Cont.) transport, 368, 374 utilization, 126, 513 validate, 21, 367, 368, 369 Information views, 122, 181 characteristics, 293 *data sources*, 184, 217 parameterized, 272 performance, 362 use, 124 Infrastructure as a Service (IaaS), 87 Initial load, 473, 480, 503 In-memory, 67, 72 data movement, 70 technology, 61, 63, 89, 361 In-Memory DataStore Object (IMDSO), 488 Inner join, 108, 109, 111, 135, 137, 144, 194 Input parameters, 102, 223, 242, 258 create, 243, 244 date, 246 expressions, 245 types, 243, 258 Insert-only, 74 principle, 344 International Organization for Standardization (ISO), 271 Internet of Things (IoT), 498 Interval, 239, 258 Invoker, 284 security, 307

#### J

Java, 151 Java Database Connectivity (JDBC), 476, 503 Java Virtual Machines, 151, 170 JavaScript, 85, 151 *server-side*, 86 Join node, 253, 260 *calculated columns*, 226 Joins, 102, 104, 107, 110, 135, 181, 193, 294, 356 *basic*, 108 *dynamic join*, 116 *engine*, 346 *node*, 191, 200, 213 *performance*, 361 Joins (Cont.) referential join, 111 relocation, 490 self-joins, 110 spatial join, 115 star joins, 122 temporal join, 113 text join, 112 types, 108

#### Κ

Kerberos, 462, 464 Key *field*, 104 *figures*, 119 K-means, 327

#### L

Language, 284, 289 detection, 314 Layered information views, 449 Lazy load, 78, 99 Left outer join, 108, 109, 113, 135, 144, 194, 220, 361 Level hierarchies, 132, 134, 254, 262 Line of business (LOB), 520 Linestring, 324 Link prediction algorithm, 329 Load, 471 Local Temporary, 275 Local Temporary Column, 275 Log backups, 77, 78 buffer, 78 volume, 77, 79, 99 Log-based replication, 484 Logical data warehouse, 494 joins, 122 Loops, 302, 307, 359

#### Μ

Main table, 107 Managed Cloud as a Service (MCaaS), 88 Many-to-many cardinality, 107 Many-to-one cardinality, 107 Mapping property, 194, 215, 219 Mass copy, 382, 394, 398 import, 382 Master data, 122, 135, 145, 214 Materialized views, 105 Maximum, 129 Measures, 101, 119, 121, 135, 138, 145 calculate before aggregation, 229 calculated columns, 228 restricted columns, 232 Memory blocks, 76 *dump*, 78 Microsoft Azure Cloud, 47, 49 Microsoft Excel, 540 datasheets, 500 on SAP HANA. 524 Microsoft Live Office, 522 Microsoft Office integration, 519, 534 Microsoft PowerPoint, 522 Migration, 211 Miscellaneous algorithms, 329 Mobile, 170 Modeler perspective, 153, 176 Modeling role, 444, 449, 460 Models, 535 Model-View-Controller (MVC), 85, 535 Monitoring role, 444, 460 Moore's Law, 63 Multicore CPUs, 343, 361 Multidimensional expressions (MDX), 476, 524 Multilevel aggregation, 292 Multilinestring, 324 Multiple choice questions, 56 Multiple response questions, 56 Multipoint, 324 Multipolygon, 324 Multitenancy, 86 Multitenant database container (MDC), 86, 184, 213

#### Ν

Native objects, 382, 392 Nodes, 181 NoSQL databases, 75 NULL, 274, 301, 306

#### 0

Object Linking and Embedding, Database (OLE DB), 503 Object Linking and Embedding, Database for Online Analytical Processing, 476 Object privileges, 448, 460 OData, 38, 85, 502, 509 service, 319 ODBO driver, 524 OLAP, 92, 343, 517, 538 engine, 346, 347, 413 vs. OLTP, 67 OLTP, 92, 343 vs. OLAP, 67 One-to-many cardinality, 106 One-to-one cardinality, 106 Online analytical processing, 406 Online transactional processing, 405 Open Content, 418 Open Cross Reference, 418 Open Database Connectivity (ODBC), 475, 503 Open Definition, 418 Open Geospatial Consortium (OGC), 325 Open View in Analysis Office, 420 Open View in SAP Lumira, 420 openHPI, 44 openSAP, 44, 536 certifications, 45 Operating system, 51 Operational reporting, 424, 426 Operators, 233, 273, 348, 352 Optimization, 341 best practices, 358 tools, 346 Oracle, 272 Outliers, 329 Output fields, 105, 194

#### Ρ

P\_HANAIMP, 28 Package privileges, 456 Page manager, 76, 77, 99 Pages, 76 Parallelism, 71, 344 Parameters, 290 Parent-child hierarchies, 132, 134, 254, 256, 260, 534 Partitioned tables, 75 Partitioning, 75 Performance, 343 analysis, 492 enhancements, 341 tab, 163, 352 Performance Analysis Mode, 179, 343, 354, 355, 360, 363, 365 Persistence layer, 61, 74, 75, 90 Perspectives, 152 change, 153 *list*, 153 modeler vs. developer, 153 PHP, 151 PL/SQL, 272 Plan visualization, 153 Platform as a Service (PaaS), 87 Point, 324 Polygon, 324 PostGIS, 325 Predicates, 273, 325 Predictive, 327 analytics, 517, 538 modeling, 311, 327, 330 Predictive Analysis Library (PAL), 168, 327, 331, 333, 336 algorithms, 329 Preprocessing algorithms, 328 Prescriptive analytics, 517, 538 Primary storage, 76 Private cloud, 88, 91 Private views, 410, 424 Privileges, 437, 460 analytic privileges, 449 application privileges, 457 object privileges, 448 package privileges, 456

Privileges (Cont.) system privileges, 447 types, 446 Procedures, 288, 293, 300, 303 characteristics, 294 create, 288 parameters, 290 read-only, 292 Production system, 250, 375, 390 Professionally authored, 520, 534 Project Explorer, 153, 166 Projection node, 198, 213, 260 calculated columns, 226 filters, 237 Projections, 127, 136, 276 Projects, 52, 53 Proof-of-concept (POC), 500 Provisioning, 155 Proxy tables, 488 Pruning configuration table, 201 Public cloud, 88, 91, 98

## Q

Quality assurance system, 250, 375, 390 Queries, 274 Query views, 411, 412, 424 Quick View tab, 152, 154, 455

#### R

R language, 85, 307, 531 Range, 239, 258 Rank node, 198, 213, 216 columns, 199 sorting, 198 Ranking, 128, 136 Raw data, 157 tab, 176 RDL\_USER, 459 Reads SQL data, 289 Real-time computing, 343, 361 data, 127 reporting, 105 Recursive tables, 110

Refactoring, 367, 383, 384, 392, 395, 396 deprecate, 386 history, 386 nodes in a graphical calculation view, 384 Where-Used, 386 Referential integrity, 111, 144 Referential join, 110, 111, 112, 114, 135, 137, 144, 194, 220, 345, 356 star joins, 122 Regression algorithms, 328 Release notes, 39 Replication, 79, 82, 473 log-based, 484 trigger-based, 479 REPO.EXPORT, 448 REPO.IMPORT, 448 REPO.MAINTAIN\_DELIVERY\_ **UNITS**, 448 REPO.WORK\_IN\_FOREIGN\_ WORKSPACE, 448 Report writers, 25 Reporting, 515, 517, 519, 538 system, 406 Reports, 516 Repository create, 165 icon, 165 objects, 372, 390, 445 tab, 165 workspace, 165 Repository Translation Tool (RTT), 389 REST, 38, 85, 502 Restricted columns, 223, 231, 232, 258 create, 233 operators, 233 using calculated columns, 235 Restrictions, 452, 453 Restructuring, 384 Returns, 284 Reuse views, 410, 412, 424 Right outer join, 108, 110, 138, 144, 194 Right-click menu, 156 Roles, 433, 437, 443, 459 choosing, 442 composite role, 437, 459 create, 444 new, 444

Roles (Cont.) template roles, 443, 444 Root package privilege, 457 Row, 103 engine, 346 storage, 344 store, 156 Row-based databases. 73 storage, 73 tables, 68, 156, 176 Row-oriented tables, 103 Ruby, 151 Runtime information, 157 Runtime objects, 368, 397 CDS, 383 Runtime roles, 445 Runtime version, 373, 390

## S

Sales forecasting, 327 Sandbox, 500 SAP Basis, 27 SAP Business Suite, 479 SAP Business Warehouse (BW), 82 SAP BusinessObjects Analysis, edition for Microsoft Office, 519, 522, 525, 539, 541 information, 526 plug-in, 526 SAP BusinessObjects BI Mobile, 529 SAP BusinessObjects Design Studio, 519, 521, 527, 529, 539, 540 dashboard, 528 information, 527 SAP BusinessObjects Web Intelligence, 519, 532 information, 532 SAP BW, 121, 156, 435, 475, 486, 517, 536 consume calculation views, 537 consume information models, 537, 541 generate SAP HANA views, 537 SAP BW on SAP HANA, 38, 51, 82, 156, 464 SAP Cloud Appliance Library, 49, 50 SAP Cloud for Analytics, 522, 529, 540 SAP Community Network (SCN), 41 SAP CRM, 435

SAP Crystal Reports, 519, 532 SAP Crystal Reports 2011/2013, 533, 539 SAP Crystal Reports for Enterprise, 533, 539, 540 information, 533 SAP Data Quality Management, 478 SAP Data Services, 476, 505 benefits, 478 extracting data, 477 transforming and cleaning data, 478 SAP Direct Extractor Connection (DXC), 477, 485, 487 SAP Education, 35 SAP ERP, 408, 435 SAP ERP on SAP HANA, 156 SAP extractors, 474, 503 SAP Fiori, 86 SAP HANA as a database, 82, 83 as a development platform, 84, 85 as a sidecar solution, 80, 81 as a virtual machine, 87 as an accelerator, 84 clients, 475 in the cloud, 87 reference guides, 40 training courses, 35, 37 SAP HANA Academy, 41 SAP HANA application function modeler (AFM), 168 SAP HANA Application Lifecycle Manager, 329, 378, 391 SAP HANA as a database, 409 security, 435 SAP HANA as a platform, 90 security, 436, 461 SAP HANA as a sidecar, 409 security, 436 SAP HANA Business Function Library (BFL) Reference, 41 SAP HANA certifications associate level. 27 professional level, 28 specialist level, 28 SAP HANA Cloud Platform, 47, 48, 87, 89, 522 SAP HANA Developer Center, 46

SAP HANA Developer Guide, 41 SAP HANA Developer Quick Start Guide, 41 SAP HANA Enterprise Cloud (HEC), 88, 89, 91,94 private cloud, 89 SAP HANA Enterprise Information Management, 495 SAP HANA Interactive Education (SHINE), 39.530 SAP HANA Live, 364, 403, 404, 461, 464 architecture. 410 background information, 405 definition, 405 installation, 413, 425 rapid deployment solution, 415 security, 436 SQL engine, 346 tags, 419 views, 403, 412, 422, 424 SAP HANA Live Browser, 403, 414, 415, 425 all views, 416 for business users, 421, 430 invalid views, 416 my favorites, 416 toolbar, 418 SAP HANA Live Extension Assistant, 403, 414, 422, 425, 426 restrictions, 423 SAP HANA Modeling Guide, 39 SAP HANA Predictive Analysis Library (PAL) Reference, 41 SAP HANA Security Guide, 40 SAP HANA simple info access (SINA) API, 318, 333 SAP HANA smart data access (SDA), 79, 356, 488 adapters, 488 benefits, 495 data archiving, 494 implementation, 490 virtual tables, 488 SAP HANA smart data integration (SDI), 168, 495, 496 SAP HANA smart data quality (SDQ), 495, 496

SAP HANA smart data streaming (SDS), 168, 497, 498, 517 benefits, 499 SAP HANA SPS 10, 322 SAP HANA SPS 11, 283, 295, 319, 455 SAP HANA SQLScript Reference, 40 SAP HANA studio, 149, 150, 151, 175, 445, 514 Administration Console, 163 Backup, 154 Catalog, 155 Content, 155, 159 create calculation view, 187 data preview, 534 development object, 167 installation, 52 main workspace, 154 perspectives, 152 Provisioning, 155 Quick View tab, 152 screen, 152 security, 156 session client, 152, 168 SQL Console, 162 systems view, 154 working areas, 152 XS project, 166 SAP HANA Text Analysis XS JavaScript API, 322 SAP HANA Troubleshooting and Performance Analysis Guide, 40 SAP HANA web-based development workbench, 52, 150, 170, 175, 414, 445 editor, 171 performance analysis mode, 174 table data, 172 SAP HANA XS, 85, 86, 179, 291, 317, 535, 541 application privileges, 457, 460 project, 166 SAP HANA XS DB Utilities JavaScript API Reference, 41 SAP HANA XS JavaScript API Reference, 41 SAP HANA XS JavaScript Reference, 40 SAP HANA XSUnit JavaScript API Reference, 41 SAP Help, 39

SAP Hybris, 88 SAP InfiniteInsight, 530 SAP landscape, 375 SAP Learning Hub, 37 SAP LT Replication Server (SLT), 409, 478 benefits, 483 configuration, 482 features, 481 replication process, 480 trigger-based replication, 480 SAP Lumira, 54, 421, 519, 521, 529, 531, 540 charts, 530 information, 529 storyboard, 531 SAP NetWeaver old architecture, 65 SAP Predictive Analytics, 529, 530, 540 SAP Replication Server (SRS), 484 benefits, 485 log-based replication, 484 SAP resources, 39 SAP S/4HANA, 72, 80, 86, 97, 464 SAP Solution Manager, 376 SAP Store, 53 SAP SuccessFactors, 88 SAP Support Mode, 377, 391 SAPUI5, 25, 38, 41, 85, 86 Developer Guide for SAP HANA, 41 views, 535 Savepoint, 76, 78, 99 Scalable Vector Graphic (SVG), 326 Scalar functions, 269, 283, 285 Scale-out architecture, 75 Schema, 156, 162, 394, 396 mapping, 367, 368, 380, 393 tables, 156 SCORE() function, 317 Scripted calculation views migrate, 297 Search, 314 Seasonal patterns, 327 Secondary storage, 76 Security, 282, 359, 433, 438 concepts, 435, 437 SAP HANA studio, 156

Security (Cont.) SAP HANA web-based development workbench, 171 testing, 458 usage, 438 Segmentation, 328 SELECT \*, 301, 306 SELECT statement, 276 Self-joins, 110, 135 Self-service, 520, 523, 534 Semantics node, 202, 208, 214, 215 Column tab, 202 hide fields, 203 hierarchies, 254 input parameters, 242 renaming fields, 202 session client, 204 top node, 189 variables, 239 View Properties tab, 203 Sentiment analysis, 320, 334 Separate statements, 279 Sequential execution, 289 Servers, 75 Session client, 152, 168, 440 settings, 169 Set-oriented, 272, 300 Shared hardware, 79 SHINE, 53, 118, 160, 161, 287, 326, 347 datasets. 54 Show Line Numbers, 162 Sidecar deployment, 80 advantages, 81 blank system, 82 SINA, 318, 333 Single sign-on, 441, 462 Single value, 239, 258 Slow disk, 67 Social network analysis algorithms, 329 Software, 51 Software as a Service (SaaS), 88 Spatial data, 323 data types, 278, 300 functions, 326 *import data*, 325 join, 115, 135, 194, 209, 220, 323, 324 Spatial (Cont.) join type, 278 processing, 311, 323, 333 properties, 324 SQL, 85, 269, 272, 341 analytic privileges, 204, 452, 455, 462, 463, 465 button, 162 conditional statements, 278 creating calculated columns, 276 creating projections, 276 creating tables, 275 creating unions, 277 Data Definition Language, 273 Data Manipulation Language, 273 dynamic, 282, 302, 307 engine, 204, 346, 413, 422, 425 Expression Editor, 228 filter data, 276 guidelines, 359 language, 272 reading data, 276 security, 284, 289 set-oriented, 272 statements, 162 Structured Query Language, 271, 299 views, 105, 184, 213 SQL Console, 152, 162, 290, 347, 353 schemas, 162 text editors, 162 SQL Editor, 454 SQL Plan Cache, 365 SQLScript, 85, 269, 272, 278, 292, 307, 331, 341, 359, 362, 384 compiler, 279 decision tables, 253 declarative logic, 281 dynamic SQL, 282 for loop, 281 multilevel aggregation, 292 optimizer, 279 procedures, 288 security, 282, 283 separate statements, 279 while loop, 281 Standard deviation, 129

Standard (Cont.) union, 200 Star join node, 209, 213, 215, 217, 219 calculated columns, 226 data foundation, 199 restricted columns, 232 Star join views, 123, 126, 136 analytic views, 123 calculation view of type cube with star join, 123 Star joins, 122 referential joins, 122 Statements, 274 Static List input parameter, 243, 259 Statistics algorithms, 329 Stored procedures, 70, 97, 288 Structured Query Language, 271, 299 Subtype, 188 Sum, 129 Supervised learning, 328, 336 Synchronous, 99 replication, 79 \_SYS\_REPO, 284, 440, 454, 459, 461 SYSTEM, 439, 458, 459 System administrator, 369 System identity (SID), 156 System privileges, 447 types, 447 Systems tab, 438 Systems view, 154, 162, 177 folders, 154

#### Т

Tables, 103 context menu, 176 create, 275 data preview, 157 data source, 184, 213 definitions, 156 export data, 378 functions, 251, 269, 283, 286 join, 345 left and right, 107 link, 104 partitioned, 75 recursive, 110 Tables (Cont.) select, 104 table definitions, 156 types, 251, 275 Technical performance tuning experts, 25 Template roles, 443 modeling role, 444, 460 monitoring role, 444, 460 Temporal join, 110, 113, 114, 135, 137, 144, 220 Tenant, 86 Text, 311, 314 analysis, 333 editors, 162 index, 314 mining, 333 Text analysis, 311, 314 results, 321 usage, 320 Text join, 110, 112, 113, 135, 138, 144, 145, 194, 369 left outer join, 113 Text mining, 311, 313, 314, 315, 322 capabilities, 322, 333 Threshold value, 356 Time dimensions, 188 Time series, 328 Time-based calculation views, 189, 215 Time-dependent hierarchies, 207, 256 value help, 257 Timeline view, 351 Trace configuration, 354 Traces, 171 SAP Web-based Development Workbench, 171 Training courses, 26, 37, 38 BW362, 29, 38 HA100, 27, 32, 37 HA200, 27 HA215, 38 HA300, 27, 32, 38 HA360, 32, 38 HA400, 29, 38 HA450, 38 HA900, 32, 38 SAPX05, 38 Transaction Control Language (TCL), 273

Transaction manager, 77, 99 Transactional data, 135 Transact-SQL (T-SQL), 272 Transform, 471 Transient Provider, 537, 539 Translate, 367, 389 *labels*, 389 *Repository Translation Tool (RTT)*, 389 Transport, 374, 378, 393, 395 *delivery unit*, 378 *export and import*, 376 *information models*, 368 TREAT expression, 324 Trigger, 479 Trusted data, 521, 534

#### U

UDF, 283, 284, 288, 300, 302 characteristics, 294 Undelimited identifier, 274 Unicode, 274, 481 Union node, 200, 214 pruning configuration table, 201 Union with constant values, 200 Unions, 104, 126, 129, 130, 136, 154, 345, 361 all, 130 creating, 277 pruning, 362 with constant values, 130 Universe, 534 User, 433, 437, 439 \_SYS\_REPO user, 440 create, 440 new, 440 SYSTEM, 439

#### V

Validation rules, 357, 369, 370, 390, 393 errors, 371, 394 examples, 369 Value help, 233 hierarchies, 257 views, 411, 424 Variables, 223, 238, 258, 261, 262, 279 create, 239, 240 modeling, 239 types, 239, 258 Variance, 129 VDA, 405 View Editor, 355 Views, 101, 102, 103, 135, 136, 293, 449 disappear, 105 save, 105 Virtual classrooms, 36 Virtual data model (VDM), 403, 410 Virtual machines, 94 Virtual tables, 156, 184, 213, 251, 488, 489, 495 add, 491 using, 492 vs native tables, 489 Visualize Plan, 343, 348, 360, 363, 365 Visualize View in PlanViz Editor, 355

VMware, 52 VMware vSphere, 87, 94, 98

#### W

Warm data, 79, 495 Web *applications*, 534 *services*, 85, 502 Web-based development tool, 175 Weighted score tables, 329 Well-Known Binary (WKB), 325 Well-Known Text (WKT), 325 Where-Used, 385, 395 While loop, 281 With results view, 289 Workspace root, 165

#### Х

XML-based analytic privileges, 452

## **Service Pages**

The following sections contain notes on how you can contact us.

#### **Praise and Criticism**

We hope that you enjoyed reading this book. If it met your expectations, please do recommend it. If you think there is room for improvement, please get in touch with the editor of the book: <a href="mailto:sarahf@rheinwerk-publishing.com">sarahf@rheinwerk-publishing.com</a>. We welcome every suggestion for improvement but, of course, also any praise!

You can also share your reading experience via Twitter, Facebook, or email.

#### Supplements

Supplements (sample code, exercise materials, lists, and so on) are provided in your online library and on the web catalog page for this book. You can directly navigate to this page using the following link: <u>http://www.sap-press.com/3859</u>. Should we learn about typos that alter the meaning or content errors, we will provide a list with corrections there, too.

#### **Technical Issues**

If you experience technical issues with your e-book or e-book account at SAP PRESS, please feel free to contact our reader service: <u>support@rheinwerk-publishing.</u> <u>com</u>.

#### About Us and Our Program

The website <u>http://www.sap-press.com</u> provides detailed and first-hand information on our current publishing program. Here, you can also easily order all of our books and e-books. Information on Rheinwerk Publishing Inc. and additional contact options can also be found at <u>http://www.sap-press.com</u>.

## Legal Notes

This section contains the detailed and legally binding usage conditions for this e-book.

## **Copyright Note**

This publication is protected by copyright in its entirety. All usage and exploitation rights are reserved by the author and Rheinwerk Publishing; in particular the right of reproduction and the right of distribution, be it in printed or electronic form.

#### © 2016 by Rheinwerk Publishing, Inc., Boston (MA)

#### Your Rights as a User

You are entitled to use this e-book for personal purposes only. In particular, you may print the e-book for personal use or copy it as long as you store this copy on a device that is solely and personally used by yourself. You are not entitled to any other usage or exploitation.

In particular, it is not permitted to forward electronic or printed copies to third parties. Furthermore, it is not permitted to distribute the e-book on the Internet, in intranets, or in any other way or make it available to third parties. Any public exhibition, other publication, or any reproduction of the e-book beyond personal use are expressly prohibited. The aforementioned does not only apply to the e-book in its entirety but also to parts thereof (e.g., charts, pictures, tables, sections of text).

Copyright notes, brands, and other legal reservations as well as the digital watermark may not be removed from the e-book.

### **Digital Watermark**

This e-book copy contains a **digital watermark**, a signature that indicates which person may use this copy. If you, dear reader, are not this person, you are violating the copyright. So please refrain from using this e-book and inform us about this violation. A brief email to <u>info@rheinwerk-publishing.com</u> is sufficient. Thank you!

#### Trademarks

The common names, trade names, descriptions of goods, and so on used in this publication may be trademarks without special identification and subject to legal regulations as such.

All of the screenshots and graphics reproduced in this book are subject to copyright © SAP SE, Dietmar-Hopp-Allee 16, 69190 Walldorf, Germany. SAP, the SAP logo, ABAP, Ariba, ASAP, Duet, hybris, SAP Adaptive Server Enterprise, SAP Advantage Database Server, SAP Afaria, SAP ArchiveLink, SAP Business ByDesign, SAP Business Explorer (SAP BEx), SAP BusinessObjects, SAP BusinessObjects Web Intelligence, SAP Business One, SAP BusinessObjects Explorer, SAP Business Workflow, SAP Crystal Reports, SAP d-code, SAP EarlyWatch, SAP Fiori, SAP Ganges, SAP Global Trade Services (SAP GTS), SAP GoingLive, SAP HANA, SAP Jam, SAP Lumira, SAP MaxAttention, SAP MaxDB, SAP NetWeaver, SAP PartnerEdge, SAPPHIRE NOW, SAP PowerBuilder, SAP PowerDesigner, SAP R/2, SAP R/3, SAP Replication Server, SAP SI, SAP SQL Anywhere, SAP Strategic Enterprise Management (SAP SEM), SAP StreamWork, SuccessFactors, Sybase, TwoGo by SAP, and The Best-Run Businesses Run SAP are registered or unregistered trademarks of SAP SE, Walldorf, Germany.

#### **Limitation of Liability**

Regardless of the care that has been taken in creating texts, figures, and programs, neither the publisher nor the author, editor, or translator assume any legal responsibility or any liability for possible errors and their consequences.